Public Document Pack

Lewisham Council
Members

Members of the committee, listed below, are summoned to attend the meeting to be held
on Wednesday, 26 February 2014.

g\ i

Barry Quirk, Chief Executive
February 18 2014

Councillor Olufunke Abidoye
Councillor Jackie Addison
Councillor Obajimi Adefiranye
Councillor Anne Affiku
Councillor Christine Allison
Councillor Abdeslam Amrani
Councillor Pauline Beck
Councillor Paul Bell
Councillor Chris Best
Councillor Kevin Bonavia
Councillor John Bowen
Councillor David Britton
Councillor Duwayne Brooks
Mayor Sir Steve Bullock
Councillor Suzannah Clarke
Councillor Jenni Clutten
Councillor Liam Curran

Councillor Janet Daby




Councillor Vincent Davis
Councillor Amanda De Ryk
Councillor Damien Egan
Councillor Alexander Feakes
Councillor Peggy Fitzsimmons
Councillor Julia Fletcher
Councillor Patsy Foreman
Councillor Vicky Foxcroft
Councillor Helen Gibson
Councillor Sven Griesenbeck
Councillor Alan Hall
Councillor Carl Handley
Councillor Michael Harris
Councillor Ami Ibitson
Councillor Mark Ingleby
Councillor Stella Jeffrey
Councillor Darren Johnson
Councillor Helen Klier
Councillor Madeliene Long
Councillor Chris Maines
Councillor Jim Mallory
Councillor Paul Maslin
Councillor Joan Millbank
Councillor Pauline Morrison
Councillor John Muldoon
Councillor Marion Nisbet
Councillor Crada Onuegbu

Councillor Stephen Padmore




Councillor Jacq Paschoud
Councillor John Paschoud
Councillor Philip Peake
Councillor Alan Smith
Councillor Eva Stamirowski
Councillor Alan Till
Councillor Dan Whittle

Councillor Susan Wise







Council
Agenda

Wednesday, 26 February 2014
7.30 pm,

Civic Suite

Lewisham Town Hall

London SE6 4RU

For more information contact: Kevin Flaherty 0208 3149327 (Tel: 0208 314 9327)

Part 1
Item Pages
1. Declarations of Interests 1-3
2. Minutes 4
3. Petitions 5
4. Announcements or Communications 6
5. Public Questions 7-32
6. Member Questions 33-69
7. Constitutional Amendment 70-72
8. Budget 2014-15 73-216
9. Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan Adoption 217 - 375
10. Catford Regeneration Partnership Ltd 14-15 Business Plan 376 - 387
11. Pay Statement 388 - 397
12. Motion 1 Proposed by Councillor Wise Seconded by Councillor 398
Handley
13. Motion 2 Proposed by Councillor Feakes Seconded by Councillor 399 - 404
Maines
14. 'I\:/IOtil?n 3 Proposed by Councillor Brooks Seconded by Councillor 405
eakes

Members of the public are welcome to attend committee meetings. However, occasionally, committees
may have to consider some business in private. Copies of agendas, minutes and reports are available
on request in Braille, in large print, on audio tape, on computer disk or in other languages.



15. Motion 4 Proposed by Councillor Brooks Seconded by Councillor 406 - 407
Foreman

Members of the public are welcome to attend committee meetings. However, occasionally, committees
may have to consider some business in private. Copies of agendas, minutes and reports are available
on request in Braille, in large print, on audio tape, on computer disk or in other languages.



Agenda ltem 1

COUNCIL
Report Title Declarations of Interests
Key Decision Item No. 1
Ward
Contributors Chief Executive
Class Part 1 Date: February 26 2014
Declaration of interests
Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item
on the agenda.
1 Personal interests
There are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’'s
Member Code of Conduct :-
(1) Disclosable pecuniary interests
(2) Other registerable interests
(3) Non-registerable interests
2 Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined by regulation as:-

(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit
or gain

(b) Sponsorship —payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other
than by the Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for
inclusion in the register in respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying
out duties as a member or towards your election expenses (including
payment or financial benefit from a Trade Union).

(c) Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which
they are a partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in
the securities of which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for
goods, services or works.

(d) Beneficial interests in land in the borough.

(e) Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more.

(f) Corporate tenancies — any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge,
the Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant
person* is a partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in
the securities of which they have a beneficial interest.

(9) Beneficial interest in securities of a body where:-

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\4\7\9\ai00007974\$101fq1 uc.docP ag e 1




(@) that body to the member’'s knowledge has a place of business or
land in the borough; and

(b) either
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or
1/100 of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the
total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the
relevant person* has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the
total issued share capital of that class.

*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person with
whom they live as spouse or civil partner.

(3)

(4)

(5)

Other registerable interests

The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to
register the following interests:-

(@) Membership or position of control or management in a body to
which you were appointed or nominated by the Council

(b)  Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to
charitable purposes , or whose principal purposes include the
influence of public opinion or policy, including any political party

(c)  Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with
an estimated value of at least £25

Non registerable interests

Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would
be likely to affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close
associate more than it would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area
generally, but which is not required to be registered in the Register of
Members’ Interests (for example a matter concerning the closure of a
school at which a Member’s child attends).

Declaration and Impact of interest on members’ participation

(@)  Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they
are present at a meeting at which that matter is to be discussed,
they must declare the nature of the interest at the earliest
opportunity and in any event before the matter is considered. The
declaration will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. If the
matter is a disclosable pecuniary interest the member must take not
part in consideration of the matter and withdraw from the room
before it is considered. They must not seek improperly to influence
the decision in any way. Failure to declare such an interest
which has not already been entered in the Register of
Members’ Interests, or participation where such an interest
exists, is liable to prosecution and on conviction carries a fine

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\4\7\9\ai00007974\$1o1fq1uc.doP age 2



(6)

(7)

of up to £5000

(b)  Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a
disclosable pecuniary interest they must still declare the nature of
the interest to the meeting at the earliest opportunity and in any
event before the matter is considered, but they may stay in the
room, participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it unless
paragraph (c) below applies.

(c) Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a
disclosable pecuniary interest, the member must consider whether
a reasonable member of the public in possession of the facts would
think that their interest is so significant that it would be likely to
impair the member’s judgement of the public interest. If so, the
member must withdraw and take no part in consideration of the
matter nor seek to influence the outcome improperly.

(d) If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a
member, their, family, friend or close associate more than it would
affect those in the local area generally, then the provisions relating
to the declarations of interest and withdrawal apply as if it were a
registerable interest.

(e) Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s
personal judgement, though in cases of doubt they may wish to
seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer.

Sensitive information

There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests. These are
interests the disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to
risk of violence or intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed
that such interest need not be registered. Members with such an interest
are referred to the Code and advised to seek advice from the Monitoring
Officer in advance.

Exempt categories

There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate
in decisions notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them
doing so. These include:-

(a) Housing — holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the
matter relates to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears
exception)

(b) School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a
parent or guardian of a child in full time education, or a school
governor unless the matter relates particularly to the school your
child attends or of which you are a governor;

(c) Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt

(d)  Allowances, payment or indemnity for members

(e)  Ceremonial honours for members

(f) Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception)

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\4\7\9\ai00007974\$101fq1 uc.docP ag e 3



Agenda Item 2

COUNCIL
Report Title Minutes
Key Decision Item No.2
Ward
Contributors Chief Executive
Class Part 1 Date: February 26 2014

Recommendation

It is recommended that the minutes of the meeting of the Council which was open to the
press and public, held on January 22 2014 be confirmed and signed (copy previously

circulated).

d:\moderngov\dc‘rc\cgendoiTemdocs\5\7\9\oiOOOO7975\$hwbwoooi.cEg ag e 4




Agenda Item 3

COUNCIL
Report Title Petitions
Key Decision no Item No.
Ward n/a

Contributors

Chief Executive (Head of Business & Committee)

Class

Part 1 Date: February 26 2014

1. The Council is invited to receive petitions (if any) from members of the Council or
the public. There is no requirement for Councillors to give prior notice of any
petitions that might be presented.

2. The Council welcomes petitions from the public and recognises that petitions are one way in
which people can let us know their concerns. All petitions sent or presented to the Council

will receive an acknowledgement from the Council within 14 days of receipt. This
acknowledgement will set out what we plan to do with the petition.

3. Paper petitions can be sent to :-

Governance Support, Town Hall, Catford, SE6 4RU

Or be created, signed and submitted on line by following this link

http://lewisham-consult.limehouse.co.uk/portal/petitions

4, Petitions can also be presented to a meeting of the Council. Anyone who would like
to present a petition at a Council meeting, or would like a Councillor to present it
on their behalf, should contact the Governance Support Unit on 0208 3149327 at
least 5 working days before the meeting.

5. Public petitions that meet the conditions described in the Council’s published
petitions scheme and which have been notified in advance, will be accepted and
may be presented from the public gallery at the meeting.

d:\moderngov\do‘rc\cgendciTemdocs\3\7\9\0I00007973\$x5fc1qe24.doPage 5




Agenda ltem 4

COUNCIL
Report Title Announcements or Communications
Key Decision Item No.
Ward
Contributors Chief Executive
Class Part 1 Date: February 26 2014

Recommendation

The Council is invited to receive any announcements or communications from the Mayor or
the Chief Executive.

LCPCG

Lewisham’s Community Police Consultative Group will cease to exist in its
present form after 31 March 2014.This organisation was set up in 1985 and had
its first meeting in early 1986. It has been the essential link for groups,
organisation and the general public to voice their concerns and issues to the local
Metropolitan Police.

Its first chair was Asquith Gibbes MBE, who served with distinction for eighteen
years and was the pioneer of several initiatives to improve community relations
with the Police. He was succeeded by David Michael who was the first black
Police constable to patrol Lewisham’s streets back in 1973 and in recent years
the Consultative group has been led by Councillor Jackie Addison.

The Mayor of London’s office for Police and Crime has designated that the
LCPCG will replaced by the Lewisham Safer Neighbourhood Board from 1% April
2014.

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\7\9\ai00007978\$vqbrasnf.docP age 6



Agenda Iltem 5

COUNCIL

Report Title

Public Questions

Key Decision

Item No.

Ward

Contributors

Chief Executive (Head of Business & Committee)

Class

Part 1

Date: February 26 2014

The Council has received 14 questions from members of the public in the order
shown in the table below. Written responses will be provided to the questioners
prior to the Council meeting and they will be entitled to attend and ask a

supplementary question should they wish to.

Question  Questioner
1. Ray Woolford
2. Patricia Richardson
3. Luke Sorba
4, John Coughlin
5. Peter Richardson
6. Mike Keogh
7. Paul Phoenix
8. Patricia Richardson
9. Peter Richardson
10. Mike Keogh
11. Paul Phoenix
12. Patricia Richardson
13. Mike Keogh
14. Peter Richardson

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\6\7\9\ai00007976\$2yjbixiz.doc Page 7




PUBLIC QUESTION NO. 1

Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question asked by: Ray Woolford
Member to reply: ~ Deputy Mayor
Question

Which Council Officer is responsible for selling community land at Millwall
Football Ground, without bothering to consult with the Millwall Owners
Management?

Do you agree that the first line of duty for a Council selling of community asset
is to secure the best price. Who made the decision to sell this land without
seeking to secure the best deal for Lewisham Tax payers?

It is looking increasingly likely that due to the poor way in which Lewisham
has handled this matter, the Council if it does not change this decision will be
fighting a Legal Challenge and an enquiry from the Local Government
Ombudsman at huge cost to local tax payers. Therefore, who gave the legal
advice in this matter, confirming what was proposed in secret was Legal?

In light of the huge International interest in Millwall and Lewisham’s
mishandling of this case, will the Council as a matter of urgency seek a
meeting with Millwall to give them the same chance to bid as the other deal on
the table?

Page 8



Will the Council, in light of the Convoys Wharf decision being taken away from
it, and the huge widespread anger about the way it is constantly putting the
interest of developers before the community it is elected to serve, can the
Council make a pledge to be more open and consult more widely on planning
issues in the future?

Reply

No one Council officer is responsible for sale of the freehold. The Council has
sought independent financial, legal and planning advice on this matter. The
decision to sell the freehold was taken by Mayor and Cabinet at a public
meeting on the 11" September 2013.

Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 enshrines the statutory duty
on local authorities to achieve best consideration in the context of land
disposals. In 2013 the Council took independent legal, financial and planning
advice to ensure that the Council received the best consideration for the
freehold sale of land on the Surrey Canal Triangle site.

Independent legal advice was sought from both lawyers and Counsel
specialising in Local Authority powers and duties. The Council has followed
due process and satisfied it's statutory duties for the disposal of land.

Millwall FC were notified of the Council’s intention to sell the freehold in
advance. The decision to proceed with the sale was taken at a public Mayor
and Cabinet meeting. No representations were received from Millwall FC at
the public meeting.

Over the years, Millwall FC has raised several different proposals for our
consideration. Unfortunately, the Club has not submitted an acceptable
proposal. Furthermore, the new architects’ plans they have sent us were not
accompanied by a sound delivery plan for the proposal, including evidence of
agreement with other key stakeholders, a business plan and a funding
strategy giving sufficient comfort that the Club was in a position to implement
the proposals as we have requested on many occasions. No offer was
received from Millwall FC at the time of making the land disposal decision,
and up to that date the Club had been free to make such an offer.

The Council will continue to ensure that plans for the regeneration of the
Surrey Canal site take into account the long-term future of the football club
and the public interest in the comprehensive regeneration of the area. We will
continue to work with the Club as the plans develop.

Page 9



The extent of consultation undertaken by the Council on planning applications
is commensurate with the scale of development being proposed. On larger
developments the Council undertakes very significant levels of consultation.
For example, on the current Convoys Wharf planning application, more than
9,600 letters were sent to residents and business in the surrounding area.

Page 10



Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO. 2

Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question asked by: Patricia Richardson
Member to reply:  Councillor Best
Question

CEL students recently received notification of a survey being conducted by
the Skills Funding Agency. Did all students receive posted notification? If so,
how much did this cost and who paid the bill, the SFA or CEL or some other
funding? Notification was also sent by e-mail.

Reply

The Skills Funding Agency annually ask providers to participate in the survey.
There are a minimum number of returns required in order for CEL to have the
survey registered against the details held on the Further Education (F.E)
choices database. It is an important survey for CEL to participate in as the
results are available on line on the FE choices website which is accessible to
anyone seeking to undertake a course. This allows prospective learners to
compare a variety of information from providers and to select the one that
most suits their needs.

Page 11



The survey requires learners to access a website and provide their learner
number which is detailed in the personal letter to them as well as CEL's centre
number. Posters are displayed at centres encouraging learners to participate.

CEL participated last year but the survey only applied to Adult Skills Budget
Learners. This year a second survey is being trialled for Community Learning
Learners.

Learners were sent a letter asking them to complete the survey and
notification was also sent by e-mail to learners who had consented to their e-
mail address being used by CEL. Links to both surveys were added to iCEL,
CEL's learning portal, to assist learners to participate.

The costs of £820.00 were met by CEL from its Skills Funding Agency funding
allocation.

Page 12



Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO. 3

Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question asked by: Mr Sorba

Member to reply:  Councillor Klier

Question

Following the termination of full funding for the Generation Play Clubs,
enforced by government cuts, what steps has the Council taken towards
maintaining or replacing those services?

Reply

As part of the consultation on the proposed closure of Generation Playclubs at
the end of 2012, the Council sought expressions of interest from parties who
may wish to deliver services to the community from the Generation Playclub
sites. In response to the consultation, several expressions of interest were
identified.

Officers held meetings with interested parties to support the development of
proposals for alternative provision within the Generation Playclub sites.

Alternative provision is now available at six of the seven sites. Each site offers
a different range of provision, aimed at local young families — some examples

Page 13



include stay and play sessions, storytelling, forest schools, parenting support,
toy libraries and cooking sessions.

e Clyde Children’s Centre have been delivering services at Deptford
Park Generation Playclub site since October 2013

¢ Downderry Children’s Centre have been delivering services from
Forster Park Generation Playclub site since October 2013.

¢ Friendly Gardens Generation Playclub site: Two existing members
of Generation Playclub staff will be setting up an organisation to
develop a community facility. This provision will begin in early March
2014

o Telegraph Hill Generation Playclub site: Provision will be run by
local volunteers from St Catherine’s Parochial Church Council and
representation from The Telegraph Hill Centre Group. They have been
in the site since December 2013.

¢ Bellingham Green Generation Playclub site: Provision at this site
will be run by a community-based partnership of Eco Computers and
Pre-School Learning Alliance from the beginning of March 2014.

¢ Grove Park Generation Playclub site: Provision will be managed by
Grove Park Community Group (GPCG) from the beginning of March
2014. The GPCG is a registered charity formed in 1972 and currently
manages the Ringway Centre in Grove Park.

London and Quadrant own the remaining site, the Lewington Centre which
housed Silwood Generation Playclub, and are therefore leading on
discussions around alternative provision there.

Page 14



Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO. 4

Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question asked by: Mr Coughlin

Member to reply:  Deputy Mayor

Question

Are you aware that a recent report by Centre for London indicates that up to
5.2% of people working in Lewisham aren't even paid the National Minimum
Wage (NMW)?

Could Lewisham Council please:

1) approach HMRC's National Minimum Wage teams to request a local
investigation in to NMW compliance? and

2) launch a campaign to encourage reporting of employers who pay below the

National Minimum Wage, highlighting the impact this has on health,
education, housing and, ultimately, welfare costs?

Reply

Lewisham’s approach has been to support the payment of the London Living
Wage since 2009. The approach with regard to the LLW has three strands,

Page 15



which mirrors the Living Wage Foundation’s accreditation scheme, to which
Lewisham was an early signee.

The first strand was to ensure that all employees, whether permanent or
temporary are paid the LLW; permanent staff have always been paid above
this amount and temporary staff since Autumn 2011.

The second strand related to staff indirectly employed by the borough on
contracts and a Mayor & Cabinet report recommendation on the 10th June
2009 was agreed, it stated " That the Mayor determines to implement the
London Living Wage such that in letting all future contracts (excluding those
where tenders have already been invited as at the date of this decision) due
consideration, to the limit legally allowed, will be given to whether or not a
contractor proposes to pay its staff the London Living Wage".

Since that time an assessment has been carried out at the start of the
tendering process to identify where potentially staff employed on Council
services would be paid below the LLW, if this is identified as likely, tenderers
are asked to submit two pricing schedules (with/without LLW). All contracts
except one have been awarded including paying staff providing services to
Lewisham via a contract the LLW. The one contract where it was not legally
possible to procure the service to include the LLW was Residential & Nursing
Care Homes. The Educational catering contract is the last major contract
where this requirement will be included in the contract requirements, and this
is being tendered in March 2014.

The last element relates to third party sub-contractors and local businesses,
and the borough is starting on this final element. It is planned to include this
requirement for sub-contractors as part of the ‘Social Value’ Act within our
major contracts upon renewal. In terms of other businesses within the
borough, we will use our influence to push for their adoption of paying the
LLW.

Regarding independent businesses, the borough tends to have smaller
businesses and ones that would be considered by the Low Pay Commission
to be in low-paying occupations such as hospitality, retail and security. These
types of businesses are less likely to sign up to London Living Wage and this
is reflected in the larger businesses that have already made the LLW Mayor of
London pledge.

As part of the Council’s communications with business sectors the benefits of
LLW will be promoted through our e-newsletter and appropriate events.

As part of the council’'s business support service, guidance is provided on
legal requirements for businesses to pay the LMW.

Non-compliance with NMW legislation is an extremely serious matter. \We will

undertake to contact HMRC to ascertain the best way of identifying those who
break the law in Lewisham and take appropriate action.

Page 16



Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO. 5

Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question asked by: Peter Richardson
Member to reply:  Councillor Best
Question

It appears that some book titles requested for library reading groups are
unable to be accumulated in a sensible space of time and therefore have to
be deferred until sufficient numbers can be drawn from Lewisham's own
stocks. | understood that Lewisham Library Service was part of the London
Libraries Consortium which offers Londoners up to 9 Million books.

Is there a facility within this organisation which could provide sufficient
volumes to satisfy the requirements of a reading group within an acceptable
space of time?

Reply
Any registered library member can request any book title from within the LLC.
However, there is an expectation that individual authorities aim to be self-
sufficient in terms of fiction titles which are in print. Lewisham and other LLC

authorities endeavour to provide paperback formats, which reading groups
select to read and discuss.

Page 17



Indeed, LLC collectively agreed that member authorities should not loan
'reading group sets' to each other (as institutional loans). For this reason, as
it is the case in neighbouring authorities, Lewisham sets aside a small
element of the Book Fund to create temporary reading group sets of 8 copies,
which are acquired to service our reading groups. After some reading group
use, those copies are then dispersed into general stock whereby they become
more widely used and immediately available to more readers.

It should be added that the general ethos of reading groups is that of reading
more widely with others, rather than providing priority access to hardback or
prize shortlist titles. For this reason, new titles are never available to reading
groups soon after publication but every effort is made to provide our reading
group sets on or soon after request.

Page 18



Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO. 6

Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question asked by: Mr Keogh
Member to reply:  Deputy Mayor
Question

During January the well used foot tunnel between Cornmill Gardens and
Molesworth St was impassable or closed intermittently as a result of flooding.
Do these problems have any connection with the new development in Loampit
Vale overloading the local infrastructure of sewage and drainage system?
Have there been any problems of the resulting overflowing foul waters spilling
into the nearby River Ravensbourne and potentially causing fish kills? If there
is a connection, then what planning restrictions or requirements are the
Council able to impose upon the developers to improve the infrastructure
given that there are many more developments in progress locally?

Reply

The problem, first identified in the Autumn, was due to a collapsed foul sewer
situated under the foot tunnel. This led to Thames Water having to arrange
for contractors MetroRod H20 and UKDN Waterflow to pump sewage 24/7
from the affected sewer into tankers which were stationed in Cornmill
Gardens until arrangements could be made to replace the damaged pipework.
We understand that the sewer connects the existing housing development

Page 19



upstream of the bridge and therefore unlikely to have anything to do with the
new development at Loampit Vale. We are not aware of any leakage onto the
pathways or into the river.

Foot note: Incidents of this nature i.e. spillages into the river — Thames Water
would have to report any spillages to the Environment Agency.

Page 20



Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO. 7

Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question asked by: Mr Phoenix
Member to reply:  Councillor Best
Question

A set of Apple Mac computers were purchased in 2009 for the use of the
general public. These computers have been stored at the Leemore Centre. |
have been informed that to date these computers have not been made
available for public use. Can the Council explain why?

Reply

The Apple Mac computers were transferred to the Library Service to enhance
their existing resource of publicly accessible computers.

Three of the Apple Mac computers and 1 Base unit (missing a monitor) have
been moved to Lewisham Library last month. The computers are being
prepared with updated software and booking system functions. It is envisaged
that they will be available to the public in the next month or so.

We regret the delay in making these resources available to the public and will
be making the improvements needed as soon as possible. Meanwhile, Apple
Mac computers are available at Deptford Lounge and Downham Health and
Leisure Centre.

Page 21



PUBLIC QUESTION NO. 8

Priority 2

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question asked by: Patricia Richardson
Member to reply:  Councillor Best
Question

Does the Skills Funding Agency place any requirement on the Council as to
maximum or minimum provision of Adult Education?

Is there any stipulation about the number of sites in a borough which are
thought necessary to successfully meet any SFA conditions?

Reply

The Skills Funding Agency provides detailed funding guidance regarding the
provision that they will fund for learners. This details the amount of study
available and which qualifications will receive funding. There are no SFA
conditions regarding the number of sites or the scale of the provision in a
borough.

CEL provides learning from three well resourced premises across the
borough. CEL also uses a range of community venues which successfully
widens participation in learning as over 75% of learners now come from areas
of the borough where deprivation is high.

Page 22



Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO. 9

Priority 2

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question asked by: Peter Richardson
Member to reply:  Councillor Maslin
Question

In my experience dealing with issues created by outsourced companies such
as Skanska, NSL, Glendales and Lewisham Homes, | have been referred to
them directly by Lewisham Council departments, which at one time had
responsibility when held in the public sector; or have found my Ward
Councillors having to do the same.

As these bodies are unelected, outside the scope of the democratic process,
where is my right to democratic accountability?

Reply

It is true that a number of Council services including those referred to in the
question are now managed by external providers. However, the functions
have not been transferred to those companies and the provision of the
services is subject to a strict performance regime including a requirement to
have a robust customer care system in place for the recipients of the service,
which includes a help desk for dealing with enquiries and a complaints system
which ensures that complaints are recorded and investigated. The

Page 23



performance of the contractors is monitored by officers and is subject to
scrutiny by the Council’'s Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

The Contract with Skanska relating to street lighting is a joint PFI street
lighting contract with Croydon and there is a Joint Committee with a
supervisory role which has equal representatives from members of both
Councils who meet regularly to examine the performance of the contractor.

Lewisham Homes Limited is a wholly owned company of the Council which
was created to manage part of the Council’s housing stock. The Council has
a monitoring role in relation to the performance of Lewisham Homes. It
reviews its Delivery Plan annually. There is an agreed protocol governing
enquiries by elected members and three Councillors, together with
independent members and tenant and leaseholder representatives sit on the
Management Board. The company has to comply with the Tenant’s Compact.

None of these contracts are outside the Council’'s Corporate Complaints
Procedure although complaints are handled at the initial stage by the relevant
service provider. The monitoring role by the Council ensures that there is
democratic accountability.

Page 24



Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO. 10

Priority 2

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question asked by: Mr Keogh
Member to reply:  Mayor
Question

In the light of the wettest winter on record and recent severe weather events,
can the Mayor thank the Environment Agency and in particular their Chair the
Rt Hon Lord Smith of Finsbury, in their efforts to over the years to prevent
flooding in Lewisham's riparian town centres? Do you agree that Lewisham
has been at the forefront of River Restoration, especially in Brookmill Park,
Chinbrook Park, Ladywell Fields and Cornmill Gardens, thanks to the
pioneering work of its small Lewisham based charity QWAG (Quaggy
Waterways Action Group) which has influenced the EA's methodology of flood
risk alleviation by allowing parkland floodplains to flood instead of built on
areas, whilst creating valuable sites for biodiversity and amenity for people?

Reply

The Council would like to thank all the various partners, including Quaggy
Waterways Action Group, who have successfully worked together over many
years on river restoration schemes to ensure that Lewisham did not suffer a
major flooding incident that may have occurred following the recent severe
weather events.

Page 25



The work to re-naturalise our rivers systems in Lewisham has provided space
for water and delivered benefits for both people and wildlife. Improvement
work at Brookmill Park, Chinbrook Meadows, Ladywell Fields, and Cornmill
Gardens and the annual 3 Rivers Clean Up public event have been used by
the Environment Agency and others as examples of best practice and have
been celebrated both nationally and within the European Union.

Page 26



Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO. 11

Priority 2

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question asked by: Mr Phoenix
Member to reply:  Councillor Klier
Question

Some schools refuse to let children take their maths exercise books home.
Does the council have some ruling on this?

Reply

No. All schools are autonomous and they are responsible for deciding on
issues such as this for themselves.

Page 27



Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO. 12

Priority 3

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question asked by: Patricia Richardson
Member to reply:  Clir Maslin
Question
Which services, provided on behalf of the council, with tax-payers money, are
now outsourced to business corporations, social enterprise groups, charities
or other organisations?
What are the names of these providers?
When did the contracts begin and what is their duration?
What percentage of the full Council budget is used to fund these contracts?
Reply

While a number of Council services are provided by third party providers,
there are many important services still retained in-house for example:-

Domestic Refuse
Environmental Services
Fleet Maintenance
Legal

Page 28



Street Cleansing
Transport (Coaches)

The Council has 252 contracts and framework agreements, and the
contractual terms and conditions vary widely and contracts can be for one to
thirty years duration; and the providers are a mixed market from multi-
nationals to small social enterprises. The contracts register of the major
contracts is available via the link provided below. There are also details
provided on the Council’'s website under the ‘transparency’ guidelines which
shows payments to third parties, this link is also provided. The revenue
contractual spend in the last full financial year (2012/13) was £220,226,545
with 4271 suppliers. Of these suppliers 54% are local, and 15% are third
sector organisations. As can be seen by the above data the scope requested
by this question is extensive, please contact the Procurement Strategy
Manager (Andy Murray) on 020 8314 8133 or andy.murray@lewisham.gov.uk
should you require additional information.

http://www.londoncontractsregister.co.uk/public crs/

http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/aboutthecouncil/finances/counc
il-spending-over-250/Pages/default.aspx

Page 29



Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO. 13

Priority 3

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question asked by: Mr Keogh
Member to reply:  Deputy Mayor
Question

What is the latest timetable for Lewisham Gateway with regard to the road
restructuring and subsequent development?

Reply

The first phase of Lewisham Gateway will be built on the site of the existing
bus stand (adjacent to the railway and DLR stations). Work is expected to get
underway in March, once the bus stand has been moved to its new location
on Thurston Road. (The relocation of the bus stand is currently expected to
happen over the weekend of 1-2 March.) Prior to this, some enabling works
will take place around the site’s perimeter.

Site-wide infrastructure works — which will re-route the roads and rivers, and
effectively create the development site for the rest of the scheme — should
commence in the first half of June.

Page 30



Time

PUBLIC QUESTION NO. 14

Priority 3

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question asked by: Peter Richardson
Member to reply:  Clir Wise
Question

Has Lewisham Council any plans to prevent or limit illicit parking in such
places as Housing Association controlled streets and estates?

Vehicle owners in Lee Green Ward who now refuse to purchase the current
expensive car parking permits and visitors who prefer not to purchase parking
tickets and are known to park in the grounds of Manor House Library and will
park in other off-zone areas such as Wolfram Close and the garage spaces
adjacent, often to the detriment of residents and garage renters.

Do you acknowledge this practice must be widespread across the borough as
permit charges and ticket charging is the same borough-wide?

Is the problem being addressed? Is there some reason why Housing
Association controlled areas are unable to be included in the zoned areas?

Reply

When parking problems exist on private land, housing association land or
housing estate roads, the introduction of parking controls are implemented
and managed by the relevant housing provider or management company.

Page 31



Controlled Parking Zones can only be implemented on land designated as
public highway and not on land designated as private or estate roads.

The Council is aware that some housing providers have taken action to
introduce controls that limit non-resident parking where there is a problem.

The Council is not aware that this is a widespread problem across the
borough.

Page 32



Agenda Item 6

COUNCIL
Report Title Member Questions
Key Decision Item No.
Ward
Contributors Chief Executive (Head of Business & Committee)
Class Part 1 Date: February 26 2014
1. Questions from Members of the Council

Section C, paragraph 14 of the Constitution, provides for questions relevant to the
general work or procedure of the Council to be asked by Members of the Council.
Copies of the questions received and the replies to them will be circulated at the
meeting.

d:\moderngov\dc‘rc\cgendoiTemdocs\7\7\9\ciOOOO7977\$mrcb3x2z.doPage 33




QUESTION No. 1

Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Jacqg Paschoud
of the Mayor

Question

Would the Mayor be willing to hold People's Day in Beckenham Place Park on
one occasion as it is the largest open space in Lewisham and in 2015 we will
be celebrating 20 years of it being wholly located within the Borough?

Would you agree that raising the profile of this beautiful but maybe less known
part of Bellingham and Downham would hopefully encourage residents to use
it more extensively.

Reply

People’s Day has been held at its current venue for several years which has
allowed the Events Team, working with the local community, to develop and
test a safe and secure production plan. Moving People’s Day would require
the development of a new event and production plan, enhanced marketing
campaign and resident engagement activity. For those reasons a change of
venue for People’s Day would have cost implications that could not be
covered by the existing budget allocated to the event.

Beckenham Place Park is indeed a fantastic asset that could be used more
extensively. The Council is bidding for Heritage Lottery funding to undertake
restoration work in the park with the aim of making the space better used, and
enabling it to host events in future. If successful these works would take
place in 2016/17. It may be possible to revisit the question of holding People’s
Day there then.

Page 34



QUESTION No. 2

Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Hall
of the Mayor

Question

Will the Mayor give his assessment of the coalition government's financial
settlement for local authorities including Lewisham? "

Reply

The coalition government has chosen to place the greatest burden of their
austerity programme on those who are least able to afford it. They have
made cuts across the public services and in the case of local government
made it the scapegoat for their policies. By forcing cuts onto council’s like
ours, they are attempting to divert blame from Westminster to town halls
across the country. They are cutting too much, too quickly and not even
doing so fairly.

Places like Lewisham are being hit harder than some of the leafier places in
the country where they don’t have the same levels of deprivation that we do
here in Lewisham. Even Eric Pickles’ disingenuous ‘spending power’ figures
demonstrate that Lewisham will see our spending power reduced by £30m
over the next two years while our neighbours in Bromley will see their funding
increase by £0.7m over the same period. Given the different challenges facing
our two boroughs, this cannot be right and fair.

The chair of the Local Government Association, a Conservative councillor, Sir
Merrick Cockell said in response to the settlement;-

"The next two years will be the toughest yet for people who use and rely on
the vital everyday local services that councils provide. By the end of this
Parliament, local government will have to have made £20 billion worth of
savings. Councils have so far largely restricted the impact of the cuts on their
residents. They have worked hard to save those services that people most
value and have protected spending on social care for children and the elderly,

Page 35



but even these areas are now facing reductions. That impact will only
increase over the next two years.

"The current public sector model, with its highly centralised control of budgets
and spending priorities, is inefficient and will struggle to function in the context
of long-term reductions to public spending. It needs to be replaced with a
better and fairer way of funding local authorities which delivers adequate
money, distributes it fairly and provides the long-term certainty councils need
to plan for future demands.

Here in Lewisham, we continue to try wherever possible to reduce our budget
by changing the way we do things, driving harder bargains in the services we
contract out, and working in partnership with others to save money without
affecting frontline services. And | am determined that we go on protecting the
things people value most. But inevitably there will be some tough decisions
ahead of us.

Page 36



QUESTION No. 3

Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Johnson
of the Deputy Mayor

Question

Will the Council join with the London Boroughs of Southwark, Lambeth and
Enfield as well as Oxford City, Derby City, Sefton Metropolitan Borough,
South Hams District, Weymouth & Portland Borough and Wyre Forest District
Councils and also Shadow Communities Minister Chris Williamson MP,
Caroline Lucas MP, Andrew George MP and Adrian Sanders MP in support of
the following proposal to be submitted under the Sustainable Communities
Act:

That the government give Local Authorities the power to introduce a local levy
of up to 8.5% of the rate on supermarkets or large retail outlets in their area
with a rateable annual value not less that £500,000; and require that the
revenue from this levy be retained by the Local Authority in order to be used
to improve local communities in their area by promoting local economic
activity, local services and facilities, social and community wellbeing and
environmental protection.

Reply

The prospect of securing additional funding for local benefit is certainly an
interesting one. | have instructed officers to contact colleagues in the relevant
authorities to enable to Council to explore the idea of a London-wide
supermarket levy.

Page 37



QUESTION No. 4

Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Ibitson
of the Deputy Mayor

Question

Elfrida School and the Bellingham Safer Neighbourhood Team have raised
concerns about parking outside the school, on the corner of the junction of
Elfrida Crescent and Overdown Road claiming that this blocks sight lines
and is causing safety concerns about children crossing the road to and
from school. They feel that an accident is highly likely. The Safer
Neighbourhood Team have suggested that installing bollards on the
corners of Elfrida Crescent and Overdown Road by the school would solve
this problem effectively. Please can this be investigated?

Reply

The issue of school parking and dangerous driving behaviour by parents
has been raised with the road safety team through the school travel plan
programme.

As a result of this, a decision has been made to finance the request for

traffic bollards at the corners of Overdown Road and Elfrida Crescent
through the TFL school travel plan funding in April 2014.

Page 38



QUESTION No. 5

Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Gibson
of the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People

Question

Given the appalling recent cases of child sexual exploitation involving
vulnerable and looked after children in Rochdale, Oxford and other Local
Authorities, what steps is Lewisham taking to ensure the safety of looked after
children in our borough and those from this borough, and will they work
closely with local police and schools on this and produce a publically available
plan to show their strategy in this area?

Reply

Lewisham has taken steps to respond to cases of child sexual exploitation,
which includes looked after children in this borough, as well as those placed
out of borough by Lewisham. Key professionals, such as teachers, care
providers, youth workers and the police have been made aware of the
indicators of child sexual exploitation and they have received training on
effective intervention.

When a child is thought to be sexually exploited, a multi agency strategy
meeting is convened and a plan is put into place to identify, prosecute or deter
exploiters through police action. The intervention plan tries to minimise harm
for victims and to promote the development of self-esteem and understanding
of healthy relationships. These plans are reviewed regularly to see if they are
working for a particular child.

Lewisham piloted the ‘Pan London Child Sexual Exploitation Protocol’ that
has now been rolled out across London.

A key component of the protocol is the introduction of monthly Multi Agency
Sexual Exploitation meetings to identify locations and networks of
perpetrators so that multiagency strategies can be developed to tackle sexual
exploitation.

Page 39



QUESTION No. 6

Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Ingleby
of Councillor Wise

Question

What are the replacement costs in the Borough per tree for existing trees on
or near pavements that have to be removed because of storm damage or
other natural causes of decay? What is the average cost or typical unit costs
per tree or per street or area for pollarding work?

Reply
Each street tree costs £340.00 to replace. This includes the cost of the tree
and sundry items, such as a tree guard, watering pipe and the construction of
the planting pit.

The average cost of pollarding a street tree is £375.00.

Page 40



QUESTION No. 7

Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Curran
of the Deputy Mayor

Question

What is the up to date situation regarding the Greyhound pub in Sydenham?

Reply

Unfortunately the deed of variation has yet to be agreed between all the
parties. The Planning Agreement cannot be varied without the participation of
all the relevant parties. All parties with a legal interest in the land will be
required to sign the Deed of Variation in order to bind the land so that the
outstanding obligations in the original planning agreement continue.

Officers are continuing to discuss with the developer the delay in order to
bring this matter to conclusion. In any event, the developer has been put on
notice that if the agreement is not reached shortly the matter would be
referred back to the first available Planning Committee C.

Page 41



QUESTION No. 8

Priority 1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Brooks
of the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People

Question

Recent figures show that only 39.5% of children in Lewisham that are eligible
for free school meals achieved 5 A*-C (including English and maths) in
2012/13. What action does the Council intend to take to specifically improve
educational outcomes for these children in the borough’s secondary schools?

Reply

The figures released on 13 February 2014 on the Department for Education
Performance Tables website show that in Lewisham, in 2013, 44.5% of
disadvantaged pupils (eligible for the Pupil Premium) achieved 5 A*-C
GCSEs including English and Maths. This compares with 40.9% nationally.

Even though we compare favourably with the national figures, the gap
between disadvantaged pupils and other pupils is still too high and all
schools are clear that this is a key issue for all of them. All schools have a
number of strategies in place to support their own cohort of disadvantaged
pupils, which include after school booster classes, weekend revision
sessions, residential revision centres, small group tutoring, 1:1 monitoring
and on-line packages. Schools are also focusing on pupils eligible for Pupil
Premium from Y7, so that outcomes will improve over time.

The School Improvement Team focuses on the gap between outcomes for
disadvantaged pupils and other pupils in termly monitoring visits and
reviews schools’ plans to improve outcomes for disadvantaged pupils. The
team also supports schools to match effective strategies to the pupils, with
tailored support programmes to address each school’s needs, which range
from support for teaching and learning across all subjects to subject-specific
consultancy support for individual teachers to sharing good practice across
a number of schools.

Page 42



QUESTION No. 9

Priority 2

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Hall
of the Deputy Mayor

Question

Could | be provided with a statement of any progress to achieve
improvements to the frequency of the Bellingham to London train services?

Reply

The Council have made representations on a frequent basis through our
Public Transport Liaison meetings to which all the transport operators who
have services in the Borough are invited, including Network Rail,
Southeastern Rail, Southern Rail, London Overground and TfL.

We have always supported increasing the frequency of the service on the
Catford Loop line both by increasing the frequency on existing routes and by
having at least some of the Victoria bound services stop at the stations within
this Borough.

We have also frequently complained about the disproportionate proportion of
the disruption that occurs South of the Thames when the service comes under
stress, which are attributed to the unsatisfactory joint franchise arrangement.

As part of the franchise re-letting process, the Council have responded to
make these same points and await the outcome of the re-letting process.

There have also been responses by particular station user groups along the
line which have all made similar comments which we have forwarded to the
Department for Transport expressing the Councils strong support for those
points.

Page 43



QUESTION No. 10

Priority 2

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Ibitson
of the Deputy Mayor

Question

The road surface in Aldermoor Road, SEG, has been in a poor state and very

unsightly for many years. Please could consideration be given to resurfacing
it?

Reply
The Resurfacing Programme for 2013/14 has been fully allocated and did not
include Aldermoor Road. The Programme for 2014/15 is due to commence

on the 1% April 2014. Aldermoor Road has a high priority and should
therefore be resurfaced by Summer 2014.

Page 44



QUESTION No. 11

Priority 2

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Gibson
of the Deputy Mayor

Question

Will Lewisham commit to support fully segregated cycle lanes, as seen in the
Netherlands, for cyclists and lobby TfL for their introduction on TfL roads in
our Borough?

Reply

With the release of the Mayor of London’s ‘Vision for Cycling in London’
(2013) Came a substantial financial commitment (£980 million) to improve
provision for cyclists in London.

Lewisham has fully engaged with all levels of this regional policy and is
currently working with TfL and Sustrans to deliver 2 Cycle Superhighways and
a network of Quietway cycle routes running through the borough. Our
objective is to work fully with these external agencies for the benefit of our
borough residents.

Segregated cycle lanes are one of a number of solutions that are looked at
when designing cycle lanes. Lewisham does support the introduction of
segregation where feasible.

An example of this commitment is the decision to ask TfL Cycle Super
Highway 4 design team to carry out a feasibility study of a fully segregated
cycle lane option along the Evelyn Street length of the route, as requested by
Lewisham Cyclists. This is currently being carried out.

We are also acutely aware of the lack of space and capacity that currently

exists on Borough and TLRN roads and in certain situations a compromise
must be found to be able to deliver provision for all users.

Page 45



Lewisham will always aim to deliver the best quality provision possible
working within the constraints of each individual project and will always seek
to consult with the boroughs cyclists on projects that affect them.

Lewisham’s Local Implementation Plan (LIP) mirrors this commitment to
provide for the borough cyclists with a range of initiatives aimed at improving
conditions for cycling. (More details of these initiatives can be found at the
end of this document)

Appendix
Notable current and near future Lewisham cycling initiatives’ include:

Cycle Super Highways 4 & 5 (CS4/CS5) - Part of the wider TfL Cycle Super
Highway programme, both routes are in early stages of design and are
proposed to run down the A200 and A2 respectively.

CS4 is to run the length of Evelyn St (A200) and on into Greenwich, there are
several designs on the table at present from mandatory cycle track running
East and West. Lewisham Cyclists favour a segregated track on the North of
Evelyn Street. Early indications suggest construction to start on the route in
early 2015.

CS5 is a route that runs along the A2 and originally it was proposed to
continue down the A20 to Lewisham Town Centre, however, a section of the
route was seen to be unworkable (The Amersham Gyratory and sections of
Loampit Vale) and route was shortened to New Cross Gate.

TfL are now re-exploring the possibility of providing a link down to Lewisham
Town Centre Missing the Gyratory and heading down Brookmill Road.
Lewisham are in early stage talks with TfL over the link to Lewisham. There is
no indication currently when construction of this link will happen although it
will be the final stage of the complete CS5 construction which is scheduled to
be completed early 2016.

The Quietway programme- Drawing on funding from the Mayor of London’s
financial commitment of £980m to improve all aspects of cycling in London,
the Quietway Programme aims to provide quiet back street cycle routes that
less confident or new cyclists will be able to use comfortably.

Lewisham has a section of one of the first Quietways to be delivered in
London, the route is proposed to run along the new cycle and pedestrian path
currently in development along the back of Millwall’s football stadium, Surrey
Canal Rd, Folkestone Gardens Park, Childers St, Edwards St, Deptford High
Street, Crossfield St, Creekside, Half Penny Hatch Bridge)

The Quietway programme is therefore an opportunity to deliver substantial
elements of the North Lewisham Links Strategy and measures for this specific
route will be in line with the design principles set out in the strategy.

Measures to create the route will include engineering to junctions, paths and

Page 46



highway, restrictions to motorised traffic may also be employed to change the
traffic characteristics of a particular road or street. Current indications are
that a basic route layout could be laid down as early as early 2015.

Page 47



QUESTION No.12

Priority 2

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Jacqg Paschoud
of the Cabinet Member for Resources

Question

What is being done by the Council to inform vulnerable groups such as people
with learning disabilities or mental health service users of their rights to
engage in the democratic process by being on the electoral register and
voting? What efforts are being made to ensure these residents and those who
assist them understand the support they can receive to enable them to vote?

Reply

People with learning disabilities and mental health service users are entitled
to be entered on the electoral register and to vote.

The Electoral Registration Officer is under a duty to conduct an annual
canvass and sends at least two forms to each residential property. If no
response is received, a manual visit ensues. The ERO database flags up
some properties where it is known that there will be a number of people with a
disability (residential care homes) and writes to the manager of these
establishments in the course of the canvass. The ERO will and does accept
registration forms from these managers on behalf of the residents.

The ERO also provides copies of the Electoral Commission Easy Guide to
Voting and at election time liaises with voluntary sector organisations
supporting people with learning difficulties and /or mental health issues urging
them to encourage participation. For the European and local elections in May
2014, the ERO will again distribute easily understood material for their use.

Our presiding officers and poll clerks are specifically trained and encouraged
to assist people with any disability, within the regulatory constraints placed on

Page 48



them. We provide assistance to voters including tactile voting devices, large
sized ballot papers, and makaton guides to voting. There is a comprehensive
training programme which covers the need to support voters with any
disability.

The introduction of individual registration (IER) in 2014 will do away with
household registration and thus the ERO’s ability to accept a household
registration form signed by one person on behalf of a number of others.
Unless “passported” under transitional provisions, potential electors will have
to register by providing their national insurance number and date of birth.
They will have to sign their application personally. Their details will have to
match the database held by the Department of Work and Pensions. There is
to be an exception process but this has not yet been finalised by the Cabinet
Office.

It is very likely that this new process will be more complicated for all electors
and may cause particular difficulty for those with learning difficulties and
mental health service users. We are in the process of developing a
communications strategy to coincide with national initiatives being led by the
Electoral Commission to promote registration under IER. This will seek to
balance the need to encourage registration overall and to encourage those
groups who may be particularly difficult to reach. It will be launched after the
European and local elections.

Page 49



QUESTION No. 13

Priority 2

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Ingleby
of the Cabinet Member for Customer Services

Question

When a Licensing application is made in the Borough, over what radius and to
what quantity are leaflets or notices distributed or posted to notify local
residents of the application?

Reply

We do not circulate leaflets or notifications of licensing applications. The
Licensing Act 2003 sets down how applications must be advertised which
includes blue notices describing the application displayed on the outside of
the premises for 28 days, a public notice outlining the details of the application
must also be placed in a local newspaper. All ward Councillors are advised by
e-mail and the application appears on the Council website.

The legislation now allows for anyone to make a representation regardless of

vicinity or location which would make it inappropriate and costly to set any
radius or attempt to contact local people beyond the requirements of the Act.

Page 50



QUESTION No. 14

Priority 2

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Curran
of the Mayor

Question

Will the Mayor give an update on the situation regarding both Convoys Wharf
and his meeting with the Mayor of London on the subject?

Reply

The Mayor of London ‘called in’ the planning decision back in November 2013
following a request from the developer, Hutchison Whampoa, meaning he is
now the decision maker and not the Council.

Following a reasonable period, to allow the Mayor of London time to assess
what steps he would next take, | wrote to him in January to request a meeting
to discuss the planning application for Convoys Wharf.

The Mayor’s reply stated that, having had regard to the GLA Planning Code of
Conduct, his officers have advised him that he must exercise caution in order
not to inadvertently risk prejudicing his decision making role on the
application. He therefore suggested that the most appropriate arrangement
was for me to meet with Sir Edward Lister, his Chief of Staff and Deputy
Mayor for Planning.

I met Sir Edward Lister earlier this month and stressed the importance of the
range of concerns expressed in the Council’s formal response to the Mayor
made by Strategic Planning Committee in January. These include the
importance of community infrastructure to the local area and | have urged the
Deputy Mayor to make sure the developer includes GP facilities, a primary
school and funding for additional secondary school capacity, jobs and training
for local people and open space.

Page 51



| also explained our concern that the current planning application does not
reflect the historical significance of the site. The site is the location of the
former Deptford Royal Dockyard, which was founded by Henry VIII. It was the
place where Sir Frances Drake was knighted by Elizabeth |, and was the
location of Charles Il great ship building programme. The site housed John
Evelyn at Sayes Court and his magnificent gardens, which, centuries later,
inspired the establishment of the National Trust.

| pressed the case for proposals which would include an expanded Sayes
Court Garden and the Build the Lennox project. The developer’s current
approach to Sayes Court fails to provide a meaningful green link between the
site of the Gardens with the remains of Sayes Court House. The Council
believes that the opportunity to link these two historically significant spaces
cannot be missed.

We understand that the application is likely to be determined at the end of
March.

Page 52



QUESTION No. 15

Priority 2

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Brooks
of the Cabinet Member for Community Services

Question

What are the most recent statistics for levels of child obesity across
Lewisham, compared with other London boroughs and national averages?

Reply

Information on obesity in children is obtained from the National Child
Measurement Programme, a statutory public health function of local
authorities. The programme involves the measurement of the height and
weight of all children in Reception and in Year 6 in schools. The most recent
results are for 2012/13; these were published on 11" December 2013. In
2012/2013, the prevalence of obesity in children in reception year and in
children in year 6 in Lewisham schools was 10.7% and 23.3% respectively.

For each of these year groups, prevalence of obesity was significantly higher
in Lewisham than in England as a whole; the corresponding national figures
were 9.3% in children in reception and 18.9% in year 6. Lewisham figures
were not, however, significantly different from the corresponding figures for
London as a whole. Amongst Lewisham’s statistical neighbours, prevalence
of obesity is significantly higher in Reception children in Southwark (14.2%),
Greenwich (14.1%) and City and Hackney (13.2%) schools than in Lewisham
schools, and significantly higher in children in Year 6 in Southwark schools
(26.7%). None of Lewisham’s statistical neighbours has a significantly lower
prevalence of obesity in either of these year groups.

Page 53



QUESTION No. 16

Priority 3

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Hall
of the Deputy Mayor

Question

Can the Cabinet Member provide details of the members of the planning
department's design panel and their terms of reference?

Reply

The Panel’'s present terms of reference were adopted as part of a new
approach to major planning applications, considered by Mayor and Cabinet at
its meeting on 10 April 2013 in a report on Planning Service Improvements for
Development Management.

The terms of reference set out the purpose of the Panel which is to provide
expert and independent design advice on significant new developments
across the borough, to assist and encourage developers to achieve high
standards of design in their proposals. The Panel's agenda is expected to
cover all major development proposals, but also cover associated projects like
masterplans and public realm proposals.

Following a competitive application process, membership of the Panel is
made up of a pool of more than thirty specialists. Most are architects but
other built environment specialists are also included. The Panel meets
approximately every four weeks and draws five or six members from the pool
for each design review. The Panel is chaired by Keith Williams, Director of
Keith Williams Architects and the Deputy Chair is Urban Designer, Ben Van
Bruggen. The costs of the Panel are broadly covered through pre-application
fees that are now increasingly being charged to developers.

Full details of the Panel’s terms of reference as well as member biographies
can be found at:
http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/myservices/planning/conservation/Pages/Design-
Review-Panel.aspx

Page 54



QUESTION No. 17

Priority 3

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Gibson
of the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People

Question

What plans does Lewisham have to increase capacity in Lewisham's primary
schools?

Reply

We have met our statutory duty to ensure that there is a school place for all
children whose parents or carers request a place in a Lewisham school. This
has been achieved since 2008 through a programme of permanent
expansions at 11 schools, and partial enlargements at 38 schools. Further
provision will open in 2014 and 2015. Plans have been and will continue to be
developed within the context of available capital funding. Unfortunately, the
Coalition Government has given Lewisham an inadequate allocation to
achieve the necessary expansion. To 2017, we estimate that we have a
£27m shortfall.

We remain committed to the provision of high quality places in appropriate
locations across the borough.

Page 55



QUESTION No. 18

Priority 3

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Curran
of the Cabinet Member for Customer Services

Question

What is the current situation regarding insulation and energy saving measures
implemented in Lewisham for households, businesses and the Council itself?

Reply

From 2010/11 to 2012/13 Lewisham Council delivered a wide range of
insulation and energy saving programmes benefiting more than 8,000
Lewisham households and bringing in over £2.5m external investment.

In 2013 the Government brought in the Green Deal and the Energy Company
Obligation (ECO) which are now the primary sources of funding for energy
saving measures in domestic properties.

In 2013 the Council entered into a four year agreement through our Energy
Efficiency Installations Framework designed to allow the borough to continue
to benefit from energy efficiency funding. The first phase of works under the
Framework is now underway, insulating 1,100 Lewisham Homes’ properties
categorised as ‘hard to treat’ cavity wall homes. This is expected to bring in
£1m funding that will cover the cost of the works.

The Framework has enabled these works to proceed despite changes to ECO
funding brought in by energy suppliers at the end of 2013. The Council is
working with its partners to develop further phases of insulation and other
energy efficiency works in Lewisham during 2014 including an offer for
residents of all housing tenures.

There is currently no grant funding for insulation or other energy efficiency

measures for non-domestic properties, although the Green Deal and other
‘pay as you save’ loans are available to businesses. The Council will look at

Page 56



ways the Energy Efficiency Installations Framework can be developed to help
benefit Lewisham businesses.

Lewisham Council has established an Energy Forum charged with delivering
carbon and energy savings across the corporate estate and schools. This is
an integral part of the Council’s Asset Management Strategy going forward
and directly linked to the Corporate Accommodation Strategy that will
determine the approach to retention, disposal, investment and management
of the corporate and commercial estate. The focus of this work will include
monitoring and targeting of high consuming sites, investment in energy saving
retrofit works and improving use of buildings to reduce energy consumption
and carbon emissions. Insulation works and other energy efficiency measures
will be installed as part of this work.

Page 57



QUESTION No. 19
Priority 3

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Brooks
of the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People

Question

Please list the primary schools that have disabled children on their roll. Please
provide current year attending and numbers.

Reply

Data contained within the school census returns, which are completed every
term has been used to collate this response. The table below is for
mainstream schools.

Primary School REC |[Yr1 |Yr2 | Yr3 |[Yr4 |Yr5 |Yr6 | Total
Adamsrill Primary School 1 1
Athelney School * 1 3 3 3 2 4 2 18
All Saints CE Primary School 1 1 1 1 1 5
Ashmead Primary School 1 1 1 3
Baring Primary 2 1 3
Beecroft Garden primary 0
School

Brindishe Lee Primary School 1 1
Brindishe Green Primary 1 2 2 4 2 11
School,

Childeric Primary School 2 1 3 1 1 8
Christ Church CofE Primary 1 1 1 3
School

Coopers Lane Junior and 1 5 3 2 1 2 14
Infants School *

Dalmain Primary School 1 1
Deptford Park Primary School | 1 1 2 3 1 8
Downderry Junior and Infants 1 1 2
School

Edmund Waller Junior and 1 1

Page 58




Infants School

Elfrida Junior and Infants 1 S
School

Eliot Bank Primary School 1 1
Fairlawn Primary School 4
Forster Park Junior and Infants 1 6
School

Good Shepherd RC Primary 0
School

Gordonbrock Primary School 2 8
Grinling Gibbons Junior and 2 7
Infants School

Haseltine Junior and Infants 1 5
School

Holbeach Junior and Infants 8
School

Holy Cross RC Junior and Infant 2
School

Holy Trinity CE Primary School 1 2
Horniman Junior and Infants 0
School

John Ball Primary School 2 1 7
John Stainer Junior and Infants 2 2
School

Kelvin Grove Junior and Infants 3 1 13
School *

Kender Primary School 1
Kilmorie Junior and Infants 1 3
School

Launcelot Primary School 5
Lee Manor School 4
Lucas Vale Junior and Infants 0
School

Marvels Lane Primary School 1 1 9
Myatt Garden School 1 1 8
Our Lady and St Philip Neri RC 1 3
Primary School

Perrymount Primary School * 2 1 12
Prendergast Vale College 2
Rangefield Junior and Infants 1 3
School

Rathfern Junior and Infants 1 3
School

Rushey Green Primary School 3 3 22
*

Sandhurst Junior School 3
Sandhurst Infants and Nursery 1 2
School

Sir Francis Drake Primary 1 )
School

Page 59




St Augustines Catholic Primary 2 1 3
School

St Bartholomews CE Junior and 2 1 4
Infant School

St James Hatcham CE Primary 2 2 4
School

St John Baptist CE Primary 2 2 2 6
School

St Josephs RC Primary School 0
St. Margarets Lee CE Junior 2 1 3
and Infants School

St Marys Lewisham CE Primary 2 1 2 1 6
School

St Mary Magdalens Catholic 0
Primary School

St Matthews Academy 1 2 1 1 2 8
St Michaels CE Junior and 2
Infant School

St Saviours RC Primary School 0
St Stephens CE Primary School 1 2
St. William of York 1 2
St Winifreds Infant School 1 2
St Winifreds Junior School 2 3 5
Stillness Junior School 1 1 5 7
Stillness Infants School 0
Tidemill Academy * 3 2 2 2 11
Torridon Junior School * 1 4 1 1 7
Torridon Infants School * 1 4
Trinity Primary 0
Turnham Primary School 2 1 3

* = Resource bases contained within Primary Schools. The primary resource

bases are as follows.

Primary Schools

o Athelney

e Coopers Lane
Kelvin Grove
Perrymount
Rushey Green

Tidemill Academy
Torridon Juniors
Torridon Infants

Primary Need

Autism

Hearing Impairment Unit

Autism

Physical

Hearing Impairment Unit

Speech, Language and Communication Needs
Autism

Autism

The two Haberdashers’ Aske’s primary phases have not yet completed their
census return but they are expected.

Page 60



QUESTION No. 20

Priority 4

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Gibson
of the Cabinet Member for Deputy Mayor

Question

What funding is available or space in the contract with Skanska to request
additional street lighting on roads in the Borough where it is poor?

Reply

The Contract with Skanska specifies that all existing street lighting in the
borough will be designed to the appropriate standard, and there are various
checking processes in place to insure that this requirement is achieved.
Therefore once the investment programme is complete there should not be
any locations where the lighting is poor.

Where there are locations that do not currently have street lighting there is a
provision within the Contract to provide additional lighting columns.

Page 61



QUESTION No.21

Priority 4

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Brooks
of the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People

Question

How many incidents of children in care going missing for more than 24 hours
have been recorded in each of the past four years? How many children are
currently missing from care, and for how long have they been missing in each
case?

Reply

Incidents of Looked After Children missing from care for more than 24 hours:

Year 2010 2011 2012 2013 Total
Incidents 116 83 85 83 367
Number of | 30 18 27 13 88
Looked

After

Children

The above table shows the numbers of children going missing in the last 12
months has reduced. In 2013 for example the 83 missing periods relate to 13
young people having multiple episodes.

Some of these young people have a long established pattern of absconding
including prior to their admission to care.

Currently there is one Looked After Child who has been missing for 43 days.
This child has been regularly reviewed under our Missing Procedure. We are
working closely with the police to locate the young person and form a plan for
their return. During this absence the young person has been in contact with
both their extended family and their Social Worker.

Page 62




QUESTION No. 22

Priority 5

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Gibson
of the Deputy Mayor

Question

What strategy is in place to protect and promote the heritage of the
historic Deptford area in light of proposed developments in that area?

Reply

Deptford is within the Regeneration and Growth area as defined by the
Council's Core Strategy and is an area identified as one of the prime locations
for new development. The Core Strategy recognises that in Deptford the
historic environment has a vital part to play in creating a sense of place in new
development. It notes that heritage assets are a valuable resource
contributing to regeneration objectives by attracting business investment,
preserving a sense of place and history, and reinforcing civic pride. It also
states that new development will need to ensure that conservation areas and
other heritage assets will continue to be preserved and enhanced.

The protection of the borough’s heritage generally is also promoted through
other planning policies including Core Strategy Policy 16 which covers
conservation areas, heritage assets and the historic environment.

The Council also has a number of specific measures in place to protect and
promote Deptford’s Heritage and officers work closely with English Heritage to
ensure that the character of Deptford and its heritage assets are suitably
protected.

Five conservation areas cover different parts of Deptford (Deptford High
Street, St Paul's, Deptford Creekside, Deptford Town Hall and Brookmill
Road). The first two are presently being reviewed and updated and the
associated conservation area review will go out for public consultation shortly.

Page 63



There are numerous nationally and locally listed buildings in Deptford, ranging
from the Grade 1 listed St Paul’'s Church in Deptford to others along the
riverside which reflect Deptford’s maritime heritage.

Deptford High Street and New Cross Road have also both been the subject of
conservation-lead grant schemes to repair and restore historic buildings.
Action is also being taken to bring those listed buildings “at risk” as a result of
their neglect back into a sound state of repair.

The Council also ensures that the importance of heritage issues is highlighted
in its negotiations on proposed developments. This has been demonstrated
by its current support for the Sayes Court Garden and Lenox projects and
approach to achieving an appropriate relationship of new buildings with
historic buildings and spaces in relation to the Olympia Building, former
Master Shipwrights House and site of John Evelyn’s House at Convoys
Wharf.

Page 64



QUESTION No. 23

Priority 5

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Brooks
of the Cabinet Member for Customer Services

Question

What is the current status of the Housing Matters consultation? Does the
Council still aim to change the type of organisation of Lewisham Homes,
despite tenants opposing this in the first round of consultation?

Reply

On 4 December 2013 Mayor and Cabinet noted the progress of the Housing
Matters programme and the next steps for the consultation.

This report noted that residents had mixed views about the possibility of
evolving Lewisham Homes, with no strong views in favour or against the
proposal. The latest element of the consultation found that 33 per cent
thought it was a good idea to evolve Lewisham Homes into a new
organisation, 31 per cent were unsure, and 35 per cent did not think it was a
good idea, a result could be summarised by stating that residents are open
minded to the idea of change, but not particularly enthused one way or the
other.

There are many other factors for consideration in addition to residents’ views,
including the availability of a debt write-off and the potential to attract new
funding for Decent Homes work and new-build homes, and the current
uncertainty around these financial factors mean that at this time it is not
appropriate to develop firm options for consultation with residents. Instead a
full assessment of these financial issues is underway.

To support that assessment, Lewisham Homes will continue the consultation
by undertaking a more locally based conversation with residents. This will
focus on three things: the ways in which residents can participate in the
delivery of services and influence the decisions that affect them; the services

Page 65



that residents receive and how they can be improved; and the ways in which
investment should be targeted locally to improve homes and places.

The conversation will generate two important sources of information which in
turn can inform future choices. First it will generate a much more local
perspective on the need for housing investment, and the ways that homes,
estates and places generally should be improved. This will enable local
“action plans” to be developed to set out to the Council the sorts of
improvements that residents wish to see in each place. Second, in
combination, the investment requirements set out in these plans will help to
guide the Council in its decision making about the most appropriate form for
any future evolution of Lewisham Homes to take.

This conversation will take place over the spring and summer of 2014 and the

results of this and the financial assessment will be reported to Mayor and
Cabinet in due course.

Page 66



QUESTION No. 24
Priority 6

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Brooks
of the Cabinet Member for Resources

Question

Taking into account the fact that the Coalition has just introduced a cap
on payday loans, and that numbers of Lewisham staff visiting payday
loan websites are very high, will the Council reconsider my suggestion
in September that payday loan websites should be blocked from
Council computers?

Reply

An analysis of how many staff access payday loan sites was undertaken for a
Council question in November 2013. The period of analysis was 1/9/2013 to
the 31/9/2013. See the table below for the results. It can be seen that 34
members of staff access payday loan sites during the period. This is not
excessive and in many cases relates to officers accessing sites as part of
their research work and in order to support vulnerable clients. We will
continue to monitor usage, but at this time we are not proposing to place
restrictions on access.

ACCESS BY STAFF TO SELECTED WEBSITES

WebSense Appliance reporting — 1 September 2013 to 30 September 2013

URL Total Number Users Total Number Hits
www.wonga.com 16 456
www.quickquid.co.uk 5 258
www.wizzcash.com 1 26
www.paydaysuk.com 0 0
www.moneyshop.tv 3 5
www.epayday.co.uk 1 1
www.albemarlebond.co.uk 0 0
www.oakam.com 2 5
www.lewishampluscu.co.uk 6 95
Total 34 846

Page 67




QUESTION No. 25

Priority 7

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Brooks
of the Deputy Mayor

Question

Could | please be provided with details of who are currently tenants in council-
owned retails units? Does the Council rent out its units to pay day lenders,
those who own betting shops, and pawnbrokers?

Reply
The individual details of all current tenants in Council retail units are

considered private information between the Council and its tenants and not
publically available.

The Council does not generally rent out its properties to pay day lenders,

betting shops or pawnbrokers. However, our records show that at present
there is one betting shop, in Evelyn Street.

Page 68



QUESTION No. 26

Priority 8

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

COUNCIL MEETING

26 FEBRUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Brooks
of the Cabinet Member for Customer Services

Question

Many of Lewisham Homes’ properties have carbon monoxide detectors. How
many have gone past their 2013 service date without being serviced? How
many have been reported faulty during 2013? What is the average waiting
time for replacement?

Reply

No carbon monoxide detectors have gone past their service date. The
equipment is an electrical fixture fitted with an indicator light and test button
and, as such, residents are asked to carry out the test on the detector.

Our records show that there were zero repairs raised against CO detectors in
2013, however, if reported we would respond immediately.

Page 69



Agenda ltem 7

COUNCIL

Report Title Amendment to Constitution

Key Decision No ltem No.

Ward

All

Contributors Head of Law

Class

Part 1 Date:26 February 2014

41

4.2

4.3

Summary

This report makes recommendations to change standing orders to require a
recorded vote in relation to budget decisions at Council meetings.

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to ensure compliance with new regulations which
come into effect on 25" February 2014. (SI 2014/165)

Recommendation

That the Council agree to the proposed amendment of the Constitution now
appearing at Appendix 1.

Background

The Council has in place a constitution which complies with the requirements
of the Local Government Act 2000 as amended, regulations, directions and
statutory guidance made under it. It embodies the statutory provisions
relating to the conduct of Council business and, so far as it is permissible in
law, the choices made by the Council in this respect. It includes the Council's
standing orders, effectively, its rules of procedure.

On 31° January 2014 new regulations were made. They are the Local
Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2014.
These amend the statutory provisions relating to the contents of standing
orders. They require that the Council amend its standing orders as soon as
practicable after the day on which the Regulations come into force to provide
that the votes at key budget decision meetings are recorded. The
Regulations require that the names of those voting for or against the decision
and those who abstained must be recorded in the minutes.

The meetings at which the votes must be recorded are those at which a
calculation is made (whether original or substitute) in respect of the following:-

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\7\9\ai00007979\$kcfj1ryh.doc

Page 70




4.4

Calculation of the Council Tax requirement (Section 31A*)

Calculation of the basic amount of Council Tax (Section 31B)

Additional calculations for special amounts relating only to part of the area
(Section 34 and 35)

Calculation of Tax for different valuation bands (Section 36)

Substitute calculations (Section 36A)

The calculation of substitute amounts of Council Tax to apply in the event of a
referendum not approving a Council Tax increase in excess of limits set by
the Secretary of State (Section 52ZF)

NB all of the references to sections in the list above relate to sections of the
Local Government Finance Act 1992.

Similar requirements are imposed on precepting authorities.

Financial implications

None arising

Legal implications

These are set out in the body of the report. Decisions relating to amendment
of the Constitution are for full Council to make. Constitution Working Party
has within its terms of reference the responsibility to advise Council on
proposed changes to the Constitution. However, the required change is not
one about which the Council has any discretion and the legal requirement is
to amend Standing Orders as soon as reasonably practicable after 25"
February 2014. In those circumstances and because of the timing of the
Council meeting, the matter has not been referred to CWP. This does not
affect the Council’s ability to make the necessary decision.

Equalities

There are no equalities implications

Crime and Disorder

There are no implications

Conclusion

It is therefore recommended that the Constitution be amended to reflect the
requirements of S| 2014/165

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\7\9\ai00007979\$kcfj1ryh.doc

Page 71



Appendix 1

The Council’s procedure rules appear at Part C of the Constitution.

Paragraph 22.7 currently reads

“Recorded vote — Where any member requests it after the vote is taken, their vote
will be so recorded in the minutes to show whether they voted for or against the
matter. “

It is proposed that this be replaced with the following

“22.7 Recorded vote

When the Council makes a budget decision (whether original or substitute) the
names of those who voted for and against the decision and those who abstained
from voting shall be recorded in the minutes.

For the purposes of this rule, a budget decision is as defined in regulations requiring
the recorded vote (Sl 2014/165) and includes the following:-

¢ Calculation of the Council Tax requirement (Section 31A*)
Calculation of the basic amount of Council Tax (Section 31B)
Additional calculations for special amounts relating only to part of the area
(Section 34 and 35)

e Calculation of Tax for different valuation bands (Section 36)
Substitute calculations (Section 36A)
The calculation of substitute amounts of Council Tax to apply in the event of a
referendum not approving A council Tax increase in excess of limits set by the
Secretary of State (Section 52ZF)

*All of the references to sections in the list above relate to sections of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992.

For the purposes of this rule, a budget decision includes a vote on any decision
related to the making of the calculation. When the council sets the Council Tax

base and agrees the National Non Domestic Rate for the area, a recorded vote
will take place.

In relation to any decision where there is no legal requirement for a recorded
vote, where any member requests it after the vote is taken, their vote will be so
recorded in the minutes to show whether they voted for or against the decision, or
abstained from voting”

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\7\9\ai00007979\$kcfj1ryh.doc

Page 72



Agenda Item 8

COUNCIL
REPORT TITLE 2014/15 Budget
KEY DECISION Yes Item |8
No.
WARD All
CONTRIBUTORS | Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration
CLASS Part 1 Date |26 February 2014

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This report sets out the range of budget assumptions which Council is required to agree
to enable it to set a balanced budget for 2014/15. These include the following:

The proposed Capital Programme (General Fund and Housing Revenue
Account) of £385.9m for the period 2014/15 to 2017/18, of which £126.4m is for
2014/15;

The proposed rent increase of 5.05% (average £4.61 per week) in respect of
dwelling rents, 4.66% (average £3.03 per week) in respect of hostels, and a
range of other proposed changes to service charges. The proposed annual
expenditure for the Housing Revenue Account is £104.0m for 2014/15;

The provisional Dedicated Schools Grant allocation of £267.6m and a separate
Pupil Premium allocation of £17.3m for 2014/15, noting that the majority of the
increase from the prior year is due to the inclusion of the funding for Academies
in 2014/15 and the continued growth in pupil numbers;

In respect of the General Fund, the assumed net revenue expenditure budget of
£268.1m. This has been prepared on the basis of the following assumptions:

£24 .5m of revenue budget savings are approved for 2014/15;

£7.5m is provided for budget pressures in 2014/15 of which it is being
recommended that £3.6m of specific identified budget pressures be funded now
and £3.9m be set aside for identified, but as yet un-quantified risks.

An assumed 0% increase in Council Tax for Lewisham’s services for 2014/15
and in so doing, receive the Government’s freeze grant of £1.0m.

A combination of once-off reserves and provisions be used to fund the current
savings shortfall of £6.3m for 2014/15 to balance the budget, pending proposals
from the Lewisham Future Programme in 2014/15, to make this up.

1.2  The report also looks to the medium term financial outlook and notes the prospects for
the budgets in 2015/16, savings required, and work of the Lewisham Future Programme
to meet identified potential budget shortfalls in future years.

1.3  In addition, the report updates the Council’s Treasury Management strategy for both
borrowing and investments. No fundamental changes are proposed to the approach or
levels of risk the Council takes in its treasury functions.

1
Page 73



2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.9.1

PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to set out the overall financial position of the Council in
relation to 2013/14 and to set the Budget for 2014/15. This report allows for the Council
Tax to be agreed and housing rents to be set for 2014/15. It sets the Capital
Programme for the next four years and the Council's Treasury Strategy.

The report also provides summary information on the revenue budget savings proposals
that were agreed at Mayor & Cabinet on 18 December 2013 and 12 February 2014.

The successful delivery of these savings are required in order to help balance the
budget for 2014/15 and to address the budget requirement for 2015/16.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Council approves the recommendations shown below in respect of the
2014/15 Budget. This is subject to any amendments which the Mayor may make
when considering the 2014/15 Budget update report to be presented to Mayor &
Cabinet on 19 February 2014.

Council are asked:

Capital Programme

to note the 2013/14 Quarter 3 Capital Programme monitoring position as set out in
section 5 of this report;

to approve the 2014/15 to 2017/18 Capital Programme of £385.9m, whilst noting that
there are no new proposed major capital projects for this period, as set out in section 5
of this report and attached at Appendices W1 and W2,

Housing Revenue Account

to note the consultation report on service charges to tenants and leaseholders in the
Brockley area, presented to area panel members on 19 December 2013, as attached
at Appendix X3;

to note the consultation report on service charges to tenants and leaseholders and

the Lewisham Homes budget strategy presented to area panel members on 17
December 2013, as attached at Appendix X4;

to set an increase of dwelling rents 5.05% (an average increase of £4.61 per week),
in accordance with the Rent Restructuring formula;

to set an increase in the hostels accommodation charge by 4.66% (or £3.03 per
week), in accordance with the Rent Restructuring formula;

to approve the following average weekly increases for dwellings for:

service charges to non-Lewisham Homes managed dwellings (Brockley);

2
Page 74



caretaking 3.70% (£0.04)
grounds 3.70% (£0.04)
communal lighting  3.70% (£0.04)
bulk waste collection 3.70% (£0.04)
window cleaning 0.00% (£0.00)
tenants’ levy No increase

3.9.2 service charges to Lewisham Homes managed dwellings:

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

caretaking 3.37% (£0.19)

grounds 2.50% (£0.02)

window cleaning 0.00% (£0.00)

communal lighting  -3.40% (-£0.03) decrease
block pest control  -8.89% (-£0.15) decrease
waste collection 4.21% (£0.02)

heating & hot water 0.50% (£0.05)

tenants’ levy No increase

to approve the following average weekly percentage decreases for hostels and shared
temporary units for;

e service charges (hostels) — caretaking etc.; -6.91% (-£6.03)
e energy cost decreases for heat, light & power; -50% (-£5.24)
e water charges decrease; -91% (-£1.88)

to approve an increase in garage rents by inflation of 3.2% (£0.25 per week) for Brockley
residents and 3.2% (£0.31 per week) for Lewisham Homes residents;

to note that the budgeted expenditure for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) for
2014/15 is £104.0m;

to note the HRA budget strategy savings proposals in order to achieve a balanced budget
in 2014/15, as attached at Appendix X1;

Dedicated Schools Grant and Pupil Premium

to approve, subject to final confirmation of the allocation, that the provisional Dedicated
Schools Grant allocation of £267.6m be the Schools’ Budget for 2014/15 and to note that
this level of funding will not be supplemented by a general fund contribution;

General Fund Revenue Budget

to note the projected overall variance against the agreed 2013/14 revenue budget to
December 2013, as set out in section 8 of this report;

to note and endorse the revenue budget savings of £24.5m for 2014/15 and £1.7m for
2015/16, as set out in section 8 of the report and summarised in Appendix Y1. This is
subject to any further variations to the Budget proposal which the Mayor may make at
Mayor & Cabinet on 19 February 2014,

to fund revenue budget pressures of £3.6m in 2014/15, allowing the Executive Director
for Resources & Regeneration to hold these resources corporately until such time that

3
Page 75



3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

3.26

3.27

3.28

3.29

3.30

these pressures emerge during the year and it has been determined that the pressures
cannot be contained within the Directorates’ cash limits;

to agree that the Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration maintains a fund of
£3.9m against which risks and other potential budget pressures which emerge during the
year would be considered for funding;

to set a General Fund Budget Requirement of £268.1m for 2014/15;

to agree a 0% increase in Lewisham’s Council Tax element and to accept the 1% Council
Tax freeze grant of £1.0m. This will result in a Band D equivalent Council Tax level of
£1,060.35 for Lewisham’s services and £1,359.35 overall. This represents an overall
decrease in Council Tax for 2014/15 of 0.29% and comes as a result of final notification
of the Greater London Authority (GLA) precept for 2014/15 being reduced by £4.00
(1.3%) from its existing 2013/14 level;

to note the Council Tax Ready Reckoner which for illustrative purposes, sets out the
Band D equivalent Council Tax at various levels of increase. This is explained in section
8 of the report and set out in more detail in Appendix Y3;

to agree that the Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration issues cash limits to
all Directorates once the 2014/15 Revenue Budget is agreed;

to note the Chief Financial Officer's Section 25 Statement, as attached at Appendix Y4,

to agree the Council Tax Calculation and Statutory Calculation for 2014/15 as set out at
Appendix Y5;

to note the prospects for the revenue budget for 2015/16 and future years;

to agree that officers continue to develop firm proposals as part of the Lewisham Future
Programme to help meet the forecast budget shortfalls in future years;

Other Grants

to approve the allocation of £0.65m per annum of New Homes Bonus over the next ten
years 2014/15 to 2023/24, to provide delivery support for housing and school pressures.
This is set out in more detail in section 9 of this report;

Treasury Management Strategy

to approve the prudential indicators and treasury limits, as set out in section 10 of this
report;

to approve the 2014/15 treasury strategy, including the investment strategy and the credit
worthiness policy, as set out at Appendix Z3;

to approve the credit and counterparty risk management criteria, as set out at Appendix
Z3, the proposed countries for investment at Appendix Z4, and that it formally delegates
responsibility for managing transactions with those institutions which meet the criteria to
the Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration;

4
Page 76



3.31

3.32

3.33

3.34

3.35

3.36

3.37

41

to delegate to the Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration, authority during
2014/15, to make amendments to borrowing and investment strategies provided there is
no change to the Council’'s authorised limit for borrowing;

to agree to increase the maximum deposit limits with the part nationalised banks from
£50m to £65m for each of Lloyds Banking Group and Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS)
Group;

to approve lending to other local authorities up to a maximum of £5m and for a period of
up to one year,

to note the development of the Municipal Bond Agency, and once fully established, to
note its potental as a suitable Agency from which to borrow as an alternative to the Public
Works Loan Board (PWLB);

to approve the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy as set out in section 10 of this
report;

to note the Treasury Management mid-year review attached at Appendix Z6;
Specific Recommendation for Appendix Y2 — Attendance and Welfare Service

to note and endorse the recommendation in relation to savings of £0.3m from the
Attendance and Welfare Service (AWS), to be implemented in September 2014. This
forms part of the overall savings package set out in recommendation 3.16 of this report.

STRUCTURE OF THE REPORT, POLICY CONTEXT AND BACKGROUND

The 2014/15 Budget Report is structured as follows:

Section 1 Executive Summary

Section 2 Purpose

Section 3 Recommendations

Section 4  Structure of the Report, Policy Context and Background
Section 5 Capital Programme

Section6  Housing Revenue Account

Section 7 Dedicated Schools Grant and Pupil Premium
Section 8 General Fund Revenue Budget and Council Tax
Section 9  Other Grants and Future Years’ Budget Strategy
Section 10  Treasury Management Strategy

Section 11 Consultation on the Budget

Section 12 Financial Implications

Section 13  Legal Implications

Section 14 Human Resources Implications

Section 15 Crime and Disorder Implications

5
Page 77



4.2

Section 16  Equalities Implications

Section 17  Environmental Implications

Section 18 Conclusion

Section 19  Background Documents and Further Information

Section 20 Appendices

POLICY CONTEXT

The Council’s strategy and priorities drive the Budget with changes in resource
allocation determined in accordance with policies and priorities. The six Sustainable
Community Strategy priorities, agreed with the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) and
the Council’s ten Corporate Priorities are set as follows:

Sustainable Community Strategy

Ambitious and achieving: where people are inspired and supported to their
potential.

Safer: where people feel safe and live free from crime, antisocial behaviour and
abuse.

Empowered and responsible: where people are actively involved in their local
area and contribute to supportive communities.

Clean, green and liveable: where people live in high quality housing and can
care for and enjoy their environment.

Healthy, active and enjoyable: where people can actively participate in
maintaining and improving their health and well-being.

Dynamic and prosperous: where people are part of vibrant communities and
town centres, well connected to London and beyond.

Corporate Priorities

Community Leadership and Empowerment: developing opportunities for the
active participation and engagement of people in the life of the community.

Young people’s achievement and involvement: raising educational attainment
and improving facilities for young people through partnership working.

Clean, green and liveable: improving environmental management, the
cleanliness and care for roads and pavements, and promoting a sustainable
environment.

Safety, security and a visible presence: partnership working with the police
and others to further reduce crime levels and using Council powers to combat
anti-social behaviour.

Strengthening the local economy: gaining resources to regenerate key
localities, strengthen employment skills and promote public transport.

Decent Homes for all: investment in social and affordable housing to achieve
the decent homes standard, tackle homelessness and supply key worker
housing.

Page 78



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

e Protection of children: better safeguarding and joined up services for children at
risk.

e Caring for adults and older people: working with health services to support
older people and adults in need of care.

e Active, healthy citizens: leisure, sporting, learning and creative activities for
everyone.

¢ Inspiring efficiency, effectiveness and equity: ensuring efficiency and equity in
the delivery of excellent services to meet the needs of the community.

In taking forward the Council’'s Budget Strategy, in engaging our residents, service users
and employees, and in deciding on the future shape, scale and quality of services, we
are driven by the Council’s four core values:

o We put service to the public first.
e We respect all people and all communities.
e We invest in employees.

¢ \We are open, honest and fair in all we do.

BACKGROUND

Following the global financial crisis and the requirement to rebalance the public
finances, the financial outlook for the Council and the public sector as a whole remains
extremely challenging.

The Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR) provides independent analysis of the UK’s
public finances. The most recent forecasts, released in December 2013 are for the
period to 2018/19. They show that the UK economy has grown more in 2013 than
originally predicted in March 2013. This has resulted in a revised forecast for Gross
Domestic Product (GDP) growth in 2013, up from 0.6% to 1.4%. Forecast growth for
2014 as a whole is up from 1.8% to 2.4%. The OBR has revised borrowing down by a
cumulative £73bn between 2013/14 and 2017/18, with a prediction that the budget will
be back in balance by 2018/19.

On 6 January 2014, the Chancellor of the Exchequer delivered a key note speech on the
economy in which he stated that the current forecasts implied further cuts in government
expenditure of around £25bn would be needed after the next election, much of it to be
delivered from the welfare budget. The £25bn figure is in line with the already
announced intention to rebalance the public sector finances by 2018 and suggests that
the cuts will continue at the same rate into the next Parliament.

The Council has already reduced its revenue budget by £82m since May 2010 and
agreed total savings of £17.1m for the two years 2014/15 and 2015/16. On 18
December 2013, Mayor & Cabinet agreed further savings of £8.2m to be made in
2014/15 and £0.6m in 2015/16. A further saving of £0.3m (£0.1m for 2014/15 and
£0.2m for 2015/16) for the Attendance & Welfare Service, was agreed at Mayor &
Cabinet on 12 February 2014.

The Strategic Financial Review was reported to Mayor & Cabinet in July 2013 with an
update reported in November 2013. This set out that an estimated £85m of savings

7
Page 79



4.9

4.10

5.1

52

5.3

5.4

(now £95m following the local government finance settlement in December 2013) are
required from 2014/15 to 2017/18, over and above savings already agreed. The
Lewisham Future Programme Board was established to progress cross-cutting and
thematic reviews to deliver these savings.

The provisional local government finance settlement was announced on 18 December
2013, with the final settlement being announced on 5 February 2014. Leaving all other
previous assumptions unchanged, the provisional estimate is now that further new
savings of £44.7m will be required over 2014/15 and 2015/16. Of these, a remaining
£6.3m worth of savings or other measures are still needed to balance the budget in
2014/15 pending additional proposals from the Lewisham Future Programme. Further
savings of £38.4m are needed in 2015/16.

This report sets out the position of the financial settlements as they impact on the
Council’s overall resources:

e Capital Programme for 2014/18;

¢ Housing Revenue Account and level of rents for 2014/15;
e Dedicated Schools Grant for 2014/15;

e General Fund Revenue Budget for 2014/15;

e Other Grants;

e Council Tax level for 2014/15; and

e Treasury Management Strategy for 2014/15

CAPITAL PROGRAMME

In considering the Council’s overall financial position, the Capital Programme is
considered first. This is to ensure that any revenue implications of capital decisions are
taken into account. The Capital Programme budget for 2014/15 to 2017/18 is proposed
at £385.9m, of which £126.4m is for 2014/15.

This section of the report is structured as follows:

e Update on 2013/14 Capital Programme

e Proposed Capital Programme 2014/15 to 2017/18
Update on 2013/14 Capital Programme

Progress in delivering the 2013/14 Capital Programme has been reported to Mayor &
Cabinet and the Public Accounts Select Committee regularly throughout the year. The
latest forecast projection is that £129.1m (86%) of the original budget allocated for the
year of £151.0m will be delivered this year. At this stage, the slippage of £21.9m has
been re-phased to 2014/15.

Proposed Capital Programme 2014/15 to 2017/18

The Council’'s proposed Capital Programme for 2014/15 to 2017/18 is currently
£385.9m, as set out in Table A1:

Page 80



Table A1: Proposed Capital Programme for 2014/15 to 2017/18

13114 | 14115 1516 16117 17118 | 2Year
Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

General Fund
Building Schools for the Future 23.4 16.9 52 1.6 0.4 241

Schools — Primary Places and
other Capital Works 25.0 32.8 10.1 10.6 1.2 54.7

Highways, Footways and 9.5 35 35 35 35 14.0
Bridges ) ' ' ' ' )
Major Regeneration Schemes 3.9 4.7 4.5 2.1 2.7 14.0
;I'own Centres and High Street 44 29 20 36 0.0 8.5
mprovements
Asset Management Programme 24 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 10.0
Other Schemes 151 4.8 3.3 2.2 2.3 12.6
83.7| 68.1 311 26.1 12.6 137.9
Housing Revenue Account 45.4 58.3 49.4 58.1 82.2 248.0
Total Programme 129.1 | 126.4 80.5 84.2 94.8 385.9

The resources available to finance the proposed Capital Programme are as set out in
Table A2 below:

Table A2: Proposed Capital Programme Resources for 2014/15 to 2017/18

13114 | 1415 1516 1617 17118 | 4Year
Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

General Fund
Prudential Borrowing 5.5 2.8 2.0 3.6 0 8.4
Grants and Contributions 47.0 46.4 14.8 11.4 0.8 73.4
Specific Capital Receipts 4.6 4.7 4.5 2.0 2.7 13.9
General Capttal Receipts / 266| 142 98 91 91| 422

Page 81



5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

6.1

6.2

83.7| 68.1 31.1 26.1 12.6 137.9
Housing Revenue Account
Prudential Borrowing 0 0 0 0 27 .4 27.4
Grants 240| 36.0 0 0 0 36.0
Reserves / Revenue 21.4 22.3 494 58.1 54.8 184.6
454 | 58.3 494 581 82.2 248.0
Total Resources 1291 | 126.4 80.5 84.2 94.8 385.9

Members will note that the General Fund resources available to finance capital projects
decrease over the term of the Programme. This reflects the Council’s prudent approach
to long-term planning, with grants for later years not taken into account until they have
been confirmed, and capital receipts only being taken into account when they have been
received or are reasonably certain of being received. The Council prudently avoids
entering into long-term expenditure commitments until there is more certainty as to how
they can be financed.

The Programme has been updated for known changes in grant funding, in particular
Schools Basic Need allocations of £8.9m for 2015/16 and £9.4m for 2016/17 and
Schools Maintenance Grant of £3.1m for 2014/15. The future Highways and Footways
programme of £3.5m per year, agreed by Mayor & Cabinet last summer, has also been
included. A full list of changes to the Programme is shown in Appendix W2.

No changes are proposed at this stage to the existing general fund revenue
contributions to capital (CERA) of £2.0m per year from General Fund and £1.2m per
year contribution from schools. The revenue funding line also includes amounts
transferred to reserves in previous years for schemes which at that time, had not been
delivered.

The Capital Programme will be further updated to include future grants, including
transport, once these are known and will also include the year-end outturn expenditure
and resourcing. This is expected to be reported to Members before the summer recess
and will not impact on delivery of the Programme for 2014/15.

A significant amount of the future planned prudential borrowing is within the Housing
Revenue Account, which is the available headroom within the self-financing settlements.

Summary

The proposed 2014/15 to 2017/18 Capital Programme totals £385.9m (General Fund
£137.9m and HRA £248.0m) and includes all the Council’s capital projects. It sets out
the key priorities for the Council over the four year period and will be reviewed regularly.
The Capital Programme is set out in more detail in Appendices W1 and W2.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

This section of the report considers the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). The
budgeted expenditure for the HRA in 2014/15 is £104.0m

It is structured as follows:

¢ Update on the HRA financial position for 2013/14
10
Page 82



6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

e Update on the HRA Business Plan
e Future Years’ Forecast

Update on the HRA financial position for 2013/14

The latest forecast on the HRA for 2013/14, is that net expenditure can be contained
within budget by the year end. There are currently pressures from major works income
and hostel charges, but these are being mitigated by the use of once off contingencies,
reserves and revenue working balances. Expenditure against repairs & maintenance
budgets is expected to be contained within the sums allocated.

Update on the HRA Business Plan

The self-financing system was implemented on 1 April 2012. A 30 year financial model
has been developed based on current management arrangements, updated for
efficiency savings and cost pressures. In addition, policy objectives such as sheltered
housing and new build plans are incorporated into the modelling.

This has shown that there is a shortfall in resources over the first ten years of the plan.
The Council is considering how it will respond to the challenges and opportunities of the
self-financing system. The combination of the new system and the significant housing
pressures may, in due course, cause the Council to adopt new management
arrangements in order to optimise delivery of policy objectives.

The Housing Matters programme is currently undertaking a full assessment of both long
and short-term requirements against resources available. This includes assumptions on
future liabilities, programmes, savings and other requirements. These assumptions will
be used to inform the resource need and identify potential gaps in funding and
opportunities for additional income and grants.

Future Years’ Forecast

The key purpose of the proposed HRA budget is to ensure that there are sufficient
resources to support lifecycle works, repairs and maintenance and the Decent Homes
programme. The reduction in management costs is also expected to continue.

The HRA is budgeted to spend £104.0m in 2014/15. Officers have examined budgets to
identify savings opportunities to deliver services for improved value for money. These
savings are included in the proposed budget for 2014/15. Savings of £0.7m for 2014/15
were identified and put before Tenants’ Panels in December 2013. An explanation of
the savings and options to achieve them are set out in more detail in Appendix X1. The
feedback from the consultation is set out in Appendix X2. Should all of these proposals
be agreed for 2014/15, then the savings could be reinvested to meet key priorities, such
as contributing towards bridging the financing gap on achieving the Decent Homes
standard.

Under these proposals, the Lewisham Homes management fee would reduce from its
current level of £18.9m in 2013/14 to £18.7m in 2014/15. This represents an overall
decrease of 0.2% in the fee per property compared to 2013/14.

11
Page 83



6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

Separate reports which set out in detail the proposals relating to service charges for
Brockley and Lewisham Homes residents are attached at Appendix X3 and Appendix
X4, respectively.

Rental Income & Allowances

The average weekly rent is currently £91.36 and it is proposed that average rents will
increase by 5.05% (£4.61 per week) to £95.97. This forecast is based on rent
restructuring guidance for actual rent of Retail Price Index (RPI) +0.5% + £2.00
(maximum) convergence element. RPI inflation as at September 2013, was 3.2%. This
is based on the current assumed rent convergence date of 2015/16. (i.e. one year from
2014/15, as per the self-financing settlement).

The proposed rent rise is estimated to generate £3.5m of additional rental income. A
rent rise lower than the formula calculation is likely to result in lost resources in the HRA
which would then need to be made up by efficiencies or further savings in order to
maintain a balanced account. For example, a rent rise of RPI less 1% would generate
£2.8m in additional rental income, a reduction of £0.7m or £0.92 per dwelling per week.

A rent rise higher than the formula calculation will result in additional recharges to the
HRA via the Housing Benefit (HB) subsidy limitation charges. For example, an increase
of £1 (1%) above the calculated average weekly rent will generate some additional
income, all of which will be lost through additional limitation recharges and therefore
result in no benefit to the HRA.

In June 2013, the Government published its Spending Review (SR). Within the SR, the
Government announced that funding for Decent Homes would continue into 2015/16,
and would be aimed at local authorities with more than 10% non-decent stock. Whilst
exact details are yet to be published on how to access this funding, Lewisham is
expected to benefit from this announcement.

Also announced within the SR, the Government put forward proposals to change the
way rent increases are made for the financial year 2015/16 onwards. The
Government’s proposal is to raise rents by Consumer Price Index (CPI) + 1% for up to
ten years, rather than RPI + 0.5%. It also proposes to remove the convergence element
of a £2 maximum where rents are not at formula levels.

The Government has issued a consultation paper on these proposals. The impact of
this change is currently being assessed, but is likely to reduce rental income projections
and could put pressure on the HRA Business Plan.

Details of the proposed rent rise for 2014/15 were presented to the Housing Select
Committee on 4 December 2013. Any comments arising from this Committee were
referred to Mayor & Cabinet on 18 December 2013.

Other Associated Charges

There are a range of other associated charges. These include: garage rents, tenants
levy, hostels, linkline, private sector leasing, heating and hot water. These charges and
any proposed changes to them for 2014/15 have been set out in detail in Appendix X5.

Summary

12
Page 84



6.19

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

The gross budgeted expenditure for the HRA in 2014/15 is £104.0m. The proposed
increase of 5.05% in dwelling rents is £4.61 per week for an average property. This
would take the average weekly rent, currently at £91.36 for 2013/14, to a level of £95.97
for 2014/15.

DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT AND PUPIL PREMIUM

This section of the report considers the Dedicated Schools’ Grant (DSG) and level of
Pupil Premium for 2014/15. The respective budgets for 2014/15 are £267.6m and
£17.3m.

It is structured as follows:

e Update on 2013/14 Dedicated Schools’ Grant
e Dedicated Schools’ Grant for 2014/15
e Pupil Premium

Update on 2013/14 Dedicated Schools’ Grant

The level of the Dedicated Schools’ Grant (DSG) for 2013/14 is £250.7m. This will be
revised later to take account of the pupil count which for early years children is
undertaken in January 2014.

The only current budget pressure in the DSG arises from children placed in independent
schools within the High Needs block of the grant. As this can be met from a previous
year carry forward, the grant is expected to be balanced at the year end.

Dedicated Schools’ Grant for 2014/15

The DSG for 2014/15 has provisionally been set by the Department for Education (DfE)
at £267.6m, although this will change to reflect updated pupil numbers. The figure
includes an estimate of the funding available for High Needs pupils and this will not be
finalised until March 2014 when all the data has been collected from local authorities.

In comparison with last year, there is a £16.9m increase (6.8%) in the DSG. This
increase is due to the following:

e some £12.0m relates to the inclusion in the settlement for Lewisham’s secondary
Academy schools for the first time. The funding will be recouped by the
Education Funding Agency later in the year.

¢ Although the amount per pupil has been frozen in cash terms there is an increase
of £3.6m driven by the estimated increase in pupil numbers.

¢ The remaining £1.3m of the increase relates to the extension of nursery provision
for two-year olds.

There is a very slight decrease in the DSG on a like-for-like basis, excluding inflation of
less than 0.1%. This reflects withdrawal of the top-up for three to four year olds. Half
was withdrawn in 2013/14. In 2014/15, there will be no further top-up. The top-up
ensured that local authorities were funded for at least 90% of their three year olds
regardless of the number of children taking up the entitement. There was a further

13
Page 85



7.8

7.9

7.10

7.1

8.1

reduction in funding for the carbon reduction requirement which no longer applies to
schools. However, once inflation of 2.5% for the year is taken into account, there is a
real terms reduction in funding of more than 2%.

Individual Schools’ Budgets (ISBs) vary year on year mainly due to changes to pupil
numbers. The Schools’ Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) has been set at a negative
figure of minus 1.5%, which relates to the funding level per pupil. A further
announcement is awaited on the funding for the new free school meals offer for all
Reception and Key Stage 1 pupils.

If no action was taken, the Independent Schools Fees budget pressure as noted in
paragraph 7.4, would result in the DSG having a deficit of £0.5m in 2014/15 and £2.0m
in 2015/16. The Schools Forum has agreed an approach to manage this shortfall in
2014/15 by reducing the top-up to schools budget for High Needs Pupils and have set
up a task group to look at managing the cost in 2015/16.

Pupil Premium

In addition to the DSG, schools will continue to receive the pupil premium. The pupil
premium in 2013/14 was allocated to schools on the basis of the average number of
children who were entitled to a free school meal in the past six years. At the start of
each year, the DfE provide a forecast of the numbers of pupils on roll. This is
subsequently revised to an actual number later in the year. Originally, the funding rates
for 2013/14 were set at £900 for all children. The rate for primary children in 2013/14
was increased to £953 during the year.

In 2014/15, the rate of funding will be £1,300 per primary child, £935 per secondary

child and £1,900 per child in Looked After Care. The current overall estimated levels of
funding for the pupil premium in Lewisham are summarised in Table B1.

Table B1 — Pupil Premium

Sector 2013/14 2014/15
No. of No. of | Funding
Children | Funding | Children
Primary 8,730 £8.3m 8,640 | £11.2m
Secondary 5,790 £5.2m 5,690 £5.3m
Looked after Children 310 £0.3m 390 £0.8m
Total £13.8m £17.3m

GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET AND COUNCIL TAX

This section considers the General Fund revenue budget and Council Tax. The General
Fund budget for 2014/15, assuming a Council Tax increase of 0%, is £268.1m. Details

of the savings anticipated for 2014/15 are provided at Appendix Y1.

14

Page 86




8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

It is structured as follows:

Update on 2013/14 Revenue Budget
The Budget Model

Council Tax for 2014/15

Overall Budget Position for 2014/15

Update on 2013/14 Revenue Budget

The Council’s revenue budget for 2013/14 was agreed at Council on 27 February 2013.
The budget requirement was set at £284.6m. It excluded funding for housing and
schools which are accounted for through the HRA and DSG, as set out above in section
six and seven of this report.

During the financial year, monthly monitoring is undertaken by officers and these
monitoring reports have been presented quarterly to Mayor & Cabinet and scrutinised by
the Public Accounts Select Committee. Significant attention continues to be directed
towards volatile budget areas. Volatile areas are those where small changes in activity
levels can drive large cost implications. For example, Looked After Children, No
Recourse to Public Funds, and Adult Social Care. These areas of activity are also
informed by risk assessments which are continually reviewed.

Budget holders have been challenged to maintain tight control on spending throughout
the year through the continuation of Directorate, Corporate and Recruitment spending
panels. The initial projected overspend of £0.3m reported at the end of May 2013 has
been continually managed throughout the year. As at 31 December 2013, a Council
wide underspend of £0.8m was forecast. This variance represents just a quarter of one
percent against the agreed net revenue budget for the year. The forecast variances by
Directorate are set out in Table C1 below.

A total of 95% of the in-year savings of £20.9m which were agreed in setting the
2013/14 budget are anticipated to be delivered on schedule. At this late stage of the
financial year, this figure is unlikely to change significantly between now and the year-
end.

Directorate

Table C1 sets out the latest forecast budget variances on the General Fund by
Directorate.

Table C1: Forecast outturn for 2013/14 as at end of December 2013

DIRECTORATE Gross Gross Net Forecast | Variance
budgeted | budgeted| budget over/
spend income (under)
spend
£m £m £m £m %

15

Page 87




8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

CYP 79.6 (20.4) 59.2 1.7 2.9%
Community Services 178.8 (60.6) 118.2 (3.6) -3.0%
Customer Services 78.5 (47.4) 31.1 2.0 6.4%
Resources & Regeneration 58.3 (13.0) 45.3 (0.9) -2.0%
Directorate total 395.2 (141.4) 253.8 (0.8) -0.3%
Corporate items 30.8

Budget requirement 284.6

Corporate Financial Provisions

Corporate Financial Provisions are budgets that are held centrally for corporate
purposes, which do not form part of the controllable expenditure of the service
directorates. They include Capital Expenditure charged to the Revenue Account
(CERA), Treasury Management budgets such as Interest on Revenue Balances (IRB)
and Debt Charges, Corporate Working Balances and various provisions for items such
as early retirement and voluntary severance. The spend on Corporate Financial
Provisions is expected to be contained within budget by the year-end.

The Budget Model

This section of the report sets out the construction of the 2014/15 base budget. This
section is structured as follows:

e Budget assumptions, including: Savings, Council Tax, and Inflation

e Budget pressures to be funded
¢ Risks and other potential budget pressures to be managed

Budget assumptions, including: Savings, Council Tax and Inflation

The Council has made substantial reductions to its expenditure over the last four years.
On all credible economic forecasts, it will continue to need to make further reductions for
at least the next three to five years. This section of the report summarises a series of
proposals that would enable the Council to set a balanced budget for 2014/15 as part of
a sustainable financial strategy to 2017/18.

Savings

In 2013/14, the Council agreed savings of £16.2m (amended) for 2014/15 and £0.9m in
2015/16. On 18 December 2013, the Mayor agreed further savings of £8.2m for
2014/15 and £0.6m in 2015/16. This provides an overall savings package in 2014/15 of
£24.4m and £1.5m in 2015/16 and leaves the Council a budget shortfall, to be funded by
use of once off provisions and reserves, of some £6.4m for 2014/15.

At the same meeting in December, the Mayor withdrew the saving proposal for the
Attendance and Welfare Service (CYP12) from consideration to allow pre-decision
scrutiny by the Children and Young People Select Committee on 29 January 2014.
Having allowed the scrutiny process to take place, this proposal of £0.3m (£0.1m for
2014/15 and £0.2m for 2015/16) was agreed by the Mayor at the Mayor & Cabinet
meeting on 12 February 2014. This has increased the overall savings package for

16
Page 88



8.13

8.14

8.15

8.16

8.17

8.18

8.19

2014/15 to £24.5m and to £1.7m for 2015/16. This brings the budget gap down to
£6.3m for 2014/15. The supporting paper for this proposal is attached at Appendix Y2.

On 18 December 2013, in approving the budget saving proposal of £0.2m for the out of
hours emergency telephone service (CUS07) and following representations from the
Housing Select Committee and Unison, the Mayor sought re-assurance from officers
that the saving is possible when considering the capacity of current providers. This re-
assurance has been provided and the Mayor re-affirmed his approval of this saving
proposal at the meeting of Mayor & Cabinet on 12 February 2014. The supporting
paper for this budget saving proposal is attached at Appendix Y7.

Following the announcements of the provisional and final local government finance
settlements in December 2013 and February 2014, respectively, the Executive Director
for Resources & Regeneration has been considering options to bridge the budget
shortfall in order to balance the budget for 2014/15. The options include using of a
mixture of on-going and once-off resources. This is explained in more detail towards the
end of this section.

Estimates for 2016/17 to 2017/18 are less certain, particularly as the local government
finance settlement only contains details up to 2015/16. On 6 January 2014, in his
keynote speech about the economy, the Chancellor of the Exchequer said the current
forecasts implied further cuts of around £25bn over two years by 2017/18. Therefore, it
would be reasonable to assume that the Council will continue to need to make
significant savings over the medium-term. It is estimated that further savings against
the General Fund resources of between £40m to £50m will be required over the course
of 2016/17 to 2017/18. The prospects for future years’ budgets are set out in more
detail in section 9 of this report.

Council Tax

The assumption used in the model for preparing the budget for 2014/15, subject to
confirmation by Council, is for a 0% Council Tax increase and receipt of the 1% Council
Tax freeze grant from Government. On 5 February 2014, the Local Government
Minister confirmed that the Council Tax threshold would be set at 2%. If Council choose
to set a different Council Tax increase they will need to be mindful, that any increase in
Council Tax of 2% or more would require support in a local referendum. Further
information on the options for Council when setting the Council Tax is set out towards
the end of this section.

Inflation

The Government's inflation target for the United Kingdom is defined in terms of the
Consumer Price Index (CPl) measure of inflation which excludes mortgage interest
payments. Since April 2011, the CPI has also been used for the indexation of benefits,
tax credits and public service pensions.

On 14 January 2014, the Office for National Statistics (ONS) reported that the rate of
CPl inflation in the UK stands at 2.0% in December, down from 2.1% in November. It is
the first time since November 2009 that inflation has been at or below the 2% target set
by the Government.

For financial planning purposes, the Council has previously assumed an average pay
inflation of 1% per annum, which equates to approximately £1.1m. The Council

17
Page 89



8.20

8.21

8.22

8.23

8.24

currently applies a non-pay inflation rate of 2.5% per annum. In addition, officers have
examined specific areas where a 2.5% allocation is not appropriate, and adjusted those
specific budgets accordingly when preparing the 2014/15 budget.

Budget Pressures to be funded

As in previous years, £7.5m of funds are set aside in the budget model to meet specific
identified budget pressures and identified potential budget risks. For 2014/15, budget
pressures have been reviewed by the Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration
and it is recommended that a number of these specific identified pressures are funded
now. In terms of accounting for these, consistent with prior years, it is proposed that the
Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration hold these funds corporately until
such time that these pressures emerge within Directorate budgets and it has been
determined that they cannot be contained within Directorates’ cash limits during the
year.

Table C2 provides a summary of the Corporate budget pressures that are being
recommended to be funded.

Table C2: Summary of budget pressures to be funded

Description £m
Actuarial Valuation 1.00
Asset Management 0.15
Concessionary Fares 0.79
Highways 0.35
Looked After Children 0.50
Parking 0.80
Pressures Recommended to be funded 3.59

Actuarial Valuation — £1.00m

An actuarial valuation of the Pension Fund was carried out as at 31 March 2013. This
calculated the funding level at 71.4% and set employer’s contribution rates until 31
March 2017. This represents a deterioration of 5.3% from the position at the 2010
valuation which assessed the funding level at 75.4%. The deterioration is attributable to
changes in the Fund's membership along with other financial and demographic
changes.

The actuary has applied a stabilisation mechanism which restricts movements in
employers contributions within a 1% increase and 2% decrease range to recognise both
affordability issues and the potential improvement in investment returns in the inter-
valuation period from 2014 to 2017. Additional stablisation funding of £1.0m will be
provided for 2014/15.

Asset Management — £0.15m

The New Generation Youth facility, My Place, opened in June 2013. The capital costs
of the building works were covered by My Place grant funding. However, this funding
does not cover ongoing revenue costs for operating the facility. These are estimated at
£0.15m annually, for which no funding currently exists within the revenue budget.

18
Page 90



8.25

8.26

8.27

8.28

8.29

8.30

8.31

Concessionary Fares — £0.79m

In December 2012, the London Councils’ Transport and Environment Committee agreed
that there should be a transition period for the introduction of usage apportionment for
the National Rail and London overground elements of the Freedom Pass settlement
from 2014/15 onwards. Due to the lack of available data, previous settlements used the
level of formula grant as the apportionment method. Owing to the significant
distributional effects of moving to usage apportionment, an approach was adopted to
phase it in over three years. The approach uses a method of; 40% by usage and 60%
by Formula Funding in year one (2014/15), 70% by usage and 30% by Formula Funding
in year two (2015/16) and 100% by usage in year three (2016/17). For 2014/15, this
results in a budget pressure for Lewisham of £0.79m.

Highways - £0.35m

The ten year investment programme for the resurfacing of highways and footways in the
Borough has come to an end and future funding arrangements need to be established.
It is proposed that an ongoing highways resurfacing budget of £3.0m be established
over a ten year period. In the first year, this will be funded by a combination of
pressures funding, reserves and the release of existing prudential borrowing budgets as
debt is repaid.

Corporate funding of £0.3m for 2014/15 will be provided with an additional £0.3m being
added to the budget for 2015/16 until 2020/21 and a balance of £0.1m in 2021/22.
Therefore, the total allocation over the period is £2.2m, although this will eventually be
offset by £0.8m of released budget arising from repaid prudential borrowing over the
period 2024/25 to 2033/34.

It is also proposed to create an ongoing budget of £0.5m for the replacement of
footways over a ten year period 2014/15 until 2023/24. For 2014/15, a budget allocation
of £0.05m will be needed with an additional £0.05m being added to the budget for each
of the years 2015/16 to 2023/24.

As part of the Capital Programme, set out in section five of this report, capital
investment for highways of £4.5m has been agreed for 2013/14, plus £3m per year has
been assumed for 2014/15 onwards. This is in line with the overall prudential borrowing
amounts agreed for the previous ten years.

Looked After Children — £0.50m

The Looked after Children service provides social work support to all the children who
are looked after by the London Borough of Lewisham. It performs all the statutory
functions, including care planning and ensuring that their health and education needs
are met. At the start of 2010, the number of Looked After Children peaked and then
they started to decline. This continued until the summer of 2011 from when numbers
were fairly stable. However, the numbers started to rise again in April 2013. While the
budget pressure is being managed down in 2013/14 through effective and economic
placement decisions, overall there remains a forecast overspend.

The current demographics indicate that the pupil population is growing by 2.5% which,
all other things being equal, roughly projects to an increase in the Looked After Children
of one a month. Given the estimated pupil population increase, this represents a budget
pressure of £0.50m per year.

19
Page 91



8.32

8.33

8.34

8.35

8.36

Parking — £0.80m

The shortfall in Parking income remains a significant budget pressure. The largest
element of the income shortfall arises from a significant reduction in pay and display
income. The decline in parking income experienced over the last two years continues.
Indications are that income will drop by 10%, approximately £0.3m, in 2013/14.

Risks and other potential budget pressures to be managed

Following the review of budget pressures within Directorates, there are a number of
other risks and issues which, although difficult to quantify with absolute certainty, could
prove significant should they materialise.

Officers continue to undertake work to fully assess and monitor these risks. These risks
and other potential budget pressures are discussed in more detail below:

Bed & Breakfast

Leaving Care Service

No Recourse to Public Funds
Redundancy

Secure Remand

Transition — Child to Adult Care

Bed and Breakfast

The number of clients in bed and breakfast accommodation has risen from an average
of 79 in 2012/13 to an average of 152 for 2013/14 at October 2013. The number of live
rent accounts relating to Bed and Breakfast at the end of October 2013 was 191. If this
level of growth in demand is maintained into 2014/15, a cost pressure of the order of
£1.0m would arise. A number of initiatives are currently being developed to manage
demand, including a dedicated team of homeless prevention officers, measures to
identify the early indications of potential homelessness and the establishment of a fund
to support work with landlords who are considering terminating a tenancy that would
then become a homeless application requiring temporary accommodation. Officers are
also looking to procure additional temporary accommodation to reduce the reliance on
Bed and Breakfast.

Leaving Care Service

There are an increasing number of young people leaving care who require support and,
together with the national changes in housing benefit, this has created pressure on this
budget since last year. Delays in finding appropriate accommodation for some of the
young people result in them remaining in expensive provision. The current average
caseload is 55 against the budget assumption of 23. The unit cost of these placements
is currently £111 per day. The Children’s Director of Social Care believes management
action can recover the current overspend of £0.8m, but the situation remains a risk for
2014/15.

No Recourse to Public Funds

20
Page 92



8.37

8.38

8.39

8.40

8.41

8.42

8.43

These are families who have made an application to remain in the country and are
waiting to be dealt with by the Home Office. These clients are not seeking asylum but
are people to whom the local authority owes a duty of care. There has been an
increase in the number of families presenting themselves to Lewisham, of 104% since
April 2013. This rate of increase may continue over the next year, which could lead to a
budget pressure of £4m.

Action is being taken to manage this risk. A team has been set up to look at the families
concerned to ensure that they are entitled to payment. It remains to be seen what the
impact of this work will be. In the meantime, the cost pressure remains at £2m and is
unlikely to be eliminated in 2014/15.

The impact of these measures are expected to stop the increase in demand in the
current year with a longer term aim of reducing demand in 2014/15 financial year.

Redundancy

The Council will seek to minimise the impact of savings on services and jobs. However,
a significant proportion of the Council’'s budget goes on staff salaries and wages, so it
will not be possible to make savings of £45m over the next two years without an impact
on jobs. The cost of redundancy depends on age, seniority and length of service of the
individuals affected, and it is not possible to calculate the overall financial impact at this
stage.

Secure Remand

This is a volatile area of spend which is not directly controllable because the costs are
driven by the number of local young people ordered into secure remand by the courts
and how long they are held pending the court process. Due to changes to the financing
of secure remand and youth detention introduced from April 2013, local authorities now
bear all of the financial risk associated with this provision. In 2013/14, this has created a
cost pressure of £0.2m which may be repeated in 2014/15.

Transition — Child to Adult Care

When clients with a disability who have received social care services from the Children
and Young People Directorate reach the age of 18 (or 25 if they have gone to residential
college), responsibility transfers to adult social care budgets in the Community Services
Directorate. In the event that the service users are not eligible under Fair Access to
Care Services (FACS) criteria funding would cease. However, most users are eligible
and the Council is required to meet the cost of ongoing support. The costs for each
client can be high and the estimated cost pressure for 2014/15 is up to £1.0m. Through
the work around the Integration of Health and Social Care, officers are looking at better
ways of smoothing these transitions for the users of the service and limiting cost
increases.

Summary of Budget Pressures

There are some pressures to be funded (paragraphs 8.20 to 8.32), which can be
quantified within a reasonable range. There are also a number of other risks and

21
Page 93



8.44

8.45

8.46

8.47

8.48

8.49

8.50

potential budget pressures (paragraphs 8.33 to 8.42) to consider which are less easy to
quantify with any certainty.

In conclusion, it is a matter of good budgeting to make a general allowance for risk and
uncertainty, particularly at such a time of rapid change in the local government sector.
For these reasons, it is proposed that the overall allowance for budget pressures
previously of £7.5m is retained for each of 2014/15 and 2015/16. After allowing for
allocations of £3.6m, as summarised in Table C2 above, an unallocated balance of
£3.9m would remain. It is proposed that the Executive Director for Resources &
Regeneration hold this fund corporately. This fund would be used to allocate resources
to fund emergent budget pressures during the year, which at this moment in time,
cannot be quantified with any certainty.

Dry Recyclable Waste

In December 2011, the Council entered into a contract with Bywaters Ltd for the
disposal of dry recyclable waste. At the time, the contract was entered into, the market
was buoyant and the contract was expected to save the Council some £1.6m. The
market has changed significantly and Bywaters Ltd approached the Council to
renegotiate the contract. An agreement was reached which still offers the Council good
value for money, but has resulted in the Council’s expected income being reduced by
£1m. This funding gap will be addressed as part of setting the final cash limits for
2014/15.

Council Tax for 2014/15

In setting the Council’s annual budget, Members need to make decisions in respect of
the Council Tax.

Collection Fund

Collection Fund surpluses or deficits reflect whether the Council over or under achieves
its Council Tax collection targets. Therefore, this requires a calculation to be made of
how much the Council has already received for the Council Tax in the current and past
years and how much of the outstanding debt it expects to collect.

A calculation was carried out on 15 January 2014, which is the date prescribed by the
relevant statutory instrument. This calculation showed that there is an estimated surplus
on the Collection Fund in respect of Council Tax, for the years 2007/08 to 2013/14 of
£3.0m.

This surplus is shared with the precepting authority, the Greater London Authority
(GLA), in proportion to relative shares of budgeted Council Tax income in the current
financial year. This means that £2.3m of the £3.0m surplus has to be included in the
calculation of Lewisham’s Council Tax. The remaining balance of £0.7m will be
allocated to the GLA. It is recommended that up to £0.15m of the Council’s element of
the surplus be used to support the continuation of the Council Tax collection
improvement pilot scheme which commenced in 2013/14.

Members should note, that there is currently a projected surplus on the Council Tax
Reduction Scheme (CTRS) for 2013/14 of some £1.3m. In line with accounting
principles, it is proposed to transfer this surplus into the calculation of CTRS payments

22
Page 94



8.51

8.52

8.53

8.54

8.55

for 2014/15. This ensures that the principle of the Council passing on the cut in full and
neither losing nor gaining from the scheme, is adhered to.

Council Tax Levels

The current position is that Council Tax may not be increased by 2% or more (inclusive
of levies) without a referendum. This threshold was confirmed by the Government on 5
February 2014.

A referendum cannot reasonably be held before the Council Tax is set for 2014/15. The
Government has indicated that if an authority sets its basic amount of Council Tax (i.e.
its Band D Council Tax) in 2014/15 at a level which is no more than its basic amount of
Council Tax in 2013/14, it will receive a grant equivalent to a one per cent increase on
the 2013/14 figure in 2014/15.

For the purposes of this report and understanding the long-term financial position,
Members should be mindful that the impact of every 1% in Council Tax rise would be to
reduce the savings requirement for that year and each subsequent year by
approximately £0.8m.

In considering savings proposals and the level of Council Tax, Members make political
judgements, balancing these with their specific legal responsibilities to set a balanced

budget for 2014/15 and their general responsibilities to steward the Council’s finances
over the medium-term.

In 2013/14, the Band D Council Tax in Lewisham is £1,363.35. Of this, £303 relates to
the activities of the GLA which the Council pays over to them on collection. The GLA
consulted on a precept of £299 for 2014/15, a reduction of 1.3%. This reduction was
confirmed at the meeting of the London Assembly on 14 February 2014. Table C3
below shows, for illustrative purposes, the Council Tax payable by a resident in a Band
D property in 2014/15 at a range of possible Council Tax increases, and the financial
implications of this for the Council. A full Council Tax Ready Reckoner is attached at
Appendix Y3.

Table C3 — Band D Council Tax Levels for 2014/15

Amounts payable by residents
Change in Lewisham GLA Total Change Extra
Council Tax element | element in total income *
£ £ £ % £000
Council Tax 1,060.35 | 299.00 | 1,359.35 | -0.29% |  0.956
Freeze
0.50% increase 1,065.65 | 299.00 | 1,364.65 | 0.10% 0.392
1.00% increase 1,070.95 | 299.00 | 1,369.95 | 0.48% 0.784
1.50% increase 1,076.26 | 299.00 | 1,375.26 | 0.87% 1.176
1.75% increase 1,078.91 299.00 | 1,377.91 | 1.07% 1.372

* - for a freeze the extra income is received as a one-off freeze grant; all other figures are shown
as additional council tax income per year from 2014/15 onwards. The Government has
indicated that the funding for 2014/15 (including 2015/16) freeze grant should be built into the
spending review baseline. This is still subject to formal confirmation.

23
Page 95



8.56 Were Council to agree a Council Tax freeze, the Council will gain the one-off freeze
grant of £1.0m (£0.956m to be precise) for 2014/15. This figure of £1.0m is the
indicative figure of the Council Tax freeze grant for 2014/15 provided in the local
government settlement 2014/15. It has been estimated by assuming the historic growth
rate in the local authority tax base continues and that there is 100% take up of the grant.

8.57

8.58

8.59

The amount shown above for Council Tax Freeze grant is slightly higher than if the
Council increased Council Tax by 1%. This is because the Council Tax base figure
used to calculate the freeze grant is the taxbase before applying the CTRS.

Overall Budget Position for 2014/15

For 2014/15, the overall budget position for the Council is an assumed General Fund

Budget Requirement of £268.1m, as set out in Table C4

Table C4 - Overall Budget Position for 2014/15

below.

Detail Expenditure/ | Expenditure/
(Income) (Income)
£m £m
Settlement Funding Assessment (SFA) for 2014/15 (186.5)
Council Tax 2014/15 at 0% increase * (78.4)
SFA: Adjustment 2014/15 ** (0.9)
Surplus on Collection Fund (2.3)
Assumed Budget Requirement for 2014/15 (268.1)
Base Budget for 2013/14 284.6
Less: Previously agreed savings for 2014/15 (24.5)
Less: Once off use of provisions and reserves (4.0)
Plus: Pay inflation 1.1
Plus: Non-pay Inflation 3.4
Plus: Budget pressures to be funded 3.6
Plus: Risks and other potential budget pressures 3.9
Total 268.1

* In freezing Council Tax for 2014/15, the Council will be entitled to receive a Council Tax Freeze Grant from

the Government valued at £1.0m.

**Estimated value of Section 31 grants to compensate local authorities for the cost of capping the business

rates multiplier in 14/15 announced in the Autumn Statement 2013.

Use of Provisions and Reserves

Should all the above proposals be agreed, then this would leave a remaining gap of
some £4.0m to be funded by the once off use of provisions and reserves in 2014/15.

This has been set out in the Table C5.

Table C5 - Bridging the gap

Measures 2014/15

£m
Savings Gap on announcement of the final local 6.3
government finance settlement in February 2014

24
Page 96




8.60

8.61

8.62

8.63

9.1

9.2

Less: Surplus on Collection Fund (2.3)

Remaining Budget Gap to be bridged by use of

provisions and reserves 4.0

Consideration is now given to employing the use of corporate measures to balance the
budget. Corporate Provisions include an existing fund for risks and other potential
budget pressures (‘the Fund’) which was created as part of the last year's Budget. It
also contains Working Balances.

The Fund was created to recognise the potential budget pressures which could arise
during the year. Over the course of the last year, the Council has maintained stringent
measures to contain and reduce spending and this has led to a potential underspend of
£0.8m without the need to call upon the Fund. The Fund could potentially be used to
balance the potential gap. There remain a number of risks and other potential budget
pressures identified in paragraphs 8.33 to 8.42. Although it is being recommended that
£3.9m of the budget for 2014/15 is set aside for any of these risks and potential budget
pressures, they are as yet un-quantified and could exceed the sum to be set aside.

The Working Balances have been held to alleviate any emergent pressures which may
occur during the year. Held against this, would be the shortfall of any in-year savings for
the 2013/14 budget round. Therefore, the Working Balances could potentially be further
reduced. The Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration advises that it would be
imprudent to reduce these balances in their entirety and would recommend that no less
than £1.5m be considered for this purpose.

If the need should arise to balance the budget for any year using reserves, the
Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration advises that on going measures
should be identified to rectify this position as quickly as possible and in any event, by the
following year. The use of once off resources is therefore just delaying the need to
make an equivalent level of saving in the following year.

OTHER GRANTS AND FUTURE YEARS’ BUDGET STRATEGY

This section of the report considers three other funding streams which the Council
currently receives. These are the Public Health Grant, the Better Care Fund and the
New Homes Bonus. This section of the report is structured as follows:

Background and update on the Public Health Grant 2013/14

Public Health Grant for 2014/15

Integrated Transformation Fund 2014/15 (will be Better Care Fund from 2015/16)
Background and update on the New Homes Bonus

Future Years’ Budget Strategy 2015/16 onwards

Background and update on the Public Health Grant 2013/14

In April 2013, the Government implemented major changes in the way Public Health
services are funded and managed. Local authorities took on the role of improving and
protecting the health of their residents, helping them to stay well and avoid iliness.

25
Page 97



9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

9.11

9.12

Local authorities are responsible for ensuring there are robust plans in place to promote
health and wellbeing across their region and for commissioning a range of Public Health
services, based on the health needs of their population. This is managed by Lewisham
with its public sector partners in the Borough via the statutory Health and Wellbeing
Board.

In January 2013, the Department of Health announced a two year settlement for Public
Health funding for 2013/14 and 2014/15.

For 2013/14, Lewisham’s Public Health grant was £19.5m. This included £4.9m relating
to Drug & Alcohol services that the Council has been managing directly for the last five
years. Therefore, £14.6m of this funding was new to the Council.

At the present time, commitments against the 2013/14 budget are £18.9m. A process is
underway to consider and prioritise options for the use of the remaining sum, currently
not committed.

These changes will require approval by the Mayor. At this stage, it is assumed that
none of this will be committed on new activity, but that it will be used to support eligible
base budget activity. This will result in an underspend of £0.6m. However, the options
remain either to commit the grant on new projects in this year or to carry the unspent
balance forward to 2014/15. To the extent that either of these options are pursued,
then the total underspend would reduce.

Public Health Grant for 2014/15

The Council’s allocation of Public Health grant for 2014/15 is £20.1m, an increase of
2.8% on the 2013/14 allocation.

Integration Transformation Fund for 2014/15

The Integration Transformation Fund was announced as part of the Spending Review
2013. lts purpose is to pool budgets for health and social care services, shared
between the NHS and local authorities, to deliver better outcomes and greater
efficiencies through more integrated services for older and disabled people. It will
become the Better Care Fund from 2015/16.

In May 2013, the Department of Health issued directions concerning the 2013/14
transfer of funds to support integration from the NHS to local authorities. These funds
must be used to support adult social care. The amount transferred from the NHS to the
Council in 2013/14 was £4.9m. The £4.9m had primarily been allocated against
expenditure on the integrated neighbourhood model and on enablement. Both these
areas have been recognised by partners in Lewisham as having a positive effect on the
whole system.

In 2014/15, additional monies are proposed for transfer to local authorities and
Lewisham'’s total allocation is expected to be in the region of £5.9m, an increase of
£1.0m on the 2013/14 allocation.

Background and update on the New Homes Bonus

The New Homes Bonus (NHB) sits alongside the Council’s planning system and is
designed to create a fiscal incentive to encourage housing growth. The Department for

26
Page 98



9.13

9.14

9.15

9.16

9.17

9.18

9.19

Communities and Local Government is paying the NHB as an un-ringfenced grant to
enable local authorities to decide how to spend the funding. The scheme design sets
some guidance about the priorities that spend should be focused on, in that it is being
provided to ‘help deliver the vision and objectives of the community and the spatial
strategy for the area and in line with local community wishes’.

The NHB is paid each year for 6 years. It is based on the amount of extra Council Tax
revenue raised for new-build homes, conversions and long-term empty homes brought
back into use. There is also an extra payment for providing affordable homes.

The provisional allocation for 2014/15 in Lewisham, including on-going payments, is
£6.4m with the allocation for Year 4 (2014/15) delivery being £2.6m. The cumulative
nature of the NHB is set out in summary in Table C6 below.

Table C6 — New Homes Bonus Allocation Profile

201112 | 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15

Yr 1 0.706 0.706 0.706 0.706
Yr2 0.958 0.958 0.958
Yr3 2.150 2.150
Yr4 2.629

Total 0.706 1.664 3.814 6.443

Officers have established a cross-departmental NHB working party. The group was
initially formed in order to review the empty homes data and reduce long term empty
properties in the Borough. Since the group formed, the number of empty properties
within the borough has decreased.

The Council produces an Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) each year which assesses
the level of development which has taken place and reviews the performance on plan
making and related steps being undertaken to progress the regeneration of the borough.

The latest AMR sets out that 1,805 net new homes were built during 2012/13, the
highest amount of housing completed in the last nine years. There were 2,074 newly
built dwellings and a loss of 269 existing dwellings, largely as a result of estate renewal.
Since 2005/06, a total of 2,648 net affordable units have been built in Lewisham. During
2012/13, 564 of the net housing completions were provided as affordable housing units.

The majority of planned growth for the borough is yet to come. The AMR provides an
update on the progress of strategic sites within the regeneration and growth areas,
including Deptford and New Cross, Lewisham Town Centre and Catford Town Centre.
Overall, strategic sites are progressing well and are generally being constructed within
anticipated timescales, with no significant barriers or major blockages to delay the
development of these sites in the future. The AMR also provides a housing trajectory
and identifies the anticipated amount of residential development over the next 15 years
(2014/15 to 2028/29).

In view of the planned growth in housing and associated infrastructure in the borough in
futures years, consideration is being given to commit £0.65m of the NHB allocation per
annum to provide delivery support for this. This would represent a significant year-on-
year commitment for the Council. Given the planned growth in the Lewisham over the
next 15 years, the funding would be used to improve the borough’s town centres,

27
Page 99



9.20

9.21

9.22

9.23

9.24

10.

10.1

increase the number of jobs in the borough, provide improved transport links to the rest
of London and build upon the necessary infrastructure such as schools, health facilities
and open spaces.

Future Years’ Budget Strategy 2015/16 onwards

Revenue Budget

The Strategic Financial Review was reported to Mayor & Cabinet in July 2013 with an
update reported in November 2013. This set out that an estimated £85m of savings is
required from 2014/15 to 2017/18 over and above savings already agreed. Since then
we have received the provisional and final local settlements in December 2013 and
February 2014, respectively, which has raised the estimate of overall savings required
to 2017/18 to £95m.

The Lewisham Future Programme Board was established to carry out cross-cutting and
thematic reviews to deliver these savings. The Board is chaired by the Chief Executive
and consists of all Executive Directors, plus the Head of Corporate Resources and the
Head of Service Design and Technology.

Better Care Fund

In the Spending Round for 2015/16, the Government announced funding of £3.8bn for
health and social care through the Better Care Fund. This overall amount takes into
account monies already announced for 2013/14 and 2014/15. The specific amount to
be transferred to Lewisham for 2015/16 has not yet been announced. A detailed plan
for the use of Lewisham’s 2014/15 allocation and proposals for the 2015/16 allocation
has to be submitted to NHS England by 15 February 2014. Detailed discussions are
currently taking place between Health partners and the Council on priority areas of
spend which was be presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board for approval in
January 2014.

New Homes Bonus

The reported top-slice of the New Homes Bonus (NHB) is no longer happening for local
authorities, apart from those in London. There are indications that it will be set at about
£70m from London Boroughs to London's LEP, chaired by the Mayor of London. Total
NHB payments to London Boroughs in 2013/14 was £147.0m (this included ongoing
payments from the first two years). Of this, Lewisham received £3.8m (2.6%).

The top slice is for the 2015/16 NHB allocation and does not affect 2014/15. At this
stage, the consultation is not clear on whether this approach will also apply to
subsequent years after 2015/16. The Autumn Statement indicates that there will be a
formal response to the NHB consultation shortly. Officers will review this and report
back on the implications for the Council at the appropriate time.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

The section of the sets out the Council’'s Treasury Management Strategy for 2014/15
and is structured as follows:

28
Page 100



10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

Capital Plans

Prudential Indicators

Minimun Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy
Borrowing Strategy including Treasury Indicators
Debt rescheduling

Annual Investment Strategy

Credit Worthiness Poilcy

Prospects for Investment Returns

These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the CIPFA
Prudential Code, the Department for Local Government guidance on Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP) and Investments and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code. The
Council uses Capita Asset Services as its external treasury management advisors. The
Council recognises that responsibility for Treasury Management decisions remain with
the Council at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon external
service providers.

Current borrowing portfolio position

Capital Plans

The Treaury Management Strategy for 2014/15 incorporates the capital plans which
provide details of the planned investment activity of the Council, as set out in section 5
of this report.

The Council’'s cash position is organised in accordance with the relevant professional
codes to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its obligations. This will
involve both the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans require, the
organisation of approporiate borrowing facilities.

The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 31 March 2013, with forward projections is
summarised below. Table D1 shows the actual external debt, against the Capital
Financing Requirement (CFR) which is its underlying capital borrowing need. This table
illustrates over/(under) borrowing.

Table D1 — External Debt Projections

External Debt 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17

£m Actual | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£m £m £m £m £m

Debt at 1 April 202.6 198.4 195.4 190.3 191.2

Expected change in

Debt 4.2) (3.0) (5.1) 0.9 (0.3)

Other Long-Term

Liabilities (OLTL) 243.5 244.3 243.4 2414 2355

Actual gross debt 4419 | 439.7| 433.7| 4326| 4264

at 31 March

Capital Financing 484.9| 4793 | 4744 | 4681 4772

Requirement

Borrowing — over /

(under) (43.0) (39.6) (40.7) (35.5) (50.8)

29

Page 101




10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

*The Capital Financing Requirement includes the prudential borrowing figures shown in Table A2 of
Section 5 - Capital Programme.

Prudential Indicators

The prudential indicators comprise parameters such as the operational boundary and
authorised limits which ensure that the Council operates its activities within well defined
limits. The Council needs to ensure that its gross debt does not exceed the total of the CFR
in the preceding year, plus the estimates of any additional CFR for the current and following
two financial years. This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years
and ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes.

The Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration reports that the Council has
complied with this prudential indicator in the current year to date and does not envisage
difficulties for the future. This view takes into account current commitments, existing
plans, and the proposals in this report. The operational boundary and the authorised
limits for external debt are described in further detail in the following paragraphs.

The Operational Boundary

This is the limit beyond which external debt is not normally expected to exceed. In most
cases this would be a similar figure to the CFR, but may be lower or higher depending
on the levels of actual gross debt anticipated. The Council’s operational boundary is set
out in Table D2.

Table D2: Operational Boundary

Operational boundary 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m £m £m £m
Debt 198.4 1954 191.2 191.2
Other Long Term 2443 2434 2414 2355
Liabilities
Total 442.7 438.8 432.6 426.7

The Authorised Limit for external debt

This key prudential indicator represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing. It
is the statutory limit determined under Section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 2003.
The Government retains an option to control either the total of all Councils’ plans, or
those of a specific Council.

This is the limit beyond which external debt is prohibited. The limit needs to be set or
revised by the full Council. It reflects the level of external debt which, while not desired,
could be afforded in the short-term (i.e. up to one month), but is not sustainable in the
longer term. The Council is asked to approve the following authorised limit as set out in
Table D3.

30
Page 102



10.11 Separately, the Council is also limited to a maximum Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

Table D3 — Authorised Limits

Authorised limit 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£m £m £m £m
Operational Boundary 4427 438.8 431.7 426.7
Provision for Non Receipt 46.0 46.0 46.0 46.0
of Expected Income
Total 488.7 484.8 477.7 472.7

CFR through the self-financing regime. Table D4 sets out this limit:

Table D4 — HRA Debt Limit

HRA Debt Limit 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m £m £m £m
HRA debt cap 127.3 127.3 127.3 127.3
HRA Debt (83.6) (83.6) (83.6) (83.6)
HRA headroom 43.7 43.7 43.7 43.7

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy

A proportion of the Council’s capital expenditure is not immediately financed from its
own resources. This results in a debt liability which must be charged to the Council Tax
over a period of time. This repayment, the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) must be
determined by the Council as being a prudent provision having regard to the CIPFA
Prudential Code for Capital Finance.

The MRP is the amount the Council charges to the revenue account and does not
correspond to the actual amount of debt repaid, which is determined by treasury related
issues. The Council continues to apply a consistent MRP policy which comprises
prudential borrowing being repaid over the useful life of the asset concerned and other
existing borrowing being repaid at the rate of 4% of the CFR.

Borrowing Strategy

The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position in that the CFR has not
been fully funded with loan debt, as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances
and cash flow have been used as an alternative temporary measure. In the current
economic climate, this strategy is considered prudent while investment returns are low,
counterparty risk is higher than historic averages, and borrowing rates are still relatively
high.

Against this background and the risks set out in the economic forecast in Appendix Z2,
the Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration will continue to monitor interest
rates in the financial markets and adopt a pragmatic and cautious approach to changing
circumstances. For instance, if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp fall
in medium to long-term interest rates (e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around a
relapse into recession or risks of deflation in the economy), then long term borrowings
will be postponed and potential rescheduling from fixed rate funding into short-term

31
Page 103



borrowing considered. Any such decisions would be reported to Mayor & Cabinet and
subsequently Council, at the next available opportunity.

10.16 Alternatively, if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp rise in medium to
long-term interest rates than currently forecast (perhaps arising from a greater than
expected increase in the anticipated rate to US tapering of asset purchases or in world
economic activity driving inflation up), then the portfolio position will be re-appraised with
the likely action that fixed rate funding will be drawn, whilst interest rates are still lower
than forecast. Once again, any such decisions would be reported to Mayor & Cabinet
and subsequently Council, at the next available opportunity.

10.17 Members should note that the Council’s policy is not to borrow more than or in advance
of its needs purely in order to profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed.
Any decision to borrow in advance will be within the approved CFR estimates, and will
be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be demonstrated and that
the Council can ensure the security of such funds.

Treasury Indicators

10.18 There are three debt related treasury activity limits which restrain the activity of the
treasury function within certain limits. The purpose of these is to manage risk and
reduce the impact of any adverse movement in interest rates. These limits need to be
balanced against the requirement for the treasury function to retain some flexibility to
enable it to respond quickly to opportunities to reduce costs and improve performance.

10.19 The debt related indicators are:

e Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies a maximum limit
for variable interest rates based upon the debt position net of investments.

e Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure. This is similar to the previous
indicator and covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates;

e Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce the
Council’'s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing and are
required for upper and lower limits.

10.20 Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicators and limits:

Table D5: Treasury Indicators and Limits

Interest rate exposures 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Upper Upper Upper
Limits on fixed interest rates:
« Debt only 100% 100% 100%
« Investments only 75% 75% 75%
Limits on variable interest rates
« Debt only 15% 15% 15%
« Investments only 75% 75% 75%
Maturity structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2014/15
Lower Upper
Under 12 months 0% 3%

32

Page 104




12 months to 2 years 0% 21%

2 years to 5 years 0% 15%
5 years to 10 years 0% 4%
10 years to 20 years 0% 13%
20 years to 30 years 0% 7%
30 years to 40 years 0% 6%
40 years to 50 years 0% 31%
Maturity structure of variable interest rate borrowing 2014/15

Lower Upper
Under 12 months 0% 100%

Please note that the maturity structure guidance changed in 2011 for Lender Option Borrower
Option (LOBO) loans; the maturity date is now deemed to be the next call date.

Debt rescheduling

10.21 In the current economic environment and for the forseable future, shorter term
borrowing rates are expected to be lower than longer term fixed interest rates. As a
result, there may be potential opportunities to generate savings by switching debt from
long term to shorter term. However, any such savings need to be considered in the light
of the current treasury position and the cost of debt repayment.

10.22 Consideration will be given to the potential for making savings by running down
investment balances to repay debt prematurely while short-term rates on investments
are likely to be lower than the rates paid on current debt. Any proposed rescheduling of
debt will be reported to Mayor & Cabinet and subsequently to Council at the earliest
meeting following its action.

Annual Investment Strategy

10.23 The Council’s investment priorities will be security first, liquidity second, and then return.
Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed in Appendix Z3,
under the ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments categories. The proposed
counterparty limits for 2014/15 are presented to Council for approval in this same
appendix.

10.24 In accordance with guidance from the Department for Communities and Local
Government and CIPFA, and in order to minimise the risk to investments, officers have
clearly stipulated the minimum acceptable credit quality of counterparties for inclusion
on the lending list. This has been set out at Appendix Z3. The creditworthiness
methodology used to create the counterparty list fully accounts for the ratings, watches
and outlooks published information by all three ratings agencies with a full
understanding of what these reflect in the eyes of each agency.

10.25 Furthermore, officers recognise that ratings should not be the sole determinant of the
quality of an institution and that it is important to continually assess and monitor the
financial sector on both a micro and macro basis and in relation to the economic and
political environments in which institutions operate. The assessment will also take
account of information that reflects the opinion of the markets. Officers continue to
engage with the Council’s treasury management advisors to maintain a monitor on
market pricing such as “credit default swaps” and overlay that information on top of the

33
Page 105



10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

credit ratings. This is fully integrated into the credit methodology provided by the
advisors in producing its colour codings which show the varying degrees of suggested
institution creditworthiness. This has been set out in more detail at Appendix Z3.

Other information sources used include the financial press, share price and other such
information pertaining to the banking sector in order to establish the most robust scrutiny
process on the suitability of potential investment counterparties.

The aim of the strategy is to generate a list of highly creditworthy counterparties which
will also enable diversification and thus avoid a concentration of risk.

Creditworthiness policy

The Council’s Treasury Management Team applies the creditworthiness service
provided by its treaury management advisors. This service employs a sophisticated
modelling approach utilising credit ratings from the three main credit rating agencies,
Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s. The Council’s creditworthiness policy has
been set out at Appendix Z3.

Country limits

The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from countries
with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AA from Fitch (or equivalent). The list of
countries that qualify using this credit criteria as at the date of this report are shown in
Appendix Z4. This list will be added to, or deducted from, by officers should country
ratings change in accordance with this policy.

Investment Policy

Investments will be made with reference to the core balances and cashflow
requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for investments up
to 12 months). In order to maintain sufficient liquidity, the Council will seek to utilise its
instant access call accounts, money market funds and short-dated deposits (overnight
to three months) in order to benefit from the compounding of interest. The remainder of
its investments will be placed in fixed term deposits of up to 12 months to generate
maximum return. The Council will not invest in any fixed term deposit facility exceeding
365 days. This policy is set with regard to the Council’s liquidity requirements and to
reduce the risk of a forced sub-optimal early sale of an investment.

It is proposed that from April 2014, the Council’s maximum deposit limits with the part
nationalised banks is increased from £50m to £65m for each of Lloyds Banking Group
and Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS) Group.

It is also proposed that from April 2014, the Council approves lending to other local
authorities up to a maximum of £6m and for a period of up to one year.

Muncipal Bond Agency

Members should also note the work of the Local Government Association (LGA) in its
plans to create a local government collective Municpal Bond Agency, which it expects

34
Page 106



10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

11

11.1

11.2

will cut the cost of borrowing to deliver new infrastructure like homes, roads and
business hubs. Modelling work done by the LGA shows that a Municipal Bonds Agency
would allow councils to raise funds at a significantly lower rate than those offered by the
PWLB. Lewisham has been working with other local authorities and the LGA which is
anticipates that the Agency will become operational in 2014/15.

Prospects for Investment Returns

The Bank of England base rate is currently forecast to remain unchanged at 0.5%
before starting to rise from quarter two of 2016. The rate forecasts for financial year-
ends are:

e 2013/14 0.50%

e 2014/15 0.50%

e 2015/16 0.50%

e 2016/17 1.25%

There are upside risks to these forecasts. For example, if increases in the Bank of
England base rate occur, economic growth remains strong and unemployment falls
faster than expected. However, should the pace of growth stagnate or fall back, there
could be downside risk, particularly if the Bank of England forecasts for the rate of fall in
unemployment were to prove too optimistic.

The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on investments placed
for periods of up to 100 days during each financial year for the next four years are as
follows:

e 2014/15 0.50%

e 2015/16 0.50%

e 2016/17 1.00%

e 2017118 2.00%

A more extensive table of interest rate forecasts for 2014/17, including Public Works
Loan Board (PWLB) borrowing rate forecasts is set out in Appendix Z1.
Summary

At the end of the financial year, the officers will report to the Council on investment
activity for the year as part of its Annual Treasury Report.

CONSULTATION ON THE BUDGET

In setting the various budgets, it is important to have extensive engagement with
citizens to consider the overarching challenge facing public services in Lewisham over
the next few years. To this end, the Council has undertaken a range of engagement

and specific consultation exercises. The specific consultation exercises were:

Rent Setting and Housing Panel

As in previous years, tenants’ consultation was in line with Residents’ Compact
arrangements. This provided tenant representatives of Lewisham Homes with an
opportunity in December 2013 at the joint Housing Panel meeting to consider the
positions and to feedback any views to Mayor & Cabinet. Tenant representative of

35
Page 107



11.3

11.4

12

12.1

13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

Brockley convened their Brockley Residents’ Board in January 2014 to hear the
proposals and fed back.

Details of comments from the residents’ meetings have been set out in Appendix X2.

Business Ratepayers

Representatives of business ratepayers were consulted on Council’'s budget between 28
January and 7 February 2014. No responses to the consultation were received.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

This entire report deals with the Council’s Budget. Therefore, the financial implications
are explained throughout.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Many legal implications are referred to in the body of the report. Particular attention is
drawn to the following:

Capital Programme

Generally, only expenditure relating to tangible assets (e.g. roads, buildings or other
structures, plant, machinery, apparatus and vehicles) can be regarded as capital
expenditure. (Section 16 Local Government Act 2003 and regulations made under it).

The Local Government Act 2003 introduced a prudential system of financial control,
replacing a system of credit approvals with a system whereby local authorities are free
to borrow or invest so long as their capital spending plans are affordable, prudent and
sustainable. Authorities are required to determine and keep under review how much
they can afford to borrow having regard to CIPFA’s Prudential Code of Capital Finance
in Local Authorities. The Code requires that in making borrowing and investment
decisions, the Council is to take account of affordability, prudence and sustainability,
value for money, stewardship of assets, service objectives and practicality.

Section 11 Local Government Act 2003 allows for regulations to be made requiring an
amount equal to the whole or any part of a capital receipt to be paid to the Secretary of
State. Since April 2013 there has been no requirement to set aside capital receipts on
housing land (S12013/476). For right to buy receipts, the Council can retain 25% of the
net receipt (after taking off transaction costs) and is then entitled to enter an agreement
with the Secretary of State to fund replacement homes with the balance. Conditions on
the use of the balance of the receipts are that spending has to happen within three
years and that 70% of the funding needs to come from Council revenue or borrowing. If
the funding is not used within three years, it has to be paid to the Department for
Communities for Local Government, with interest.

Housing Revenue Account

Section 24 of the Housing Act 1985 provides that a local authority may make such
reasonable charges as they determine for the tenancy or occupation of their houses.

36
Page 108



13.6

13.7

13.8

13.9

13.10

13.11

13.12

13.13

13.14

The Council must review rents from time to time and make such charges as
circumstances require.

Under the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, the Council is obliged to maintain a
separate HRA (Section 74) and by Section 76 must prevent a debit balance on that
account. Rents must therefore be set to avoid such a debit.

By Schedule 4 of the same Act where benefits or amenities arising out of a housing
authority functions are provided for persons housed by the authority but are shared by
the community, the Authority must make such contribution to the HRA from their other
revenues to properly reflect the community’s share of the benefits/amenities.

The process for varying the terms of a secure tenancy is set out in Sections 102 and
103 of the Housing Act 1985. It requires the Council to serve notice of variation at least
4 weeks before the effective date; the provision of sufficient information to explain the
variation; and an opportunity for the tenant to serve a Notice to Quit ending their
tenancy.

Where the outcome of the rent setting process involves significant changes to housing
management practice or policy, further consultation may be required with the tenants
affected in accordance with section 105 of the Housing Act 1985.

Part 7 of the Localism Act 2011 abolished HRA subsidy and moved to a system of self
financing in which Councils are allowed to keep the rents received locally to support
their housing stock. Section 174 of the same Act provides for agreements between the
Secretary of State and Councils to allow Councils not to have to pay a proportion of their
capital receipts to the Secretary of State if he/she approves the purpose to which it
would be put.

Balanced Budget

Members have a duty to ensure that the Council acts lawfully. It must set and maintain
a balanced budget each year. The Council must take steps to deal with any projected
overspends and identify savings or other measures to bring the budget under control. If
the Capital Programme is overspending, this may be brought back into line through
savings, slippage or contributions from revenue. The proposals in this report are
designed to produce a balanced budget in 2014/15.

In this context, Members are reminded of their fiduciary duty to the Council Tax payer,
effectively to act as trustee of the Council’s resources and to ensure proper
custodianship of Council funds.

An annual budget

By law, the setting of the Council’s budget is an annual process. However, to enable
meaningful planning, a number of savings proposals for this year, 2014/15, were
anticipated in the course of the 2013/14 budget process. They were the subject of full
report at that time and they are now listed in Appendix Y1. Members are asked now to
approve and endorse those reductions for this year.

The body of the report refers to the various consultation (for example with tenants and
business) which the Council has carried out/is carrying out in accordance with statutory

37
Page 109



13.15

13.16

13.17

13.18

13.19

13.20

13.21

requirements relating to this budget process. The Mayor must consider the outcome of
that consultation with an open mind before reaching a decision about his final proposals
to Council. It is noted that the outcome of consultation with business rate payers will
only be available on 19 February 2012 and any decisions about the Mayor’s proposals
on the budget are subject to consideration of that consultation response.

Referendum

Sections 72 of the Localism Act 2011 and Schedules 5 to 7 amended the provisions
governing the calculation of Council Tax. They provide that if a Council seeks to impose
a Council Tax increase in excess of limits fixed by the Secretary of State, then a Council
Tax referendum must be held, the results of which are binding. The Council may not
implement an increase which exceeds the Secretary of State’s limits without holding the
referendum. The Secretary of State has yet to fix the threshold for a referendum for
2014/15, though this is expected in mid February 2014. Were the Council to seek to
exceed the threshold, substitute calculations which do not exceed the threshold would
also have to be drawn up. These would apply in the event that the result of the
referendum is not to approve the “excessive” rise in Council Tax.

In relation to each year the Council, as billing authority, must make the calculations set
out in Section 31A and 31B of the Local Government Finance Act 1992. These
statutory calculations are attached at Appendix Y5.

Robustness of estimates and adequacy of reserves

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires, when the authority is making its
calculations under s32 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, the Chief Finance
Officer to report to it on:-

(a) the robustness of the estimates made for the purposes of the Calculations; and

(b) the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves.

The Chief Financial Officer's Section 25 statement is attached at Appendix Y4.
Treasury Strategy

Authorities are also required to produce and keep under review for the forthcoming year
a range of indicators based on actual figures. These are set out in the report. The
CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice says that movement may be made
between the various indicators during the year by an Authority’s Chief Finance Officer
as long as the indicators for the total Authorised Limit and the total Operational
Boundary for external debt remain unchanged. Any such changes are to be reported to
the next meeting of the Council.

Under Section 5 of the 2003 Act, the prudential indicator for the total Authorised Limit for
external debt is deemed to be increased by an amount of any unforeseen payment
which becomes due to the Authority within the period to which the limit relates which
would include for example additional external funding becoming available but not taken
into account by the Authority when determining the Authorised Limit. Where Section 5
of the Act is relied upon to borrow above the Authorised Limit, the Code requires that
this fact is reported to the next meeting of the Council.

Authority is delegated to the Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration to make
amendments to the limits on the Council’s counterparty list and to undertake Treasury

38
Page 110



13.22

13.23

13.24

13.25

13.26

Management in accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice
and the Council's Treasury Policy Statement.

Constitutional provisions

Legislation provides that it is the responsibility of the full Council to set the Council’'s
budget. Once the budget has been set, save for those decisions which he is precluded
from, it is for the Mayor to make decisions in accordance with the statutory policy
framework and that are not wholly inconsistent with the budget. It is for the Mayor to
have overall responsibility for preparing the draft budget for submission to the Council to
consider. If the Council does not accept the Mayor’s proposals it may object to them
and ask him to reconsider. The Mayor must then reconsider and submit proposals
(amended or unamended) back to the Council which may only overturn them by a two-
thirds majority.

For these purposes the term “budget” means the “budget requirement (as provided for in
the Local Government Finance Act 1992) all the components of the budgetary
allocations to different services and projects, proposed taxation levels, contingency
funds (reserves and balances) and any plan or strategy for the control of the local
authority’s borrowing or capital expenditure.” (Chapter 2 statutory guidance).

Authorities are advised by the statutory guidance to adopt an inclusive approach to
preparing the draft budget, to ensure that councillors in general have the opportunity to
be involved in the process. However it is clear that it is for the Mayor to take the lead in
that process and proposals to be considered should come from him. The preparation of
the proposals in this report has involved the Council’s select committees and the Public
Accounts Select Committee in particular, thereby complying with the statutory guidance.

Statutory duties and powers

The Council has a number of statutory duties which it must fulfil by law. It cannot
lawfully decide not to carry out those duties. However, even where there is a statutory
duty, the Council often has discretion about the level of service provision. Where a
service is provided by virtue of a Council power rather than a duty, the Council is not
bound to carry out those activities, though decisions about them must be taken in
accordance with the decision making requirements of administrative law. In so far as
this report deals with reductions in service provision in relation to a specific service, this
has been dealt with in the section of the report/appendix specifically dealing with that
service reduction.

Reasonableness and proper process

Decisions must be made reasonably taking into account all relevant considerations and
ignoring irrelevancies. On 12 February 2014, the Mayor was asked to make a decision
in relation to a particular service reduction in respect of the Attendance and Welfare
Service. Members will see that in relation to that proposal, there is a report at Appendix
Y2 which sets out the implications of the proposal and matters relevant to it. At that
meeting, the Mayor decided that the budget for that service must be reduced, and
therefore, the Council’s reorganisation procedure applies. Staff consultation in
accordance with that procedure will be conducted and in accordance with normal
Council practice, the final decision would be made by the relevant Executive Director
under delegated authority. The Executive Director confirms that to date, proper process
has been followed.

39
Page 111



13.27

13.28

13.29

13.30

13.31

13.32

Staff consultation

Where proposals, if accepted, would result in 100 redundancies or more within a 90 day
period, an employer is required by Section 188 of the Trade Union and Labour Relations
(Consolidation) Act 1992 as amended, to consult with the representatives of those who
may be affected by the proposals. The consultation period is at least 45 days. Where
the number is 20 or more, but 99 or less the consultation period is 30 days. This
requirement is in addition to the consultation with individuals affected by redundancy
and/or reorganisation under the Council’s own procedure.

Equalities

The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality duty (the
equality duty or the duty). It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age,
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the
need to:

e eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct prohibited by the Act.

e advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

o foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
those who do not.

The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be attached to it is a
matter for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and proportionality. It is
not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance equality of

opportunity or foster good relations.

The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently issued Technical Guidance
on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance entitled “Equality Act 2010
Services, Public Functions & Associations Statutory Code of Practice”. The Council
must have regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and attention is
drawn to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the equality duty The Technical
Guidance also covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes
steps that are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does
not have statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so
without compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and the
technical guidance can be found at: http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-
policy/equality-act/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/

The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously issued five guides
for public authorities in England giving advice on the equality duty:

The essential guide to the public sector equality duty
Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making
Engagement and the equality duty
Equality objectives and the equality duty
Equality information and the equality duty

40

Page 112

oD =



13.33

13.34

13.35

13.36

13.37

13.38

13.39

13.40

The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty requirements including the
general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply to. It covers what public
authorities should do to meet the duty including steps that are legally required, as well
as recommended actions. The other four documents provide more detailed guidance on
key areas and advice on good practice. Further information and resources are available
at: http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equality-
duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/

The EHRC has also issued Guidance entitled “Making Fair Financial Decisions”. It
appears at Appendix Y6 and attention is drawn to its contents.

The equalities implications pertaining to the specific service reductions are dealt with in
the Appendix relating to that reduction. These were presented to Mayor & Cabinet on
18 December 2013.

Crime and Disorder

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 requires the Council when it exercises its
functions to have regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those functions on, and the
need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder in its area.

Best Value

Under section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999, the Council is under a best value
duty to secure continuous improvement in the way its functions are exercised, having
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. It must have regard
to this duty in making decisions in relation to this report.

Environmental Implications

Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 states that:
‘every public authority must, in exercising its functions, have regard, so far as is
consistent with the proper exercise of those functions, to the purpose of conserving
biodiversity’. No such implications have been identified in relation to the reductions
proposals.

Integration with health

Members are reminded that provisions under the Health and Social Care Act 2012
require local authorities in the exercise of their functions to have regard to the need to
integrate their services with health.

Recorded Vote

Since the budget report was drafted, the Government has made new regulations — ‘“The
Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2014. These require that at
budget meetings, the names of those voting for and against, and abstaining on the
budget proposal to be recorded in the minutes. The regulations come into effect on 25
February 2014 and so this requirement applies at the Council meeting on 26 February
2014.

41
Page 113



13.41 ltis also a legal requirement that the Council amend its standing orders as soon as

14

141

15.

15.1

16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

16.6

practicable to reflect this new requirement. A report to do, this appears elsewhere on
this agenda.

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS

There are no specific human resources implications arising from this report. Any such
implications were considered as part of the revenue budget savings proposals
presented to Mayor & Cabinet on 18 December 2013. A summary of the savings
proposals are attached at Appendix Y1 to this report.

CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from this report. Any
such implications were considered as part of the revenue budget savings proposals
presented to Mayor & Cabinet on 18 December 2013. A summary of the savings
proposals are attached at Appendix Y1 to this report.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

The Public Sector Equality Duty (set out in the Equality Act 2010) requires the Council to
have ‘due regard’ to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and
victimisation as well as to advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations
between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.

The protected groups covered by the Equality Duty are: age, disability, gender
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual
orientation. The duty also covers marriage and civil partnerships, but only in respect of
eliminating unlawful discrimination, within employment and training. It does not include
a socio-economic duty.

The law requires that public authorities demonstrate that they have had ‘due regard’ to
the aims of the Equality Duty in their decision-making. Assessing the potential impact
on equality of proposed changes to policies, procedures and practices is one of the key
ways in which the Council can demonstrate that they have had ‘due regard’.

Assessing impact on equality is not an end to itself and it should be tailored to, and be
proportionate to, the decision being made. Whether it is proportionate for the Council to
conduct an Equalities Analysis Assessment of the impact on equality of a financial
decision or not depends on its relevance to the Authority’s particular function and its
likely impact on people from protected groups, including staff.

Where savings proposals are anticipated to have an impact on staffing levels, it will be
subject to consultation as stipulated within the Council’s Employment/Change
Management policies, and services will be required to undertake an Equalities Analysis
Assessment (EAA) as part of their restructuring process.

It is also important to note that the Council is subject to the Human Rights Act, and
should therefore, also consider the potential impact their decisions could have on
human rights.

42
Page 114



17.

17.1

18.

18.1

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no specific environmental implications arising from this report. Any such
implications were considered as part of the revenue budget savings proposals
presented to Mayor & Cabinet on 18 December 2013. A summary of the savings
proposals are attached at Appendix Y1 to this report.

CONCLUSION

This report sets out the information necessary for the Council to set the 2014/15 budget.
Updates will be made to this report at Mayor & Cabinet on 19 February 2014. Final
decisions will be taken at the meeting of full Council on 26 February 2014.

43
Page 115



19.

20.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AND FURTHER INFORMATION

Short Title of Date Location Contact
Strategic Financial Review 10 July 2013 | 3" Floor Selwyn
(M&C) Laurence House | Thompson
Strategic Financial Review 13 November | 3" Floor Selwyn
Update 2013 (M&C) Laurence House | 'hompson
Savings Proposals for 2014/15 18 December | 3 Floor 'Srﬁm/nson
and 2015/16 2013 (M&C) Laurence House P
Setting the Council Tax Base & .
Discounts for Second Homes 15 January 3" Floor Selwyn

For further information on this report, please contact:

Janet Senior
Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration on 020 8314 8013

David Austin
Head of Corporate Resources (Interim) on 020 8314 9114

Selwyn Thompson
Group Finance Manager, Budget Strategy on 020 8314 6932

APPENDICES

Capital Programme

WA1 Capital Programme 2013/14 to 2017/18 — Major Projects
W2 Proposed Capital Programme — Original to latest Budget

Housing Revenue Account

X1 Proposed Housing Revenue Account Savings 2014/15

X2  Tenants’ rent consultation 2014/15

X3 Leasehold and Tenant charges consultation 2014/15

X4 Leasehold and Tenants charges and Lewisham Homes Budget Strategy 2014/15
X5  Other associated housing charges for 2014/15

General Fund

Y1 Summary of budget savings for 2014/16

Y2  Supporting Paper CYP12 — Attendance & Welfare Service saving proposal
Y3 Ready Reckoner for Council Tax 2014/15

Y4  Chief Financial Officer's Section 25 Statement

Y5  Council Tax Calculation and Statutory Calculations

44
Page 116



Y6 Making Fair Financial Decisions

Y7  Supporting Paper COMO07 — Out of Hours Emergency Telephone Service saving
proposal

Y8  Notice of decisions — Mayor & Cabinet 12 February 2014

Treasury Management

Z1 Interest Rate Forecasts 2014 — 2017

Z2 Economic Background

Z3 Credit Worthiness Policy (Linked to Treasury Management Practice (TMP1) —
Credit and Counterparty Risk Management)

Z4  Approved countries for investments

Z5 Requirement of the CIPFA Management Code of Practice

/6 Mid Year Review Report 2013/14

45
Page 117



2013 /2014 TO 2017 /2018 CAPITAL PROGRAMME - MAJOR PROJECTS

APPENDIX W1

2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2017/18 | Total
Major Projects over £2m
£m £m £m £m £m £m

GENERAL FUND
BSF - Prendergast Hilly Fields (D&B) 8.6 8.6
BSF - Sydenham (D&B) 10.1 9.9 47 1.2 259
BSF - Brent Knoll (D&B) 1.8 5.6 7.4
BSF - Hatchem Temple Grove 1.8 0.9 2.7
BSF - ICT in Schools 1.1 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 2.9
Schools - Primary Places Programme 20.6 251 8.9 9.4 64.0
Schools - Other Capital Works 4.4 7.7 1.2 1.2 1.2 15.7
Highways & Bridges - TfL 4.0 4.0
Highways & Bridges - LBL 5.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 19.5
Catford TC (inc Broadway & Milford Towers)
Regeneration 2.4 2.8 2.0 3.6 10.8
Deptford Town Cen & High St Imps 2.0 0.1 2.1
Asset Management Programme - Non Schools 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.5 25 12.4
ICT - Tech Refresh 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 2.6
Kender and Excalibur Regeneration 2.1 1.9 0.8 0.6 1.1 6.5
Heathside & Lethbridge Regeneration 1.8 2.8 3.7 1.5 1.6 11.4
Property Acquisition — Hamilton Lodge/Canonbie Rd 3.9 3.9
Disabled Facilities Grant 0.6 1.0 0.7 0.7 0.7 3.7
Private Sector Grants and Loans 0.6 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.6 3.2
Vehicle Replacement 2.1 2.1
Aids, Adaptations, Disabilities 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 21
Other Schemes 6.9 2.1 1.1 0.0 0.0 10.1

83.7 68.1 311 26.1 12.6 | 221.6
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT
Customer Services 26 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 5.5
Lewisham Homes 42.8 57.5 48.7 57.4 81.5 | 287.9

45.4 58.3 49.4 58.1 82.2 | 293.4
TOTAL PROGRAMME 129.1 126.4 80.5 84.2 94.8 | 515.0

Page 118




APPENDIX W2

PROPOSED CAPITAL PROGRAMME - ORIGINAL TO LATEST BUDGET

GENERAL FUND
Original Budget (June 2013)

New Schemes during the year

Schools Basic Need - 15/16 and 16/17 Grant allocation
LBL Highways, Footways, Bridges - 14/15 to 17/18 programme
Schools Maintenance Grant - 14/15 Grant allocation
Lewisham Central Opportunity site - Phase 1

Ladywell Specialist Dementia Centre - Grant funded
Evelyn St (Parker Hse)

Trundley's Rd (Surrey Canal Triangle - Plot F)

CCTV - LH Integrated Control Room (GF element)
Nurseries - Cash Flow Loans

Cemetery Improvement Works

Beckenham Place Park - Homesteads (Insurance funded)
Property Acquisition — Hamilton Lodge/Canonbie Road

Approved variations on existing schemes

Heathside & Lethbridge - Revised figures for Phases 3 to 6,
reimbursed by HA partner
TfL Highways - Extra Grant allocations notified

Deptford Station - Final costs
Brockley Rise Centre - Hut Refurburbishment
Disabled Children (short breaks) - Extra grant allocation
Other Minor Variations
Latest Budget
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT
Original Budget (June 2013)
HRA Business Plan Capital Requirement - Hostels

Re-phasing Budgets and addition of 17/18 Budgets

Latest Budget
Overall Budget

Page 119

Total
£000

18,280
14,000
3,090
598
250
192
150
121
100
100

3,940

1,970
605
235
150
125

49

1,885

61,642

Total
£000

177,585

40,911

3,134

221,630

229,883

63,527

293,410
515,040



APPENDIX X1: Proposed Housing Revenue Account Savings 2014/15

HRA Efficiencies/Savings & Growth proposals 2014/15

Item | Area Proposals
2014/15
£000

Savings/Efficiencies

1. Lewisham Homes Fee -324

2 Nil Inflation Increase for Repairs & -420
Maintenance
Savings/Efficiencies total -744
Growth n/a
Total Budget Proposals -744

Savings/Efficiencies
Item 1 Lewisham Homes management fee

The initial fee proposal for 2014/15 after allowing an inflationary increase of 1% on salaries
and 2.5% on running costs, less a reduction of £176k for stock loss through right to buy sales’
and regeneration schemes was £19.000m.

However, Lewisham Homes have proposed a fee for 2014/15 of £18.676m which is a saving of
£0.324m

The net effect, if the saving is taken, will be a management fee of £18.676m in 2014/15,
against the fee for 2013/14 of £18.891m. This reflects an overall decrease of 0.23% in the fee
per property compared to 2013/14.

Savings of £0.324m can be achieved through efficiencies with minimal impact on service
provision.

Item 2 No Inflationary increase to Repairs & Maintenance budgets

It has been proposed by Lewisham Homes that the forecast inflationary increase to the
Repairs & Maintenance budget of 2.5% is removed, producing a saving or cost reduction of
£0.420m.

This proposal will have an impact on Lewisham Homes trading account and M&E budgets.
However, the Repairs Trading Account, operated by Lewisham Homes, made surpluses in
both 2011/12 and 2012/13 respectively. It is felt that this proposal can be accommodated
without any impact on service provision, or reduction in repairs undertaken, due to
improvements in efficiency.

Page 120



APPENDIX X2: Tenants’ rent consultation 2014/15

The Tenants' rent consultation meeting took place on 17" December 2013 with Lewisham
Homes managed tenants. Brockley Tenants were due to be consulted as part of their panel
meeting held on 19" December 2013, However, as this was poorly attended, consultation took
place as part of the leaseholder forum held on 9™ January 2014 and letters sent to members of
the Brockley Panel. Excalibur tenants consultation took place via letters to residents and a

report sent to the committee in December 2013.

Views of representatives on rent rise & savings proposals

Lewisham Brockley
Homes PFI Excalibur TMO
No of representatives (excl
Clirs) n/a n/a
Rent Rise See over See over See over
Savings Proposals:-
1. Lewisham Homes Fee See over n/a n/a
2. R&M Inflation See over n/a n/a
Service Charges inc: See over See over n/a
Heating & Hot Water Charges | No comments | n/a
No
Garage Rents No comments | comments n/a
Tenants Fund Agreed Agreed No comments

Page 121




Summary of other comments made by representatives

Lewisham Homes Panel

Rent rise:

A significant number of representatives
expressed concern at the level of the rent rise
when compared to pay increases and changes in
benefits. Particular reference was made to public
sector workers who had experienced in recent
years a 3 year pay freeze followed by a 1% pay
award.

The Panel asked for a the consultation response
to include details of rent rises compared to pay
for the past five years. This is set out in a table
below this section.

Resident representatives suggested that the
increase should be halved. It was explained that
this would lead to a significant loss of income and
would limit the Council’s ability to meet Decent
Homes and other housing priorities.

Tenants Service Charges & Heating & Hot
water Charge:

Residents queried the increase in caretaking
charge. It was explained that the main driver in
this was the harmonisation regarding caretakers
pay, which meant an increase was required.

Residents welcomed the service charge
reduction in the pest control service.

Savings Proposals:

No comments were made

Comparison of rent increases and public sector pay increases 2010-2015

2010/11 | 2011/12 | 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15
(proposed)
% % % % %
Public Sector Pay 0 0 0 1 1
Rent 1.34 4.99 7.05 4.05 5.05

Page 122




Brockley PFI Area

After consultation with residents, a meeting to
discuss the rent and service charge increase was
scheduled for Thursday 19" December 2013.

However, only 1 tenant and no leaseholders
attended, and the meeting was subsequently
cancelled.

It was decided that consultation with residents in
the Brockley area would consist of direct letters
to resident panel members and consultation at
the Leaseholder forum which was to be held on
9" January 2014.

A total of 3 responses were received via these
methods and are attached below in full.

Rent Rise:

Only 1 tenant responded to the consultation
letter.

In general comments related to the procedure for
consultation rather than directly related to the
actual increase proposed.

In terms of consultation, residents were asked to
decide which date was suitable for a meeting and
one was subsequently agreed and arranged for
19" December 2013 and papers dispatched
accordingly.

Due to the low attendance at the meeting, it was
felt that it would be appropriate to write to
resident representatives on the Brockley board to
gauge their opinion and feed-back.

Every effort was made by both Pinnacle and the
council to consult adequately regarding the
increases in charges.

Tenants and Leaseholders Service Charges:

Only 1 tenant and 2 leaseholders responded to
the consultation letter.

The tenant comments related to the non
provision of a particular service (Window
Cleaning) rather than the increase proposed.

RB3 will be asked to formally respond to the
comments regarding the window cleaning
service.

Page 123




Leaseholder Comments queried the validity and
appropriateness of the use of RPI as the
inflationary increase and also the morality of
imposing increases that outweighed wage
inflation increases.

Comments from the leaseholder forum held
on 9" January 2014.

There was an Objection to the increase given the
increasing costs in households bills and flat
wages - leaseholders incomes are not rising in
tandem with this increase, so how can it be
expected that leaseholders can afford it.

There was a query as to why the service charges
were increased by RPI (3.2%) + 0.5% - particular
comment was made by a leaseholder who asked
why CPl wasn't being used as they thought the
government was changing to this rate of inflation
rather than RPI.

In response to the above comments, officers can
advise that the RB3 contract is increased with
reference to RPIX (which excludes mortgage
costs), not RPI or CPI.

This will not change over the life of the contract.

The government is currently consulting on
whether to change the current formula for rent
increases by replacing RPI + 0.5% with CPI +
1%. This is not due to be implemented until
financial year 2015/16 at the earliest.

It is not yet clear if this will also apply to service
charges. There is also the obligation on the
authority to ensure that full costs in providing
services are fully recovered, and that there is no
cross subsidy from rental income.

It should also be noted that the overall increase
proposed to Leasehold Service Charges is an
average of 2.2%. Whilst some elopements have
increase by RPI + 0.5%, other elements have not
been increased

Brockley Tenants Comment regarding rent increase

‘I do not think that it is right that | have to pay for a service that | am not currently receiving. |
find that the Pinnacle/Council is not allowing residents sufficient amount of time when it comes

Page 124



to consulting them! By the time the council have made their final decision, the residents have
been left in the dark. Pinnacle & the council are not letting residents know how important
“meetings” are in order to work in partnership. This results in council’s making decisions
without fully consulting residents’.

Brockley tenant comment regarding tenant service charge increase

‘I am against this service charge increase as Pinnacle and the council have been taking
monies in 2013 & 2012 for service charges & not providing the service promised. We are
paying for window cleaners as an example and in the last 2 years no one have come to clean
the windows. Please advise in writing where this money has been spent as | will be making a
claim to be compensated for all of my losses.

| don’t want to pay for any service charge’.

Brockley Leaseholder Comments regarding increases to leasehold service charges

1. In my opinion increasing service charges using RPI + 0.5% addition is grossly wrong.
While Regenter is in maintenance business of property, it should not use RPI index
which includes real estate as an indication of price inflation increases as it is
inappropriate. In years of austerity, when Government is cutting spending and real term
wages is dropping, it is unfair & unjustified to pass on such increases to leaseholders &
residents. | would only agree to 1% increase max.

2. Where the Leasehold Valuation Tribunal (LVT) has ruled that work done by Regenter is
appalling and substandard” that they have overcharged and done unnecessary work,
and Lewisham have “lost control” of their contractors and censured Lewisham for lack of
response to enquiries, Regenter/Pinnacle should be removed from the contract, not be
putting up charges. Changing to a fixed cost is unfair as it doesn’t reflect the actual
costs of services to myself and Lewisham don’t seam to know what the price rise is.

Page 125



Excalibur TMO Rent Rise:

As well as a report being sent to the management
committee of the TMO for comments etc, all
individual tenants on the estate were written to
regarding the proposed increases in rents and
asked to provide any comments and feedback by
13" January 2013.

A total of 4 responses were received and are
attached below in full.

The general consensus of the responses was to
question the validity and justification of any rent
rise to be imposed on tenants in view of the poor
condition of their property, and the fact that no
major investment has ever been undertaken to the
estate stock.

Although not directly related to the rent rises,
officers will forward comments and queries on the
regeneration scheme onto the regeneration team
for investigation and response.

In response to the comments regarding the
reduction of management allowances officers can
advise that the actual allowance paid per unit
managed was increasing, whilst acknowledging
that overall payment to the organisation was
reducing as stock is lost to the TMO and passed to
the regeneration project.

Tenants and Leaseholders Service Charges:

n/a

Rent Increase — proposal for 2014/15 Excalibur Comments
Acting Chair of TMO - Emailed 16/12/2013

‘Our prefabs according to the Council fall below the decent homes standards a situation
caused by the Land Lord Lewisham in the first place, one of the reasons why rent is charge as
to up hold the obligation of the Land Lord to repair and improve their properties with some of
the rent collected. On behalf of the tenants here of Excalibur Estate the TMO Committee are
contesting any further rent increases until this matter is discussed, and discuss to why this
estate in particular have to pay an increase in rent to live here while this estate remains, as the
Council are determined to demolish the estate. And please do not attempt to quote some
government policy, policy isn't law. In fact our prefabs have been determined as not to be
classed as a building by Lewisham Council, in which case the Council have been charging rent
and Council tax unlawfully.’

Page 126



Resident of Wentland Road - Letter received 18/12/13

‘| have received your letter that you are to increase our rent by £4.61 per week. | do not think
it's right because of the trouble we are having. Deene have boarded us in like cattle. The
bottom of my path and Mordred Road my way out to bus took me 5 minutes.

Now | have to up around and through 3 pathways to Goldsmith Centre which takes me 20-25
minutes as | have bad arthritis in my back and legs.

We have had all this upheaval for 12 years now and they say 2 years for a new build and |
have to wait for a bungalow as | cannot climb stairs so | doing think we should have £4.61
extra to pay.’

Resident of Pelinore Road - Letter received 18/12/13

‘Further to your letter dated 12" December 2012 | am writing to let you know that | do not
agree with the proposed rent increase as —

1. The Council has had no consultation with the Committee about this rent increase as
stated.

2. Your letter also states that Councils should offer similar rents for similar properties. The
Prefabs on the Excalibur Estate are not in the same condition as flats and houses within
the same location. We have no had new bathrooms, kitchens, windows, insulation, or
external painting. In fact we were informed that our dwellings were not fit for habitation.
Asses to that we now have roads closed, unsightly hoardings and will soon be living in
the middle of a building site.

As | am living in Phase 4 | think the rents should be reduced, not increased. If the rentis
increased then | will expect that my home (even if it is only for the next few years) to be
brought up to the same standard as the flats and houses in the area.

Allowances for the estate are being reduced so why not our rent?’
Resident of Meliot Road - Letter received 13/01/14

‘I have been away for a fortnight and just returned home, to find out that there is going to be a
rent increase of £4.61 a week. | think this is a total outrage, given that the property we live in,
is not even up to living standards. Black mould, Wood rot, thinned windows that make our
prefabs even colder all year round, is just some of the issues we have. We have two young
children and are not entitled to housing benefits, paying out for double the gas as normal
houses, due to the old windows, we struggling to pay our current rent. \WWe simply think that we
should not encounter a rent increase, until we our prefab is in a liveable state.’

Page 127



APPENDIX X3: Leasehold and Tenants Charges Consultation 2014/15

Committee Brockley Residents Board Iltem No
Report Title | Leasehold and Tenant Charges Consultation

Contributor Regenter Brockley Operations Manager

Class Decision Date 19" December 2013

1 Summary

1.1

1.2

The report sets out proposals to increase service charges to ensure full cost recovery in
line with Lewisham Council’'s budget strategy.

The report requests Brockley Residents Board members to consider the proposals to
increase service charges based on an uplift of 3.7% for 2013/14 on specific elements.
This is based on full cost recovery in line with previous years’ proposals.

2 Policy Context

2.1

2.2

The policy context for leasehold and tenant service charges is a mixture of statutory and
Council Policy.

The Council’s Housing Revenue Account is a ringfenced revenue account. The account
is required to contain only those charges directly related to the management of the
Council’'s Housing stock. This requires that leaseholder charges reflect the true cost of
maintaining their properties where the provision of their lease allows. This prevents the
situation occurring where tenants are subsidising the cost of leaseholders who have
purchased their properties.

Recommendations

The Brockley Residents Board is requested to consider and comment on the proposals
contained in this report and the feedback from the residents will be presented to Mayor
and Cabinet as part of the wider rent setting report.

Purpose

The purpose of the report is to:

o outline the proposals for increases in service charges in line with the contract
arrangements for leaseholders and tenants to recover costs incurred for
providing these services

Housing Revenue Account Charges

There are a number of charges made to residents which are not covered through rents.
These charges are principally:

o Leasehold Service Charges
o Tenant Service Charges

Page 128



5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

A service charge levy is applied to Tenants for caretaking, grounds maintenance,
communal lighting, bulk waste collection and window cleaning. Tenants also pay a
Tenants Fund Levy which is passed onto the Tenants Fund as a grant.

The key principles that should be considered when setting service charges are that:

o The charge should be fair and be no more or less than the cost of providing the
service

The charge can be easily explained

The charge represents value for money

The charging basis allocates costs fairly amongst those receiving the service
The charge to all residents living in a block will be the same

The principle of full cost recovery ensures that residents pay for services consumed and
minimises any pressures in the Housing Revenue Account in providing these services.
This is in line with the current budget strategy.

In the current economic environment it must however be recognised that for some
residents this may represent a significant financial strain. Those in receipt of housing
benefit will receive housing benefit on increased service charges. Approximately 60% of
council tenants are in receipt of housing benefit.

Analysis of full cost recovery

The following section provides analysis on the impact on individuals of increasing
charges to the level required to ensure full cost recovery. The tables indicate the overall
level of increases.

Leasehold service charges

6.2

6.3

6.4

The basis of the leasehold management charge has been reviewed and externally
audited this summer to reflect the actual cost of the service. In line with best practice in
the sector this is now a fixed cost rather than a variable cost. The management charge
is £42.50 for street properties and £105.50 for blocks.

The uplift in leaseholder charges should reflect full cost recovery for the type of service
undertaken. It is proposed that any uplift is applied at 3.7% (RPI +1/2%).

The following table sets out the average weekly increase for the current services
provided by Regenter Brockley:

Service Leasehold | Current New Weekly % Increase

No. Weekly Weekly Increase

Charge

Caretaking 357 £3.51 £3.55 £0.04 3.7%
Grounds 354 £1.96 £2.00 £0.04 3.7%
Maintenance
Lighting 384 £0.70 £0.74 £0.04 3.7%
Bulk Waste 357 £1.17 £1.21 £0.04 3.7%
Window 216 £0.09 £0.09 £- 0.0%
Cleaning
Resident 510 £0.24 £0.24 £- 0.0%
Involvement
Customer 510 £0.35 £0.35 £- 0.0%
Services

Page 129



Ground Rent | 510 £0.19 £0.19 £- 0.0%
General 232 £0.50 £0.54 £0.04 3.7%
Repairs

Technical 395 £0.28 £0.32 £0.04 3.7%
Repairs

Entry Phone | 137 £0.05 £0.05 £- 0.0%
Lift 234 £0.30 £0.30 £- 0.0%
Management | 510 £1.65 £1.65 £- 0.0%
Fee

Total £11.00 £11.22 £0.22 2.02%

Tenant service charges

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

Tenant service charges were separated out from rent (unpooled) in 2003/04, and have
been increased by inflation since then. RB3 took over the provision of the caretaking
and grounds maintenance services in 2007/08. Both tenants and leaseholders pay
caretaking, grounds maintenance, communal lighting, bulk waste collection and window
cleaning service charges.

In addition, tenants pay a contribution of £0.13pw to the Lewisham Tenants Fund. At
present there are no plans to increase the Tenants Fund charges.

In order to ensure full cost recovery, tenant’s service charges for caretaking, grounds
maintenance and other services should be increased in line with the percentage
increase applied to leaseholder service charges. Overall, charges are suggested to be
increased by an average of £0.18pw which would move the current average weekly
charge from £4.95 to £5.13.

The effect of increases in tenant service charges to a level that covers the full cost of
providing the service is set out in the table below.

Service Current | New Weekly | %
Weekly | Weekly Increase | increase
Charge | Charge

Current £ £ £ %

Caretaking 2.68 2.78 0.10 3.7%

Grounds 1.25 1.30 0.05 3.7%

Lighting 0.68 0.71 0.03 3.7%

Bulk Waste | 0.19 0.20 0.01 3.7%

Window

Cleaning 0.02 0.02 0.00 0.0%

Tenants 0.13

fund 0.13 0.00 0.0%

Total 4.95 5.13 0.18 2.04%

The RB3 Board are asked for their views on these charges from 2014/15. Results of the
consultation will be presented to Mayor and Cabinet for approval.

Financial implications

The main financial implications are set out in the body of the report.

Page 130



8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

10.

1.

12.

121

Legal implications

Section 24 of the Housing Act 1985 provides that a local housing authority may make
such reasonable charges as they determine for the tenancy or occupation of their
houses. The Authority must review rents from time to time and make such changes as
circumstances require. Within this discretion there is no one lawful option and any
reasonable option may be looked at. The consequences of each option must be
explained fully so that Members understand the implications of their decisions.

Section 76 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 provides that local housing
authorities are under a duty to prevent a debit balance in the HRA. Rents must therefore
be set to avoid such a debit.

Section 103 of the Housing Act 1985 sets out the terms under which secure tenancies
may be varied. This requires —

- the Council to serve a Notice of Variation at least 4 weeks before the effective
date;

- the provision of sufficient information to explain the variation;

- an opportunity for the tenant to serve a Notice to Quit terminating their tenancy.

The timetable for the consideration of the 2014/15 rent levels provides an adequate
period to ensure that legislative requirements are met.

Part 1l of Schedule 4 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 provides that
where benefits or amenities arising out of the exercise of a Housing Authority’s
functions, are provided for persons housed by the authority, but are shared by the
community as a whole, the authority shall make such contribution to their HRA from
their other revenue accounts to properly reflect the community’s share of the benefits or
amenities.

Where as an outcome of the rent setting process, there are to be significant changes in
housing management practice or policy, further consultation may be required with the
tenants affected in accordance with section 105 of the Housing Act 1985.

Crime and disorder implications

There are no specific crime and disorder implications in respect of this report paragraph.
Equalities implications

The general principle of ensuring that residents pay the same charge for the same
service is promoting the principle that services are provided to residents in a fair and
equal manner.

Environmental implications

There are no specific environmental implications in respect of this report.

Conclusion

Revising the level of charges ensures that the charges are fair and residents are paying
for the services they use.

Page 131



12.2 The additional resources generated will relieve some of the current pressures within
Housing Revenue Account and will contribute to the funding of the PFI contract which is
contained within the authorities Housing Revenue Account.

If you require any further information on this report please contact

Maxeene McFarlane on 0207 635 1208 or Maxeene.mcfarlane@pinnacle-psg.com

Page 132



APPENDIX X4

: Leasehold and Tenants Charges and Lewisham Homes Budget Strategy

2014/15
Meeting Combined Area Panel ltem No.
Lewisham Homes Budget Strategy and Leasehold/Tenant Service
Report Title Charge 2014/15
Report Of Director of Resources — Adam Barrett
Class Decision Date 17" December 2013

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1 This report sets out proposals to change existing service charges for residents in 2014/15 and
updates the Area Panel on the Lewisham Homes budget position for 2014/15.

2, Recommendations
That the Area Panel:

2.1 Comments on the proposed service charges for 2014/15.

2.2 Notes the average changes, from 2013/13, in the tenanted and leasehold service charges:

. Tenants - increase of £0.17 (2.32%)
. Leaseholders - unchanged at £13.89 per week.

2.3 Note the RPI for September 2013 is 3.2%.

2.4 Note that Lewisham’s service charges remain below the average charge for London Boroughs.

3. Background of the Report

3.1 The Council’'s Housing Revenue Account is a ring fenced account. The account can only
contain those charges directly related to the management of the Council’s housing stock. As a
result, leaseholders must be charged the true cost of maintaining their properties, where the
provision of their lease allows. This prevents tenants subsidising the cost to leaseholders.

3.2 The Lewisham Homes budget process has identified net efficiency savings, of £0.500m for
2014/15. These have been passed on to residents and has resulted in the proposals for
charges for 2014/15.

3.3 Charges for leaseholders have been maintained at 2013/14 levels at an average of £13.39 per
week. The proposed 2014/15 average service charge for tenants is £7.72. This is an average
increase of 2.32%, on the current charges of £7.55 and below the rate of inflation, though 75%
of tenants are to receive an increase in charges of 3.59%.

3.4 The tenant charges increase is more than the leasehold increase as they are not charged for

services such as Anti Social Behaviour, the charge for which has reduced by 26% or £0.11 in
2014/15.

Page 133



3.5 The proposed 2014/15 average service charge for tenants, at £7.72, is below the London
average charge of £8.76 for 2012/13. This demonstrates that Lewisham Homes charges are
Value for Money when compare to other London Boroughs.

4. Tenant and Leasehold service charges 2014/15

4.1 Table 1 below sets out the proposed changes between the current 2013/14 average charge and
the 2014/15 proposed charge.

Table 1
Tenant (T)/
Leaseholders Estimate (per
Existing Service (LH) week charge) Change
2013/14 | 2014/15
£ £ £ %
Caretaking T&LH 5.73 5.93 increase 019 | 3.37%
Ground Maintenance T&LH 0.94 0.97 increase 0.02 | 2.50%
Communal Lighting T&LH 0.89 0.86 decrease | -0.03 | -3.40%
Anti Social Behaviour LH 0.42 0.31 decrease | -0.11 | 26.72%
Customer Services LH 0.05 0.05 increase 0.00 1.00%
Resident Involvement LH 0.39 0.42 increase 0.03 7.69%
Repairs and
Maintenance -
Building LH 1.56 1.56 no change | 0.00 0.00%
Repairs and
Maintenance
Technical LH 1.06 1.06 no change [ 0.00 [ 0.00%
Lifts LH 2.65 2.65 no change [ 0.00 | 0.00%
Entry Phone LH 0.36 0.36 no change | 0.00 [ 0.00%
Block Pest Control T&LH 1.70 1.55 decrease | -0.15 | -8.89%
Ground Rent LH 0.19 0.19 no change [ 0.00 | 0.00%
Sweeping LH 0.86 0.87 increase 0.01 1.00%
Management LH 2.47 2.47 no change [ 0.00 [ 0.00%
Window Cleaning T&LH 0.06 0.06 no change | 0.00 0.00%
Bulky House Hold
Waste Collection
Service T&LH 0.46 0.48 increase 0.02 | 4.21%
Communal Heating
and Hot Water T&LH 9.83 9.88 increase 0.05 | 0.50%
Insurance LH 0.87 0.87 no change [ 0.00 | 0.00%
Total (s) 30.50 30.32 -0.03 | -0.11%

T & LH - Services Charges to both Tenant and Leaseholders , LH - Services Charges to Leaseholders only

5. Analysis of impact due to changes in Service Charges for Tenants

5.1  There is an overall increase of 2.32% for the service charge for tenants, from £7.55 to £7.72 per
week. This rise is a result of an increase in caretaking charges of 3.37% and charges for the
Bulky Household Waste Collection Service of 4.2%. The caretaking charge increase is due to
pay inflation of 1% and the settlement of 2% in respect of the harmonisation of terms and

Page 134



conditions for caretakers. The Bulky Household Waste Collection Service charge increase is due
to the increase in charges paid to the Council by Lewisham Homes for this service.

5.2 A number of other charges have either reduced. For example communal lighting has reduced by
-3.4%. This is due to regular meter readings from the current energy supplier, which has reduced
the number of bills based on estimated readings. The average charge for Block Pest Control has
decreased by 8.89%. This is due to efficiencies negotiated with the Council and economies of
scales, as more properties are now receiving the service.

5.3 Table 2, below sets out the impact of the changes for current services for Tenants. The average
increase is 2.32%, with 75.68% receiving an increase of 3.59%, i.e. just above inflation at 3.2%
(September RPI).

Table 2
Bands of Decrease / | Number | % of Total Average
Increase of decrease /
Tenants increase

Dec. of more than
£3.00 60 0.45% -16.59%
Dec £2.01 to £3.00 71 0.53% -21.79%
Dec - £1.01 to £2.00 659 4.92% -9.31%
Dec -0 to 1.00 1,385 10.34% -4.51%
Inc - 0 to 1.00 10,140 75.68% 3.59%
Inc - £1.01 to £2.00 881 6.58% 14.46%
Inc - £2.01 to £3.00 148 1.10% 20.45%
Inc — of more than
3.00 54 0.40% 9.79%
Grand Total 13,398 100.00% 2.32%

Dec — Decrease , Inc - Increase

6. Analysis of Impact due to changes in Service Charges for Leaseholders

6.1 Charges have been maintained for leaseholders at 2013/14 levels, i.e. £13.89 per week. This
has been achieved by reducing the ASB charge that reflects the changes to the service
provided to leaseholders. Table 3 below sets out the impact of the changes for leaseholders
with 71.6% receiving an increase of 1.48%, which is below inflation.

Table 3
Bands of Decrease/ | Number | % of Total | Average
Increase in Band decrease /
increase
Dec of more than 3.00 26 0.55% -21.96%
Dec - £2.01 to £3.00 66 1.40% -9.52%
Dec - £1.01 to £2.00 261 5.55% -6.66%
Dec -0 to 1.00 821 17.45% -2.42%
Inc - 0 to 1.00 3,369 71.60% 1.48%
Inc - £1.01 to £2.00 147 3.12% 9.18%
Inc - £2.01 to £3.00 6 0.13% 12.42%
Inc — of more than
3.00 9 0.19% 59.16%
Grand Total 4,705 100.00% 0.03%

Dec — Decrease , Inc - Increase
7. Tenant Service Charge Benchmarkin

Page 135



7.1 The benchmarking data for 2013/14 is not currently available. As a result. the data for 2012/13
has been used to benchmark the service charge.

As Table 3 below shows the proposed average service charge for tenants for 2014/15 still
remains below the average service charge for all London Boroughs in 2012/13 .

Average charges per week for London Boroughs for tenanted Service Charges 2012/13.

Table 4

Borough £
Hillingdon 2.30
Sutton 5.12
Newham 6.38
Barnet 7.42
Tower Hamlets 7.56
Redbridge 7.57
Lewisham proposed charge 14/15 7.72
Brent 8.53
Hounslow 8.65
Islington 9.23
Camden 10.06
Ealing 10.94
Hackney 12.08
Haringey 18.04
Average (excluding Lewisham) 8.76

Source - CIPFA Rent and Service Charge data April 2013.
8. Lewisham Homes Budget Proposals for 2014/15
8.1 Company Budget and the Fee

8.2 The fee and budget that Lewisham Homes is proposing for 2014/15 is £18.676m. This
represents a saving of £0.215 m on the 2013/14 fee. As shown in Table 5 below :-

Table 5
Proposed
Fee/budget
£000

2013/14 fee 18,891
Inflation 285
Service improvements and 543
pressures

Savings (1,043)
Fee 18,676

8.3 The proposed fee includes savings of £1.043m and increases due to service improvements and
other financial pressures of £0.543m, i.e. an net saving of £0.500m.

8.4 The savings and growth with explanations are set out below

Page 136



Savings Table

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

£'000

Description
Support Services Staff Savings -246
Property Services savings -309
Review of supplies and service -88
Review of ICT supplies and services -222
Charges to capital -178
-1,043

Support Services Staff Savings - £-0.246m

We have reviewed our support services structures. We are reviewing areas of work where we
think there is limited value to our residents and focussing on those activities that add value. As a
result we are reducing the number of strategies and policies and reviews we carry out. We are
also ensuring that our processes are more efficient and using automated systems more which
require less staff input. As a result we are reducing the number of support services staff and
delivering efficiency savings

Property Services Savings - £-0.309m

We have restructured the major works team to strengthen the delivery and project Management
functions, and provide a more customer focused service.

Review of Supplies and Services - £-0.88m

We review our supplies and services budgets on an annual basis. We deliver savings in this
area through managing processes more efficiently, for example new printing systems that are
more effective and reduce printing costs. We also ensure we test the market and get efficiency
savings through better procurement.

Review of ICT Supplies and Services - £-0.222m

We are planning to re-procure key elements of the ICT service such as our telephone and
mobile phone services. We have carried out a market review and are planning to make
significant savings in this area taking advantage of more competitive prices that are currently
available.

Recharges to Capital - £0.178m

We have reviewed the workload of the Mechanical and Electrical team and identified that a
greater proportion of their costs should be charged to major capital projects.

Service Improvements and Pressures £0.543m

Description of Improvements / Growth £'000
A net estimated cost for the cost of the 58
increased RTB applications.

Increase in charges for Lewisham Homes 50
property

Increase in Legal and Storage costs tenancy 47
Additional Resources for welfare reform 190

Page 137



8.10

8.12

8.13

8.14

8.15

8.16

8.17

9.0
9.1

VFM review of major works expenditure 100
Additional estate inspections 42
Improvements to information management 56
543

A net increase in costs for the cost of the increased RTB applications - £0.058m

There has been increase in Right to Buy applications from 189 applications in 2012/13 to an
anticipated 430 applications in 2013/14. Each application means that Lewisham Homes incurs
legal, valuation and survey costs. Not all of these costs can be recovered from charges made
against the income from RTB sales. It is estimated that £58,000 will not be recoverable from
sales income.

Increase in Charges for Lewisham Homes Property - £0.05m

Lewisham Homes is looking to relocate its core operations to one site office to work more
efficiently and deliver improved services. This may result in additional costs estimated at
£0.050m

Increase in Legal and Storage Costs - £0.047m

Demand on the service due to storage costs for evictions and legal costs has caused this budget
pressure.

Additional Resources for Welfare Reform £0.190m

We are strengthening our teams to provide additional capacity to provide additional support and
advice to residents on welfare reform and to manage higher levels of rent arrears which are
anticipated as a result of the welfare reforms.

VFM review of Major Works Programme - £0.100m

We have introduced an audit regime to ensure that we are getting value for money from our
Decent Homes programme. The costs of this work have been more than offset by savings
identified as a result of the audits.

Additional Estate Inspections - £0.042m

We are carrying out additional inspections on our estates to ensure that any hazards that may
present a danger to our residents and the public are identified at an early stage and rectified.
This improves the health and safety of our estates and will result in reduced insurance costs in
the longer term.

Improvements to Information Management - £0.056m

Lewisham Homes is reviewing its information management and data protection systems to meet
enhanced government security standards and to ensure that we meet best practice standards for
information management

Major works programme - £47.1m

The Decent Homes programme totals £47.1m for 2014/15. This represents an increase of
£4.335m, or almost 10% on the 2013/14 budget of £42.765m. The target is to improve 2,133
homes up to the Decent Homes Standard during 2014/15.

Page 138



Repairs & Maintenance budgets - £16.85m

8.19 The Repairs and Maintenance budget has been set, taking consideration of current and future
demand for this service, whilst maintaining the repairs standard. The budget of £16.85m reflects
more efficient use of resources, with a contribution of £0.960m to DLO expenditure within the
Major Works Decent Homes programme. The budget has also been held at 2013/14 prices.

If you require further information on this report please contact Adam Barrett on 020 8613 7697 or email
adam.barrett@lewishamhomes.orq.uk

Page 139



APPENDIX X5: Other Associated Housing Charges for 2014/15

Garage Rents

1. Allowance has been made for a 3.2% inflationary increase to garage rents in the
Brockley area, based on the RPI rate at September 2013. This equates to an increase
of £0.25 per week and raises the average charge from £7.99 to £8.24 per week.

2. Garage rents for the Lewisham Homes managed area are also proposed to rise in line
with RPI inflation as at September 2013. This equates to an increase of £0.31 per week
and would raise the average charge from £9.50 per week to £9.81 per week.

Tenants Levy

3. As part of the budget and rent setting proposals for 2005/6, a sum of £0.13 per week
was ‘unpooled’ from rent as a tenants service charge in respect of the Lewisham
Tenants Fund. There was no increase in charges for the period 2009/10 to 2013/14
following consultation with Housing Panels.

4, Lewisham Tenants Fund (LTF) put forward proposals to leave the levy at £0.13 for
2014/15. These were submitted to Housing Panels and agreed. Therefore, the levy for
2014/15 remains at £0.13 per property per week.

Hostel charges

5. Hostel accommodation charges are set based on rent restructuring rules and will rise
by around 4.66% (£3.03 per week) under the rent restructuring formula.

6. Hostel services charges are set to achieve full cost recovery, following the
implementation of self-financing. For 2014/15, the charge for Caretaking/management
and Grounds Maintenance are proposed to be reduced by 6.91% or £5.04 per week to
reflect savings and efficiencies achieved as part of the Group restructure in the latter
part of 2013/14. This will move the average charge from £74.03 per unit per week to
£68.00 per unit per week.

7. In addition, the charge levied for Heat, Light & Power (Energy) and Water Charges will
also reduce due to further analysis on consumption patterns and communal area
assumptions, which is now included within the service charge value noted in item 6
above. The charge for Heat, Light & Power will therefore reduce by £5.24pw from
£10.48 to £5.24. Water charges will reduce from £2.05 to £0.17 a reduction of
£1.88pw. The charge for Council Tax will be based on the total recharged received
from Council Tax section. All charges will be based on the total number of hostel units
after being reconfigured resulting in a small increase in the total number of units.

8. Hostel residents were consulted on these proposals via individual letters. Officers also
invited hostel residents to meet them to discuss the changes and how these may affect
them. However, no comments or representations were received.

9. There are no proposals to increase support charges, as it has been assumed that

Supporting People grant will not receive an inflationary increase for 2014/15. The
charge for Sheltered Housing tenants will be held at £10.66 per week. The charge for

Page 140



Very Sheltered Housing tenants will be held at £94.53 per week. There are
approximately 312 sheltered housing tenants and 37 Very Sheltered Housing tenants.

Linkline Charges

10. It is proposed to increase Linkline charges for 2014/15 by 5%. Charges will increase to
£5.16 per week for line rental and £0.91 per week for maintenance from the current
charge of £4.91 and £0.87 per week, respectively.

Private Sector Leasing (PSL)

11. Rent income for properties used in the Private Sector Leasing (PSL) scheme is a
General Fund resource. Following consultation, the Department for Work and Pensions
(DWP) announced that the threshold for 2013/14 for housing benefits subsidy
allowances will be based on the January 2011 Local Housing Allowance, less 10%,
plus a management fee of £40 per property, subject to a maximum capped amount of
£500 per week. It is recommended that rents for private sector leased properties are
kept within the 2011/12 weekly threshold, as set out in Table B3 below.

Table B3 - Local Housing Allowances for 2012/13 (used for PSL purposes)

Bed Size Total LHA Inner Total LHA Outer
Lewisham Lewisham

1 Bed £211.34 £180.19

2 Bed £268.47 £211.34

3 Bed £310.00 £246.66

4 Bed £413.84 £310.00

5 Bed £500.00 £393.08

Heating & How Water Charges

12.  As part of last year’s rent setting process the Mayor agreed to continue with the current
formula methodology for calculating increases in Heating & Hot Water charges to
tenants and leaseholders. This formula was originally approved by Mayor & Cabinet in
December 2004.

13. The current charging methodology allows a limited inflationary price increase plus a
maximum of £2 per week per property increase on the previous years charge.
Consumption levels are also updated and included in the formula calculation.

14. A new corporate contract for the supply of gas is due to be re-let on 1st April 2014. In
addition, a new Electricity contract was awarded for 3 years from 1+ January 2014.

15. Prices for April 2014 gas contract can not be firmly estimated at this time. Any increase
in the contract price are not likely be reflected in the proposed charge until the following
year.

16.  Therefore the proposal for 2014/15 is for an increase of 0.50% or -£0.05 per week for
energy usage for communal heating. This has been worked out after taking account of
updated stock levels due to stock transfers and updated consumption data. This will
move the current average charge from £9.83pw to £9.88pw.

Page 141



17.

The proposal for communal lighting is a decrease of 3.40% or £0.03 per week. This will
move the current average charge from £0.89pw to £0.86pw. Officers will review the
costs and actual energy usage in 2013/14 as part of the monitoring regime for 2014/15
financial year and recommendations brought forward as part of the 2015/16 budget
setting process.

Page 142



APPENDIX Y1

2014/16 SAVINGS SUMMARY - DIRECTORATE

DIRECTORATE

2014/2015
Agreed Savings

2015/2016
Agreed Savings

Total
Agreed Savings

£'000s £'000s £'000s
CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE 5,637.0 275.0 5,812.0
COMMUNITY SERVICES 9,817.0 50.0 9,867.0
JCUSTOMER SERVICES 2,550.0 575.0 3,125.0
‘Ei RESOURCES & REGENERATION 3,989.9 579.5 4,569.4
N
WTOTAL - REVENUE BUDGET SAVINGS AGREED 21,893.9 1,479.5 23,373.4
ADDITIONAL EFFICIENCY SAVINGS - AGREED 2,500.0 0.0 2,500.0
ATTENDANCE & WELFARE SAVING — AGREED M&C 12" February 2014 100.0 200.0 300.0
TOTAL - REVENUE BUDGET SAVINGS 24,493.9 1,679.5 26,173.4




2014/16 AGREED SAVINGS - SUMMARY

2014/15 2015/16
Ref. Service Description of saving £000's £000's
Children & Young People Directorate
SCHEFF:
GOVERNORS To achieve a balanced position on Governors Training and clerking services that recovers all direct
CYPO1 | SUPPORT costs and overheads at 15%. 35.0
In 2012/13 the Education Psychology team is being successful in achieving traded income from
work in LA schools and Academies. The income is projected to be £70k ahead of the current
SCHOOL budget and it is proposed that the budget for 2013/14 is increased by £70k to reflect this on an
CYP02 | IMPROVEMENT ongoing basis. The charges being made recover all direct costs and a 15% addition for overheads. 35.0
0 SCHOOL The Early Years Improvement Team. The proposal is to increase the income target by increasing
EP,CYP03 IMPROVEMENT the traded element of the team's work 21.0
@ SCHOOL
FCYP06 | IMPROVEMENT To review support to schools at subject level so that it is more cost effective 60.0
IS
A re-organisation of the business support across the Division. A number of recent re-organisations
have moved teams into the Division each with business support roles. It is proposed to re-organise
SCHOOL these roles into a single team that reflects the overall reduction in school improvement officer roles
CYPO8 | IMPROVEMENT for schools. 85.0
The Wide Horizons contract for outdoor education ends on 31 March 2014. This marks the end of
the 7 year period by which the Trust aimed to be a self financing organisation based on schools
SCHOOL paying for the use of its facilities. The Trust is prepared for the ending of this funding and has plans
CYP09 | IMPROVEMENT for continuation when this funding ceases. 146.0
The Schools HR service continues to trade successfully with schools with Governors increasing the
range of service they are purchasing. It is proposed to increase the charges to schools to ensure
ER/VR, SUPPLY & | the costs recovered include overheads at 15% and to increase the income target to reflect 2012/13
CYP11 | TOFTUA levels of purchase by schools. 50.0




The Council's existing strategy is to increase paid school meal charges above the rate of inflation to
reduce the overall subsidy to school meals. In May 2011 prices increased by 20p per meal. In May
2012 the increase was reduced to 10p as a result of securing contract cost reductions from the
supplier. The relevant contribution of price increase and cost reduction is being reviewed in light of

ESTATE the impact of the May 2012 price increase on meal numbers in order to achieve a full year saving of
CYP13 | MANAGEMENT £150k. 50.0
The Youth Service provides directly a range of services supporting young people in the borough
covering: Youth Centres, Detached Youth Work, key worker support from Baseline, five adventure
playgrounds and a programme of positive activities during holiday periods. These services are
open to all young people to attend and use. It is proposed to provide a more targeted service with
four elements as its focus: 1:1 intensive support for young people with identified vulnerabilities;
issue based group work for specific vulnerable groups; street based youth work; and access to
INTEGRATED positive activities through fun and vibrant places to go and things to do. These activities to be
YOUTH SUPPORT | targeted at young people at greatest risk of poor life outcomes. Savings to be made through a
CYP17 | SERVICE reduction in costs of centre based work and management costs. 558.0
The Directorate maintains resources to oversee the operation of the free entitlement for three and
four year olds and the pilot scheme for two year olds. A review of the budget has identified
o EARLY YEARS & provision for the two year old scheme which can be funded from the EIG provision for the two year
SJDCYP18 PLAY old pilot scheme. 50.0
@ 1. Restructuring of the Early Intervention ServiceFollowing the reorganisation of the Children’s
'; Centre, Child Care and Play service in October 2011 and the commissioning out of Children Centre
ol services to schools and partners from the voluntary sector from July 2012, it is felt that the
remaining structure should be modified to suit the new requirements on the service and the revised
framework. To this end, the structure will be streamlined in order to deliver the appropriate level of
management, business and targeted support. This will take into account Ofsted requirements of
Children’s Centres, the expected service outcomes and the efficient use of resources.2. Disposal of
vehiclesThe Early Intervention service has a number of vehicles which are no longer needed
following the 2011 reorganisation. These include a Toy Library Van, a Play Bus, an Information Bus
and two Baby Gym Vans. The vehicles were used as part of service delivery in the former Early
EARLY YEARS & | Years, Children’s Centres, Child Care and Play service but the tendering out of Children’s Centre
CYP19 | PLAY services to third party providers makes it no longer necessary for them to be retained centrally. 50.0
EARLY YEARS & | To cease paying for the provision from the Generation Play Club sites and offer the premises to the
CYP21 | PLAY community to run play based services where wanted. 54.0
BUSINESS The Council is participating in a DFE project to use Multi Treatment Fostering Care which aims to
SUPPORT, provide more sophisticated fostering arrangements for young people in care who would traditionally
PLACEMENTS & have been placed in residential care. The project aims to support these young people with a
CYP22 | PROCUREMENT combination of specialist support with their foster carer. 250.0




CHILDREN'S There is a requirement in many instances for birth parents to have contact with their children in
PLACEMENTS & local authority care. It is proposed to make savings based upon increased use of Council premises
CYP25 | PROCUREMENT rather than use external and charged for premises. 100.0
Following the implementation of the re-organisation of SEN and Children with Disability teams in
July 2012 a review of processes and systems is being undertaken. The indications are that reform
CHILDREN IN of these processes, to create more streamlined arrangements, will generate savings of £500k over
CYP26 | NEED the next two years. 300.0
BUSINESS Within Children’s Social Care there are a number of unqualified staff that support the role of front
SUPPORT, line Social Workers e.g. Business Support Officers and Social Work Assistants. The proposal is to
PLACEMENTS & realign staffing resources within the division to achieve savings whilst ensuring social worker
CYP28 | PROCUREMENT capacity remains a priority. 150.0
BUSINESS
SUPPORT, As part of the refurbishment of Laurence House it is proposed to no longer have a separate
PLACEMENTS & reception for Children Social Care families and for them to be initially managed through Access
¢ YP30 | PROCUREMENT Point. 50.0
(?:g The experience of being a SEN pilot for the Government's SEN reforms to create a single plan for
1 children with SEN and a personal budget will create opportunities to re configure provision and give
= parents more control. One of the areas to be affected is support for transport. Work in Croydon and
;% Coventry indicates that by adapting the approach of social workers, Head Teachers and parents
more appropriate use of personal transport budgets and independent travel can reduce costs.
These combined with a renewed vigour in the procurement of transport assistance is expected to
provide a saving of £500k in 2014/15 after saving sufficient expenditure to cover an over spending
in 2012/13. Any consequent reduction in the need for Door to Door services would lead to a
CYP31 | SPECIAL NEEDS | reduced staffing requirement. 500.0
At present Family Justice Review Court cases place significant reliance on expert reports that are
costly and slow to produce. National proposals are that less reliance is placed on such reports and
FAMILY SUPPORT | this should lead to quicker decision making and reduced costs for the social care budget. These
CYP33 | & INTERVENTION | savings are estimated at £200k. 100.0
The Business Support Unit that pays for the Commissioning of Children's Health care services
undertaken by LBL has agreed to increase its contribution toward costs by £50k in 2013/14. This is
based upon an assessment of the time spent by the Strategy And Commissioning Division in
RECHARGES: undertaking this procurement. The strategy and commissioning team is current revising its
COMMISSIONING, | business support systems for commissioning activity. This is expected to be concluded in 2013
CYP35 | STRATEGY enabling a saving of £27k to take place in 2014/15 financial year. 27.0




RECHARGES:

COMMISSIONING,

The LIFE project is due to end in July 2013. The work and the learning from this pilot will be
incorporated into business as usual from that point in time and will not require this additional source

CYP37 | STRATEGY of funds once the pilot is ended. 100.0
The total provision for Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) across general
funds, Early Intervention Grant and Dedicated Schools Grant is £1241k. In 2013/14 it is proposed
RECHARGES: to delete support and one off activity within the provision that does not impact upon front line
COMMISSIONING, | provision. In 2014/15 a temporary provision for Tier 2 CAMHS in schools will be removed as new
CYP38 | STRATEGY service level agreements for the service are introduced. 100.0
The Round 1 (see CYP02) saving increased the budgeted income level for the Education
SCHOOL Psychology team to match the income levels already being achieved. As this saving is being
CYP40 | IMPROVEMENT achieved it is now thought possible to extend this target and achieve further income of £70k. 35.0
School Achievement special education transitions support - This role will be deleted and the
supplies and services budget reduced. Transitions at pupil level will be managed by the Children
SCHOOL with Complex Needs Service, within their existing budget. Transitions at school level will be led by
CYP41 | IMPROVEMENT the Educational Psychology team, who sit within School Improvement. 29.0
The 14 - 19 team support secondary schools. There is one vacant post that is now offered as a
iLY) SCHOOL saving and the remainder of the saving can be achieved through reducing the supplies and
é.\l’CYP43 IMPROVEMENT services budget for printing and communications. 70.0
@®
= The Estates Management team provides support to schools on statutory maintenance and
:I> premises matters. The budget provides for the use of specialised consultancy support such as
N asbestos testing and building condition surveys. A review of the past expenditure against the
budget and the progress on maintenance works has identified that this budget can now be reduced
ESTATE by £30k. Through the use of web based technology the eligibility criteria of families for free school
CYP44 | MANAGEMENT meals can be processed more efficiently allowing a staffing reduction of 0.5fte. 45.0
ADMISSIONS & Attendance and Welfare Service - A full re-organisation of the service is proposed considering the
PUPILS OUT OF case loads of staff and the areas of work that have the greatest impact on absence. This will not
CYP46 | SCHOOL reduce the scope of our statutory activity. The figure proposed is an indicative figure. 200.0
EARLY YEARS & | This saving provides for a reduction in business support for providers of £20k through a further re-
CYP48 | PLAY organisation. 20.0
BUSSINESS A review of the business support team across the service will be undertaken to examine the
SUPPORT, opportunities for reshaping the current activities and identifying opportunities for sharing resources
PLACEMENTS & with other support teams in the Council such as Finance and Adults. There are Round 1 savings at
CYP49 | PROCUREMENT CYP 28, 29 and 30 that will also impact upon Business Support costs and organisation 150.0




FAMILY SUPPORT

New Court guidance has an expectation that cases should be completed within 26 weeks, at
present the average is over a year. Through our Care Proceedings Pilot (with 3 other LAs) we
anticipate that we can reduce the timetable significantly. Reducing our timetable will save on legal
costs in Court. These savings were estimated at £200k in round 1 savings but work with the other
partners within the project would indicate the savings will be higher at £350k in total, an increase of
£150k. This relates to CYP 33. There will also be an expectation that expert reports which can be
costly and timely to produce are reduced to a minimum, so where possible there is more reliance
on the expertise of the professionals involved with the child such as the social worker. This should

N[~

CYP50 | & INTERVENTION | lead to quicker decision-making and reduced costs for the social care budget. 100.0
Currently there is a specific role for a schools child protection officer. It is now felt that child
SAFEGUARDING | protection liaison with schools by social care is sufficiently well embedded that a specific role is no
& PLANNING longer required it is therefore proposed to delete a 0.5fte staffing resource and produce a saving of
CYP53 | SERVICE £30k 30.0
Currently in-house fostering placements are £370 per week lower than using outside agency
fostering placements. While current efforts to increase the number of in-house carers has not been
FOSTERING & successful it is proposed to expend significant management attention on achieving an increase to
CYP55 | ADOPTION the number of in-house placements by 25 per annum to effect a saving of £481k. 481.0
U
1:; CHILDREN'S Currently social workers receive a car parking permit for Laurence House as part of their
D MANAGEMENT & | recruitment and retention package. Not all social workers use their cars so not all of them receive
. CYP56 | OTHER this allowance. A consultation will take place with staff on the continuation of the allowance. 20.0
B The work on LAC rights includes a contract with Barnardo's that is due to end in 2013. The success
® LOOKED AFTER | of the Children in Care council would suggest we could bring the activity in house and not re-let the
CYP57 | CHILDREN contract. 50.0
NEET Reduction. It is proposed to reduce the education contribution to the social enterprise fund
CONNEXIONS which supports start up business for young people (£40k) and to delete 2 vacant posts on the
CYP58 | ETC Mayor's NEET programme. 40.0
STRATEGY & Further efficiencies are proposal through the re-commissioning of the Family Intervention Project
PERFORMANCE an the re commissioning of short breaks provision for 2014. The efficiencies are to be split; £75k
CYP59 | REVIEW against the Family Intervention Project, and £50k against Short Breaks 125.0
EARLY YEARS & To cease paying for the provision from the Generation Play Club sites and offer the premises to the
CYP21 | PLAY community to run play based services where wanted. 500.0
CYP Performance Service provides statutory data collections, data analysis, performance reporting
to the Children and Young People's Strategic Partnership Board (CYPSPB), Lewisham
Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB), DMT, Directorate Services, with particular emphasis on
Children's Social Care and School Improvement. The implementation of the replacement corporate
software for monitoring and reporting performance should result in fewer administrative processes
CYPO1 to produce the monthly and annual performance data reports. This is expected to result in a
(new) | PERFORMANCE saving of one post with an estimated value of £50k. 50.0




CYPO3
(new)

EARLY YEARS

The Early Years Improvement Team provides advice, support and training for practitioners working
with children in the Early Years Foundation Stage in the maintained and non-maintained sector. It
is proposed to make a saving on £58k through a review of work. Local authorities are required to
make arrangements to secure that early childhood services in their area are provided in an
integrated way that facilitates access to services and maximises the benefits to children, parents
and prospective parents. Early years providers providing early years for which they are registered
under the Childcare Act 2006 (or would be required to register but for being exempted) are required
to ensure compliance with the “Early Years Foundation Stage”. The proposed review of work in this
area will have to ensure that sufficient advice, support and training will be available to ensure early
years providers comply with their requirements to deliver the “Early Years Foundation Stage”.

58.0

CYPO4
(new)

LOOKED AFTER
CHILDREN
EDUCATION
TEAM

The Looked After Children Education Team oversees the education of Looked After Children,
including providing tuition to support their learning, support in transition from primary to secondary
school, and peer mentoring. The team also ensure that destinations data is collected to monitor
pathways and ensure the right support is provided to individuals. Most of the funding is provided
through the Dedicated Schools Grant (£200k) although there is a contribution of £62k to the service
from the General Fund. In future all costs will be contained within the Dedicated Schools Grant.

62.0

- ~Ay

o~

BUSINESS
SUPPORT,
PLACEMENTS &
PROCUREMENT

Business Support within Children’s Social Care providers administrative support for all the services
in the division. These are Referral & Assessment; Family Social Work; Looked After Children;
Adoption; Leaving Care; Fostering; Placements & Procurement; Quality Assurance; and Children
with Complex Needs. As well as the Business Support teams based in the front line services, there
are currently 2 specialist teams providing centralised functions in compliance with separation of
duties under Financial Regulations. This contributes to safeguarding functions by freeing up and
supporting Social Workers to concentrate on direct work with vulnerable children and families. A
review of business support across the Children’s Social Care Division is being undertaken to
examine the opportunities for reshaping current activities and identifying opportunities for sharing
resources with other support teams in the Council such as Finance and Adult Social Care. These
are in addition to the savings in the previous two years of £575k.

100.0

50.0

CYPO6
(new)

LOOKED AFTER
CHILDREN,
LEAVING CARE &
ADOPTION
SERVICE

The leaving care team currently works with children looked after from the age of sixteen. We
propose to make savings and improve the performance of the service by changing the way the
service functions. Currently there are three Looked after Children's Teams that work with looked
after children from roughly the age of 5 to 16 at which point they transfer to one of three Leaving
Care Teams who provide support as the young person leaves care and onwards until they are 21
(or 25 if they are in full time education). Feedback from the Children in Care Council is that they
would prefer not to have the change of worker at the age of 16. We are therefore proposing to
have Looked after Children Teams that will take young people through to 25 where required. We
can achieve this with 5 teams and delete one team manager post. The staff from that team will be
spread out amongst the remaining teams.

0.0

100.0




We are required by legislation to provide contact between some parents and their children who
have been removed from their care. Some of these contacts need to be supervised and most of
which are ordered by the courts. The Supervised Contact is provided in a safe place due to risks
that the parent may still pose to the child. There is a requirement in many instances for birth
parents to have contact with their children in Local Authority care. Contact will often be in secure
environments, as some parents have difficult and challenging behaviour. We currently use
specialist agencies to carry out this contact, who charge for premises. It is proposed to use Council
premises in the future which will mean we will save on the cost of premises hire and/or alternatively
negotiate significant reduction in room hire and other costs. This is in addition to the previous
savings of £200k in 2013/14 and already offered for 2014/15. The proposed saving relates to a

CYPO7 reduction in costs of premises where the service is located. Any new competitive procurement
(new) | CONTACT would seek bids which could reduce this cost. 0.0 50.0
The Adoption Support Team provide services and advice to families to assist them through the
process of adoption and as required by legislation provide contact between some parents and their
children who have been removed from their care. We are currently implementing the Government
reforms on adoption. The reforms included an equalisation of the assessment fee to £27k.
Historically the adoption service has not targeted Lewisham families for adoption as many
] Lewisham LAC cannot be placed in the borough in close proximity to their birth families. The
SE equalisation and reform grant monies mean we now have capacity to recruit surplus adopters,
@ including Lewisham based adopters, that other Local Authorities and Adoption agencies can use.
@CYPO8 | ADOPTION We anticipate that this will generate income for Lewisham. £50k represents two additional
= new ) | SERVICE assessments. 50.0
8 Meliot Road is a family centre that provides support to vulnerable families and Court reports as part
of care proceedings. It is planned to sell surplus capacity to other London boroughs. Where the
CYPQ9 | FAMILY SOCIAL Council sells surplus capacity to other London Boroughs, officers must ensure that there are
(new) | WORK appropriate contractual arrangement in place to cover such arrangements. 15.0
This budget covers delivery of the Family Information Service which provides a directory that
CYP10 | EARLY covers early years and childcare, employment and training, health, housing, safety and other
(new) | INTERVENTION issues. The database has been brought in house and the cost has therefore reduced. 45.0
Targeted Family Support contract - the commissioned Targeted Family Support contract provides
support to vulnerable families. Through better commissioning arrangements savings can be made
as we have managed the current Targeted Family Support contract to deliver to a lower value than
CYP11 | EARLY initially set aside for the contract. This saving does not reduce the number of families who will
(new) | INTERVENTION receive support from the service, but does reduce the unit costs. 100.0
Service Level agreements are offered by the council to schools and cover a variety of support
services. Schools pay for these services from their delegated formula budgets. The services
continue to trade successfully with schools and are increasing the value of services they are
CYP14 | SERVICES TO selling. It is proposed to increase the range of charges to schools and to ensure that all services to
(new) | SCHOOLS schools by the council are achieving the 15% overheads recovery. 75.0 75.0




The Directorate has been operating a Departmental Expenditure Panel (DEP) for two years in order
to challenge the need for all proposed expenditure. The departmental expenditure panel consists of
the Executive Director of Children of Young People and the Directorate's Head of Resources. It
approves all expenditure that is incurred within the Directorate before it is committed unless it is an
emergency or is for a social care / special educational needs placement. This has already resulted
in in-year savings through stopping expenditure or budget holders deciding it is no longer

CYP15 | COST appropriate to undertake expenditure in these austere times. It is proposed now to take out of the
(new ) | REDUCTIONS budget the savings that have been delivered in the past through this process. 216.0
Total 2014/15 Agreed Savings — Children & Young People 5,637.0 275.0

TGT abed




2014/15 2015/16
Ref. Service Description of saving £000's £000's
COMMUNITY SERVICES
CULTURAL
SERVICES AND
COMMUNITY &
NEIGHBOURHOO | Reorganisation of Cultural Services and Community & Neighbourhood Development Divisions
COMO1 D DEVELOPMENT | reducing the total number of posts. 250.0
SPORTS
DEVELOPMENT &
LEISURE Reductions to the sports development budget including support to the voluntary sector and a
COMO03 CENTRES further reduction to the budget for the leisure contract with Fusion. 50.0 50.0
SUPPORTING Reduction in Supporting People budget through decommissioning, framework call-off and
L COM12 PEOPLE contract reduction 900.0
U
b}
Q REDESIGN AND
@ CARE Reconfiguration of staffing structure including amalgamation of teams and a reduction in
!j!)OM15 ASSESSMENT duplication and cost of assessments. 1,015.0
N Reducing expenditure on packages and placements by a range of measures including : greater
use of prevention and reablement; use of the care fund calculator; increasing the proportion of
PROVISION AND care delivered by personal assistants. Also retendering and reviewing the use of a number of
COM17 PACKAGES contracts. 930.0
COM18 DAY CARE Review of day care provision (in-house and purchased) and associated transport costs. 900.0
Reducing expenditure on taxis through better route planning and procurement and reviewing
COM19 TRANSPORT the provision of transport to service users who are not eligible for community care services 25.0
CHARGING FOR
NON-
RESIDENTIAL Removing inconsistency in the charging policy, increasing charges for clients with higher levels
COM21 SERVICES of income and capital and improving timeliness of assessments and reassessments. 107.0
REDESIGN AND
CARE Further integration with health partners to eliminate duplication of functions and streamlining the
COM30 ASSESSMENT social care assessment process. 1,000.0




ADULTS WITH

Developing supported housing options for independent living thus reducing the dependency on

PR AT

LEARNING residential care, ensuring value for money in placement costs, and enabling more access for
COM31 DISABILITIES adults with learning disabilities to universal services. 125.0
By supporting people to live longer in their own homes there will be a reduction in the need for
SAFEGUARDING, | residential care. However, when people need nursing care this will be funded from health
COM32 QUALITY & RISK monies received by the Council. 225.0
BROADWAY
COM34 THEATRE Reduction in number of theatre staff 60.0
BROADWAY
COM34n | THEATRE Reduction in number of theatre staff 65.0
Reduction in running costs for community services following asset rationalisation proposal put
forward by Resources and Regeneration REGO01. This budget relates to community premises
COMMUNITY that are directly managed by the council and not those managed on the council's behalf by
COM36 CENTRES community associations. 55.0
SUPPORTING Continuation of COM 12 by achieving further savings from the re-commissioning and
COM37 PEOPLE decommissioning of Supporting People services 350.0
) COMMUNITY
2COM38 SAFETY Cessation of the Home Security Service. 35.0
- COMMUNITY
OM39 SAFETY Cessation of funding for PCs following the expiry of current contract. 125.0
This proposal builds on a number of previous savings proposals (Rounds 1 and 2 ) that bring
together adult health and care services. The integrated adult health and care programme has
been established to deliver better outcomes for residents and, through the joining up of health
and care services and the removal of duplication across the whole health and care system
deliver a range of efficiencies. The integrated care programme will focus on developing teams
of professionals and support services that work closely with GP practices to reduce duplication
COMO1 ADULT SOCIAL of assessment, care planning and management of care. It is anticipated that this way of working
(new) CARE will enable a saving of £2.5m to be made in 2014/15. 2,500.0
Both Leisure contracts include provision for free swims for under 16s and over 60s. In future,
given the recognised benefits of swimming in terms of health and wellbeing, Public Health
funding will be used to deliver this provision going forward as part of their physical activity
CULTURE & programme. The commitment to free swims for under 16s and over 60s will therefore remain
COMO02 COMMUNITY and work in partnership with Public Health will take place to promote the scheme and increase
(new) DEVELOPMENT take up. 200.0




CULTURE &
COMMUNITY
COMO03 DEVELOPMENT -
(new) VCS grants

It is proposed to reduce the £6.4m grants budget by £0.5m. This reduction would be made
against unallocated elements of the grants budget which have arisen due to a reduction in the
required contribution to London Borough Grants Scheme, agreed tapering to some
organisations over the period of the current three year funding programme and a small
reduction to the Investment Fund which provides one off funding to VCS organisations to
support innovation, service change and interventions for organisations in crisis. This saving
proposal will not impact on the small grants, faith fund or existing commitments in the main
grants programme.

500.0

COM04 | SUPPORTING
(new ) PEOPLE

The Supporting People service received an additional amount within its budget to cover inflation
costs. However the Supporting People Framework Agreement and call-off contracts under it
do not provide for indexation or any inflationary increase and this additional funding can
therefore be offered as a saving.

100.0

A~

OMO05 DRUGS &
new ) ALCOHOL

Savings will be delivered through improved efficiencies, following a review of the drug and
alcohol treatment budget and reallocation of resources in line with priorities. The Drug and
Alcohol Action Team is working closely with Public Health in this work. The Tier 4 (detox and
rehab) panel has been overhauled and the Tier 4 provider framework recommissioned. This
ensures improved utilisation of rehabilitation provision and mitigates against the possible
reduction in overall rehab places. In order to support people leaving rehab, an Aftercare
service (TTP) has been commissioned and this ensures wraparound support is provided to
residents following a period in a rehab setting. This results in sustained recovery. Local
community based detox provision has also been established (also known as ambulatory detox)
which is less costly than a residential rehab placement.

300.0

Total 2014/15 Agreed Savings — Community Services

9,817.0

50.0




2014/15 2015/16
Ref. Service Description of saving £000's £000's
CUSTOMER SERVICES
BEREAVEMENT
CUS02 | SERVICES To increase fees and charges above inflation 55.0
CUS04 | GREEN SCENE To restructure the pest control servide 35.0
To review of the planting schemes and grass cutting regimes in parks and open spaces across
CUS05 | GREEN SCENE the borough including the creation of more meadow areas in selected parks. 30.0
To reflect the annual 3% efficiency saving built into the Council's Green Space Management
CUS06 | GREEN SCENE contract 77.0
To reduce the Council's Green Space Management contract by 10% as a part of the year 5
+ CUSO7 | GREEN SCENE review (2015/16) 0.0 250.0
\"4
P REFUSE
D COLLECTION Review the number of crews that service the borough from 18 to 17 via replacement of existing
—CUS10 | SERVICE waste vehicles with new, more efficient vehicles 67.0
DT
U1 REFUSE
COLLECTION To cease using Convoys Wharf for the storage of refuse bins and therefore no longer have a
CUS11 SERVICE requirement to pay National Non-Domestic Rates 30.0
STRATEGIC WASTE | To cease discretionary projects carried out by the Environment and Community Development
CUS18 | MANAGEMENT team. This will result in a reorganisation of the team. 160.0
Review of roles and responsibilities within ServicePoint , the service responsible for the delivery
of the Access.Point Service (Corporate One Stop Shop), the Call.Point Service (Corporate Call
CUSTOMER Centre), and the Registration Service (births, deaths, marriages, civil partnerships, and
CUS21 | SERVICES citizenship 25.0
The closure of AccessPoint (Corporate One Stop Shop) on Thursday evenings 5pm to 7pm
CUSTOMER and CallPoint (Corporate Call Centre) on Saturdays 9am-1pm. A management restructure
CUS23 | SERVICES would be required which would mean some minor changes to service delivery. 100.0




The implementation of ASH debtors system will automate many of the sundry debt collection

AT AR

REVENUES and recovery processes. This would mean the Debtors Team could be merged with the
CUS27 | SERVICES Enforcement Team which would result in a review of the management structure. 45.0
REVENUES Review of Council Tax email management resulting to the cessation of personalised email
CUS28 | SERVICES responses. 40.0
HOUSING A review of the Housing Strategy and Development area leading to a proposed combining the
PARTNERSHIP & clienting and policy teams together and the development and regeneration teams, reducing the
CUS31 DEVELOPMENT number of teams from three to two. 100.0
A review of the Housing Needs team to meet Government and legislative changes to housing
CUS32 | HOUSING NEEDS and welfare reform. 128.0
To make better use of hostel accommodation and reducing the use of bed and breakfast
CUS34 | HOUSING NEEDS accommodation. 100.0
SSR : STRATEGY &
O PERFORMANCE
DCUS35 | (CUS) Delayering of the posts within the Strategy and Performance division. 183.0
D
S STRATEGIC
U1 HOUSING & Review of the Regulatory Services across the Strategic Housing and Environment divisions
P> BUSINESS within Customer Services to better align functions, remove duplication and delayer
CUS41 REGULATORY management. 200.0
Reduction of an additional post across the Strategy & Performance division in Customer
Services. Impact: This is linked to saving proposal CUS35 which will result in the delayering
STRATEGY & of post within the Strategy & Performance division. The likely impact on the reduction of an
PERFORMANCE additional post will be:-Less maintenance of the corporate casework system and approach. A
CUS45 | (CUSTOMER) reduction in supplies and services budget. More time away from Change Management work 46.0
250k will be delivered by reviewing the remaining available street sweeping resources and
STREET deploying them as effectively as possible across the borough in order to mitigate the impact of
CUS37 | MANAGEMENT the saving 250.0
This proposal is to restructure the entire Housing Strategy and Programme team to provide a
more streamlined approach by merging three teams into two new units, which will reduce
HOUSING management overheads, duplication and streamline processes. Of the £173k, £100k is already
CUS01 | STRATEGY & accounted for in the 2014/15 budget with a further £73k being a new saving achieved by a
(new) PROGRAMMES wider scale restructure of the team. 73.0




CuUS02
(new)

BECKENHAM
PLACE PARK,
BEREAVEMENT
SERVICES,
REFUSE & FLEET
SERVICES

Staff related cost reviews in Beckenham Place Park, Bereavement Services Refuse & Fleet
Services: £53k.

53.0

CUSO03
(new)

REFUSE

1.Reduction of recycling collection round and vehicle (x1). There are currently 9 rounds. Route
optimisation will allow for one round to be reduced. 2.Income from bin hire charges introduced
this year is exceeding original estimate (housing estate bulk collections). There is no indication
that this will reduce in future years so anticipated income included in base budget.

270.0

CuUS04
(new)

PRIVATE SECTOR
HOUSING UNIT

To transfer the hostels from the HRA to the General Fund. The budget for Hostel
accommodation is currently held in the HRA. In recent years hostels have been used to
increase the Council's stock of temporary accommodation, along side Bed & Breakfast
accommodation (B&B) and Private Sector Leases (PSL), which are charged to the General
Fund. The transfer of Hostels to the General Fund would allow a consistent approach for all
types of temporary accommodation. An effect of this change would be to set the rents for those
in hostel accommodation on the same basis as those in PSL properties. This would have the
effect of increasing income to the Council of £200k.

0.0

200.0

2CUS05
{ new)
N

HOUSING
STRATEGY &
PROGRAMMES

This saving will be achieved by absorbing an element of the expected £516k management
costs within the Council as a result of the fact that now a large number of the properties have
been let the resource requirement to manage the scheme has reduced. The effect of these
efficiencies is a reduction in the expenditure budget for the Milford Towers project of £158k in
this year.

158.0

r e (s

CUSO06
(new)

SERVICE POINT

The Registration Service provides a Nationality Checking Service (NCS) which generates an
income (budgeted income of £116K). The savings proposal increases the income budget by
£200K to £316K. There is a significant demand for the NCS service and this is expected to
continue for the next 2 years. The increase will be achieved by increasing the number of
appointments available and processing more checks. The increased income assumes 60% of
customers will go on to attend a Citizen Ceremony

200.0

CuSo7

(new)

SERVICE POINT

The Call.Point service current delivers an out of hours emergency telephone service. This
savings proposal recommends the outsourcing of the service. Previous recommendations were
to outsource the service to the London wide shared service centre operated by Vangent.
However, concerns were raised over performance and risk. This proposal recommends the
service is put out to tender rather than using the London wide shared service centre. Soft
market testing suggests that once set up £200K savings are possible. Other providers (e.g.
Agilisys and Capita) both deliver for other local authorities who report they are satisfied with the
services received.

100.0

100.0




CuS08 Reorganise Service Point staff to delayer and rationalise management duties. Delete remaining
(new) SERVICE POINT 6 x Sc6 supervisor posts, but create 1 scheduling and planning officer and 2 x Sc4.

25.0

25.0

Total 2014/15 Agreed Savings — Customer Service

2,550.0

575.0

8GT abed




PP AT

2014/15 2015/16
Ref. Service Description of saving £000's £000's
RESOURCES & REGENERATION
ASSET STRATEGY
AND
RNRO1 DEVELOPMENT Asset rationalisation 500.0
ASSET STRATEGY
AND
RNRO2 | DEVELOPMENT Review of contracts relating to Cleaning, Security and Regulatory Risks. 290.0
PROGRAMME
MANAGEMENT AND
RNR04 | PROPERTY Staffing reorganisation Programme Management 20.0
PERFORMANCE
iLo) AND PROGRAMME
DRNRO5 | MANAGEMENT Staffing reorganisation Programme & Project Delivery 37.0
D Staffing reorganisation of the Engineering Team, the Transport Policy Team and the Network
',E}NR06 TRANSPORT Management Team 57.5
o 1. Reduce the Road Safety function to level of TfL funding £44k; 2. Reduce highway winter
maintenance £20k; 3. Reduce the periodic cleaning of road gullies from 2 to 3 years £30k; 4.
Reduce the replacement of festive lights as they become defective and or damaged £21k; 5.
Procure the maintenance of unlit traffic bollards (‘keep left’ signs on traffic islands) via Skanska
RNR0O8 | TRANSPORT at a cheaper rate than than that charged by current contractor £50k 11.0
Reduce costs and/or increased income from the retender of the current JCDecaux contract
RNRO9 | TRANSPORT which ends on 31st December 2014 0.0 47.0
PEOPLE
MANAGEMENT
RNR14 | SERVICES Staffing reorganisation in Personnel & Development (HR) 110.0
PEOPLE
MANAGEMENT
RNR16 | SERVICES Adult Social Care Learning & Development reductions 100.0




PEOPLE

PP AT

MANAGEMENT
RNR17 | SERVICES Reduce the Occupational Health Service £37.4k; Cessation of the EAP Service £41k 58.4
RNR18 | LAW DIVISION Staffing reorganisation Legal Services 23.0
TECHNOLOGY & Staffing reorganisation to make a 25% reduction in the overall staffing budget of the Technology
RNR20 | TRANSFORMATION | & Transformation Division 345.0
TECHNOLOGY & Reduce usage of printing and copying using multi-functional devices (MFDs) (£1m) and closure
RNR21 OPERATIONS of ‘INPRINT’, the Council’'s internal print service (£80k) 540.0 500.0
BUSINESS
RNR23 | SUPPORT Staffing reorganisation Finance Division 300.0
1. The Payroll Service (£65k) - cost recovery charges to schools; 2. External Audit Fees (£50k)
- arising from new national arrangements; 3. The Wearside Postal Service (£30k) - review of
O BUSINESS postage and internal post service between Town Hall and Wearside; 4. Contingency budget
DRNR24 | SUPPORT (£200Kk) - reduction in budget for directorate-wide once off pressures arising during the year 50.0
-
D
= Regeneration &
D) Asset Management Reduce the Regeneration & Asset Management budget by £550k to be split between staffing
:??NR31 (Division Wide) and asset rationalisation. 550.0
Reduction in staffing budget. This will have an impact on employee relations and whether there
are specifically designated roles to lead on employee relations. The social care training function
PEOPLE redesigns learning interventions to support social care workers. The number of programmes
MANAGEMENT designed to support changes in care provision would reduce although they would be kept above
RNR36 | SERVICES a statutory minimum. 70.0
INSURANCE & RISK | A review of the service structure and reduction in the general administration costs for the
RNR38 | GROUP M Insurance & Risk service. 35.0
This proposal represents a saving on the salaries budget for 2014-2015. This is in addition to a
proposed saving in Round 1 of £345,000 on the salary budget for the same period. At present
there are a number of labour-intensive projects that are scheduled for completion around the
start of 2014-2015 and, if those projects complete on time, there should be some easing of
pressure on the Division. However, there are risks that projects may overrun. In any event,
TECHNOLOGY & even if projects are complete, the reduction in staff numbers will affect the ability to rapidly
RNR41 | TRANSFORMATION | deliver support for line-of-business systems and any new or emerging projects. 150.0




RNR42

HEAD OF
BUSINESS
SUPPORT

Further savings will be identified from the teams that deal with the financial processes
associated with adult social care (payments, financial assessment, invoicing and administration
of client finances). Efficiencies will be identified through information exchange with other
agencies and through better use of IT systems. Additionally, more income will be generated
from clients for whom the council is acting as deputy.

100.0

RNR43

HEAD OF
BUSINESS
SUPPORT

The total 2012/13 staffing budget is £4m. This is split into - £0.7m for statutory accounting
services and central co-ordination of corporate process, such as budgeting; - £1.6m for
management accounting and business advice to services; -£1.7m for transactional financial
services including payroll and pensions. In February 2011 the Council agreed savings of c£1m
within the Finance service. Following that decision, a reorganisation was implemented and the
new structure is now operating effectively. Further savings of £300k were put forward for
2014/15 - through Round 1 of this year’s budget savings process - following work to further
rationalise administrative and other processes and to complete the re-implementation or the
Oracle Financials system during 2013/14. This proposal seeks to increase that savings
proposal by a further £200k.

200.0

NR47

POLICY &
PARTNERSHIPS

£26k saving is proposed from the consultation and engagement budget. A saving of £5k from
the social inclusion supplies and services budget which covers expenditure on social inclusion
and diversity activity. Through negotiating changes to the licensing arrangements for our
performance management system a saving of £35k against the contract cost is proposed. In its
place a local solution will be developed using existing and available software solutions.

35.0

32.5

Y~
LYligVed

RNRO1
(new)

AUDIT & RISK

Internal Audit — review assurance priorities and delivery mechanisms to save £75k. Counter
Fraud — reduce resourcing of Housing Benefit Investigation by £25k (part year) ahead of move
to the Single Fraud Investigation Service under Department for Work and Pensions direction.
This post is currently vacant. Health & Safety — delete the vacant post for administration
support H&S trainee post to save £30k and connect this team to the Business Support Services
review to get administration support centrally.

130.0




The Planning Service introduced a fee of £1,000+VAT for the provision of pre-application
advice on Major planning applications with a £40,000 income target per annum. This fee was
introduced on 1 April 2011. At the time, the Service stated that it would assess the potential to
extend pre-application fees to other planning application categories including householder
applications. It is now proposed that the following pre-application fees will be payable from 1
April 2014: Charges: The fee for a pre-application meeting for a development site will be
£1,500+VAT and £750+VAT for any follow up meeting. In additional, charges will be payable for
presentations to the Council’s Design Review Panel and to cover matters such as the
preparation of a draft legal agreement and reviewing a viability assessment. For householders
and other small scale proposals from local businesses, the charge will be £60+VAT for a written
enquiry and £150+VAT if it involves a meeting. A combination of the increase in fees for pre
application advice on Major planning applications and the new fee for householder and other

RNRO2 small scale scheme pre-application advice should enable an additional £50k to be achieved in
(new) PLANNING fees. 50.0
RNRO3 | POLICY & A saving across the salaries budgets is proposed at £128k for 2014/15 through the deletion of
T hew ) GOVERNANCE 2.4 vacant posts. 128.0
D
@
(DRNR04 Community Budget £100K reduction: reduction in cross partner project work and seek
t; new ) STRATEGY resources for specific projects when needed rather than baseline funding. 100.0
N
Ql'otal 2014/15 Agreed Savings — Resources & Regeneration 3,989.9 579.5
TOTAL 2014/15 AGREED SAVINGS 21,893.9 | 1,479.5
ADDITIONAL EFFICIENCY SAVINGS - AGREED 2,500.0 0.0
ATTENDANCE & WELFARE SAVING — AGREED M&C 12" February 2014 (Appendix Y2) 100.0 200.0
TOTAL - REVENUE BUDGET SAVINGS 24,493.9 | 1,679.5




21

3.1

4.1

4.2

MAYOR AND CABINET

Report Title: Savings Proposals for the Attendance and Welfare Service

Key decision: | Yes

Ward: All

Contributors: | Executive Director for Children and Young People
Executive Director for Resources and Regeneration
Head of Law

Date: 12 February 2013

Purpose of the report

The purpose is to seek the Mayor's agreement to further savings of £300,000 from the
Attendance and Welfare Service, to be implemented in September 2014. The report takes
into account the discussion at CYP Select Committee on 29 January 2014 and addresses
the referrals made.

Policy context

The proposal is consistent with the priorities in the Children and Young People’s Plan 2012-
15, including improving secondary school attendance, closing the achievement gap
between under-achieving groups and their peers, and reducing anti-social behaviour and
youth crime.

Recommendations
It is recommended that the Mayor agrees:

further savings of £300k from the Attendance and Welfare Service (AWS), to be
implemented in September 2014.

Background

In recognition of the Council’'s need to make further savings of £95m over the period 2014-
2018, a review of the AWS is being carried out. The Mayor had already agreed in February
2013 to savings of £200k from the service to be achieved in the 2014/15 financial year.

The requirement on the Council to make further savings following the local government
settlement means that an additional £300k is now being sought from this area.

Schools’ budgets have been protected and areas of activity for which schools have the
prime responsibility are now frequently operated on a traded basis. Some services are fully
charged and others partly charged. In these, some core costs are covered and the rest is

Page 163



4.3

4.4

4.5

5.1

chargeable. Hitherto, the Attendance and Welfare Service has been free to schools (except
for certain activities which Academies are charged for), but given the financial constraints
on the Council, it is now a priority to examine a new model of working. Other local
authorities have charged for aspects of these services for some time. Lewisham has
historically been a high spender on this area of work. Currently, it is the highest spender
per pupil compared with our statistical neighbours, at £33 per pupil, and the proposed
saving would bring us into line with the average spend, which is £17 per pupil.

Borough performance figures show secondary attendance benchmarking low overall
against other London and inner London authorities. Primary performance figures have
been consistently high. Both phases have shown reduced overall and persistent absence
year on year. Persistent absence is defined as missing 15% or more sessions. The latest
figures published by the DfE, for autumn 2012 and spring 2013, showed Lewisham was 4"
best among London authorities in terms of overall absence in primary schools, and 8" best
in terms of primary persistent absence. Lewisham was ranked 24" in terms of secondary
overall absence and 25" in terms of secondary persistent absence. Comparisons were
with 33 London boroughs. Nationally, we are in the top quartile for both secondary and
primary overall absence.

In terms of the impact of interventions by the service, the evidence is that earlier
interventions work better than later interventions. Initial home visits are more effective at
improving attendance than subsequent ones, and first court warnings are more successful
than final ones (this applies to Fixed Penalty Notices as well).

By the time the case reaches prosecution, the success rate in improving a pupil’s
attendance goes down markedly. For completed court cases, only 42% of primary cases
lead to attendance in excess of 90%, and only 18% lead to attendance of over 95%. For
secondary cases only 15% lead to attendance of more than 90%. The view is that if the
case does go to court, interventions have already failed. This does not mean that the LA or
schools should disregard or refrain from prosecuting, as the process itself sends an
important message.

Scope of the service

The Attendance and Welfare Service currently delivers services in three broad areas:
prosecution, casework, and support and challenge to schools. More details are set out
below. Given the current poor performance in terms of secondary attendance, there should
in the reshaped service be more emphasis in that phase on interventions which have
proved effective, as well as development of the more successful practice in primary
schools.

5.1.1 Prosecution services consist of:

o preparing cases for prosecution, including scrutinising the evidence
e  appearing in court to exercise the local authority’s powers

e issuing Fixed Penalty Notices and

o providing training to school staff on preparing and presenting evidence in court.

5.1.2 Casework services involve working with specific groups as follows:

Page 164



Persistent absentees (i.e. pupils whose attendance is 85% or less) or those at risk of
becoming so

Pre-referral work, i.e. work with parents before the school makes a formal referral to
the AWS. This focuses on those pupils who are close to the threshold of referral
(88% attendance or less) or at risk in some way. The work also focuses on the
siblings of pupils who are persistent absentees, in order to prevent those difficulties
becoming entrenched in the family

Tracking the attendance of and working with children from vulnerable groups such as
Looked After Children, children with a Child Protection Plan, with Complex Needs,
those known to the Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC), those who
are previously PA or whose parents were previously prosecuted

Children Missing Education, and those who are not on roll or excluded

Pupils subject to Child Employment regulations.

5.1.3 Support and challenge to schools falls into the following categories:

6.1

6.2

Register checks to monitor performance, compliance with legislation, levels of
attendance, trends, patterns, identifying vulnerabilities, and the pace of improvement
Attendance audits and reviews either a) as requested by schools, to look broadly
across school systems and practices, or b) initiated by the Local Authority for Red
and Amber schools to facilitate monitoring, challenge and support for improvement.
Advice and guidance

Training, on areas such as home visiting, legislation and systems

Co-ordinating networking to share practice and information and for training.

Core and chargeable elements

In order to achieve the proposed savings, it will be necessary to adopt a model in which
there is a ‘core’ service consisting of elements provided free to schools, and other traded
elements which schools can choose to buy in.

The core elements are those functions which the authority has a statutory responsibility to
deliver, or which involve pupils in particular need. The delivery of statutory functions will not
depend on sufficient numbers of schools buying in, though the hope is that many schools
will choose to do so. The activities are set out in the table below. The ‘core’ actvities listed
below represent a reduction in volume from the current workload of the service, particularly
in relation to casework, which will be more targeted.

Activity Suggested category

Prosecution

Preparing cases for court Core

Court appearances Core

Issuing Fixed Penalty Notices Chargeable

Training on court procedures Core

Casework

Pre-referral work on pupils at risk Chargeable

Persistent absentees Chargeable except for vulnerable
groups such as Looked After Children,

Page 165



6.3

6.4

6.5

children know to MARAC, children with
a Child Protection Plan, children with
Complex Needs, those who were
previously PA and those whose parents
were previously prosecuted.

Tracking attendance of vulnerable Core
groups (LAC, MARAC, CPP,
Complex Needs, previously PA,
previously prosecuted)

Children Missing Education, not on Core

roll and excluded

Pupils subject to Child Employment Core, though need to explore what
regulations elements may be chargeable to parents

Support and challenge to schools

Register checks to monitor Core but schools able to purchase
performance more frequent checks

Advice and guidance Chargeable

Training (e.g. legislation, systems, Chargeable

home visiting)

Co-ordinating the secondary network Chargeable

Attendance audits Chargeable

a) requested by schools

b) for Red and Amber schools Core

The current number of Persistent Absentee (PA) pupils is 991, split fairly evenly between
primary and secondary schools. Pupils in the priority groups referred to above constitute
30% of this total. The activities of the core restructured service will be focused on tracking
and monitoring these groups, supporting and challenging schools in their response to these
needs, and carrying out targeted casework.

Schools are RAG-rated in terms of their overall attendance coupled with an assessment of
their capacity to improve. For example, a school may be rated Green rather than Green
Plus because although its attendance is currently over 95%, it may require more support or
input to achieve this. A small number of schools are classified Red or Amber and therefore
need particular support and challenge from the central team.

The local authority’s statutory responsibilities are set out in section 9 of the report. These
make clear, in line with the DfE August 2013 guidance, that the authority is responsible for
activities relating to prosecution. There are also statutory responsibilities for child
employment, entertainment licenses and removing pupils’ names from school rolls. The
proposals in this report are intended to enable the AWS still to carry out its role in relation to
the authority’s statutory duties. The authority also has an overall strategic responsibility for
attendance, which links to its safeguarding duties. Charging for non-statutory elements of
the service will not impact on the authority’s ability to meet its statutory obligations.

Page 166



6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

In terms of prosecution, evidence presented in court must be directly related to the casework
done with the family and not hearsay. The witness presenting the evidence must be the
same person who carried out the work with the family which led to the prosecution. Until
now, this has often been the authority’s Attendance and Welfare Officer, though secondary
schools have dedicated teams for this work and in some cases their staff have been able to
appear in court to pursue the prosecution. The changes proposed in this report are likely to
require staff in more schools to become involved in this activity. Prosecutions can be
complex and labour-intensive and are important, but they only occur in 10-15% of the current
casework managed by the service. Most cases do not proceed to court and we have also
seen that in some instances issuing Fixed Penalty Notices can be more effective than normal
prosecution.

Initial consultation with head teachers suggests that they agree with the core/chargeable split.
Schools value the fact that the service is separate from the school and represents authority.
Referring a case to the AWS can make it easier for the school to preserve its relationship with
the family and, if the school has exhausted other strategies, the AWS becoming involved can
produce quick results.

A draft charging scheme has been shared with schools, containing a number of options,
some of which relate to one-off activities and some which are more comprehensive. One
suggestion is that schools could opt to buy a day or a half-day a week of an AWQ’s time. In
general, schools have said that they would be willing to consider buying in aspects of the
service rather than the full service, but that their own budgets restrict what they may be able
to purchase and small schools would find this more difficult. One possibility is that
collaboratives of schools may pool resources to buy elements of the service. Schools in
other authorities have been buying in services or providing them in-house for some time. Itis
schools’ responsibility to secure high attendance. They are accountable for this and are
judged on their performance by Ofsted.

There is evidence of schools already having some capacity to carry out certain functions in
relation to attendance, in some cases extending to home visiting and gathering evidence for
court, though the AWS specialisms in this area were also acknowledged. Secondary schools
have already developed capacity in this respect, so the considerations for them may be
somewhat different from those for primary schools. There should not be an adverse impact
on schools with higher levels of pupils who qualify for Pupil Premium, as the resources
attached to these pupils will assist in providing support for them. Training will be necessary
for some staff in primary schools and it is likely that this will become a key part of the work
done by the central team.

For comparison, a survey was done of 18 other London authorities, including our 10
statistical neighbours. The 18 were: Barnet, Bexley, Brent, Camden, Croydon, Greenwich,
Hackney, Hammersmith and Fulham, Haringey, Harrow, Havering, Lambeth, Merton,
Newham, Redbridge, Southwark, Tower Hamlets and Waltham Forest. Most had already
carried out downsizing exercises, and buy-back systems for schools were also common. The
smallest staffing complement was in Barnet (3.4 full time equivalent) and the largest was in
Southwark (25). The average across all 18 was 11.5, and it was the same for our statistical
neighbours. Our new service will have 12.5 posts.

The CYP Select Committee, in reviewing paragraph 6.10 above on 29 January 2014,
requested further information be placed in front of the Mayor in relation to staff complements
and pupil numbers. Authorities among our statistical neighbours have chosen to organise

Page 167



6.12

6.13

6.14

7.1

8.1

8.2

8.3

their services in different ways. Croydon has the largest pupil population at 52,909 and has
12.2 staff (0.23 per thousand), and Hammersmith and Fulham has the smallest pupil
population at 18,377 and has five staff (0.27 per thousand). For comparison, Lewisham’s
pupil population is 37,775, which is the fourth largest of the eleven, and the current staffing
complement is 20.6, equivalent to 0.55 per thousand, significantly higher than other ratios.
The proposals in this paper would reduce this to 12.5 posts, or 0.33 per thousand, which is
still higher than other authorities.

In terms of statistical neighbour outcomes, Greenwich and Lewisham are equal first for
overall primary attendance (according to the most recent DfE figures), and currently have
similar complements of staff. Hackney were third and had 11.5 staff (29,152 pupils, 0.30 staff
per thousand). For secondary schools, Hackney were first in terms of both overall and
persistent absence. Hammersmith and Fulham were second in terms of overall absence and
third in terms of persistent absence. Lewisham were 9" in terms of overall secondary
absence and 10" for persistent absence. This shows that, managed well, traded services
with smaller core teams are effective.

In line with our proposals, most teams elsewhere had a core of a team leader, Child
Employment Officer, CME Officer, Court Officer, admin and a number of AWOs. In a number
of cases, as with ours, the service formed part of a wider Early Intervention service using a
multi-agency approach and there were also examples of staff being located in area teams.

In terms of how their services operated, among the examples that authorities reported as
their most effective were: focusing on early intervention, use of fixed penalty notices,
prioritising pupils with attendance of between 85 and 92%, and holding ‘surgeries’ or
‘attendance clinics’ in schools. These strategies are well-established in Lewisham.

Consultation

Consultation began with staff, unions and schools on 13 January 2014 and finished on 10
February. The implementation date will be 1 September 2014. Schools will be asked to
confirm as soon as possible whether they intend to buy into the service, and if the responses
are positive in this respect, it may allow the service to retain some staff who might otherwise
have been made redundant. The implementation timetable will take account of this.

Financial implications

The current cost of the service is £1,087,440. The Mayor has already agreed £200k savings
for 2014-15 and £300k further savings are being proposed to him by officers in this report.

If the savings are agreed, it is expected that the service will reduce from the current 22 staff
(20.6 fte) to 12.5. Depending on the number of schools who choose to buy into elements of
the service, it may be possible to retain one or more posts in addition to these 12.5. A further
three staff are currently funded from the Troubled Families grant, and are not involved in this
review.

Although it will be possible for schools to buy services in from the team, central staff will
remain Council employees, so TUPE_will no ly.
et Page1EBY



9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

Legal Implications

Section 7 of the Education Act 1996 sets out the parent’s/carer’s legal duty to ensure that
their child receives a suitable education by regular attendance at school or otherwise.

Section 443 statutorily requires local authorities to make arrangements to enable them to
establish (as far as it is possible to do so) the identity of children in their area who are not
receiving a suitable education. Section 444 imposes a statutory responsibility on local
authorities to ensure that parents fulfil their legal duty that their child/ren of compulsory school
age receive suitable, efficient full-time education either by regularly attending school or
otherwise.

In accordance with section 446 of the Education Act 1996 legal proceedings in relation to
offences under either section 443 or 444 can only be instituted by a local authority. As
indicated in the report all court proceedings that the local authority are responsible for are
being retained by the local authority.

Section 444A of the Education Act 1996 (inserted by the Anti —Social Behaviour Act 2003)
enables head teachers and other “authorised officers” to issue Penalty Notices to the
parents/carers of absent or truanting pupils from “relevant” schools. This includes maintained
schools, PRUs, Academies and alternative provision Academies. Persons so authorised
include a head teacher of a relevant school, a member of staff of a relevant school who is
authorised by the head teacher to give penalty notices, local authority officers duly
authorised by the local authority to give penalty notices and constables. It is proposed in this
report that this is a service which the local authority will provide to schools on a chargeable
basis.

Child employment responsibilities, which includes issuing of work permits, performance and
chaperone licences are governed by the Children and Young Persons Act 1933 and the
relevant provisions in the Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999 and
the Children (Performance) Regulations 1968. These responsibilities are being retained by
the local authority.

The proposals set out in this report to charge schools for those services which fall outside of
the local authority’s sole legal responsibility are permissible. It would not be possible for the
local authority to seek to charge schools for activities where such responsibility rests solely
with the local authority, e.g. school attendance orders and school attendance prosecutions.
Where however such a charge relates to functions additional or ancillary to those local
authority functions, then the local authority may seek to charge schools for such services,
e.g. school attendance audits.

In terms of employment law there are clear business reasons for the restructuring in
connection with the Attendance and Welfare Service which provide grounds to make changes
to job roles and redundancies as detailed in Paragraph 8.2. The process will be managed in
accordance with the Council’'s Management of Change Guidance to ensure compliance with
relevant legislation

The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality duty (the equality
duty or the duty). It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, disability, gender
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or
belief, sex and sexual orientation.

Page 169



9.9

9.10

9.11

9.12

9.13

10.

10.1

10.2

In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need
to:

¢ eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Act.

e advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic
and those who do not.

o foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those
who do not.

The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be attached to it is a matter
for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and proportionality. It is not an
absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance equality of opportunity or
foster good relations.

The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently issued Technical Guidance on the
Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance entitled “Equality Act 2010 Services,
Public Functions & Associations Statutory Code of Practice”. The Council must have regard
to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and attention is drawn to Chapter 11
which deals particularly with the equality duty. The Technical Guidance also covers what
public authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes steps that are legally required, as
well as recommended actions. The guidance does not have statutory force but nonetheless
regard should be had to it, as failure to do so without compelling reason would be of
evidential value. The statutory code and the technical guidance can be found at:
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-act/equality-act-codes-of-
practice-and-technical-guidance/

The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously issued five guides for
public authorities in England giving advice on the equality duty:

1. The essential guide to the public sector equality duty
2. Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making
3. Engagement and the equality duty
4. Equality objectives and the equality duty
5. Equality information and the equality duty

The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty requirements including the
general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply to. It covers what public
authorities should do to meet the duty including steps that are legally required, as well as
recommended actions. The other four documents provide more detailed guidance on key
areas and advice on good practice. Further information and resources are available at:
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equality-
duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/

Equalities implications

Children and young people in vulnerable groups are more likely to experience difficulties with
school attendance and to suffer further disadvantage as a result.

Vulnerable groups include Looked After Children, Young Carers and those with Complex
Needs, and the structuring of the ‘core’ part of the new service takes into account the need to
track and support the attendance of these pupils. It is not anticipated that there will be a
negative impact on schools which have significant numbers of vulnerable children, as the

Page 170



proposed core part of the service recognises the support that these schools and children
need.

10.3 The Equalities Analysis Assessment is attached.

Contact details

John Russell, Service Manager, Early Intervention and Access
3" Floor, Laurence House, 1 Catford Road, SE6 4RU

020 8314 6639

john.russell@lewisham.gov.uk

Page 171



Equalities Analysis Assessment (EAA)
1. Summary

This document considers how the recommendations made in this report may affect different groups of
young people (specifically those with ‘protected characteristics’) differently, and assesses whether these
effects are positive or negative. It also outlines the activity that the Council will take to ensure that equal
opportunities are promoted and that no group is discriminated against. Protected characteristics are:
Race, Gender, Disability, Age, Sexual Orientation, Religion/Belief, Pregnancy and Maternity, Marriage and
Civil Partnership, and Gender Reassignment.

The overall assessment of this EAA is that whilst the recommendations will affect different groups of young
people differently, overall none of the protected characteristics will be disproportionately or negatively
affected by the proposals.

2. What is an Equalities Analysis Assessment (EAA)

An EAA is the process of analysing a proposed or existing policy, strategy or service to identify what
effect, or likely effect, will follow from its implementation for different groups in the community.
Assessments should consider the effect of a service on Race, Gender, Disability, Age, Sexual Orientation,
Religion/Belief, Pregnancy and Maternity, Marriage and Civil Partnership, and Gender Reassignment. In
addition, EAAs consider whether proposals might contravene human rights. By conducting an EAA,
organisations can consider what good practice could be shared or what measures might need to be taken
to address any adverse impact.

Lewisham’s diversity is one of its key strengths and the Council is committed to supporting an inclusive
and cohesive local community. EAAs support this intention, by identifying how the Council’s services can
actively promote equal opportunities and avoid direct and indirect discrimination.

Scope and structure of the EAA

This document considers the equalities impact of the proposed changes to the Attendance and Welfare
Service. It assesses the effect the recommendations will have on the specifics groups involved as well as
the wider community.

The EAA provides the answers to the following questions:
1. Will the proposed changes affect some groups in society differently?
2. Wil the proposed changes disproportionately affect some groups more than others?
3. What actions can be taken to reduce any negative impact on particular groups?

3. Equalities context
National context

The Equality Act 2010 provides a legislative framework to protect the rights of individuals and advance
equality of opportunity for all. It aims to deliver a simple and accessible framework of discrimination law
which protects individuals from unfair treatment and promotes a fair and more equal society.

On 5 April 2011 the new public sector Equality Duty came into force. The Equality Duty replaces the three
previous duties on race, disability and gender, bringing them together into a single duty, and extends it to
cover age, sexual orientation, religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity, and gender reassignment. The
aim of the Duty is for public bodies to consider the needs of all individuals in their day to day work, in
developing policy, in delivering services, and in relation to their own employees.

This EAA has been undertaken in line with the Council’s legal duties in relation to equality and, as such,
has assessed the potential impact of the proposals in this report across the nine protected characteristics.

The Human Rights Act came into effect in the UK in October 2000. This means that people in the UK can
take cases about their human rights as defined in the European convention on Human Rights to a UK
court. At least 11 Articles of the European Convention on Human Rights have implications for the
provision of public services and functions. This EAA assesses whether the proposed recommendations
are in line with duties established by this Act.

Page 172



Local context

Lewisham’s commitment to promoting equalities is expressed in partnership and at the highest level.
‘Shaping Our Future — Lewisham’s Sustainable Community Strategy’ establishes the overarching principle
for all activity in the borough of ‘Reducing inequality — narrowing the gap in outcomes for citizens.’

This commitment is reiterated in the Council’'s corporate priority to ensure that all of its services are
delivered in an efficient, effective and equitable manner to meet the needs of the community. The
Comprehensive Equalities Scheme is Lewisham Council's equality policy. It sets out the Council's
commitment to equality and diversity and incorporates the Council’s specific equality schemes covering
the nine protected characteristics.

3. Restructuring the Attendance and Welfare Service

The Mayor agreed in February 2013 to savings from the service of £200k, to assist in the requirement that
the Council should meet its savings targets. Following the local government settlement, further savings
are now required of £95m by 2017/18. The service also operates in a context where schools’ budgets
have been protected and other services regionally have already restructured. The budget of the
Lewisham AWS has increased in the last three years to become the most expensive per pupil among its
statistical neighbours. Performance in primary attendance has improved consistently over the years and
in Spring 2013 was the best among statistical neighbours. Secondary attendance, while having also
improved consistently, does not compare so well, being o™ out of 11 statistical neighbours for overall
absence, and 10" for persistent absence.

The vision of Lewisham’s Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership is as follows: ‘Together with
families, we will improve the lives and life chances of children and young people in Lewisham’. This vision
underpins our aims for the service.

Aims of the service and the restructure

The key aims of the service is to support schools in improving attendance, and to safeguard children in
doing so. In restructuring, the service aims to fulfil its statutory duties, key among which are those for
prosecution and child employment, and the underlying safeguarding responsibilities. While restructuring, it
also aims to protect vulnerable groups, such as those with Child Protection Plans, with Complex Needs,
Looked After Children, those known to MARAC, those previously persistently absent, and those previously
the subject of prosecution.

4. Summary of local needs

Lewisham is the second largest inner London borough. There are approximately 274,900 residents, and
there is a younger age profile than the national average with 24.5% of residents aged 0-19 compared to
23.8% nationally. There was a 34% increase in births in Lewisham between 2000/1 and 2009/10.
Deprivation is increasing in Lewisham. The 2010 Index of Multiple Deprivation ranked Lewisham 31st out
of 354 local authorities in England compared to a rank of 39 in 2007. Of the specific indicator of income
deprivation affecting children, 35 (of 166) of Lewisham’s super output areas are in the 10% most deprived
in the country. It is estimated that 20,355 0-18 year olds live in poverty.

The children and young people’s population is ethnically diverse. Whilst 40% of our residents are from
black and minority ethnic backgrounds, this rises to 77% amongst our school population, with 170 different
languages spoken by our pupils. There is a wide range of religions represented amongst Lewisham'’s
children and young people’s population. According to the 2012 Schools Census, 371 14-19 year olds and
862 8-19 year olds in Lewisham have a statement of special educational needs (SEN).

Good attendance at school is key to good attainment and reducing achievement gaps, and is also a
protective factor for children and young people, and the work that the Attendance and Welfare Service
does is instrumental in achieving these outcomes. Although Lewisham performs relatively well in relation
to our statistical neighbours at primary level, the challenges at secondary level remain significant. In
addition, the restructure will mean there are greater expectations on schools to deliver support to parents
in terms of attendance. They have resources to do this, though they will also be able to buy back into the
central service if they wish. The role of the central service will focus more on supporting and challenging
schools in fulfilling those responsibilities.

5. Equalities Analysis Assessment for restructuring the service

Page 173



The importance of ensuring that children attend school well is recognised across the Children and Young
People’s partnership. Responsibilities are shared in this area between parents, schools, the community,
and the authority and its partners. Despite the constraints on resources, there must be sufficient capacity
to ensure young people’s safety and wellbeing.

The overall assessment of this EAA is that these proposals provides sufficient protection to meet the
needs of groups with protected characteristics. The recommendations will not have a disproportionate
impact on any group with a protected characteristic. This assessment also concludes that these
recommendations do not contravene the Council’s duties under the Human Right Act.

SEN/ disability

Analysis of the current caseload held by the service shows that 17 of the 230 primary and special school
cases relate to pupils with statements of special educational needs. This is equivalent to 7.4%, and is
higher than the proportion of the pupil population which has statements. Good attendance is a particular
challenge for special schools, given factors such as recurring illness. The restructuring recognises the
need to target pupils with complex needs for support. The view is that the proposal does not
disproportionately disadvantage this group and the planned approach will prioritise them in terms of
tracking and monitoring.

Age

The current service is weighted towards supporting primary and special schools, and this bias is likely to
continue, but with less emphasis in future. Secondary schools already take responsibility for their own
attendance, with support from the authority in certain defined and targeted areas, such as the issue of
penalty notices, or year 6 to 7 transition. In future, Attendance and Welfare Officer (AWO) posts are likely
to be more generic, and there may be greater flexibility in terms of staff switching between working with
families with children in different phases. Given the distribution of resources, it is not felt that any age
group is disadvantaged by the proposal.

Faith

Church schools generally have very good attendance. The service RAG-rates schools in terms of their
attendance, and of the 21 ‘Green +’ primary schools (with attendance of over 96%), 12 are faith schools.
At secondary level, there are six schools with attendance over 95%, of which three are faith schools. Not
all children attending church schools are members of the faith, though most are. There is no reason to
suppose that the restructure will impinge on the successful work that these schools currently do. The
proposals focus on pupils rather than schools, and it is not felt that they disadvantage any group in faith
terms.

Gender

The current caseload of the service has 98 cases involving girls and 132 boys (42.6% compared with
57.4%). While not conclusive, this matches other data showing that boys are excluded more often than
girls and as a consequence have more issues with attainment and engagement. Data is currently limited
in terms of the prevalence of boys and girls in the priority groups listed above, but as the service intends to
target these groups, the view is that the proposals do not disproportionately affect one gender over
another.

Ethnicity

The largest group currently worked with by the service is White pupils (41.7%), followed by Black pupils
(27.8%), and Mixed race (21.3%). Also on the caseload are smaller groups of Asian pupils (2.6%),
Travellers (2.2%) and Others (1.3%). There are also 3% of cases where pupils’ ethnicity is unknown.
The service works predominantly with Lewisham schools rather than Lewisham residents (i.e. as the pupil
is the responsibility of the school, the service does not do extensive work with Lewisham residents
attending out-borough schools). As 77% of Lewisham’s school population come from BME groups, there
is over-representation of White pupils in the referrals made to the service. This has historically been the
case and, apart from ethnicity, may be related to issues such as worklessness and generational
expectations. The service will need to monitor the continuing impact on young people from different ethnic
backgrounds and take steps to ensure services are delivered to under-represented groups.

Sexual orientation

The service does not collect data on this area and currently it is not possible to match it against the
caseload of clients. If LGBTQ pupils are more likely to appear in the priority groups listed above, they will

Page 174



be targeted for tracking and monitoring by the service. It will be important for the service to understand
whether factors such as bullying of pupils in this category is having an impact on attendance.

6. Decision

Following the analysis of the data the following decision has been opted for:

To continue with the proposal but with actions to minimise any negative impact on groups with protected
characteristics and ensure compliance with the Equality Duty. These are listed below.

7. Actions that will be taken to ensure compliance with the Equality Duty

1. Review the impact of the restructure on protected categories from the implementation of the new
service in September 2014, and regularly thereafter.

2. Improve the collection of data on groups worked with by the service, to establish their prevalence in
vulnerable categories and to establish better profiling.

3. Ensure that data is available longitudinally, to improve understanding of the impact of the work carried
out by schools and the authority.

Page 175



APPENDIX Y3

Ready Reckoner for Council Tax 2014/15

Increase

Budget Council / GLA Total Increase /
Requirement Tax Decrease Precept Council Decrease
Tax
(Band D) (Band D) (Band D)
£'M £ % £ £ %

2013/14 284.632 1,060.35 0.00% 303.00 1,363.35 0.00%
266.884 1,044.44 -1.50% 299.00 1,343.44 -1.46%

267.276 1,049.75 -1.00% 299.00 1,348.75 -1.07%

267.668 1,055.05 -0.50% 299.00 1,354.05 -0.68%

Recommended 268.062 1,060.35 0.00 299.00 1,359.35 -0.29%
268.452 1,065.65 0.50% 299.00 1,364.65 0.10%

268.844 1,070.95 1.00% 299.00 1,369.95 0.48%

269.236 1,076.26 1.50% 299.00 1,375.26 0.87%

269.432 1,078.91 1.75% 299.00 1,377.91 1.07%

Page 176




APPENDIX Y4

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S STATEMENT REQUIRED UNDER
SECTION 25 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT

This statement makes reference to the 2014/15 Budget Report to Mayor & Cabinet
circulated to all Members.

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief Financial Officer to
report to an authority when it is making the statutory calculations required to determine
its Council Tax. The Authority is required to take the report into account when making
the calculations. The report must deal with the robustness of the estimates included in
the budget and the adequacy of the reserves for which the budget provides. This
Statement also reflects the requirements of CIPFA’s current Local Authority Accounting
Panel (LAAP) Bulletin 77 on ‘Local Authority Reserves and Balances’.

Generally

The Council has already reduced its revenue budget by £82m since May 2010. The
Strategic Financial Review was reported to Mayor & Cabinet in July 2013 with an update
reported in November 2013. This set out that an estimated £85m of savings is required
from 2014/15 to 2017/18 over and above savings already agreed. Following the
confirmation of the Local Government Finance Settlement on 5 February 2014, the
savings required for this period has increased to £95m. This is towards the upper end of
officers’ initial estimates.

The Council continues to take a prudent approach towards financial planning. During
these times, the Council will need to weigh up the need to hold reserves and balances
whilst going through this period of increased risk to the delivery of the budget versus the
need to use reserves and balances when considering the need to set a balanced budget.

In setting this budget, the Council will maintain a level of corporate balances and
reserves, which should be adequate to deal with any risk associated with the delivery of
this budget. That said, there are still considerable risks associated with delivering the
scale of savings required. The Chief Financial Officer recommends that the un-
earmarked reserves are held at the current level of £12.0m. Should the need arise to call
upon these reserves during the year, consideration should be given to replenish these as
soon as possible.

In addition, the Council holds General Earmarked Reserves which total £60.2m. These
funds are earmarked for various future planned spending and to undertake one-off
projects or work that does not happen every year. Examples include, the transitional
fund, redundancy provisions, elections, replacement of obsolete equipment and
contractual claims that may become due (e.g. dilapidations that may become payable on
properties we lease from the private sector to provide housing).

Page 177



Pressures on the Council's Revenue Budget in 2014/15 include:

The 2014/15 budget pressures have been outlined in the main budget report. These
include a range of pressures, some of which cannot be quantified at this stage and
include: demographic pressures for children and adult services; redundancy and further
potential changes to funding as a result of government legislation and reform. The
Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration will either transfer some of these funds
to the directorate budgets where quantifiable and not thought to be directly controllable at
the start of the year or hold them corporately until such time when the pressure emerges
during the year.

Budget assumptions
Inflation

In the Autumn Statement announced by the Chancellor, it was confirmed that public
sector pay awards would notionally increase by 1%. For financial planning purposes, the
Council has previously assumed an average pay inflation of 1% per annum, which
equates to approximately £1.1m. The Council applies a notional non-pay inflation level
of 2.5% per annum. This is subject to efficiency measures in 2014/15.

Moving forward, officers will need to closely monitor inflationary pressure on contracts,
which in many cases, continues to outstrip the current level of Consumer Prices Index
(CPI) inflation. In particular, this is for those areas which are viewed as being
particularly sensitive to contract price changes, such as Adult Social Care and the range
of PFI contracts which the Council is currently engaged with.

Budget Risks

Capital Programme

The risks related to the Capital Programme are managed programme-wide and scheme
by scheme. Officers review anticipated capital receipts quarterly, the last review was
carried out in January 2014. Projections are updated and reported on regularly to Mayor
& Cabinet.

Service volume pressure

The Council continues to maintain a medium term financial strategy and corporate
budget model by which it attempts to identify and anticipate financial pressures.

With regards to the overall financial standing of the authority, issues concerning the level
of borrowing and debt outstanding, are considered in section ten of the 2014/15 Budget
Report.

Business Rates Retention

This is the second local government finance settlement under the new ‘business rate
retention’ funding system. There is now an increased emphasis on local authorities to
grow their business activities locally. Councils will retain 30% of locally collected

Page 178



business rates, but will have no discretion to vary the rateable value or ‘multiplier’, (i.e.
the pound charged per rateable value).

In this new funding system, 40% of the settlement funding will come from business rates
retained locally by the sector. Each local authority is given an indicative target of
business rates yield against which growth will be judged. Councils will be able to retain a
share of any growth in business rate income and therefore have a direct financial
incentive to promote growth in their local economies. Conversely, any decline in
business rates will also be borne by the authority and will negatively impact upon income
levels.

Savings

It should also be acknowledged that there remains some risk that a given budget saving
may not be delivered. This is managed currently through the budget monitoring process
and updates will be given in budget monitoring reports. The extent to which any
anticipated savings are not delivered adds to future pressures.

The Council has embarked upon the Lewisham Future Programme which will look at
shaping the Council over the medium term. This Programme focuses on the areas of
greatest spend, recognising that in the fourth consecutive year of spending reductions
even greater innovation, focus on the customer, and cross-cutting thinking will be
required to deliver savings, whilst attempting to minimise the impacts on residents and
customers of Lewisham.

The Programme comprises a mixture of thematic and cross-cutting reviews. Some
examples of these include: smarter assessment arrangements and deeper integration of
social & health care, including public health; sharing services with other Councils and
bodies; a strategic review of income generation and the drive to make further reductions
in management and corporate overheads.

Control

Going forward into 2014/15, it will be even more important that the Council continues to
maintain its strong systems for monitoring expenditure and controlling expenditure
through Directorate cash limits.

Given the significant level of savings/cuts to be delivered in 2014/15 and beyond, and the
unprecedented level of savings required for 2015/16, it will become increasingly
important to monitor the progress being made in implementing these savings carefully
during the year.

During 2013/14, the Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration re-affirmed
instructions to budget managers to ensure tight spending on budgets and focus on
ensuring the Council’s budget position remains within budget at the year-end.

For 2014/15, the budget holders within Directorates are again being requested to

endorse their cash limits before the start of the financial year and provide confirmation of
an ability to deliver their services within the agreed allocated resources. Consideration

Page 179



will also need to be given to the continued use of Departmental Expenditure Panels and
potentially Corporate Expenditure Panels.

Conclusion

The Council has a robust and sophisticated approach for producing and maintaining its
annual budget. Its financial plans and strategies have contributed to the achievement of
the Council’s corporate objectives.

Tight control will need to be exercised over the budget for 2014/15 given the levels of
risk, as set out earlier in this statement.

Janet Senior — Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration
Chief Financial Officer — Section 151

February 2014

Page 180



APPENDIX Y5

COUNCIL TAX AND STATUTORY CALCULATIONS

Council Tax Calculation

As part of the Localism Act 2011, any Council Tax increases that exceed 2% in

2014/15 will trigger an automatic referendum of all registered electors in the
borough. The statutory calculation for whether the Council is required to hold a

referendum is based upon the ‘relevant basic’ amount of Council Tax, which under
accounting regulations, includes levies. Any final recommendations on Council
Tax levels will need to meet statutory requirements.

To date, Lewisham has received estimations of its levies for 2014/15. Formal

notifications are expected to be received week commencing 17 February 2014.

Council Tax and Levies

‘Relevant Basic’ Amount of Council Tax 2013/14 2014/15

Council Tax Base 72,199 73,941

Council Tax Requirement with Levy (£) 76,555,149 | 78,403,552

Basic Amount of Council Tax (£) 1,060.35 1,060.35

Increase in basic amount of Council Tax (%) 0%

Levy bodies for Lewisham 2013/14 2014/15 Change
£ £ £

LPFA (estimated) 1,244 988 | 1,243 426 (1,562)

Lee Valley Regional Park (estimated) 236,933 232,194 (4,739)

Environment Agency (estimated) 169,511 170,425 914

Total Levies 1,651,432 | 1,646,045 (5,387)

The term “relevant basic amount of council tax” is defined in section 52ZX of the
1992 Act (inserted as above and amended by section 41(1) and (9) to (13) of the

Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014).

Page 181




Statutory Calculations

1) It be noted that at its meeting on 22 January 2014, the Council calculated the
number of 73,941.2 as its Council Tax base for 2014/15 in accordance with the
Local Authorities (Calculation of Taxbase) Regulations;

2) The following amounts be now calculated by the Council for the year 2014/15
in accordance with the Local Government Finance Act 1992:

a. £1,061,052,900 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council
estimated aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates for gross
expenditure, calculated in accordance with Section 31A (2) of the Act;

b. £792,990,900 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates
for income, calculated in accordance with Section 31A(2) of the Act;

c. £268,062,000 being the amount by which the aggregate of 3(a) above exceeds
the aggregate of 3(b) above, calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section
31A(4) of the Act, as its General Fund budget requirement for the year;

d. £187,349,823 being the aggregate of the sums which the Council estimates will
be payable for the year into its General Fund in respect of redistributed non-
domestic rates and Revenue Support Grant, increased by the amount which the
Council estimates will be transferred in the year from its Collection Fund to its
General Fund in accordance with Section 97(3) of the Local Government Finance
Act 1988. This includes a settlement funding assessment adjustment of £900,000;

e. £80,712,177 being the residual amount required to be collected from Council
Tax payers. This includes the surplus on the Council’s Collection Fund of
£2,308,625.

f. £1,060.35 being the residual sum at (e) above (less the surplus on the Collection
Fund), divided by the Council Tax base of 73,941.2 which is Lewisham’s precept
on the Collection Fund for 2014/15 at the level of Band D:;

Band Council Tax
(LBL)

£
706.90
824.72
942.53
1,060.35
1,295.98
1,531.62
1,767.25
2,120.70

I OmMMmMOoO|m >

Page 182



Being the amounts given by multiplying the amount at (f) above by the number
which, in proportion set out in Section 5(1) of the Act, is applicable to dwellings
listed in a particular valuation band divided by the number which in that proportion
is applicable to dwellings listed in valuation Band D, calculated by the Council in
accordance with Section 36(1) of the Act, as the amounts to be taken into account
for the year in respect of categories of dwellings listed in different valuation bands;

3) It be noted that for the year 2014/15, the Greater London Authority is currently
consulting on the following amounts in precepts issued to the Council, in
accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as
amended), for each of the categories of dwellings shown below:-

Band GLA

Precept
£
199.33
232.56
265.78
299.00
365.44
431.89
498.33
598.00

IT|IOMMmMOoO0|m >

4) Having calculated the estimated aggregate amount in each case of the amounts
at 2) (f) and 3) above, the Council, in accordance with Section 30(2) of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992, assumed the following amounts as the amounts of
Council Tax for the year 2014/15 for each of the categories of dwellings shown
below:-

Band Total Council
Tax
(LBL & GLA)
£
906.23
1,057.28
1,208.31
1,359.35
1,661.42
1,963.51
2,265.58
2,718.70

T ®OMMOO m >

Page 183



APPENDIX Y6

Making fair financial decisions

_ Equality and

Human Rights
Commission

Page 184



This guidance has been updated to reflect the new equality duty which
came into force on 5 April 2011. It provides advice about the general
equality duty.

OBIntroduction

With major reductions in public spending, public authorities in Britain are being
required to make difficult financial decisions. This guide sets out what is
expected of you as a decision-maker or leader of a public authority
responsible for delivering key services at a national, regional and/or local
level, in order to make such decisions as fair as possible.

The new public sector equality duty (the equality duty) does not prevent you
from making difficult decisions such as reorganisations and relocations,
redundancies, and service reductions, nor does it stop you from making
decisions which may affect one group more than another group. The equality
duty enables you to demonstrate that you are making financial decisions in a
fair, transparent and accountable way, considering the needs and the rights of
different members of your community. This is achieved through assessing the
impact that changes to policies, procedures and practices could have on
different protected groups (or protected characteristics under the Equality Act
2010).

Assessing the impact on equality of proposed changes to policies, procedures
and practices is not just something that the law requires, it is a positive
opportunity for you as a public authority leader to ensure you make better
decisions based on robust evidence.

1BWhat the law requires

Under the equality duty (set out in the Equality Act 2010), public authorities
must have ‘due regard’ to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination,
harassment and victimisation as well as to advance equality of opportunity
and foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

The protected groups covered by the equality duty are: age, disability, gender
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and
sexual orientation. The duty also covers marriage and civil partnerships, but
only in respect of eliminating unlawful discrimination.

The law requires that public authorities demonstrate that they have had ‘due
regard’ to the aims of the equality duty in their decision-making. Assessing the
potential impact on equality of proposed changes to policies, procedures and
practices is one of the key ways in which public authorities can demonstrate
that they have had ‘due regard’.

Page 185



It is also important to note that public authorities subject to the equality duty
are also likely to be subject to the Human Rights Act. We would therefore
recommend that public authorities consider the potential impact their
decisions could have on human rights.

2BAim of this guide

This guide aims to assist decision-makers in ensuring that:

* The process they follow to assess the impact on equality of financial
proposals is robust, and

» The impact that financial proposals could have on protected groups is
thoroughly considered before any decisions are arrived at.

We have also produced detailed guidance for those responsible for assessing
the impact on equality of their policies, which is available on our website:
Hhttp://www.equalityhumanrights.com/uploaded files/EqualityAct/PSED/equal
ity analysis_guidance.pdUfU

3BThe benefits of assessing the impact on equality

By law, your assessments of impact on equality must:

» Contain enough information to enable a public authority to demonstrate it
has had ‘due regard’ to the aims of the equality duty in its decision-making
» Consider ways of mitigating or avoiding any adverse impacts.

Such assessments do not have to take the form of a document called an
equality impact assessment. If you choose not to develop a document of this
type, then some alternative approach which systematically assesses any
adverse impacts of a change in policy, procedure or practice will be required.

Assessing impact on equality is not an end in itself and it should be tailored to,
and be proportionate to, the decision that is being made.

Whether it is proportionate for an authority to conduct an assessment of the
impact on equality of a financial decision or not depends on its relevance to
the authority's particular function and its likely impact on people from the
protected groups.

We recommend that you document your assessment of the impact on equality
when developing financial proposals. This will help you to:

* Ensure you have a written record of the equality considerations you
have taken into account.

* Ensure that your decision includes a consideration of the actions that
would help to avoid or mitigate any impacts on particular protected

Page 186



groups. Individual decisions should also be informed by the wider context of
decisions in your own and other relevant public authorities, so that particular
groups are not unduly affected by the cumulative effects of different decisions.

* Make your decisions based on evidence: a decision which is informed by
relevant local and national information about equality is a better quality
decision. Assessments of impact on equality provide a clear and systematic
way to collect, assess and put forward relevant evidence.

* Make the decision-making process more transparent: a process which
involves those likely to be affected by the policy, and which is based on
evidence, is much more open and transparent. This should also help you
secure better public understanding of the difficult decisions you will be making
in the coming months.

» Comply with the law: a written record can be used to demonstrate that due
regard has been had. Failure to meet the equality duty may result in
authorities being exposed to costly, time-consuming and reputation-damaging
legal challenges.

Page 187



4BWhen should your assessments be carried out?

Assessments of the impact on equality must be carried out at a formative
stage so that the assessment is an integral part of the development of a
proposed policy, not a later justification of a policy that has already been
adopted. Financial proposals which are relevant to equality, such as those
likely to impact on equality in your workforce and/or for your community,
should always be subject to a thorough assessment. This includes proposals
to outsource or procure any of the functions of your organisation. The
assessment should form part of the proposal, and you should consider it
carefully before making your decision.

If you are presented with a proposal that has not been assessed for its impact
on equality, you should question whether this enables you to consider fully the
proposed changes and its likely impact. Decisions not to assess the impact
on equality should be fully documented, along with the reasons and the
evidence used to come to this conclusion. This is important as authorities
may need to rely on this documentation if the decision is challenged.

It is also important to remember that the potential impact is not just about
numbers. Evidence of a serious impact on a small number of individuals is
just as important as something that will impact on many people.

5BWhat should | be looking for in my assessments?

Assessments of impact on equality need to be based on relevant information
and enable the decision-maker to understand the equality implications of a
decision and any alternative options or proposals.

As with everything, proportionality is a key principle. Assessing the impact on
equality of a major financial proposal is likely to need significantly more effort
and resources dedicated to ensuring effective engagement, than a simple
assessment of a proposal to save money by changing staff travel
arrangements.

There is no prescribed format for assessing the impact on equality, but the
following questions and answers provide guidance to assist you in
determining whether you consider that an assessment is robust enough to rely
on:

* Is the purpose of the financial proposal clearly set out?

A robust assessment will set out the reasons for the change; how this change
can impact on protected groups, as well as whom it is intended to benefit; and
the intended outcome. You should also think about how individual financial
proposals might relate to one another. This is because a series of changes to
different policies or services could have a severe impact on particular
protected groups.

Page 188



Joint working with your public authority partners will also help you to consider
thoroughly the impact of your joint decisions on the people you collectively
serve.

Example: A local authority takes separate decisions to limit the eligibility
criteria for community care services; increase charges for respite services;
scale back its accessible housing programme; and cut concessionary travel.
Each separate decision may have a significant effect on the lives of disabled
residents, and the cumulative impact of these decisions may be considerable.
This combined impact would not be apparent if the decisions were considered
in isolation.

* Has the assessment considered available evidence?

Public authorities should consider the information and research already
available locally and nationally. The assessment of impact on equality should
be underpinned by up-to-date and reliable information about the different
protected groups that the proposal is likely to have an impact on. A lack of
information is not a sufficient reason to conclude that there is no impact.

* Have those likely to be affected by the proposal been engaged?
Engagement is crucial to assessing the impact on equality. There is no explicit
requirement to engage people under the equality duty, but it will help you to
improve the equality information that you use to understand the possible
impact on your policy on different protected groups. No-one can give you a
better insight into how proposed changes will have an impact on, for example,
disabled people, than disabled people themselves.

* Have potential positive and negative impacts been identified?

It is not enough to state simply that a policy will impact on everyone equally;
there should be a more in-depth consideration of available evidence to see if
particular protected groups are more likely to be affected than others. Equal
treatment does not always produce equal outcomes; sometimes authorities
will have to take particular steps for certain groups to address an existing
disadvantage or to meet differing needs.

* What course of action does the assessment suggest that | take? Is it
justifiable?

The assessment should clearly identify the option(s) chosen, and their
potential impacts, and document the reasons for this decision. There are four
possible outcomes of an assessment of the impact on equality, and more than
one may apply to a single proposal:

Outcome 1: No major change required when the assessment has not
identified any potential for discrimination or adverse impact and all
opportunities to advance equality have been taken.

Outcome 2: Adjustments to remove barriers identified by the

assessment or to better advance equality. Are you satisfied that the
proposed adjustments will remove the barriers identified?

Page 189



Outcome 3: Continue despite having identified some potential for
adverse impacts or missed opportunities to advance equality. In this
case, the justification should be included in the assessment and should be in
line with the duty to have ‘due regard’. For the most important relevant
policies, compelling reasons will be needed. You should consider whether
there are sufficient plans to reduce the negative impact and/or plans to
monitor the actual impact, as discussed below.

Outcome 4: Stop and rethink when an assessment shows actual or potential
unlawful discrimination.

* Are there plans to alleviate any negative impacts?

Where the assessment indicates a potential negative impact, consideration
should be given to means of reducing or mitigating this impact. This will in
practice be supported by the development of an action plan to reduce
impacts. This should identify the responsibility for delivering each action and
the associated timescales for implementation. Considering what action you
could take to avoid any negative impact is crucial, to reduce the likelihood that
the difficult decisions you will have to take in the near future do not create or
perpetuate inequality.

Example: A University decides to close down its childcare facility to save
money, particularly given that it is currently being under-used. It identifies that
doing so will have a negative impact on women and individuals from different
racial groups, both staff and students.

In order to mitigate such impacts, the University designs an action plan to
ensure relevant information on childcare facilities in the area is disseminated
to staff and students in a timely manner. This will help to improve partnership
working with the local authority and to ensure that sufficient and affordable
childcare remains accessible to its students and staff.

* Are there plans to monitor the actual impact of the proposal?
Although assessments of impact on equality will help to anticipate a
proposal’s likely effect on different communities and groups, in reality the full
impact of a decision will only be known once it is introduced. It is therefore
important to set out arrangements for reviewing the actual impact of the
proposals once they have been implemented.

6BWhat happens if you don’t properly assess the impact on equality of
relevant decisions?

If you have not carried out an assessment of impact on equality of the
proposal, or have not done so thoroughly, you risk leaving yourself open to
legal challenges, which are both costly and time-consuming. Recent legal
cases have shown what can happen when authorities do not consider their
equality duties when making decisions.

Example: A court recently overturned a decision by Haringey Council to
consent to a large-scale building redevelopment in Wards Corner in

Page 190



Tottenham, on the basis that the council had not considered the impact of the
proposal on different racial groups before granting planning permission.

However, the result can often be far more fundamental than a legal challenge.
If people feel that an authority is acting high-handedly or without properly
involving its service users or employees, or listening to their concerns, they
are likely to be become disillusioned with you.

Above all, authorities which fail to carry out robust assessments of the impact
on equality risk making poor and unfair decisions that could discriminate
against particular protected groups and perpetuate or worsen inequality.

As part of its regulatory role to ensure compliance with the equality duty, the
Commission will monitor financial decisions with a view to ensuring that these
have been taken in compliance with the equality duty and have taken into
account the need to mitigate negative impacts where possible.

Page 191



APPENDIX Y7

Supporting Paper for CUS 07
The current out of hours telephone service

The out of hours telephone service answers 020 8314 6000 overnight, at
weekends and on bank holidays. Last year the service dealt with 30,000 calls
and 97% of these calls were answered in 15 seconds. There are 8 FTE staff
of which 4 are seconded from the day time service.

The service deals with calls for the following services:

Social Services

Noise pollution

Highways

Trees

Emergency Planning

Emergency Services liaison
Animal welfare

Key holders for Council buildings
Dangerous structures
Emergency Schools contact
Lewisham Homes emergency liaison
Glendale

The service acts as a liaison point for the above, taking details and passing
them on to on call officers or day time services the next day. The service also
deals with general enquires from the public calling the number.

Out of hours telephone service - the need for change

The service is expensive as it has been unable to find any economies of scale
with other overnight services operated by the Council. The service is also
vulnerable to a major incident as only 2 people are on duty at any one time. If
there was a peak in calls the service would not be able to cope.

Out of hours telephone service - previous proposals

Previous savings proposals suggested the Council took advantage of the
framework contract set up by London Councils with Vangent which runs a
London Wide out of hours call centre. The proposal was rejected on the basis
of quality and feedback from other boroughs social services emergency duty
teams.

Page 192



Out of hours telephone service - current proposals

To specify the out of hours telephone service and carry out a procurement
process which looks at cost and quality on the open market. Soft market
testing has suggested this could yield significant savings for the same or an
improved level of service.

Out of hours telephone service - are savings possible?

It is difficult to establish an accurate cost of an outsourced service and
therefore savings potential prior to the procurement process. However,
discussions with two leading contractors (not Vangent) providing this sort of
service suggest that significant savings could be made whilst still providing an
equivalent or improved service. The procurement process would test this in a
formal and legally binding way. If the procurement process found that savings
could not be made a decision would be made to stop the procurement
process.

Out of hours telephone service - what about the quality of service?

As more than 2 staff would be on duty (although covering more than one
contract) the service would be more robust and capable of handling peaks in
call traffic. Both of the leading contractors spoken to suggested that quality
would not be an issue if the service was specified properly with well
documented processes and information (e.g. rotas) and that these were kept
up to date.

At this stage it is not clear if the existing 4 staff on out of hours service
contracts would TUPE to the new service as it is unlikely the service would be
operating from within the borough. However, the two leading contractors
spoken to both have sites in London. No TUPE transfer could mean a loss of
local knowledge which has previously been a concern.

Although having a clear specification of service and well documented
procedures are basic requirements that will be provided it does not measure
how an Out of Hours service would cope in the real world where anything can
happen. To try and find how the service copes in the real world two other
councils which have contracted out their out of hours service to two of the
leading contractors were asked for comments. To date only one has
responded saying that the service was achieving the objectives set for the
service in terms of cost and quality. Further information will be made
available as soon as it is received.

Out of hours service — conclusion
The soft market testing shows that the Council could make a saving and still
deliver an equivalent or improved level of service by going through a

procurement process and appointing a contractor to deliver the service.
However, this is not without risk. There are risks in the initial set up of the

Page 193



service, the ability of the Council to keep the information up to date and a
potential lack of local knowledge.

A do nothing option is also not without risk as the service would struggle to
cope with a peak in calls that could occur during a major incident.
Recommendation

That the Council should go through a procurement exercise and rigorously

test the quality issues with colleagues across the Council. If concerns remain
following this the service would not be outsourced.

Page 194



APPENDIX Y8

Lewisham

NOTICE OF DECISIONS MADE AT MAYOR & CABINET

The Mayor made the following decisions on 12 February 2014.

Decisions 1 to 6 will become effective on February 19 2014 unless they are
called in by the Overview & Scrutiny Business Panel on February 18 2014

1. 2014/15 Budget

Having considered an officer report, and presentations by the Cabinet
Member for Resources, the Chair of the Overview & Scrutiny
Committee and a shop steward working in the Attendance & Welfare
Service, the Mayor, from the options available, agreed that

(i) the consideration of the Public Accounts Select Committee of 6
February 2014, incorporating the views of the respective select
committees on the previously agreed revenue budget savings
proposals for 2014/16, be noted;

(ii) having considered the views of consultees on the budget, subject
to proper process and consultation, if required, the following
modifications be made to the published proposals;

Capital Programme

(i) the 2013/14 Quarter 3 Capital Programme monitoring position as
set out in section 5 be noted:;

(iv) Council be recommended to approve the 2014/15 to 2017/18
Capital Programme of £385.9m, while noting that there are no new
proposed major capital projects for this period, as set out in section 5
of this report and attached at Appendices W1 and W2,

Housing Revenue Account

(v) Council be asked to note the consultation report on service

Page 195



charges to tenants and leaseholders in the Brockley area, presented
to area panel members on 19 December 2013, as attached at
Appendix X3;

(vi) Council be asked to note the consultation report on service
charges to tenants and leaseholders and the Lewisham Homes
budget strategy presented to area panel members on 17 December
2013, as attached at Appendix X4;

(vii) Council be recommended to set an increase of dwelling rents
5.05% (an average increase of £4.61 per week), in accordance with
the Rent Restructuring formula;

(viii) Council be recommended to set an increase in the hostels
accommodation charge by 4.66% (or £3.03 per week), in accordance
with the Rent Restructuring formula;

(ix) Council be recommended to approve the following average weekly
increases for dwellings for:

(A) service charges to non-Lewisham Homes managed dwellings
(Brockley);

* caretaking 3.70% (£0.04)

* grounds 3.70% (£0.04)

» communal lighting 3.70% (£0.04)

* bulk waste collection 3.70% (£0.04)

» window cleaning 0.00% (£0.00)

« tenants’ levy No increase

(B) service charges to Lewisham Homes managed dwellings:
* caretaking 3.37% (£0.19)

* grounds 2.50% (£0.02)

» window cleaning 0.00% (£0.00)

« communal lighting -3.40% (-£0.03) decrease

* block pest control -8.89% (-£0.15) decrease

» waste collection 4.21% (£0.02)

* heating & hot water 0.50% (£0.05)

* tenants’ levy No increase

(x) Council be recommended to approve the following average weekly
percentage decreases for hostels and shared temporary units for;

* service charges (hostels) — caretaking etc.; -6.91% (-£6.03)

* energy cost decreases for heat, light & power; -50% (-£5.24)

» water charges decrease; -91% (-£1.88)

(xi) Council be recommended to approve an increase in garage rents
by inflation of 3.2% (£0.25 per week) for Brockley residents and 3.2%
(£0.31 per week) for Lewisham Homes residents;

(xii) the budgeted expenditure for the Housing Revenue Account
(HRA) for

Page 196




2014/15 be £104.0m;

(xiii) the HRA budget strategy savings proposals be approved in order
to achieve a balanced budget in 2014/15, as attached at Appendix X1;

Dedicated Schools Grant and Pupil Premium

(xiv) Council be recommended , subject to final confirmation of the
allocation, that the provisional Dedicated Schools Grant allocation of
£267.6m be the Schools’ Budget for 2014/15 and note that this level of
funding will not be supplemented by a general fund contribution;

General Fund Revenue Budget

(xv) the projected overall variance against the agreed 2013/14
revenue budget as set out in section 8 be noted;

(xvi) the previous revenue budget savings of £24.4m for 2014/15 and
£1.5m for 2015/16, as set out in section 8 of the report and
summarised in Appendix Y1 be approved;

(xvii) after consideration of additional information, the budget saving
proposal of £0.3m for the Attendance and Welfare Service (CYP12,
Savings Report to Mayor & Cabinet on 18 December 2013) be
accepted).

(xviii) after consideration of additional information, the budget saving
proposal of £0.2m be reaffirmed for the out of hours emergency
telephone service as long as no part of the saving is achieved by
paying rates below the London Living Wage (CUS07, Savings Report
to Mayor & Cabinet on 18 December 2013),

(xix) there be an overall savings package of £26.2m for 2014/15 to
2016/17, of which £24.5m relates to 2014/15 and £1.7m relates to
2015/16;

(xx) Council be recommended to agree to fund revenue budget
pressures of £3.6m in 2014/15, allowing the Executive Director for
Resources & Regeneration to hold these resources corporately until
such time that these pressures emerge during the year and it has
been determined that the pressures cannot be contained within the
directorates’ cash limits;

(xxi) the Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration maintain a
fund of £3.9m against which risks and other potential budget
pressures which emerge during the year would be considered for
funding;

(xxii) subject to decisions on the above proposals, agrees to
recommend to Council the following option:

That a General Fund Budget Requirement of £268.062m for 2014/15
be approved, if a 0% increase in Lewisham’s Council Tax element is

Page 197




agreed and the 1% Council Tax freeze grant of £1.0m is accepted.
This will result in a Band D equivalent Council Tax level of £1,060.35
for Lewisham’s services and £1,359.35 overall. This represents an
overall decrease in Council Tax for 2014/15 of 0.29% and is subject to
the GLA precept for 2014/15 being reduced by 1.3% from its existing
2013/14 level, in line with the GLA’s

draft proposal; existing 2013/14 level, in line with the GLA’s draft
proposal;

(xxiii) the Council Tax Ready Reckoner which for illustrative purposes,
sets out the Band D equivalent Council Tax at various levels of
increase be noted as explained in section 8 of the report and set out
Appendix Y3;

(xxiv) the Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration issues
cash limits to all Directorates once the 2014/15 Revenue Budget is
agreed,;

(xxv) Council be recommended to receive the draft Chief Financial
Officer's Section 25 Statement at Appendix Y4;

(xxvi) the draft statutory calculations for 2014/15 be approved as set
out at Appendix Y5;

(xxvii) the prospects for the revenue budget for 2015/16 and future
years be noted;

(xxviii) officers continue to develop firm proposals as part of the
Lewisham Future Programme to help meet the forecast budget
shortfalls in future years;

Other Grants (within the General Fund);

(xxix) Council be recommended to approve the allocation of £0.65m
per

annum of New Homes Bonus over the next ten years 2014/15 to
2023/24, to provide delivery support for housing and school pressures
as set out in section 9

Treasury Management Strategy

(xxx) Council be recommended to approve the prudential indicators
and treasury limits, as set out in section 10;

(xxxi) Council be recommended to approve the 2014/15 treasury
strategy, including the investment strategy and the credit worthiness
policy, set out at Appendix Z3;

(xxxii) Council be recommended to agree the credit and counterparty
risk management criteria, as set out at Appendix Z3, the proposed
countries for investment at Appendix Z4, and that it formally delegates

Page 198




responsibility for managing transactions with those institutions which
meet the criteria to the Executive Director for Resources &
Regeneration;

(xxxiii) Council be recommended to agrees to delegate to the
Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration, authority during
2014/15, to make amendments to borrowing and investment
strategies provided there is no change to the Council’s authorised limit
for borrowing;

(xxxiv) Council be recommended to agree to increase the maximum
deposit limits with the part nationalised banks from £50m to £65m for
each of Lloyds Banking Group and Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS)
Group;

(xxxv) Council be recommended to approve lending to other local
authorities up to a maximum of £56m and for a period of up to one
year;

(xxxvi) the development of the Municipal Bond Agency be noted, and
once fully established, to note its potential as a suitable Agency from
which to borrow as an alternative to the Public Works Loan Board
(PWLB);

(xxxvii) Council be recommended to agree the Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP) policy as set out in section 10;

(xxxviii) the Treasury Management mid-year review attached at
Appendix Z6;
be noted;

(xxxix) the recommendation in relation to further savings of £0.3m
from the Attendance and Welfare Service (AWS), to be implemented
in September 2014 be approved.

Barry Quirk

Chief Executive
Lewisham Town Hall
Catford SE6 4RU

13 February 2014

Page 199



APPENDIX Z1: Interest Rate Forecasts 2014 - 2017

The Council has appointed Capita Asset Services as its treasury advisor and
part of their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest
rates. The following table gives Capita’s central view.

Annual Bank Rate PWLB Borrowing Rates %
Average % (including certainty rate adjustment)
%

5 year 25 year 50 year
Dec 2013 0.50 2.50 4.40 4.40
Mar 2014 0.50 2.50 4.40 4.40
Jun 2014 0.50 2.60 4.50 4.50
Sep 2014 0.50 2.70 4.50 4.50
Dec 2014 0.50 2.70 4.60 4.60
Mar 2015 0.50 2.80 4.60 4.70
Jun 2015 0.50 2.80 4.70 4.80
Sep 2015 0.50 2.90 4.80 4.90
Dec 2015 0.50 3.00 4.90 5.00
Mar 2016 0.50 3.10 5.00 5.10
Jun 2016 0.75 3.20 5.10 5.20
Sep 2016 1.00 3.30 5.10 5.20
Dec 2016 1.00 3.40 5.10 5.20
Mar 2017 1.25 3.40 5.10 5.20

Page 200




APPENDIX Z2: Economic Background

THE GLOBAL ECONOMY

The Eurozone (EZ). The sovereign debt crisis has eased during 2013 which has been
a year of comparative calm after the hiatus of the Cyprus bailout in the spring. The EZ
finally escaped from seven quarters of recession in quarter 2 of 2013 but growth is likely
to remain weak and so will dampen UK growth. Greece remains particularly vulnerable
and continues to struggle to meet EZ targets for fiscal correction. Many commentators
still view a Greek exit from the Euro as inevitable and there are concerns that austerity
measures in Cyprus could also end up in forcing an exit. The question remains as to
how much damage an exit by one country would do and whether contagion would
spread to other countries. However, the longer a Greek exit is delayed, the less are
likely to be the repercussions beyond Greece on other countries and on EU banks. It
looks increasingly likely that Slovenia will be the next country to need a bailout.

USA. The economy has managed to return to reasonable growth in Q2 2013 of 2.5%
yly and 2.8% in Q3, in spite of the fiscal cliff induced sharp cuts in federal expenditure
that kicked in on 1 March, and increases in taxation.

China. Concerns that Chinese growth could be heading downwards have been allayed
by recent stronger statistics. There are still concerns around an unbalanced economy
which is heavily dependent on new investment expenditure, and for a potential bubble in
the property sector to burst, as it did in Japan in the 1990s, with its consequent impact
on the financial health of the banking sector. There are also increasing concerns around
the potential size, and dubious creditworthiness, of some bank lending to local
government organisations and major corporates. This primarily occurred during the
government promoted expansion of credit, which was aimed at protecting the overall
rate of growth in the economy after the Lehmans crisis.

Japan. The initial euphoria generated by “Abenomics”, the huge QE operation
instituted by the Japanese government to buy Japanese debt, has tempered as the
follow through of measures to reform the financial system and the introduction of other
economic reforms, appears to have stalled. However, at long last, Japan has seen a
return to reasonable growth and positive inflation during 2013 which augurs well for the
hopes that Japan can escape from the bog of stagnation and deflation and so help to
support world growth.

THE UK ECONOMY

Economic growth. Until 2013, the economic recovery in the UK since 2008 had been
the worst and slowest recovery in recent history. However, growth stongly rebounded in
2013 - quarter 1 (+0.3%), 2 (+0.7%) and 3 (+0.8%), to surpass all expectations as all
three main sectors, services, manufacturing and construction contributed to this strong
upturn. The Bank of England has, therefore, upgraded growth forecasts in the August
and November quarterly Inflation Reports for 2013 from 1.2% to 1.6% and for 2014 from
1.7% to 2.8%, (2015 unchanged at 2.3%). The November Report stated that: -

In the United Kingdom, recovery has finally taken hold. The economy is growing
robustly as lifting uncertainty and thawing credit conditions start to unlock pent-up
demand. But significant headwinds — both at home and abroad — remain, and there is
a long way to go before the aftermath of the financial crisis has cleared and economic
conditions normalise. That underpins the MPC'’s intention to maintain the exceptionally

Page 201



stimulative stance of monetary policy until there has been a substantial reduction in the
degree of economic slack. The pace at which that slack is eroded, and the durability of
the recovery, will depend on the extent to which productivity picks up alongside
demand. Productivity growth has risen in recent quarters, although unemployment has
fallen by slightly more than expected on the back of strong output growth.

So very encouraging - yes, but, still a long way to go! However, growth is expected to
be strong for the immediate future. One downside is that wage inflation continues to
remain significantly below CPI inflation so disposable income and living standards are
under pressure, although income tax cuts have ameliorated this to some extent. A
rebalancing of the economy towards exports has started but as 40% of UK exports go to
the Eurozone, the difficulties in this area are likely to continue to dampen UK growth.

Forward guidance. The Bank of England issued forward guidance in August which said
that the Bank will not start to consider raising interest rates until the jobless rate (Labour
Force Survey / ILO i.e. not the claimant count measure) has fallen to 7% or below. This
would require the creation of about 750,000 jobs and was forecast to take three years in
August, but revised to possibly quarter 4 2014 in November. The UK unemployment rate
currently stands at 2.5 million i.e. 7.6 % on the LFS / ILO measure.

Credit conditions. While Bank Rate has remained unchanged at 0.5% and
quantitative easing has remained unchanged at £375bn in 2013, the Funding for
Lending Scheme (FLS), aimed at encouraging banks to expand lending to small and
medium size enterprises, has been extended. The FLS certainly seems to be having a
positive effect in terms of encouraging house purchases (though levels are still far
below the pre-crisis level), FLS is also due to be bolstered by the second phase of Help
to Buy aimed at supporting the purchase of second hand properties, which is now due
to start in earnest in January 2014.

Inflation. Inflation has fallen from a peak of 3.1% in June 2013 to 2.2% in October. It is
expected to fall back to reach the 2% target level within the MPC’s two year time
horizon.

AAA rating. The UK has lost its AAA rating from Fitch and Moody’s but that caused
little market reaction.

Capita Asset Services forward view

Economic forecasting remains difficult with so many external influences weighing on the
UK. Major volatility in bond yields is likely to endure as investor fears and confidence
ebb and flow between favouring more risky assets i.e. equities, and safer bonds.

The overall balance of risks to economic recovery in the UK is currently evenly
weighted. However, only time will tell just how long this period of strong economic
growth will last; it also remains exposed to vulnerabilities in a number of key areas.

The interest rate forecasts in this report are based on an initial assumption that there
will not be a major resurgence of the EZ debt crisis, or a break-up of the EZ, but rather
that there will be a managed, albeit painful and tortuous, resolution of the debt crisis
where EZ institutions and governments eventually do what is necessary - but only when
all else has been tried and failed.

Page 202



APPENDIX Z3: Credit Worthiness Policy (Linked to Treasury
Management Practice (TMP1) — Credit and Counterparty Risk
Management)

Annual Investment Strategy

The key requirements of both the Code and the investment guidance are to set an
annual investment strategy, as part of its annual treasury strategy for the following
year, covering the identification and approval of the following:

. The strategy guidelines for choosing and placing investments

. The principles to be used to determine the maximum periods for which
funds can be committed.

. Specified or non-specified investments that the Council will use. These

are high security (i.e. high credit rating, although this is defined by the
Council, and no guidelines are given), and high liquidity investments in
sterling and with a maturity of no more than a year.

Specified Investments: These investments are sterling investments of not more
than one-year maturity, or those which could be for a longer period but where the
Council has the right to be repaid within 12 months if it wishes. These are
considered low risk assets where the possibility of loss of principal or investment
income is small. These would include sterling investments which would not be
defined as capital expenditure with:

1. The UK Government (such as the Debt Management Account deposit facility, UK
treasury bills, or a gilt with less than one year to maturity).

2. Supranational bonds of less than one year’s duration.

3. Alocal authority, parish council or community council.

4. Pooled investment vehicles (such as money market funds) that have been
awarded a high credit rating (AAA) by a credit rating agency.

5. A body that is considered of a high credit quality (such as a bank or building
society

Within these bodies, and in accordance with the Code, the Council has set additional
criteria to set the time and amount of monies which will be invested in these bodies.
This criteria is as described below.

Non-Specified Investments: These are any investments which do not meet the
specified investment criteria. The Council does not currently invest in non-specified
investments.

This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Capita Asset Services.
This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit ratings from
the three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s. The
credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented with the following overlays:

The credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented with the following overlays:
. credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies;
. CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings; and

. sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy
countries.

Page 203



These factors are weighted and combined with an overlay of Credit Default Swap
CDS spreads. The end product is a series of ratings (colour coded) to indicate the
relative creditworthiness of counterparties. These ratings are used by the Council to
determine the suggested duration for investments.

The criteria, time limits and monetary limits applying to institutions or investment
vehicles are:

Max % of
Minimum total Max. maturity
credit criteria/ | investments L
colour band I £ limit per EEEE
institution
DMADF — UK N/A 100% 6 months
Government
UK Government gilts UK. SOVETeIgN | £o0m 1 year
rating
_LI_JK Government UK sovereign | oo 6 months
reasury blls rating
Money market funds | AAA £30m Liquid
Local authorities N/A £10m 1 year
£30m Up to 1year
Yellow* £25m Up to 1 years
Purple £75m Up to 1 year
Term deposits with Blue** £20m Up to 1 year
banks and building Orange £15m Up to 6
societies Red £10m Months
Green™* 0 Up to 100
No Colour days
Not for use
Yellow
Purple
Call accounts and Blue In line with -
: Orange Liquid
notice accounts R the above
ed
Green
No Colour

*for UK Government debt, or its equivalent, constant net asset value money
market funds and collateralised deposits where the collateral is UK
Government debt

**Part-nationalised banks

*** The green limit was formerly for 3 months but the Financial Conduct
Authority set (July 2013) a requirement for qualifying deposits for bank
liquidity buffers of a minimum of 95 days so the green band has been slightly
extended to accommodate this regulatory change.

Page 204



The monitoring of investment counterparties - The credit rating of counterparties
will be monitored regularly. The Council receives credit rating information (changes,
rating watches and rating outlooks) from Capita Asset Services as and when ratings
change, and counterparties are checked promptly. On occasion ratings may be
downgraded when an investment has already been made. The criteria used are
such that a minor downgrading should not affect the full receipt of the principal and
interest. Any counterparty failing to meet the criteria will be removed from the list
immediately by the Executive Director of Resources and Regeneration, and if
required new counterparties which meet the criteria will be added to the list. Any fixed
term investment held at the time of the downgrade will be left to mature as such
investments cannot be broken mid term.

Accounting treatment of investments. The accounting treatment may differ from
the underlying cash transactions arising from investment decisions made by this
Council. To ensure that the Council is protected from any adverse revenue impact,
which may arise from these differences, we will review the accounting implications of
new transactions before they are undertaken.

Page 205



APPENDIX Z4: Approved countries for investments

AAA
. Australia
. Canada
. Denmark
. Finland
. Germany

« Luxembourg
« Netherlands

« Norway
. Singapore
. Sweden

. Switzerland

AA+
. Hong Kong
. UK.
. USA
AA
« Abu Dhabi (UAE)
. France
« Qatar
AA-
« Belgium

. Saudi Arabia

Page 206



APPENDIX Z5: Requirement of the CIPFA Management Code of
Practice

Treasury management scheme of delegation

(i) Full Council
« budget consideration and approval;
« approval of annual strategy.

« approval offamendments to the organisation’s treasury management
policy statement

(ii) Public Accounts Committee

« receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies,
practices and activities;

The treasury management role of the section 151 officer

The $151 (responsible) officer

« Recommending treasury management policy for approval, reviewing
the same regularly, and monitoring compliance;

« submitting regular treasury management policy reports;

« submitting budgets and budget variations;

« receiving and reviewing management information reports;

« reviewing the performance of the treasury management function;

« ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills,
and the effective division of responsibilities within the treasury
management function;

« ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit;
« approval of the division of responsibilities;
« approving the organisation’s treasury management practices;

Page 207



APPENDIX Z6: Treasury Management Mid-year Review Report 2013/14
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

This mid-year review has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code
of Practice on Treasury Management, and covers the following:

« An economic update for the first six months of 2013/14;

. A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual
Investment Strategy;

« The Council's capital expenditure (prudential indicators) and MRP Policy;
. Areview of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2013/14;

« Areview of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2013/14;

« A review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2013/14;

« A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2013/14

2, BACKGROUND

2.1 The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash raised
during the year will meet its cash expenditure. Part of the treasury
management operations ensure this cash flow is adequately planned, with
surplus monies being invested in low risk counterparties, providing adequate
liquidity initially before considering maximising investment return.

2.2 The second main function of the treasury management service is the
funding of the Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide
to the borrowing need of the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow
planning to ensure the Council can meet its capital spending operations.
This management of longer term cash may involve arranging long or short
term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses, and on occasion any
debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost
objectives.

2.3 The primary requirements of The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice are as follows:

1. Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement
which sets out the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury
management activities.

2. Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out
the manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and
objectives.

3. Receipt by the full council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy
Statement - including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum
Revenue Provision Policy - for the year ahead, a Mid-year Review Report
and an Outturn Report covering activities during the previous year.

Page 208



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

. Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and

monitoring treasury management policies and practices and for the
execution and administration of treasury management decisions.

. Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury management

strategy and policies to a specific named body. For this Council the
delegated body is the Public Accounts Committee.

ECONOMIC UPDATE
Economic performance to date

2013/14 economic indicators suggested that the economy is recovering,
albeit from a low level. After avoiding recession in the first quarter of 2013,
with a 0.3% quarterly expansion the economy grew 0.7% in Q2. There
have been signs of renewed vigour in household spending in the summer,
with a further pick-up in retail sales, mortgages, house prices and new car
registrations.

The strengthening in economic growth appears to have supported the
labour market, with employment rising at a modest pace and strong enough
to reduce the level of unemployment further. Pay growth also rebounded
strongly in April, though this was mostly driven by high earners delaying
bonuses until after April's cut in the top rate of income tax. Excluding
bonuses, earnings rose by just 1.0% yly, well below the rate of inflation at
2.7% in August, causing continuing pressure on household’s disposable
income.

The Bank of England extended its Funding for Lending Scheme (FLS) into
2015 and sharpened the incentives for banks to extend more business
funding, particularly to small and medium size enterprises. To date, the
mortgage market still appears to have been the biggest beneficiary from the
scheme, with mortgage interest rates falling further to new lows. Together
with the Government’s Help to Buy scheme, which provides equity loans to
credit-constrained borrowers, this is helping to boost demand in the housing
market. Mortgage approvals by high street banks have risen as have house
prices, although they are still well down from the boom years pre 2008.

Turning to the fiscal situation, the public borrowing figures continued to be
distorted by a number of one-off factors. On an underlying basis, borrowing
in Q2 started to come down, but only slowly, as Government expenditure
cuts took effect and economic growth started to show through in a small
increase in tax receipts. The 2013 Spending Review, covering only
2015/16, made no changes to the headline Government spending plan, and
monetary policy was unchanged in advance of the new Bank of England
Governor, Mark Carney, arriving. Bank Rate remained at 0.5% and
quantitative easing also stayed at £375bn. In August, the MPC provided
forward guidance that Bank Rate is unlikely to change until unemployment
first falls to 7%, which was not expected until mid 2016. However, 7% is
only a point at which the MPC will review Bank Rate, not necessarily take
action to change it. The three month to July average rate was 7.7%.

Page 209



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

CPI inflation (MPC target of 2.0%), fell marginally from a peak of 2.9% in
June to 2.7% in August. The Bank of England expects inflation to fall back
to 2.0% in 2015.

Outlook for the next six months

Economic forecasting remains difficult with so many external influences
weighing on the UK. Volatility in bond yields is likely during 2013/14 as
investor fears and confidence ebb and flow between favouring more risky
assets i.e. equities, and safer bonds.

Downside risks to UK gilt yields and PWLB rates include:

A return to weak economic growth in the US, UK and China causing major
disappointment to investor and market expectations

The Italian political situation is frail and unstable: the coalition government
fell on 29 September.

Problems in other Eurozone heavily indebted countries (e.g. Cyprus and
Portugal) which could also generate safe haven flows into UK gilts.

Weak growth or recession in the UK’s main trading partners - the EU and
US, depressing economic recovery in the UK.

Geopolitical risks e.g. Syria, Iran, North Korea, which could trigger safe
haven flows back into bonds

Upside risks to UK gilt yields and PWLB rates, especially for longer term
PWLB rates include: -

UK inflation being significantly higher than in the wider EU and US, causing
an increase in the inflation premium inherent to gilt yields.

Increased investor confidence that sustainable robust world economic
growth is firmly expected, together with a reduction or end of QE operations
in the US, causing a further flow of funds out of bonds into equities.

Further downgrading by credit rating agencies of the creditworthiness and
credit rating of UK Government debt, consequent upon repeated failure to
achieve fiscal correction targets and sustained recovery of economic growth,
causing the ratio of total Government debt to GDP to rise to levels that
provoke major concern.

The overall balance of risks to economic recovery in the UK is now weighted
to the upside after five months of robust good news on the economy.
However, only time will tell just how long this period of strong economic
growth will last, and it remains exposed to vulnerabilities in a number of key
areas.

Capita Asset Services’ Interest Rate Forecast

Page 210



Sep-13 Dec-13 Mar-14 Jun-14 Sep-14 Dec-14 Mar-15 Jun-15 Sep-15 Dec-15 Mar-16 Jun-16 Sep-16 Dec-16 Mar-17

Bank rate 0.50% 0.50% 050% | 050% 0.50% 050% 050% | 050% O050% 050% 050% |050% O075% 1.00% 1.25%
Rl 750% 250% 250% | 260% 270% 270% 280% | 280% 290% 300% 3.20%|330% 350% 360% 3.70%
(U R:deieY 370% 370% 370% | 370% 380% 380% 390% | 400% 410% 420% 4.30% |440% 450% 460% 460%

RN 440% 440% 4.40% | 440% 450% 450% 460% | 470% 4.80% 4.90% 500%|510% 510% 5.10% 5.20%

CUTRTRCNEI] 450% 440% 440% | 440% 450% 460% 470% | 480% 490% 500% 510%|520% 520% 520% 5.30%

(The Capita Assets Services forecasts above are for PWLB certainty rates.)
Expectations for the first change in Bank Rate in the UK are now dependent on
how to forecast when unemployment is likely to fall to 7%. Financial markets have
taken a very contrary view to the MPC and have aggressively raised short term
interest rates and gilt yields due to their view that the strength of economic
recovery is now so rapid that unemployment will fall much faster than the Bank of
England forecasts. They therefore expect the first increase in Bank Rate to be in
quarter 4 of 2014. There is much latitude to disagree with this view as the
economic downturn since 2008 was remarkable for the way in which
unemployment did not rise to anywhere near the extent likely, unlike in previous
recessions. This meant that labour was retained, productivity fell and now, as the
MPC expects, there is major potential for unemployment to fall only slowly as
existing labour levels are worked more intensively and productivity rises back up
again. The size of the work force is also expected to increase relatively rapidly and
there are many currently self employed or part time employed workers who are
seeking full time employment. Capita Asset Services take the view that the
unemployment rate is not likely to come down as quickly as the financial markets
are currently expecting and that the MPC view is more realistic. The prospects for
any increase in Bank Rate before 2016 are therefore seen as being limited.
However, some forecasters are forecasting that even the Bank of England forecast
is too optimistic as to when the 7% level will be reached and so do not expect the
first increase in Bank Rate until spring 2017.

4, TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL
INVESTMENT STRATEGY UPDATE

41 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2013/14 was
approved by Council on 27 February 2013. There are no policy changes to
the TMSS; the details in this report update the position in the light of the
updated economic position and budgetary changes already approved.

5. THE COUNCIL’S CAPITAL POSITION (PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS)

51 Prudential Indicator for Capital Expenditure

Page 211



This table shows the original estimates for capital expenditure and the

changes since the capital programme was agreed at the Budget.

2013/14 Capital Expenditure Original Latest Forecast
By Service Estimate | Expenditure (to Outturn
£m end of Sept 13) £m
£m
Education 69.1 24 1 50.2
Highways and Regeneration 19.6 4.6 19.3
Housing General Fund 11.7 1.3 7.3
Other General Fund 5.5 0.6 5.5
Housing Revenue Account 44.9 13.7 45.0
Total Expenditure 150.8 44.3 127.3

52

Changes to the Financing of the Capital Programme

The table below shows the expected financing arrangements of the capital
programme. The borrowing required increases the underlying indebtedness
of the Council as measured by the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR),
although this will be reduced in part by revenue charges for the repayment
of debt (the Minimum Revenue Provision). This direct borrowing nheed may
also be supplemented by maturing debt and other treasury requirements.

2013/14 Capital Expenditure Original Latest Forecast

Estimate | Expenditure (to Outturn
£m end of Sept 13) £m
£m

Total Expenditure 150.8 N/A 127.3

Financed by:

Capital Grants 88.9 N/A 72.5

General Resources (Capital

Receipts, Reserves and 54.0 N/A 51.1

Revenue Contributions)

Total Financing Used 142.9 N/A 123.6

Borrowing Required 7.9 N/A 3.7

5.3

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy

A proportion of the Council’s capital expenditure is not immediately financed
from its own resources. This results in a debt liability which must be charged
to the Council Tax over a period of time. This repayment (the Minimum
Revenue Provision - MRP) must be determined by the Council as being a
prudent provision having regard to the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital
Finance.

The MRP is the amount the Council charges to the revenue account and
does not correspond to the actual amount of debt repaid, which is
determined by treasury related issues. The Council continues to apply a
consistent MRP policy which comprises prudential borrowing being repaid

Page 212



over the useful life of the asset concerned and other existing borrowing
being repaid at the rate of 4% of the CFR.

5.4  Changes to the Prudential Indicators for the Capital Financing Requirement,
External Debt and the Operational Boundary

The table shows the CFR, which is the underlying external need to incur
borrowing for a capital purpose. It also shows the expected debt position
over the period, termed the Operational Boundary.

Prudential Indicator — Capital Financing Requirement

We are on target to achieve the original forecast non housing CFR.
However, due to the planned HRA borrowing for 2013/14 not being needed,
the housing CFR will be unchanged from the opening position for 2013/14.

Prudential Indicator — External Debt / the Operational Boundary

2013/14 Prudential Indicators Original Forecast

(as at the end of the year) Estimate Ou::t; n
£k

CFR — non housing 398,529 398,221

CFR - housing 94 112 83,549

Total Capital Financing 492,641 481,770

Requirement

External Debt / Operational

Boundary

Borrowing 198,379 195,410
Other long term liabilities*® 252,197 244 328
I:tal External Debt as at 31 March 447,641 439,738
New and Maturing Debt 14,876 0
Operational Boundary as at 31 462,517 439,738
March 14

* On balance sheet PFl schemes and finance leases etc.

5.5  Limits to Borrowing Activity

The first key control over the treasury activity is a prudential indicator to
ensure that over the medium term, net borrowing (borrowings less
investments) will only be for a capital purpose. Gross external borrowing
should not, except in the short term, exceed the total of CFR in the
preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2013/14 and the
next two financial years. This allows some flexibility for limited early

Page 213



borrowing for future years. The Council has approved a policy for borrowing
in advance of need which will be adhered to if this proves prudent.

The Director for Resources and Regeneration reports that no difficulties are
envisaged for the current or future years in complying with this prudential
indicator. The table above shows the forecast position for 2013/14 where
the CFR is over £40m higher than the external debt.

A further prudential indicator controls the overall level of borrowing. This is
the Authorised Limit which represents the limit beyond which borrowing is
prohibited, and needs to be set and revised by Members. It reflects the level
of borrowing which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short term,
but is not sustainable in the longer term. It is the expected maximum
borrowing need with some headroom for unexpected movements. This is
the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government
Act 2003.

2013/14 Prudential Indicators Original Forecast
(as at the end of the year)

Indicator Indicator
£m £m

Operational Boundary for External
Debt

462,517 439,738

Provision for unexpected short term
borrowing

46,000 68,779

Authorised Limit for External
Debt

508,517 508,517

6.2

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 2013/14

In accordance with the Code, it is the Council’s priority to ensure security of
capital and liquidity, and to obtain an appropriate level of return which is
consistent with the Council’s risk appetite. As set out in Section 4, it is a very
difficult investment market in terms of earning the level of interest rates
commonly seen in previous decades as rates are very low and in line with the
0.5% Bank Rate. Indeed, the introduction of the Funding for Lending scheme
has reduced market investment rates even further. The potential for a
prolonging of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis, and its impact on banks,
prompts a low risk and short term strategy. Given this risk environment,
investment returns are likely to remain low.

The Council held £304m of investments as at 30 September 2013 (£261m at
31 March 2013) and the investment portfolio yield for the first six months of
the year was 0.56%.

The Executive Director for Resources and Regeneration confirms that the

approved limits within the Annual Investment Strategy were not breached
during the first six months of 2013/14.

Investment Counterparty List

Page 214



6.3

71

7.2

7.3

8.1

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

The current investment counterparty criteria selection approved in the TMSS
is currently meeting the requirements of the treasury management function.

BORROWING

The Council’s latest forecast capital financing requirement (CFR) for 2013/14
is £481.77m. The CFR denotes the Council’'s underlying need to borrow for
capital purposes. If the CFR is positive the Council may borrow from the
PWLB or the market (external borrowing) or from internal balances on a
temporary basis (internal borrowing).

The balance of external and internal borrowing is generally driven by market
conditions. The Council has borrowings of £439.7m and has utilised £42m of
cash flow funds in lieu of borrowing. This is a prudent and cost effective
approach in the current economic climate.

It is anticipated that further borrowing will not be undertaken during this
financial year.

DEBT RESCHEDULING

Debt rescheduling opportunities have been limited in the current economic
climate and consequent structure of interest rates. No debt rescheduling was
undertaken during the first six months of 2013/14.

THE CO-OP BANK

In August this year, the Co-op Group, reported heavy losses as a result of a
huge write-down of assets at its troubled banking arm. The group lost £559m
in the first half of the year, having written off £496m of bad loans at Co-op
Bank. The bad loans relate mostly to Britannia Building Society, which
merged with Co-op Bank in 2009. The bank also faces a £1.5bn capital hole
in its balance sheet, which regulators say it must fill. Including the write-
downs, Co-op Bank alone reported a total loss of £709m.

Fitch Rating agency downgraded the bank in April and June, this year while
Moody’s downgrade the bank in June. The bank is not on the Council’s
counterparty lending list and has not been for sometime. However, the bank
remains as the Council’s bankers, having renewed a three year contract with
the bank last year.

The Co-Op Bank is at present not tendering for banking business, even when
it is the incumbent, until it agrees its future strategy.

Officers are taking measures to reduce the Council’'s exposure to the risk of
large monetary losses if the bank were to collapse, although this risk cannot
be completely removed. No investments are placed with the bank and
daytime credit balances are transferred out every weekday morning.

Page 215



9.5 Officers will continue to monitor developments and take measures as and

10.

1.

12

13.

14.

15.

when necessary.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no additional financial implications other than those mentioned in
the body of the report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no additional legal implications other than those mentioned in the
main budget report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no specific environmental implications relating to this report.

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS

There are no specific human resources implications relating to this report.
CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

There are no specific crime and disorder implications relating to this report.
EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

There are no specific equalities implications relating to this report.

For further information about this report, please contact

Selwyn Thompson, Group Manager Budget Strategy on 020 8314 6932,
Richard Lambeth, Group Manager Capital and Accounting on 020 8314 3797

or
Shola Ojo Principal Accountant on 020 8314 7778

Page 216



Agenda Item 9

COUNCIL
Report Title Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan - Adoption
Key Decision Yes Item No.
Ward All
Contributors Executive Director for Resources and Regeneration
Class Part 1 Date:26 February 2014

1. Purpose

1.1 This report seeks the Council’s formal resolution to adopt the Lewisham Town
Centre Local Plan (LTCLP) (previously called Lewisham Town Centre Area
Action Plan).

2, Summary

2.1 The Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan is one of the documents that, when
adopted, will make up the Council’'s Local Development Framework (LDF).
The LDF refers to the group of documents setting out the Council’s planning
strategy and policies.

2.2 The LTCLP provides a vision and a set of objectives for Lewisham Town
Centre, and provides a set of policies to implement this vision and achieve
these objectives.

2.3 The LTCLP was submitted to the Secretary of State of State for Communities
and Local Government in September 2012, and an Independent Planning
Inspector was appointed to examine the plan.

2.4 On 13 January 2014 the Council received the Inspector’s report, which has
found the LTCLP to be legally compliant and sound subject to 19 modifications
agreed by the Council and the Inspector during the examination. These
modifications are referred to as ‘main modifications’ (MMs), and are set out in
Annex 3. The changes are all supported by the Council, they have therefore
been incorporated in the recommended adoption version intended for formal
adoption by full Council.

2.5 The Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan Recommended Adoption Version is
set out as Annex 1 to this report. The Planning Inspector’s report is set out as
Annex 2 to this report.

2.6 The Mayor agreed during the Mayor and Cabinet meeting on the 12" of

February 2014 that the Council be recommended to formally adopt the

Page 217




2.7

3.1

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

6.1

6.2

6.3

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan. The full report presented to Mayor and
Cabinet dated 12" February 2014 is set out as Annex 5 to this report.

According to the legal planning regulations a resolution to adopt the Lewisham
Town Centre Local Plan is necessary from the full Council.

Recommendation

This report seeks the Council’s formal resolution to adopt the Lewisham Town
Centre Local Plan.

Policy context

The Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan is part of the Local Development
Framework and as such is part of the Council's policy framework as set out in
the Council’s constitution. It requires a resolution from the full Council to
adopt.

The full policy context is set out in the report to Mayor and Cabinet dated 12"
February 2014 which is set out as Annex 5 to this report.

Background

The Report to Mayor and Cabinet dated 12" February 2014 (Annex 5 to this
report) sets out the background and a summary of the Lewisham Town Centre
Local Plan and Inspector’s Report.

Once adopted by the Council the Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan will
become part of the development plan for the Borough. In accordance with
planning law in considering and determining applications for planning
permission the local planning authority must have regard to the provisions of
the development plan so far as material to the application and to any other
material considerations.

Legal implications

The procedures which the Council is required to follow when producing a
Local Plan (Development Plan Documents derive from the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) and the Town and Country
Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2012.

The function of approving Local Plans is shared by the Mayor and Cabinet and
Full Council, however the formal adoption of the Local Plan is a matter
reserved to Full Council only as required by section 23 (5) of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

If Full Council resolves to adopt the LTCLP, the document will form part of the
Development Plan for development management purposes under the
Planning Acts.

Page 218



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality duty
(the equality duty or the duty). It covers the following nine protected
characteristics: age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual
orientation.

In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard
to the need to:
e eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and
other conduct prohibited by the Act.

e advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

e foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be attached
to it is a matter for the decision maker, bearing in mind the issues of relevance
and proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful
discrimination, advance equality of opportunity or foster good relations.

The Equality and Human Rights Commission has issued Technical Guidance
on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance entitled “Equality
Act 2010 Services, Public Functions & Associations Statutory Code of
Practice”. The Council must have regard to the statutory code in so far as it
relates to the duty and attention is drawn to Chapter 11 which deals
particularly with the equality duty. The Technical Guidance also covers what
public authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes steps that are
legally required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does not
have statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to
do so without compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory
code and the technical guidance can be found at:
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-
act/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-quidance/

The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously issued
five guides for public authorities in England giving advice on the equality duty:

1. The essential guide to the public sector equality duty
2. Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making
3. Engagement and the equality duty

4, Equality objectives and the equality duty

Page 219



6.9

7.1

5. Equality information and the equality duty

The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty requirements
including the general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply to. It
covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty including steps that
are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The other four
documents provide more detailed guidance on key areas and advice on good
practice. Further information and resources are available at:
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-
equality-duty/quidance-on-the-equality-duty/ .

Conclusion

The Council is asked to resolve to adopt the Lewisham Town Centre Local
Plan attached as Annex 1 to this report.

Background documents

Short Title Date File File Contact Exempt
Document Location Reference | Officer

Planning & 2004 Laurence Planning Brian No
Compulsory House Policy Regan
Purchases Act

2004 (as

amended)

National 2012 Laurence Planning Brian No
Planning House Policy Regan

Policy

Framework

Local Plan 2012 Laurence Planning Brian No
Regulations House Policy Regan

Localism Act 2011 Laurence Planning Brian No
2011 House Policy Regan

If you have any queries on this report, please contact Brian Regan, Planning
Policy, 3" floor Laurence House, 1 Catford Road, Catford SE6 4RU —
telephone 020 8314 8774.

Annex 1: Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan Recommended Adoption Version

January 2014

Available on the Council Website at:

http://Icouncilmeetings.lewisham.gov.ukl/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=138&MId=

2837

Page 220




Annex 2: Planning Inspector’s report into the soundness of the Lewisham
Town Centre Local Plan

http://lcouncilmeetings.lewisham.gov.ukl/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=139&MId=
2850

Annex 3: Appendix 1 of the Inspector’s Report: Schedule of main
modifications to the submitted Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan

Available on the Council Website at:

http://lcouncilmeetings.lewisham.gov.ukl/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=139&MId=
2850

Annex 4: Schedule of additional modifications to the submitted Lewisham
Town Centre Local Plan

Available on the Council Website at:

http://lcouncilmeetings.lewisham.gov.ukl/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=139&MId=
2850

Annex 5: Report to Mayor and Cabinet on Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan
12th February 2014

Available on the Council Website at:

http://Icouncilmeetings.lewisham.gov.ukl/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=139&MIld=
2850

Page 221



oy
—
Lewisham

local plan

()
ok
e
-
()
O
=
(@)
s’
=
(g
i
R4
s
()
—l

c
O
(Va)]
—
()
>
c
Re)
)
Q.
@)
S
<

Lewisham local plan

February 2014




Page 223



1 The plan and context 3
1.1 Lewisham town centre and the Local Plan
1.2 Key characteristics of Lewisham town centre 6
1.3 Summary of issues and challenges for the town centre 11
1.4 How does the LTC Local Plan relate to other policy? 12
1.5 Sustainability Appraisal and Equalities Analysis Assessment 15
2.1 The vision 17
2.2 The objectives 18
2.3 From issues to objectives 20

3 Presumption in favour of sustainable development

4 The spatial strategy 24
4.1 The plan boundaries 25
4.2 Introducing policy areas and sites 27
4.3 Creating a cohesive and complete town centre experience 32

5 Policy Areas and sites 37
5.1 Lewisham Gateway Policy Area 37
5.2 Loampit Vale Policy Area 41
5.3 Conington Road Policy Area 46
5.4 Lee High Road Policy Area 51
5.5 Ladywell Policy Area 55
5.6 Central Policy Area 60

6 Area-wide policies 66
6.1 Growing the local economy 67

6.1.1 Employment 69
6.1.2 Housing 73
6.1.3 Shopping 76
6.2 Building a sustainable community 84
6.2.1 Urban design 85

Page 224

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



6.2.2 Sustainable movement 89
6.2.3 Community 95

6.3 Environmental management 100

7 Implementation, monitoring and risk 106
7.1 Implementation 107
7.2 Monitoring 111
7.3 Risk 113

8 Appendix 1 - Policy, guidance and evidence base linkages

9 Appendix 2 - Heritage assets 122

10 Appendix 3 - Delivery strategy and monitoring framework

11 Appendix 4 - Lewisham town centre infrastructure schedule 134

12 Appendix 5 - UDP proposals replaced by the LTCLP 143
13 Glossary 144

Page 225

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



The plan and context

Section 1 of the Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan (LTCLP) firstly introduces Lewisham town centre,
its strengths, weaknesses and the opportunities for it to develop and improve in the next five to ten
years.

Secondly, this section provides an explanation of what a Local Plan is and its context within the wider
field of planning policy, and begins to explore how the LTCLP will assist in the successful future
development of Lewisham town centre.

Page 226

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 3



The plan and context

1.1 Lewisham town centre and the Local Plan

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Lewisham town centre is at the heart of the Borough of Lewisham. The town is the most
important shopping and leisure destination in the area as well as a major transport hub. The
town is a home, workplace and visitor location for a diverse and varied community.

Lewisham town centre has existing excellent public transport and road connections to central
London, Docklands and the suburbs. Additionally, there is a busy retail centre including a
vibrant street market and a new state of the art leisure centre due to open in 2013.

Alongside these positive aspects of the town centre there are a number of redevelopment
opportunities that provide the exciting prospect to change Lewisham town centre for the
better. There is an opportunity to transform the way the centre works and radically improve
the way of life for everyone associated with Lewisham town centre through the regeneration
of residential, commercial and retail development sites, the radical improvement of the
transport interchange and the careful management of this process to meet the overall town
centre needs.

The Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan (LTCLP) is at the heart of regenerating the town
centre. It provides a vision and a number of objectives for the town centre, supported by a
suite of policies, guidance and a delivery plan. The LTCLP will demonstrate what is required
to redevelop the area into a vibrant and successful centre, including improvements to
shopping, living, working, and spending leisure time in the town centre. Further, the LTCLP
will ensure individual developments support the town centre wide objectives, are well designed
and environmentally smart.

The LTCLP has three sections to guide development:

e  The first establishes the plan area boundary and introduces the spatial strategy for the
town centre (Section 4)

e  The second identifies a number of Policy Areas where development is expected to be
focused and recognises key development sites. Local policies and guidance for each
Policy Area and site is provided (Section 5)

e  The third sets out a suite of policies that are relevant to all development proposals
across the entire town centre (Section 6)

Page 227

4 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



The plan and context

Figure 1.1 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan

Fig. I.¥
ng_is_,ham Town Ce

Page 228

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 5



The plan and context

1.2 Key characteristics of Lewisham town centre

1.6 Lewisham town centre is situated in the London Borough of Lewisham and is especially well
connected to central London by the excellent rail, bus and DLR services. It is also sited on
key radial and orbital roads providing easy access to both central London and the Kent
countryside and coast. It is designated by the Mayor of London as a major town centre and
is the largest centre in the borough.

Economy

1.7 The town centre has developed as an important dynamic and strategic retail and service
hub under its designation as a Major Centre within the London Plan. Lewisham town centre
offers a wide variety of retail appeal including the historic street market, comparison goods
retail in the Lewisham Shopping Centre and independent specialist retail along the Lee High
Road.

1.8 In recent years, retail growth has not kept pace with other expanding town centres such as
Bromley and out of town locations such as Bluewater. This has lead to a situation where a
number of local residents will choose to travel away from Lewisham town centre for their
leisure and shopping needs. The town centre also has little evening economy offer, with only
a small number of bars and restaurants and a lack of leisure facilities such as a cinema or
theatre.

1.9 Employment in the town centre is largely split between distribution, hotels and restaurants
(largely retail) providing 30% of total jobs, banking, finance and insurance providing 27%
and public sector (administration, education and health) supplying 26% (Census 2001).

1.10 There is a relatively weak office sector in the town centre, exacerbated through a poor quality
of office stock creating a low-rent, but unattractive environment. Improvements to the quality
and quantum of offer are required to create a more vibrant commercial sector in the town.

Page 229

6 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Page 230



The plan and context

People

1.1 Until recently there was little housing within the plan area boundary. In the past few years a
number of residential complexes have brought the surrounding housing closer to the town
centre, while providing accessible high density housing close to facilities and public transport
connections. This work is continuing through further development schemes.

1.12 As a borough, Lewisham suffers from wide levels of deprivation, which is particularly apparent
in certain pockets. The far north and south of the borough, as well as Lewisham and Catford
town centres are especially vulnerable.

1.13 The Indices of Multiple Deprivation 2011 show that the area covering Lewisham town centre
is among the 20% most deprived areas within England. While educational and health factors
demonstrate a mid-table ranking, the indices relating to crime, environment and children and
old people remain in the bottom quintile.

1.14 The borough is the 15th most ethnically diverse local authority in England, where 130 different
languages are spoken. This diversity is apparent in the town centre with the proportion of
the overall population from a black and/or minority ethnic origin at 47%.

Transport

1.15 The excellent road links through the town centre bring with them a high volume of traffic.
This leads to congestion in busy periods and subsequent noise and air pollution issues. The
A20 (a key radial route) bisects the town centre separating the rail and DLR stations from
the main retail and business heart of the centre to the south.

1.16 Lewisham town centre also acts as a transport hub and exchange for a wide network of bus
routes. The buses run through the centre of the town bringing a high number of incidental
shoppers, which assists local businesses. This creates a busy centre, which brings with it a
vibrant atmosphere, although some perceived concern for personal road safety.

1.17 The high traffic levels and bus routes have a considerable effect on the safety of pedestrians
and cyclists when they come into contact with the roads. Improvements to the network and
ease of movement for pedestrians accessing and moving through the town centre are
required.

1.18 Parking for the public and shoppers is provided through a number of car-parks on the edges
of the town centre and the multi-storey car park above the Lewisham Shopping Centre.
There is no evidence to suggest that more parking is required, however better use, signage
and management of existing facilities and creative solutions to meet future need are required.

Environment

1.19 The borough has many award winning parks and green spaces, while within the town centre
open space is provided through a mix of green and hard landscaping. Additionally, there is
a Site of Importance for Nature Conservation (Le B2.15 Railside Land : F - Lewisham) and
a number of green corridors that permeate the outskirts of the centre.

1.20 The River Ravensbourne and the River Quaggy flow north and west respectively through
the town centre surrounds, converging adjacent to the Lewisham transport interchange and
continuing north towards the River Thames. The paths of both rivers are affected at points
by culverts and channelling, while otﬁ@g@ti@@bccompany open space (including the

8 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



The plan and context

Waterlink Way), providing an attractive town centre riverside environment. In September
2010 the Council in conjunction with the Environment Agency completed a River
Ravensbourne Corridor Improvement Plan. The Plan supports opportunities to enhance the
quality of the river environment, improve public access, and provides specific and general
design guidance for new development along the river corridor.

1.21 Large parts of the town centre are at some risk of flooding from fluvial sources (the River
Ravensbourne and the River Quaggy) although importantly the town centre is protected by
the Thames Barrier. Due to the urban setting, other sources of flooding, such as through
surface water, should also be considered. The recent naturalisation of parts of the River
Ravensbourne has assisted in flood management.

1.22 A number of key historical assets exist in Lewisham town centre, including listed and locally
listed buildings. There are several notable churches as well as historic local civic buildings
and monuments such as the Clock Tower. The former Ladywell Baths (Playtower) is a listed
building at serious risk of collapse and requires action to improve it. There are also two local
landmarks within the plan area boundary as well as the historic street market, which provides
a vibrant and historic heart to the centre.

Page 232

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 9



The plan and context

Figure 1.3 Lewisham Town Centre currently

- Elverson Road DLR Station

Lewisham Rail/! DLIi/ Bus Station

#¥Comnill] Gardens

Clock tower

Lewiﬁhqp Polic_e Station
ﬂ-'".. -
’_"‘-' ﬁ‘_.‘

B, /* &
o
ﬁ.._ *i

RETAIL 7 -
CENTRE L, Nl

St Saviours h ch
. o \'-
Lewisham lerury-\

S

== .
/ Ladywell Rail Station
/ St Mary Church
g.1.3 &/ —

ewisham Town Centre currently

Page 233

10 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



The plan and context

1.3 Summary of issues and challenges for the town centre
1.23 Economy:

e Low levels of retail growth
e  Employment and training opportunities
° Little evening economy offer

1.24 Social:
e  Housing demand through population growth
e  Decent and accessible homes
e Improved access to healthcare, education and community facilities
e Low levels of educational attainment
e  Addressing deprivation, social exclusion and health inequalities
e  General perception of high crime rates in Lewisham town centre
° Provision of open space and recreational facilities
e Noise
e Road safety
e  The protection and enhancement of local heritage assets

1.25 Environment:

Protection and enhancement of biodiversity and habitats
Flood risk from rivers and other sources

CO2 emissions and climate change adaptation

Traffic congestion and car dependence

High levels of air pollution

Aging building stock

Recycling and waste production

Inclusive design — access for all

Protection and enhancement of heritage assets

Design quality of new development

Page 234

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 11



The plan and context

1.4 How does the LTC Local Plan relate to other policy?

1.26 The LTCLP, together with other Local Development Framework (LDF) documents (including
the Core Strategy, adopted June 2011) and the London Plan, form the ‘development plan’
for the London Borough of Lewisham. Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004 makes clear that determination of planning applications must be made
in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

1.27 The LTCLP should be read in conjunction with the other documents that form the development
plan. The complete policy context related to this LTCLP is shown in Figure 1.4.

Statement

The Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan is in general conformity with the London Plan 2011,
implements the Lewisham Core Strategy and is consistent with the National Planning Policy

Framework (NPPF).
Figure 1.4 policy context
Local plans and strategies
Natienal guidance oChildran and Young Paopla's Phn
s lmining Bnd Compuisory Purchese Act 2004 wir Cuality Action Phan
o |anning Act 2008 ®Cgehon Redurniom and Climate Changs Staegy
o ocahsm Act 2011 m Tlld:;!r F2an {LIP) o
shisgulatons ming omeleEsness sirategies
shdunicipsl Waste SHsegy
shlational Flanning Folcy Framawonk sfnargy Stratagy
wiosth Lewrsham Health Nesds Assesament
sLocal Education Authority School Plan

Local Plan
»Local Diewalopment Scheme
e5taternant of Community Involvament
w200 Srategy

wannual Monitonng Feport
wDavslopiment Management

i Allocabone

*Towin Contre Local Plans
sSupplementary Planning Documents

- Local evidence reports

-I-hq;mg

eTransport

*Employmirit

sFHetsl

l -E;nmalﬂn ENETy ot
5 sinlrastructure Delve
Regional policy and guidance (Mayor of London) d s ] sFlnadng =
sLondon Plan Assessments «CpEn spaces and recrealion
:m Plﬂgﬂ:wmm Planning Glaidance «Sustainabiity appraisals and SEA |T r
conomic Stategy o Tail huiidm s

Rt ety sEquality Impact Assessment bibeionsey
et prachce guidance sWaste

1.28 Every policy in the LTCLP is supported by the LDF evidence base and has multiple links to
other local plans, the London Plan and national policies and guidance. The following
paragraphs provide a simple description of the relevant supporting documents, while Appendix
1 contains a detailed list of linkages between the documents and should be read alongside
each of the policies in the LTCLP.

Page 235

12 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



The plan and context

Evidence base

1.29

A great deal of information has been gathered to provide the basis for preparing the LTCLP.
Some of this is from existing sources such as the national Census and the indices of multiple
deprivation but much is original research commissioned by the Council. Most of this is
accessible through the internet or can be viewed at the Council offices. The information,
often referred to as the ‘evidence base’, has been used to help identify the issues facing
Lewisham town centre and to develop and test different solutions, or options.

Local plans

1.30

1.31

1.32

1.33

The LTCLP forms part of Lewisham’s Local Development Framework (LDF), which is a
collection of planning documents that will guide future development of the borough and
includes:

Core Strategy

Site Allocations

Development Management
Lewisham town centre local plan

The Core Strategy was adopted in June 2011 and establishes the borough-wide spatial
policy context. The Site Allocations and Development Management documents are being
produced and are therefore not currently policy, but will replace the remainder of the Unitary
Development Plan 2004 once adopted. Additional to these documents are a number of
supplementary planning documents which give guidance on detailed elements of planning.
Full details can be found on the Council’s website.

Lewisham’s adopted Core Strategy sets out a spatial strategy for the whole of the borough
for the next 15 years and also sets the scene for the LTCLP. Core Strategy Spatial Policy 2
identifies Lewisham town centre as a Regeneration and Growth Area and the Lewisham

Gateway Site as one of five Strategic Sites that are central to the achievement of the Strategy.

The Core Strategy aims to ensure that by 2026 the town centre achieves Metropolitan status
on the London wide retail hierarchy, accommodating up to 40,000 sgm of additional retail
space, improved leisure space and 2,500 additional homes. This provides the focus of the
vision for the LTCLP, which aims to deliver and implement the strategy outlined in the Core
Strategy. The LTCLP supersedes the saved UDP proposals as they apply to the Lewisham
town centre (as identified in Appendix 5: UDP Proposals replaced by the LTCLP) and all
other adopted guidance, including the Lewisham Gateway Planning Brief (2002).

The London Plan (2011)

1.34

1.35

The Mayor of London’s Spatial Development Strategy (the London Plan), with which all local
plans need to be in general conformity, sets out London-wide policies, supported by
Supplementary Planning Guidance. In general the London Plan is supportive of the LTCLP
throughout. Appendix 1 contains a list of the policies in this LTCLP and subsequent details
of each London Plan policy that supports the position taken within the LTCLP.

Of particular importance to the LTCLP is the London Plan aim to provide the city with a
polycentric structure which encourages a spread of successful town centres and designates
Lewisham town centre as a major centre. Policy 2.15 states that they should be the focus
for goods and services and for q@g&én ﬁvgéommercial sector and the intensification of

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 13



The plan and context

use, including the residential offer. Town centres are also championed as appropriate locations
for leisure and cultural activities, the evening economy and community hubs which create a
sense of place for local neighbourhoods.

1.36 Policy 3.4 promotes the optimisation of housing potential through intensification, town centre
renewal and mixed use redevelopment of surplus commercial land. All three of these elements
are achievable in Lewisham town centre and this fits appropriately with the London Plan
designation of the town as an ‘Opportunity Area’ and the wider designation as part of the
Thames Gateway growth area, which both promote its development potential. The Borough
of Lewisham is required to provide 1,105 new homes per year of which the
Lewisham-Catford-New Cross Opportunity Area is expected to deliver a significant proportion.

National policy

1.37 The national policy context for the LTCLP is provided by the NPPF, published in March 2012.
The LTCLP is consistent with the NPPF.

Page 237

14 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



The plan and context

1.5 Sustainability Appraisal and Equalities Analysis Assessment

1.38 The purpose of a Sustainability Appraisal (SA) is to make sure that all the things which are
referred to as ‘sustainability issues’ such as using public transport instead of the private car,
the impact of flooding or climate change, or the pressures placed on open space from an
increasing population, are taken into account when preparing the LTCLP and measures
included to mitigate any impacts.

1.39 The Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan has been subject to SA at each stage of its production
and the principles of sustainable development run throughout the LTCLP.

1.40 Sustainability appraisal has been used to help identify issues, test options and identify the
vision, objectives and policies contained in the LTCLP. This is documented in the Sustainability
Appraisal report that has been published with the LTCLP. The LTCLP’s likely effect on
European designated wildlife sites is similarly appraised in the accompanying Habitat
Regulations Assessment.

1.41 An Equalities Analysis Assessment (EQAA) was produced following the final options round
(the Further Options Report, 2011) to support the LTCLP. An EgAA is the process of
systematically analysing a proposed or existing policy or strategy to identify what effect, or
likely effect will follow from the implementation of the policy for different groups in the
community. In brief, the EQAA ensures that policies developed and implemented through
the LTCLP will contribute to improving the lives of local communities.

1.42 The EqAA identified a number of positive impacts of the LTCLP policies on equalities groups
and a small number of potential issues. Mitigation for the concerns has been included by
adjusting the housing and car parking policies and all policies relating to flood risk.

1.43 The monitoring framework and ongoing Annual Monitoring Report process have been
expanded to include the indicators required by both the SA and the EqAA.

Page 238

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 15



This section introduces the vision statement of the LTCLP and provides further detail by expanding
this into strategic objectives for the town centre. The policies put forward in later sections all contribute
to the delivery of the nine objectives and one vision identified at this stage.

Part 2.3 reviews how the objectives have been established and demonstrates that each one can be
shown to be tackling the issues affecting the town centre as identified in Section 1. Additionally,
evidence is provided that the LTCLP objectives relate favourably to the strategic objectives of the
Core Strategy.

Page 239

16 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



2.1 The vision

2.1 Lewisham Strategic Partnership, of which Lewisham Council is a part, has adopted the
following vision for the borough, as set out in the Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS)
2008-2020:

“Together we will make Lewisham the best place in London to live, work and learn.”

2.2 The Core Strategy provides more detail of the borough's spatial strategy and heavily
influences the plan for Lewisham town centre. The LTCLP then takes forward the wider
spatial influence and sets out the following detailed vision for the town centre.

“Lewisham town centre will have been transformed into a shopping and leisure destination of
exceptional quality, offering a strong focus for community identity and cohesion. The centre will
benefit from the Lewisham Gateway site delivering easier and better pedestrian routes between
the bus and train stations and the high street, a new road layout and new commercial, retail and
residential development. New high quality residential developments will help to increase the
number and diversity of people using the centre and support its Metropolitan Town Centre status.
The street market will continue to provide an extensive range of goods and its overall contribution
to the quality of the urban environment will be improved. The Quaggy and Ravensbourne Rivers
will be celebrated by the provision of a network of public green spaces and parks including
Cornmill Gardens. A new landscaped public plaza where these two rivers meet will consolidate
the identity of Lewisham as a river valley town and provide an enhanced sense of place and
focus. Buildings, streets and spaces will be designed and managed to take account of climate
change and incorporate on-site clean and renewable energy technologies, including a
decentralised energy network.”

Page 240

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 17



2.2 The objectives
Objective 1 — Retail and town centre status:

To support and improve the vitality and viability of Lewisham town centre and achieve Metropolitan
Centre status by 2026 through the delivery of 40,000 sgm of additional retail floor space, improved
leisure floorspace and evening economy space and enhancing distinctive features such as the street
market.

Objective 2 — Housing:

To deliver up to 2,300 additional new homes by 2016 and a further 1,100 additional new homes by
2021 to create a sustainable and mixed community of private and affordable housing in line with the
Core Strategy, with highest densities focused in locations with the highest level of public transport
accessibility.

Objective 3 — Design quality:

To apply consistently high standards of design including sustainable design and construction to
individual sites to ensure that developments are accessible and safe, make the best use of natural
resources, protect heritage assets, enable people to easily make environmentally aware choices and
are carefully phased and co-ordinated to create a cohesive place and a sustainable community.

Objective 4 — Employment and training:

To maximise job opportunities by ensuring the retention and reprovision of employment generating
uses, the enhancement of training opportunities and the redevelopment of key sites throughout the
town centre for a range of non-residential uses, including offices.

Objective 5 — Open space and recreation:

To encourage healthy lifestyles through the maintenance, protection and improvement of the supply
of publicly accessible open space (including public realm and the town centre streetscape), and
incorporation of additional recreational and open space as part of new developments.

Objective 6 — Transport:

To encourage patterns of development which support walking, cycling and the use of public transport,
reduces the need for private car travel, maintains and where possible improves the high levels of
public transport accessibility of the town centre and knits the centre in with the surrounding area.

Objective 7 — Environment:

To protect, enhance and restore the Rivers Quaggy and Ravensbourne and ensure that the town
centre can mitigate and adapt to the risks arising from air pollution and climate change by focusing
on protecting the area against extreme weather conditions, mitigating heat island effects and delivering
energy efficient and low carbon development.

Objective 8 - Community:

To create a safe and accessible place that enables and promotes the adoption of healthy lifestyles
and delivers appropriate levels of education, community and leisure facilities that keep pace with

proposed growth.
Page 241

18 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Objective 9 — Implementing and monitoring the LTCLP:

To ensure that partners in the public, private and third sectors continue to work together to ensure
that the forecast growth in the town centre is carefully monitored, managed and delivered throughout
the plan period.

Page 242

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 19



2.3 From issues to objectives

2.3

Figure 2.1 links the issues and challenges for the town centre brought forward in Section
1.3 with the objectives identified in Section 2.2 to fix the issues. Sections 4, 5 and 6 contain
a selection of policies that will contribute to meeting each of the LTCLP objectives and hence
tackle each of the identified issues through the channels demonstrated below.

Figure 2.1 Issues and challenges in Lewisham town centre influencing objectives

Lo lewels of retal drowth

L

itihe evening econotmy offer

g demand throudgh populstion o

Decert and =i e homes

Mioize

Employment and training opportunities

iar of apen

Page 243

20 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



2.4

Further, in Figure 2.2 the LTCLP objectives are connected to the strategic objective themes
that are used to guide the Core Strategy, demonstrating a consistency of approach throughout
the LDF process. Additionally, it acts as a reminder that the wider Core Strategy policies will
have a direct influence upon the development of the town centre.

Figure 2.2 LTCLP objectives and Core Strategy objective themes

(

syes | (oo ]

i

_I-m-iunmmm

-
Ll*ﬁnin[

R."m'*w _ \‘h\

L4+l-'£ry-atnluwhiu

5~ Open space and recreation

[ia- Transpert \

o

X

| 7 - Emvironment

[I—ﬂnl-:-'t] }

9 - Implementing and menitonng : Links to all
die AAP obiective themes

Page 244

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 21



3.1 The NPPF states that Local Plans should be based upon and reflect the presumption in

favour of sustainable development, with clear policies that will guide how the presumption
should be applied locally (paragraphs 14 and 15). To support this approach, all policies in
the LTCLP should be read in the context of Policy LTCO — Presumption in favour of sustainable
development.

Presumption in favour of sustainable development

When considering development proposals the Council will take a positive approach that reflects
the presumption in favour of sustainable development contained in the National Planning Policy
Framework. It will work proactively with applicants to find solutions which mean that proposals
secure development that improves the economic, social and environmental conditions in the
borough.

Planning applications that accord with the policies in the Lewisham Local Plan (and, where
relevant, with polices in neighbourhood plans) will be approved without delay, unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

Where there are no policies relevant to the application, or relevant policies are out of date at the
time of making the decision, then the Council will grant permission unless material considerations
indicate otherwise — taking into account whether:

e  Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably outweigh
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the National Planning Policy Framework
taken as a whole; or

e  Specific policies in that Framework indicate that development should be restricted.

Context

3.2

The focus of the NPPF is on a presumption in favour of sustainable development and positive
growth. The NPPF states that international and national bodies have set out broad principles
of sustainable development including:

° Resolution 24/187 of the United Nations General Assembly, which defines sustainable
development as 'meeting the needs of the present without compromising the ability of
future generations to meet their own needs'. (Brundtland Report)

e The UK Sustainable Development Strategy Securing the future, which sets out five
guiding principles of sustainable development:

Living within the planet's environmental limits
Ensuring a strong, healthy and just society
Achieving a sustainable economy

Promoting good governance

Using sound science responsible.

Page 245

IS S

22 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



3.3 The Government believes that sustainable development can play three critical roles in

England:

Economic role Contributing to building a strong, responsive and competitive economy, by
ensuring that sufficient land of the right type is available in the right places
to support growth and innovation

Social role Supporting strong, vibrant and healthy communities by providing the supply

of housing required to meet the needs of present and future generations,
and by creating a high quality built development with accessible local
services

Environmental role | Contributing to protecting and enhancing our natural, built and historic
environment

3.4 The presumption in favour of sustainable development should be seen as a golden thread
running through both plan-making and decision making. The presumption is subject to two
exceptions as outlined in part 3 to the policy.

3.5 The NPPF provides specific detail relating to 13 aspects of sustainable development which
proposals and plan-making needs to comply with. These are:

building a strong competitive economy

ensuring the vitality of town centres

supporting a prosperous rural economy

promoting sustainable transport

supporting high quality communications infrastructure
delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

requiring good design

promoting healthy communities

protecting Green Belt land

meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
conserving and enhancing the natural environment
conserving and enhancing the historic environment and
facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

Page 246

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 23



The first part of Section 4 details the direct scope of the report by detailing the plan area boundary.

The second part of the section describes the six important sub-areas or ‘Policy Areas’ and the ten
key development sites within the town centre. There are also several plans that show their locations,
sizes and boundaries.

Lastly, part 4.3 seeks to ensure that the development of individual sites or Policy Areas is progressed
with appropriate consideration of the vision and objectives of the LTCLP, the wider development
context and the potential development of other sites and Policy Areas.

Page 247

24 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



4.1 The plan boundaries

Policy LTCP1

Plan boundaries

The plan area and town centre boundaries have been defined as shown in Figure 4.1, alongside
those parts of the town centre that are considered edge of centre.

Delivery context

4.1 The town centre boundary includes the primary shopping area and those areas predominantly
occupied by main town centre uses. Within the town centre boundary, several locations are
designated as ‘edge of centre’ while locations beyond the town centre boundary are
considered ‘out of centre’. These designations have been made in accordance with the
definitions in the glossary of the NPPF.

4.2 For the full list of policy and evidence base linkages with this policy see Appendix 1.

Page 248

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 25



>
(@]
(V)
[P
©
fo.
et
("2}
S
=)
(1]
Q.
(7}
()
L
|

4

Figure 4.1 Plan boundaries

iiita | PR
bt il o LT

Il_[.l.-.;_-.r..llb.l._i.ftrl.n. --ll‘
-

b — e TEYY TR P T iy, -4
r 1 w % J..a...rr,.......f ~G) 2
— o

lan boundar S""‘ &

.ﬂ df EE!IDP‘IIII.}II_ILL"”W ~ '._
-~ ~

i e
i3 Bk B - -
-fl.r Al i | .ﬂ . ‘rﬂ i .-..I..I‘-.-.i..{fl’\l-].‘.lﬂ?
a1

1}{59. 4.1
!

._-_ . h.i ‘ .
. I.-II-III-.._!:I_I_‘.._J_I

- -.= # m — - lJ.}r.._- rI...._._-_ e o B

VA il e T L VR

f

Page 249

26 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



4.2 Introducing policy areas and sites

4.3

44

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

A review of Lewisham town centre, looking at factors such as architecture, townscape features
and retail influence, demonstrated that there are distinct sub-areas within the town centre.
These sub-areas have diverse characters and each present different opportunities to enhance
the social, environmental and economic health of the town centre. These sub-areas have
been labelled ‘Policy Areas’.

The Policy Areas provide a means to realise the vision and objectives of the LTCLP and are
as follows:

Lewisham Gateway
Loampit Vale
Conington Road
Lee High Road
Ladywell

Central

Figure 4.2 shows the six Policy Areas in the context of the plan area boundary.

The majority of the Policy Areas have been defined to assist in the intensification of those
central town centre locations which have excellent public transport linkages (in line with
national and London Plan policy). Specifically, these areas include the identified development
opportunities which will deliver new retail floorspace, homes and jobs as well as contributing
to sustainable patterns of transport and creating a high quality environment for the benefit
of all who use the centre and rely on the essential services provided within it. The exception
to this is Ladywell Policy Area which is dominated by a number of historic buildings and a
conservation area which the LTCLP policies seek to protect and enhance.

Each Policy Area has different and distinct requirements and opportunities to support a
diverse town centre. Therefore Section 5 includes a separate sub-section for each Policy
Area, which details the character of the area and contains an area specific policy to guide
future development and rationale for the inclusion of the policy.

Further capacity for development exists across many sites in Lewisham town centre. To
accommodate this potential growth, each Policy Area is assigned an indicative capacity for
the remaining development. Within the Policy Areas, individual sites will still require an
assessment of the site capacity in line with the London Plan development density matrix.

The six Policy Areas cover less than 50% of the total plan area boundary. Areas outside the
Policy Areas are also important in supporting the town centre functions, however they are
largely established, have generally lower public transport accessibility and less development
is anticipated. In these areas, development will need to conform with the area-wide policies
in Section 6.

Page 250

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 27



The spatial strategy

_w o\ - " ¢ " y
' ) \ }." e -
3 i : ;l' -
X 4 r‘ Al i s i
-II ,Jl""‘* " L
: =
;' '
] I ¥
¥ ] -
CONINGTON ' ' ' 1
\ ROAD ‘ +
-
i
_______ 1 .Y
1
 LEWISHAM - . %
LOAMPIT VALE | GATEWAY e T W
\ g g "
- ;-
21 il 3 -
|1 i} 1] \
E.) H
fl ' y I a F
|1 ': - 1 F L
:‘ | « S 4 5
21311738

1 r.—
- el IL . ¥

Page 251

28 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



410 Within each of the Policy Areas, there are a number of major sites which have the potential
for development and are considered key in achieving the vision and the objectives of the
LTCLP. The majority of the sites are considered suitable for redevelopment to a mix of uses,
including residential, retail, business, leisure and community uses. Appropriate uses for
specific sites are detailed in the Policy Area policies in Section 5.

4.1 The sites identified as key to the development of Lewisham town centre are listed below and
identified in Figure 4.3.

Gateway Policy Area:

S1. Lewisham Gateway

S2. Kings Hall Mews

Loampit Vale Policy Area:

S3a/b. Thurston Road — east of Jerrard Street
S4. Thurston Road — west of Jerrard Street
S5. Thurston Road — Railway Strip
Conington Road Policy Area:

S6. Tesco block, car park and petrol station
Lee High Road Policy Area:

S7. Lee High Road West

Ladywell Policy Area:

S8. Ladywell Leisure Centre

Central Policy Area:

S9. Land north of Lewisham Shopping Centre
S10. Land south of the Lewisham Shopping Centre

412 Additionally there are a number of sites in the town centre where planning permission has
been granted and development is under construction or completed. These sites are also
identified in Figure 4.3.

413 The six Policy Areas identified above and explored in Section 5 are allocated indicative
development capacities for the potential delivery of housing. For Policy Area detail see
Sections 5.1 to 5.6. The town centre wide total of the indicative capacities for housing is
2,420 which is 980 below the total development required by Objective 2 of 3,400. However
977 housing units are under construction or have already been delivered, meaning the total
new homes for delivery in the town centre will be 2,420 plus 977 which equals 3,397.

414 The Core Strategy (June 2011) states that up to 2,600 houses are to be accommodated in
Lewisham town centre over the plan period (2011 — 2026). The Core Strategy designated
homes only to the sites which WE?agﬁwBEﬁailable and developable at the time in order

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 29



to ensure the plan was deliverable. The increase in potential housing delivery in the LTCLP
is mainly due to the identification of additional sites in the Conington Road, Central and
Ladywell Policy Areas and the minor reassessment of the capacity of Loampit Vale and Lee
High Road Policy Areas. No changes have been made to the capacities of individual
development sites that were included in the calculation of the Core Strategy designation.

4.15 The same capacity approach is used for retail floorspace. LTCLP Objective 1 identifies a
requirement for 44,000 sq m of new retail floorspace, while the indicative capacities of the
six Policy Areas in Section 5 equate to 44,500 sq m. There has been 3,050 sq m of additional
retail space already delivered, meaning the total new retail floorspace to be delivered is
47,550 sq m.

4.16 The Core Strategy (June 2011) states that up to 40,000 sq m of retail floorspace is to be
accommodated in the town centre. It is the emergence of a site previously not included in
the Core Strategy that has caused the increase in deliverable space. The site is Lewisham
Shopping Centre which is capable of delivering 10,000 sq m of new space. All other town
centre development sites considered in both the Core Strategy and all the LTCLP are
expected to deliver the same or a very similar quantum of retail floorspace.

Page 253

30 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



The spatial strategy

Figure 4.3 Development sites

| B

g
- -

s i L

L B

1 E ! 2 I
: ! £ ] -
3 2+ 1B
- ¥ [ '~
-H*J i! F A=
a [ di- 1
s u 1
.:"’ ‘, : -

"
g T Thy,

4

== i L
1

NHE :
{1ds ]

el

mTit 1IN

1] i E

: £

1his 3

i = £ .g;

1EIEE ]

z:s:‘:},‘iﬁrt '
s¢ 3% 7/
E'I'}':';1f {J
r'f f: 'J th-H':,E.
{7 s y VR
37 !Eﬁ"ﬁ,‘:’
';""r. . T E \'.i
le '1".:: ;.“"
£ Er

[ Potential mixed use development t

{
{ |
J — "
r—"-"?'"!'\ r

- Completed mixed use
u deve
i

opment

g
gy~

t |téi ]
z N

I. Ve — '

i9

v

Page 254

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 31



4.3 Creating a cohesive and complete town centre experience

Town centre boundary

1. All new development will need to contribute positively to the delivery of the vision (See Section
2.1) and the objectives (see Section 2.2) and must conform with and implement this spatial
strategy. To achieve this applicants will be required to:

(a) demonstrate how the proposal will support the delivery of the town centre vision and the
objectives of both the town centre and the individual Policy Areas,

(b) demonstrate how the proposal for a site has been informed by the current, emerging and
future context of the site and surrounding area,

(c) ensure that the proposal is in no way detrimental to the successful current or future
implementation of other nearby sites or their ability to meet the LTCLP vision or objectives.

2. In addition to masterplanning within a site, proposals must address how an individual site
relates to the wider area, and where appropriate, applications must be supported by a masterplan

across multiple sites to demonstrate the acceptability of an individual scheme.

Rationale

417

418

4.19

4.20

4.21

The development of the individual sites identified in Figure 4.3 is of great importance to the
successful delivery of the objectives for each of the Policy Areas and also for the vision and
objectives of the whole LTCLP. However, it is the successful delivery of all sites and the
cumulative impact of every development that will fulfil the LTCLP vision and objectives.

As seen in Figure 4.3, the town centre location contains a large number of sites in close
proximity to each other. The highly accessible nature of the town centre means that policy
demands higher density development than the surrounding residential areas. Therefore
development of one site may have a significant impact on proposed or potential development
of adjacent sites. To ensure the delivery of a coordinated and cohesive town centre it is
crucial that communication takes place between landowners, applicants and the Council. It
may be appropriate for applicants to prepare a joint masterplan for specific sites, multiple
sites or whole Policy Areas.

For the full list of policy and evidence base linkages with this policy see Appendix 1.

Figures 4.4 to 4.6 detail a number of key attributes across the town centre. While considering
individual sites, applicants should give regard to the contextual information displayed. These
plans do not provide an exhaustive list of all multiple site concerns, however they are designed
to guide applicants towards the type of considerations that should be reflected in a proposal
and detailed in a design and access statement.

Figure 4.4 identifies the development context, including details of planned and delivered
development sites. It shows the intended extension to the retail core which is central to the
vision of establishing Lewisham as a metropolitan town centre.

Page 255

32 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



4.22 Figure 4.5 shows the environmental context. Green and hard public spaces, rivers and other
environmental concerns are central to the vision for Lewisham town centre. The planned
development provides a unique opportunity to improve the public realm and public experience
of the town centre.

4.23 Figure 4.6 shows the key routes and linkages that are vital to ensuring the delivery of a
legible, permeable and accessible town centre. The wide scale redevelopment of large town
centre areas gives us an excellent opportunity to improve access to the town centre, especially
for pedestrians and cyclists.

Page 256

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 33



. T - . " v - - —
J i — ..i..m F 144 .ril..._..._ =1 v ..r.\..__ﬂ.w ,.:_:._-..-.......H p.iirrl\\“\
h -  — o i e - — .
. [ 2 f
- o — |
.-IL L z..._._.,# - ¥ e _..-I S
p - - | £ ,
J - L | a - . f
- : - o s 3
.- il ¢ 5 2 F-.
L] S g s 2 <
3 S 5 0
v 53 3 L2
it o X g N g | |
- LRIt
; - £ - o [
Ry S - T 8585 3 8|
’ 5 g2 5 8%
. | Q@ > 0 il
P e Po@@mmwe_n‘
r & ¥
b = mmnflt o
" * W

Figure 4.4 Development context

b S A e il

ll-.-..-
-n __' -_ﬂ — Y intill.l!!._a;irrri,ﬂf. <&
F M . ..J-J.J-ff......-frr_

R

5 W

N R e t_.p.r w St A et 8 A I B A B0 A Py \..n < g

l.rn.._ L a .ﬂ s F i _rl_..._l._._l:ll.cic-.-i..([l-{f..‘.): 4 44»

i JE e X gy 4 -3
M)ﬁ.-..”tu. - _—— . at 1 % _.I-.II-IIII.I.I_I‘;_J_‘._ 4 .'.Ja.r.-l.—:.,mf

J #mll-lul - .

- %I-lll-ill..t.-l\u. _;_ LR :-.._....1.._..1,. WM ] :_Il..ll..l_.r.._c.:.t‘ ....rll......i.-..__..c ™ ﬂ - g

e

>
(@]
(V)
[P
©
fo.
et
("2}
S
=)
(1]
Q.
(7}
()
L
|

4

Page 257

34 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



The spatial strategy

Figure 4.5 Environmental context

Ko,
g
- - | -
& ':’ - L.L
E ]
.3 § S
1t 0
B : 2 B
- !‘ i : b .j
= s B ]
* r r ]
- o i .._I'""l
L ¥ & J
"' I z. -
n“-i" ] ‘l g
—-"'"'F- - ‘
_______ +..l, 1
Ll
s

ks t = _-- L
uism—s_ | * Cconfluente Park 1

" M‘d Ny
! f! - """"-::-n--n % “.-‘ s
- . L
- ! L F‘."q- ....-i'" L "‘ ‘
- E e % I
mm - i
0a |t -_: » Interface I
l oy

- ..,-l""" JIFI y ]
ot ¥ F '
: ¥
IHE o
! ' i
1HE \ \ AN
bi 3% 3 B
y | = ) 2 .
* Sculpture Park rem ‘ 1\ - - {
si1 4 '] ven L AR .
=g f - : _. Lewisham reet
- 8 : z 4 53 . ]
;:;L,‘?_! g -‘_“H; \-1'..-\:
l" '] 1/ . Sttt Lad ellll‘.igi_sﬁfb}en_fzg .=

b

‘ - Proposed river edge
improvement

«
N\
AN

W Key spaces in fown cenire |
Q
\

Low carbon zone

s "on

\ N N N\ "‘"‘\i\
‘i\\\§ AN

N NN

Page 258

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 35



The spatial strategy

Figure 4.6 Sustainable linkages and movement

re —
-i g -
I —
£ 190
?! .‘..LJ -~ . I j -
e _,,..fr"".'_ |
- - y
o i F [ [
T a I
B 41 b "'\
HE
: : i | .
] ! 2 -1 F
i = £ 3 3
- 1
s | 3E 3§
] ‘ - = - 8
<14t ' 2}
s 4 ? 3 ;‘F Fs
- - !
. a J
¥ 757 £ “ ! _,\""
f F F L1 RY T (- - 9
Fi ;’: ‘ I L LT ‘ - - - ?
,‘ * e E— ‘ .;-pri- 1. 1
£ 7 18 Yl w i
2/ s L M5, 0%
>
Ry 9 sl i i
L Bl Proposed new road layout !
L .
) { @» Bus facility improvements I
p— ' < mmm Key bus routes
& ° ¥
‘ ’. g - eeep Pedestrian route improvements
I ?‘{_’\_‘ A «eep Aspirational Waterlink Way &,

SLER

«.F_‘Iig.4.6 _ B R ‘\
‘Sustainab |i|¥d%€ﬂn&%@ment - — i - - |:> mproved station access b
[ b = o — B -l—l—,'.N = \‘
I‘ - [ % # - .
o I N - I ’ o . %

Page 259

36 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



As described in Section 4, there are six Policy Areas and ten key development sites in Lewisham
town centre. Section 5 states the key objectives, policy, delivery context and contributions for each
of the Policy Areas and sub-policies where appropriate for individual sites to provide further site
specific detail.

The Policy Areas and their corresponding LTCLP policies in this section contribute towards the delivery
of all of the LTCLP objectives. In particular Section 5 focuses on delivery and is therefore vital in
ensuring the successful realisation of Objective 9 — Implementing and monitoring the LTCLP. Other
objectives are supported alongside Objective 9 as delivery is encouraged within policies that demand
economically, socially and environmentally sustainable growth.

5.1 Lewisham Gateway Policy Area

Overview

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

The Lewisham Gateway Policy Area is dominated by the roundabout, roads and open and
cleared spaces of the Lewisham Gateway site plus an adjoining site known as Kings Hall
Mews (Site 2, Figure 5.1). This town centre location is generally contained by railway lines
to the northwest, Rennell Street to the south and Lewisham High Street and the Quaggy
River to the east.

Lewisham Gateway is identified as one of five strategic site allocations in the Council’s Core
Strategy (Spatial Policy 2 and Strategic Site Allocation 6) due to its scale and importance in
delivering jobs, homes and other benefits. The site is the largest single development proposed
for the Lewisham town centre and will deliver £250 million of public and private investment.

A specific LTCLP policy for this site is not necessary due to its inclusion in the Core Strategy,
but the key area objectives provide a link to the Core Strategy. Policy is specifically provided
for Kings Hall Mews as this site is not covered by the Core Strategy. This site adjoins
Lewisham Gateway to the northeast, bounded by Lewisham Road and Kings Hall Mews,
and is currently occupied by a car yard.

The Lewisham Gateway Policy Area will seek to deliver the following:

800 homes

17,000 sq m retail (A1, A2, A3, A4, A5)
8,000 sq m office/business (B1)

5,000 sq m hotel

5,000 sq m of leisure

Key area objectives

° Promote high quality mixed use development befitting a metropolitan town centre

e Provide a safe, pleasant and convenient pedestrian and cycle environment connecting
the Lewisham transport interchange to the High Street and Lewisham Shopping Centre

e Improve the transport interchange between buses, trains and DLR

e  Celebrate the confluence of the rivers Quaggy and Ravensbourne

Page 260

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 37



S$2 Kings Hall Mews, Lewisham Gateway

1. Kings Hall Mews is designated as a mixed use development site. Suitable uses will include
retail (A1, A2, A3), business (B1), hotel (C1) and residential (C3).

2. Proposals must be of the highest design quality, providing a site-specific design response that
relates carefully to the adjoining locally listed four storey Victorian terrace on Lewisham High
Street, the St Stephen’s conservation area and proposals for the Lewisham Gateway strategic
site. In addition, applications will need to adhere to the following principles and address the site
and environmental constraints of the location, including:

(a) proximity to the railway line,
(b) Lewisham High Street frontage,
(c) traffic access and egress from the site.

3. Proposals must be justified by a clearly articulated rationale for the proposed use/s, height,
building alignment, scale and massing.

4. Active ground floor street frontages will need to be provided to Kings Hall Mews and Lewisham
High Street.

Page 261

38 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Policy Areas and sites

Figure 5.1 Lewisham Gateway area

LOAMPIT VALE

. Potential mixed use development

D Completed mixed use

development

@ Active frontage

. Landscaping opportunities

=) Pedestrian route improvements \

. Listed Building {

. Conservation areas

Page 262

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 39



Delivery context

5.5 Development in this Policy Area should take account of the policies in this section, the spatial
strategy and all of the area-wide policies detailed in Section 6 of this LTCLP. In particular,
the following area-wide policies are of importance:

e  Growing the local economy
e  Mixed use
e  Employment uses
° Evening economy uses
e  Town centre vitality and viability
° Retail areas
° Public realm
e  Tall buildings
e  Sustainable transport
° Public and shopper parking spaces
e  Carbon dioxide emission reduction
e  Adapting to climate change
5.6 For the full list of policy and evidence base linkages with this policy see Appendix 1.

Contributions

5.7 In addition to affordable housing and the infrastructure priorities identified in LTC22 (social
infrastructure), the priorities for site-specific developers contributions associated with new
development proposals in this Policy Area are:

Public realm improvements including Lewisham High Street and Kings Hall Mews
pavement widening and tree planting

Public transport improvements, including measures to assist bus operations, accessibility
for passengers and awareness

Provision of cycle parking near to shops and leisure facilities

Communal heating

Promotion of long-term decentralised energy options (either by direct provision or by
safeguarding opportunities through the installation of appropriate pipework to facilitate
future connections)

Page 263

40 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



5.2 Loampit Vale Policy Area

Overview

5.8 The Loampit Vale Policy Area forms the principal approach to the town centre from the west
and has evolved into an edge of centre Policy Area where bulky goods retailers have tended
to cluster. As part of any redevelopment of the area, the Council will seek to maximise the
provision of comparison retail floor space in this edge of centre location to support the
objective of becoming a metropolitan town centre. The Policy Area has more recently
developed into a location of new town centre communities and high quality community
facilities including a new public park, new leisure centre and new school. The Policy Area
benefits from excellent public transport accessibility given its proximity to Lewisham transport
interchange and there is a major opportunity to provide new jobs, homes and essential
community facilities. New retail provision should complement and not compete with the
existing Primary Shopping Frontage. Key route and public realm improvements can enhance
the potential for car-free development in a high quality environment.

5.9 South of Loampit Vale, 788 homes, ground floor commercial space and a new leisure centre
are currently being delivered. Additionally, approval has been granted for the comprehensive
redevelopment of the Thurston Road Industrial Estate (Site 4, Figure 5.2), comprising 6,771
sq m retail, 9 live/work units and 406 homes (Site 4).

5.10 Further capacity for development exists across several sites. Of those sites in the Loampit
Vale Policy Area still to be delivered there is the following indicative capacity (Sites 3a, 3b,
4 and 5):

° 1,000 homes
° 11,200 sq m net retail

Key area objectives

Provide new homes, shops, jobs and community facilities

Complement the Lewisham Gateway development

Mark the arrival to the town centre from the west

Create a high quality active boulevard along Loampit Vale

Improve north — south connections

Improve the pedestrian and cycling environment, particularly along Loampit Vale
Enhance links with Lewisham transport interchange

Facilitate a decentralised energy network

Loampit Vale Policy Area

1. The Loampit Vale Policy Area is designated for mixed use development. All proposals will be
required to complement the primary shopping area as follows:

(a) uses located on the ground floor and possibly first floor will need to be retail (A1, A2, A3)
limited to the types specified in (b) and (c) below, business (B1) and community (D1, D2),

Page 264

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 41



(b) large-format non-food retail proposals will be considered appropriate subject to their having
no demonstrable adverse impact on the Primary Shopping Area,

(c) a food store of up to 1,500 sq m (net sales area) will be acceptable on site S4, subject to any
such proposal having no demonstrable adverse impact on the Primary Shopping Area and/or
the local highway network,

(d) additional storeys will provide residential uses across a range of dwelling types and sizes in
this highly accessible location.

2. All proposals will be required to deliver the following priorities:

(a) the ground floor must provide an active frontage and strong built edge proportionate to the
town centre location, especially facing Loampit Vale,

(b) buildings must be of an appropriate scale, mindful of the immediate context and the importance
of Loampit Vale as a major route without trying to compete with Lewisham Gateway,

(c) a high quality public realm is to be provided by ensuring a consistent and coordinated treatment
of materials and street furniture and substantially improving key pedestrian and cycle routes
along Loampit Vale, Thurston Road, Jerrard Street and north — south routes that link to the
surrounding residential areas,

(d) generous tree lined pavements of at least 6 to 8 metres in width to create boulevards,

(e) buildings must incorporate communal heating and cooling systems and facilitate the Policy
Area becoming a decentralised energy hub, in accordance with policy LTC24.

3. Consideration should be given to the proximity of the proposed ‘bus layover’ site (part of the
Lewisham Gateway development) when planning for sensitive uses on adjacent sites.

4. The site is situated within Flood Zone 3a High Probability. Applicants will need to comply with
Core Strategy Policy 10 and work closely with the Environment Agency to ensure proposals will
deliver a positive reduction in flood risk. A Flood Risk Assessment for the site will need to be

submitted that clearly and concisely summarises how the reduction in flood risk will be delivered.

Additional site specific requirements:
S3a and S3b Loampit Vale north east of Jerrard Street

5. The Council require a comprehensive masterplan endorsed by all landowners for these sites
and their surrounds.

6. Taller elements of new development should address Loampit Vale.

7. Building lines may need to be set back to accommodate a dedicated bus lane for turning from
Loampit Vale into Jerrard Street and the resultant required depth of pavement.

8. Accessibility to Lewisham transport interchange should be enhanced wherever possible.
S4 Loampit Vale north west of Jerrard Street
9. Development should take account of the southerly aspect available and the new amenity

space to the south of Loampit Vale. page 265

42 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



10. Proposals need to take into account the impact of surrounding developments on the daylight,
sunlight and overshadowing of any new development on this site and use this to inform the
design and use of building and spaces.

S5 Railway Strip

11. This site is considered most appropriate for a commercially led mix of uses (employment
generating, most likely B1 use), although sensitive design could make some residential use
acceptable.

12. For all uses, proposals must provide a high quality of accommodation and amenity by suitably
addressing and mitigating against:

(a) the geographic constraints presented by the narrow plot depth,
(b) the location adjacent to the Victorian railway viaduct,

(c) the impact of surrounding developments on the daylight, sunlight and overshadowing of new
development on this site.

13. This is a secondary route and not a primary entrance into the town centre and the scale and
massing of buildings should reflect this.

Page 266

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 43



Policy Areas and sites

Figure 5.2 Loampit Vale area

S3b

LOAMP|T
VALE
g "‘II-.‘_-

—_—

|
32
<
‘g

-
=
=

2 E gqu "™
\‘ =: |} 4 . Potential mixed use development
-t -
\\\! = = ‘,"‘l O Completed mixed use
\I- = % - development /-
"‘. - ! @ Active frontage :
e £ % pan® .
i = -‘- # . Landscaping opportunities
-:-1 g \\\‘\ =) Pedestrian route improvements
e & ‘\‘\‘\‘ \ . Listed Building
\‘ 5. L B Conservation areas
'“ Loump‘i: E‘“ \
- \
'\“““_" =

-4

Page 267

44 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Delivery context

5.11 Development in this Policy Area should take account of the policies in this section, the spatial
strategy and all of the area-wide policies detailed in Section 6 of this LTCLP. In particular,
the following area-wide policies are of importance:

Growing the local economy

Mixed use

Employment uses

Student housing

Town centre vitality and viability
Retail areas

Public realm

Tall buildings

Public and shopper parking spaces
Sustainable transport

Carbon dioxide emission reduction

5.12 For the full list of policy and evidence base linkages with this policy see Appendix 1.

Contributions

5.13 In addition to affordable housing and the infrastructure priorities identified in LTC22 (social
infrastructure), the priorities for site-specific developers contributions associated with new
development proposals in this Policy Area are:

e  Public realm improvements including Loampit Vale and Jerrard Street pavement widening
and tree planting

e  Public transport improvements, including measures to assist bus operations, accessibility

for passengers and awareness

Provision of cycle parking near to shops and leisure facilities

Public access to any non-residential car parking

Communal heating

Promotion of long-term decentralised energy options either by direct provision or by

safeguarding opportunities.

Page 268

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 45



5.3 Conington Road Policy Area
Overview

5.14 The Conington Road Policy Area is immediately to the north of Lewisham transport
interchange and the planned Lewisham Gateway development. This edge of centre Policy
Area is dominated by a somewhat outdated but popular Tesco store and an associated
fragmented series of surface car parks. This is a highly sustainable location with very good
levels of public transport accessibility. The River Ravensbourne runs through the Policy Area
in a concrete channel, while the Silk Mills Path provides key pedestrian and cycle access to
the town centre.

5.15 There are two sites that have recently been completed in this Policy Area: 72 — 78 Conington
Road — an eight to ten storey building containing 270 homes and a limited amount of
commercial floorspace; and the Venson site on Conington Road — 130 homes in buildings
rising to a maximum of eight storeys.

5.16 The remaining development capacity in this Policy Area falls into the space where Tesco
and its car parking are currently located (Site 6, Figure 5.3). Tesco has expressed an interest
in reviewing its store operations and this may include expansion, changes to the layout of
the car park and a mix of non-retail uses including residential.

5.17 The Conington Road Policy Area has the following indicative capacity:

° 250 homes
° 3,000 sg m net retail

Key area objectives

° Improve links across the Policy Area to the Lewisham Gateway site, Lewisham transport
interchange and the River Ravensbourne

° Enhance the ecological quality of the river environment and ensure the river corridor is
also improved to form a valuable public amenity

° Provide retail services for the borough’s residents in the form of an extension to the
existing foodstore, suitable for an edge of town centre location that supplements those
contained in the Central Policy Area

° Provide a balanced, high density neighbourhood

Conington Road Policy Area

1. The Conington Road Policy Area is designated for mixed use development. All proposals will
be required to contribute to the realisation of the following principles:

(a) improve and create more accessible, welcoming and safe pedestrian and cycling entrances,
frontages and routes to the Lewisham transport interchange, Lewisham town centre, Lewisham
Gateway site, Lewisham Road, Conington Road, Silkmills Path and the River Ravensbourne,

Page 269

46 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



(b) improve the ecological quality of the river environment and ensure the river corridor is
enhanced to form a riverside walk, incorporating the existing bridges and with an attractive and
robust embankment. The embankment should be visually and physically accessible from
Conington Road and improve access to the Lewisham transport interchange and Lewisham
Gateway site. Suitable provision should be provided on site to allow for the inspection and
maintenance of the Ravensbourne River and associated flood risk management structures,

(c) retain and enhance the scale and grain of the existing historic fabric at the southern end of
this Policy Area, its mix of uses and townscape character,

(d) the site is situated within Flood Zone 3a High Probability. Applicants will need to comply with
Core Strategy Policy 10 and work closely with the Environment Agency to ensure proposals will
deliver a positive reduction in flood risk. A Flood Risk Assessment for the site will need to be

submitted that clearly and concisely summarises how the reduction in flood risk will be delivered.

Additional site specific requirements: S6 Tesco block, car park and petrol station

2. Development involving underground parking, residential development, and retail expansion
of the existing store (up to 3,000 sq m net additional floorspace) will be acceptable, subject to
any such proposal having no demonstrable adverse impact on the Primary Shopping Area.
Development on the site will need to respond to the following principles:

(a) due to the complex nature of this site applicants should provide a masterplan across the site,

(b) taller elements of the block should be avoided next to the existing historic fabric and the river.
However, development may take advantage of the natural slope of the site to influence building
heights,

(c) the quality of frontages to Lewisham Road and the southern end of Silk Mills Path should be
improved,

(d) new buildings should provide high quality urban space with generous, functional and formal
landscaped areas forming the central part of an improved Silk Mills Path and river corridor,

(e) underground or ground floor parking should be masked by development which provides
activity to public routes around the site,

(f) any redevelopment involving the retention of the existing store should seek to enhance the
building’s appearance and environmental performance.

Page 270

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 47



Policy Areas and sites

Figure 5.3 Conington Road area

. Potential mixed use development

D Completed mixed use

development

@ Active frontage
. Landscaping opportunities
=) Pedestrian route improvements

B sted Building

. Conservation areas

b

Page 271

48 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Delivery context

5.18 Development in this Policy Area should take account of the policies in this section, the spatial
strategy and all of the area-wide policies detailed in Section 6 of this Local Plan. In particular,
the following area-wide policies are of importance:

Growing the local economy

Mixed use

Employment uses

Public realm

Tall buildings

Public and shopper parking spaces
Sustainable transport

5.19 For the full list of policy and evidence base linkages with this policy see Appendix 1.

5.20 Further considerations for this Policy Area that should be considered alongside the stated
policy and Figure 5.3 are described below:

Masterplanning:

5.21 The Tesco site is complex and to ensure that development of one land parcel is not
detrimental to the future development of other land parcels a masterplanned approach by
applicants to the entire Policy Area is required.

Access:

5.22 Improved pedestrian and cycling access is required at the locations marked by the purple
arrows in Figure 5.3. Of key importance is the Silk Mills Path which should form a landscaped
avenue through new developments, joining the riverside walk and beyond to Lewisham
Gateway. Dissecting this path should be access from Lewisham and Conington Roads to
the river and Lewisham transport interchange.

Urban space:

5.23 Developments should deliver high quality public space forming the heart of the new
neighbourhood. Landscaping opportunities are highlighted in Figure 5.3.

Architectural quality:

5.24 The south east corner of the Policy Area is an existing area of architectural and townscape
merit containing buildings with local value. These assets should be protected and enhanced.

Contributions

5.25 In addition to affordable housing and the infrastructure priorities identified in LTC22 (social
infrastructure), the priorities for site-specific developers’ contributions associated with new
development proposals in this Policy Area are:

° Public realm improvements

e Improvements to the ecological quality of the river

e  Provision of the publicly accessible pedestrian and cycle routes
[}

Improved access to Lewisrﬁfag@szarﬂnterchange

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 49



Policy Areas and sites

° Public transport improvements, including measures to assist bus operations, accessibility
for passengers and awareness

e  Public access to non-residential car parking

e  Promotion of long-term decentralised energy options (either by direct provision or by
safeguarding opportunities)

Page 273

50 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



5.4 Lee High Road Policy Area
Overview

5.26 The Lee High Road Policy Area encompasses Lee High Road to its junction with Eastdown
Park, along with the Marischal Road shopping parade. Lee High Road provides the principal
approach to Lewisham town centre from the east. The nature of this edge of centre Policy
Area is distinct from that of the retail core of Lewisham town centre, as it is characterised
by smaller retail units and independent specialist retailers. The Policy Area already constitutes
a mixed and sustainable community, with some affordable housing located alongside more
affluent residences.

5.27 Lee High Road is a traditional high street with continuous and varied ground floor retail (A1
and A3) uses, typically with several floors of residential use above. It has a strong,
independent character and frontages are relatively short.

5.28 In 2011, a site at the eastern end of Lee High Road was completed as a new supermarket
(1,750 sq m) with 57 homes above.

5.29 The western end of the Lee High Road Policy Area (Site 7, Figure 5.4) is still to be delivered
and has the following indicative capacity:

° 40 homes
° 2,000 sq m net retail

Key area objectives

Protect and enhance the retail character and townscape qualities of the Policy Area
Create a more pedestrian friendly environment

Improve the ecological quality of the River Quaggy environment

Protect residential amenity for existing and future residents.

Lee High Road Policy Area

1. The Lee High Road Policy Area is designated for mixed use development (A1, A2, A3, B1,
C3). The Council will protect existing positive buildings (as designated in policy LTC23 heritage
assets) and will elsewhere encourage development that contributes to the realisation of the
following principles:

(a) protect and enhance small scale, independent retail outlets and evening economy uses,
limiting amalgamation of units,

(b) protect and enhance the amenities of existing residents,
(c) the scale of new development should respect the scale of surrounding development.

2. Further focus should be on improving the environmental quality of the Policy Area, particularly
through:
Page 274

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 51



(a) ensuring the high quality design of new and replacement shopfronts,

(b) enhancing the public realm in general and particularly reinforcing the positive relationship
between the small stretches of cobbled street on the northern side of Lee High Road, including
the western end of Marischal Road, to the busier Lee High Road,

(c) protecting and enhancing the biodiversity along the River Quaggy and its immediate
environment and, where possible, improve visual and physical access to the river corridor in
consultation with the Environment Agency and other relevant stakeholders.

3. The site is situated within Flood Zone 3a High Probability. Applicants will need to comply with
Core Strategy Policy 10 and work closely with the Environment Agency to ensure proposals will
deliver a positive reduction in flood risk. A Flood Risk Assessment for the site will need to be

submitted that clearly and concisely summarises how the reduction in flood risk will be delivered.

Page 275

52 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Policy Areas and sites

Figure 5.4 Lee High Road area

Ay n

L
oy

bt L TP = (

Wiy = %

Ying, = %
",, = E) 2 o 9 N
. - """"’"‘ _ E = .*a 2 Y « /A._
1 | i § § \=. . Potential mixed use development a
.‘ " ..h‘ii ‘llﬁ' E - TE "- D gom leted mixed use
= evelopment

wepamy B s e E | = rcvefonoge

. Landscaping opportunities

L
\

o & FETTTTTTY

. . —]

' i E ".:-.- =) Pedestrian route improvements

l‘(’. I i E E‘ B sted Building

.,' Fig. 5.4h 5 d . l =‘= s . Conservation areas
1 oa =

ey BFl &l g E T A= B
Yo T "m = i = R emm
Page 276

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 53



Delivery context

5.30 Development in this Policy Area should take account of the policies in this section, the spatial
strategy and all of the area-wide policies detailed in Section 6 of this Local Plan. In particular,
the following area-wide policies are of importance:

Growing the local economy
Mixed use

Employment uses

Town centre vitality and viability
Retail areas

Public realm

Sustainable transport

Evening economy uses

5.31 For the full list of policy and evidence base linkages with this policy see Appendix 1.

Contributions

5.32 In addition to affordable housing and the infrastructure priorities identified in LTC22 (social
infrastructure), the priorities for site-specific developers contributions associated with new
development proposals in this Policy Area are:

Improvements to the channel and environs of the River Quaggy

Environmental improvements to Albion Road car park

Physical and public realm improvements to Lee High Road

Public transport improvements, including measures to assist bus operations, accessibility
for passengers and awareness

Page 277

54 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



5.5 Ladywell Policy Area

Overview

5.33

5.34

5.35

5.36

5.37

The Ladywell Policy Area is the southern most part of the town centre. An edge of centre
section of this Policy Area stretches along Lewisham High Street from the end of the Hospital
up to the railway bridge, while an out of centre section runs along Ladywell Road from the
junction with Lewisham High Street up to the Ladywell Station Bridge.

The Policy Area is characterised by a historical concentration of civic and community facilities
which form part of the St Mary’s Conservation Area, taking its name from the ancient church
which anchors this community hub. The south side of Ladywell Road hosts a collection of
beautiful historic buildings, including the Playtower (former Baths) where the Council is
supporting efforts to see the building refurbished by a local community trust, and the former
police station which is a listed building. Also in this Policy Area are the former library and
fire station buildings, Ladywell leisure centre (Site 8, Figure 5.5), the mortuary and coroner’s
court building and the former Vicarage of St. Mary’s building (Ladywell House), which dates
back to 1693 and is one of the borough’s oldest buildings.

Although the whole town centre is part of the Core Strategy ‘Regeneration and Growth Area’,
the Ladywell Policy Area has a different nature from the rest of the town centre. The Council
has undertaken a Conservation Area management plan for sections of this Policy Area and
as it is in parts unsuited to wide scale growth. However, there are some key and important
opportunities in the Policy Area that require consideration, in particular the Ladywell Leisure
Centre will be surplus to requirements and brought forward for redevelopment once the new
leisure centre opens on Loampit Vale. Additionally, a number of smaller employment sites
along the north side of Ladywell Road may be suitable for mixed use redevelopment.

Parts of the Ladywell Policy Area, including the leisure centre site, form part of Lewisham's
Low Carbon Zone. Lewisham Council is working in partnership with the Mayor of London,
the GLA and a range of public, private and community sector groups to deliver a reduction
in CO2 emissions of 20% by 2012 and a 60% reduction by 2025.

The Ladywell Policy Area has the capacity to deliver:

o 150 homes
° 1,400 sq m net retail floorspace

Key area objectives

e  Promote the Ladywell Leisure Centre site for redevelopment for an appropriate mix of
uses including retail and residential

e  Conserve and enhance the heritage assets and community facilities that are prevalent
in the Policy Area

° Encourage further work to promote the Policy Area as an environmental champion,
including the introduction of a decentralised energy network.

Page 278

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 55



Ladywell Policy Area

1. The Ladywell Policy Area is designated for mixed use development. All proposals in the
Ladywell Policy Area should adhere to the following principles:

(a) promote the conservation and enhancement of the multiple heritage assets in the Policy Area
through sensitive development and environmental improvement,

(b) support efforts to increase the hub of community facilities in Ladywell Road. In particular, to
bring the Ladywell Playtower building back into active community use,

(c) promote development that contributes to the Lewisham Low Carbon Zone target to reduce
CO2 emissions of 20% by 2012 and a 60% reduction by 2025,

(d) there may be smaller development opportunities fronting Ladywell Road. All developments
should provide a mix of uses suitable to an edge of town centre location and ensure active
frontages to streets.

Additional site specific requirements:
S8 Ladywell leisure centre site

2. The Council will seek to bring forward a comprehensive development of the Ladywell Leisure
Centre site and adjoining land where appropriate for a mix of uses including housing (C3) and
retail (A1, A2, A3), subject in the case of the retail element to its having no demonstrable adverse
impact on the Primary Shopping Area.

3. The following key principles will apply:

(a) proposals should seek to enhance the Lewisham High Street frontage through the incorporation
of active uses at ground floor level and enhancements to the public realm in front of the site and
enhancements to permeability through the site. Residential units should be situated at upper
levels and to the rear of the site with associated amenity space provision,

(b) new development should seek to improve vehicular servicing of adjoining land to the south,

(c) opportunities to establish a site-specific communal energy system with potential to link into
a larger Lewisham Hospital decentralised energy system in the longer term will be encouraged,

(d) proposals could include the redevelopment of Lewisham Opportunity Pre-School, subject to
the allowance being made for alternative provision of equivalent benefit to the community.

Page 279

56 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Policy Areas and sites

Figure 5.5 Ladywell area

Ty yre vevrvrere

ir

uy, " ]
v et hend ILIE MR

N
N B ma waEm i L
I".
|
. Potential mixed use development L
- D Completed mixed use
development gy
@ Active frontage H
I . Landscaping opportunities =
'""'

=) Pedestrian route improvements

B sted Building

~—"

. Conservation areas

L

._____
LT

Page 280

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 57



Delivery context

5.38 Development in this Policy Area should take account of the policies in this section, the spatial
strategy and all of the area-wide policies detailed in Section 6 of this Local Plan. In particular,
the following area-wide policies are of importance:

Heritage assets

Mixed use

Town centre vitality and viability
Public realm

Tall buildings

Public and shopper parking spaces
Sustainable transport

Carbon dioxide emission reduction
Adapting to climate change
Evening economy uses

5.39 For the full list of policy and evidence base linkages with this policy see Appendix 1.

5.40 Further considerations for this Policy Area that should be considered alongside the stated
policy and Figure 5.5 include:

Public realm:

5.41 Lewisham High Street and Ladywell Road form the principal traffic and pedestrian routes
through this Policy Area. The junction of these roads is not particularly pedestrian friendly
and this should be addressed as part of any large scale redevelopment. The same can be
said for the junction of Lewisham High Street and Courthill Road.

5.42 The open space and cemetery at St. Mary’s church and the space outside the leisure centre
are valuable local public assets. These should be protected, or in the case of redevelopment
of the leisure centre, re-provided.

Building scale and quality:

5.43 The Policy Area contains a Conservation Area and a number of identified heritage assets
(buildings of architectural value) and new development will be required to respect this.

5.44 The scale of development in this Policy Area is smaller, at lower density than the rest of the
town centre and particularly sensitive to tall buildings. Surrounding development should take
close regard of this reduced scale. The grain of development alters through the Policy Area
with three and four storey terraces to the west side of Lewisham High Street reducing to 2
storey terrace houses in Ladywell Road.

Contributions

5.45 In addition to affordable housing and the infrastructure priorities identified in LTC22 (social
infrastructure), the priorities for site-specific developers contributions associated with new
development proposals in this Policy Area are:

° Investing in the Waterlink Way initiative
° Ensuring the heritage assets cqatribute ifively to community life
PLYE 81

58 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Policy Areas and sites

e  Highway improvements particularly by the Ladywell Leisure Centre site

e  Public transport improvements, including measures to assist bus operations, accessibility
for passengers and awareness

e  Support delivery of the Low Carbon Zone CO2 reduction targets

e  Public access to non-residential car parking

e  Support local education needs

Page 282

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 59



5.6 Central Policy Area

Overview

5.46

5.47

5.48

5.49

5.50

The Central Policy Area forms the core shopping area of the town, including the Lewisham
Shopping Centre and the street market. The Policy Area also comprises land directly adjoining
the north and south of the Lewisham Shopping Centre, Molesworth Street and Lewisham
High Street.

The Lewisham Shopping Centre dominates the primary shopping frontage and the owners
are keen to develop and improve the offer available. Land north of the Lewisham Shopping
Centre (including the Citibank Tower) (Site 9, Figure 5.6) is located at the junction between
the Lewisham Gateway development and Lewisham High Street and is also visible from Lee
High Road. It will play a crucial role in achieving regeneration objectives for the town centre
and plays an important townscape role. To the south of the Lewisham Shopping Centre (Site
10, Figure 5.6) there is scope for the redevelopment of the site of the former model market
and the Beatties building. This will help to secure the regeneration of the southern end of
the High Street.

Lewisham High Street is the economic heart of the town centre and its most important social
space. It is also home to Lewisham’s historic street market, and several churches, the clock
tower and other heritage assets. The market plays an important role for local people, in that
it provides sale of affordable products in an accessible location.

Molesworth Street provides the principal north — south route for local through traffic and is
a key component in local bus routing. However, together with the west side of the Lewisham
Shopping Centre and the railway lines to the west, it acts as a significant barrier to east —
west movement and the result is a fairly hostile vehicular-traffic-dominated poor pedestrian
environment with reduced building frontage at the back of the Lewisham Shopping Centre.
The western side of the road is almost entirely a Local Employment Location (LEL) providing
important local jobs.

Development opportunities in the Central Policy Area have the following indicative capacity:

e 200 homes
e 10,000 sq m net retail / leisure space

Key area objectives

e  Support and improve the vitality and viability of the Lewisham Shopping Centre
Encourage a sustainable form of development, including an increase in centrally located
housing

Improve the quality and safety of the environment for all users

Attract investment to Lewisham High Street

Improve east-west permeability through the Policy Area

Ensure continuation of the market’s important role in meeting local needs

Provide an improved trading environment for market traders

Page 283

60 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Lewisham Central Policy Area
1. The Council has identified the following key principles within the Central Policy Area:

(a) as the Lewisham Shopping Centre is managed, refurbished and redeveloped over time,
ensure every opportunity is taken to improve the number and nature of the east — west connections
across the Lewisham Shopping Centre area,

(b) create a more coherent and pleasant environment which meets the needs of both pedestrians
and vehicles,

(c) secure investment in the Waterlink Way alignment along the course of the River Ravensbourne,
(d) create an active frontage to Molesworth Street,

(e) working in partnership with market traders and other stakeholders, achieve environmental
improvements to Lewisham High Street and street market area.

2. The site is situated within Flood Zone 3a High Probability. Applicants will need to comply with
Core Strategy Policy 10 and work closely with the Environment Agency to ensure proposals will
deliver a positive reduction in flood risk. A Flood Risk Assessment for the site will need to be

submitted that clearly and concisely summarises how the reduction in flood risk will be delivered.

Additional site specific requirements:
S9 Land north of the Lewisham Shopping Centre

3. This site comprises land to the north east of the Lewisham Shopping Centre, the Citibank
Tower and the land surrounding it. Redevelopment of the site could be in sections or phases,
following the principles identified below:

(a) redevelopment will be encouraged in conjunction with more comprehensive improvements
to the Lewisham Shopping Centre to provide retail (A1 — A3) and/or leisure use on the ground
floor with commercial, leisure and/or residential use on the upper floors,

(b) active frontages should be provided at ground floor level to Lewisham High Street, the new
connection road between Lewisham High Street and Molesworth Street and the new northern
entrance mall to the Lewisham Shopping Centre,

(c) any proposal should seek to enhance the existing public realm and setting of the Lewisham
Shopping Centre and it's entrances,

(d) more intensive office use or residential conversion of the Citibank Tower would be favourably
considered by the Council. Any proposal should include recladding of the building and improved
environmental performance,

(e) redevelopment (including taller elements) should respond positively to the Lewisham Gateway
development and provide a welcoming and accessible entrance to the centre from Lee High
Road,

Page 284

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 61



(f) new development should be mindful of future aspirations both on site and on nearby sites
including required connections.

S$10 Land south of the Lewisham Shopping Centre
4. The following key principles will apply to redevelopment of this site:

(a) comprehensive redevelopment of the Beatties Building and model market sites should provide
retail (A1-A3) or leisure uses on the ground floor with commercial and or residential uses on the
upper floors,

(b) the redevelopment should mark the beginning of the commercial and retail heart of Lewisham
town centre, while respecting the height, mass and bulk of local surroundings. It should create
a new southern anchor for Lewisham High Street to encourage customers to travel the full length
of the High Street,

(c) buildings should make the best use of the corner site and provide enclosure and active
frontages to both Molesworth Street and Lewisham High Street as positive public space.

Page 285

62 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Policy Areas and sites

Figure 5.6 Central area

| Ry

LOAMPIT VALE

u——

- N ey

Cifibanis
Tower

O Potential mixed use development

I:l Completed mixed use

development

@ Active frontage

. Landscaping opportunities

eesp Pedestrian route improvements

B tsted Building

. Conservation areas

7 locdl Employment Location

Page 286

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 63



Delivery context

5.51 Development in this Policy Area should take account of the policies in this section, the spatial
strategy and all of the area-wide policies detailed in Section 6 of this Local Plan. In particular,
the following area-wide policies are of importance:

Mixed use

Employment uses

Conversion of existing buildings
Town centre vitality and viability
Retail areas

Tall buildings

Public realm

Public and shopper parking spaces
Sustainable transport

5.52 Efforts should also be made to continue the support of and where possible make
enhancements to the existing Shopmobility scheme.

5.53 For the full list of policy and evidence base linkages with this policy see Appendix 1.

Contributions

5.54 In addition to affordable housing and the infrastructure priorities identified in LTC22 (social
infrastructure), the priorities for site-specific developers contributions associated with new
development proposals in this Policy Area are:

Investment in the Waterlink Way initiative

Long term improvements to the Lewisham street market

Environmental improvements to the pedestrianised areas of Lewisham High Street,
Molesworth Street and public realm in general including improved pedestrian crossings
and landscaped measures

Promotion of long-term decentralised energy options (either by direct provision or by
safeguarding opportunities)

Public transport improvements, including measures to assist bus operations, accessibility
for passengers and awareness

Provision of cycle parking near to shops and leisure facilities

Page 287

64 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Policy Areas and sites

Page 288

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 65



6 Area-wide policies

Section 5 detailed the Policy Areas and development sites that make up the key regeneration areas
within the town centre and which each require an individual approach and set of policies for
redevelopment. Alongside this, a series of policies exist which are relevant to all the Policy Areas
and the identified development sites, as well as across the wider town centre vicinity. This section
presents those policies which will manage and implement town-centre-wide development.

As demonstrated in Figure 2.1 the LTCLP objectives have been matched with the objective themes
(drivers for change) from the Lewisham Core Strategy to demonstrate the close relationship between
the documents. As a result, the area-wide policies have been grouped under the Core Strategy
objective themes as follows:

e  Growing the local economy
e  Building a sustainable community
° Environmental management

Each policy is followed by a short section of rationale which highlights key supporting evidence and
explanatory text to assist with the implementation of the policy.

Page 289

66 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



6.1 Growing the local economy

6.1 Section 6.1 details a number of key policies that are vital in protecting and enhancing the
economic prosperity of Lewisham town centre. This includes policies regarding employment
uses, housing options and the enhancement of the retail offer.

6.2 For the full list of policy and evidence base linkages with these policies see Appendix 1.
6.3 The following policy (LTC9) supports the implementation of the following objectives:

Obj1 — Retail and town centre status
Obj2 — Housing

Obj4 — Employment and training
Obj5 — Open space and recreation
Obj8 — Community

Growing the local economy

1. All proposals will be required to contribute towards the successful and sustainable growth of
the local economy through the following:

(a) implementation of Lewisham Gateway proposals (see Core Strategy Strategic Site Allocations
Policy 6),

(b) a greater component of residential development in the town centre within the overall mix of
uses, supporting the borough’s housing priority needs (see Core Strategy and London Plan
targets),

(c) delivery of retail and mixed use allocations on key development sites and the retention and/or
reprovision of employment and office uses in the town centre (see LTC10 and LTC11),

(d) provision of community and leisure facilities (see LTC22),

(e) utilisation of development activity to promote training and employment opportunities, in
particular through the local labour agreement,

(f) public realm enhancements (see LTC18),

(g) creation of a secondary focus of activity at the southern end of the pedestrianised High Street,
incorporating a mix of uses to address the change in the centre of gravity that is likely to result
from the Lewisham Gateway development.

Rationale

6.4 The health of the town centre and it’s ability to develop and grow is a major strategic planning
priority for Lewisham town centre, as detailed in the Core Strategy spatial strategy and the
vision for the LTCLP. In order for this to happen, a wide mix of uses is required to create a
town centre with a number of strengths that support each other.

Page 290

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 67



6 Area-wide policies

6.5 The London Plan consistently supports the growth of the town centre, in particular through
it's policies relating to retail, housing and employment. The London Plan also places a major
emphasis on establishing high viability in town centres through a number of policies including
2.15,4.7 and 4.8.

Page 291

68 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



6.1.1 Employment

Overview

6.6 The economy, and in particular protecting and enhancing opportunities for employment and
training, is a key issue for the town centre. The Policy Areas and sites detailed in Section 5
highlight specific locations where employment uses are expected to meet certain criteria.
The following set of policies supports this approach by providing a framework of
responsibilities for several types of employment use (known as a ‘use class’).

6.7 The Council is keen to protect existing provision of employment land in the town centre and
encourage the development of new supplies where appropriate. Certain uses, such as office
and hotel provision, have been specifically allowed for through the policies and are to be
encouraged.

6.8 The following policies (LTC10 and 11) support the implementation of the following objectives:

e  Obj1 — Retail and town centre status
e  Obj2 — Housing
e  Obj4 — Employment and training

Mixed use

1. An appropriate mix of compatible land uses will be encouraged vertically and horizontally in
Lewisham town centre. In particular, residential development located above ground floor retail
and commercial uses will be supported (providing it meets policy LTC11). Proposals that do not
supply a mix of uses will first be required to provide evidence of why this is not currently deliverable
and also asked to demonstrate the future adaptability of buildings to a mix of uses. New
development should be designed to accommodate active uses at ground floor level, with a
significant amount of active window display and entrances.

Employment uses

General employment uses

1. In general, the Council will seek to retain or re-provide existing employment uses in the town
centre (uses falling within the category of Use Class B). This includes the Local Employment
Location in Molesworth Street which is designated in the Core Strategy (protected from non B
uses).

2. The Council will consider redevelopment or conversion of employment sites/buildings for a
mix of uses, especially in the Policy Areas and sites identified in Section 5 of this Local Plan. It
is envisaged that redevelopment proposals will enable the intensification of sites and there is an
opportunity to re-provide employment of an equal or greater floorspace as part of a wider mix of
uses, including residential. Page 292

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 69



3. The employment area in Engate Street is similarly suitable for intensification and it is desirable
to provide a ‘southern anchor’ to the town centre. This site is considered most suitable for
redevelopment as employment, leisure or other town centre uses.

4. The conversion of other existing employment sites to a mix of uses including residential may
be considered acceptable where:

(a) the building has been vacant for at least two years and appropriately marketed for that length
of time, and evidence is provided to this effect,

(b) the scheme will considerably assist in meeting other regeneration objectives as identified in
policy LTC14 (Vitality and Viability),

(c) the design is capable of longer term adaptation.
Office use

5. Lewisham town centre is the preferred location for office development in the borough and the
Council will seek to promote new office development where appropriate. The Council will resist
the loss of office space in the town centre. Where redevelopment entails the loss of office uses,
proposals will be required to re-provide this office space in a modern format.

Hotel use

6. The Council is supportive of this use class in principle. The Council will insist that hotel
development occurs only within the highly accessible sections of the town centre where car-free
development is appropriate and resist it where access is an issue.

7. Proposals must be sympathetic to the existing and emerging surrounding built and natural
environment and show consideration of the wider aims of the site, Policy Area and town centre
as a whole. A hotel proposal will be required to:

(a) be of the highest design quality,

(b) contain appropriate supporting ancillary space,

(c) have a ground floor presence,

(d) improve pedestrian links and not have a negative affect on transport links or public parking,
(e) have provision for a coach and taxi drop off and collection point,

(f) enhance the image and experience of the town centre,

(g) demonstrate that it plans for long term adaptability and sustainability.

Rationale
6.9 The vitality and viability of a town centre are greatly improved by the presence of an active

employment sector, therefore it is of great importance to include policies which protect and
enhance this offer within Lewisham town centre.

Page 293

70 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



6.10 Much of the employment land within the borough is designated as an ‘employment site’ and
subsequently protected by the Core Strategy employment policies, including the Molesworth
Street Local Employment Location (LEL) within the town centre. However, the majority of
the land in the town centre which is utilised for employment purposes is not included in these
designations and therefore requires LTCLP policies to provide the protection required.

Mixed use:

6.11 The mixed use and employment use policies support the provision of employment use on
the lower storeys of development, while allowing other (mainly residential) uses at higher
levels. Where the loss of employment land will generally be resisted, the re-provision along
with other uses may be more favourable at particular locations. This supports Core Strategy
Policy 4 in assisting town centre renewal and regional and national policy by encouraging
high density use of land in a town centre with excellent levels of accessibility.

6.12 Sites in the Ladywell Policy Area may be considered an exception to the mixed use policy
if evidence shows that this should be the case. The Council acknowledges that the character
of this edge of centre area is different from the majority of the rest of the town centre and
some locations within the Policy Area may be inappropriate for mixed use.

6.13 The policy requires developments to have active window display at ground floor level. This
does not simply mean a display window, but rather that the window displays activity and
interaction with the inside of the building and the people who use it.

Office use:

6.14 The Lewisham Employment Land Study (ELS) 2008 details that the borough has a weak
office use sector, which requires an increase in provision in the next two decades. The Core
Strategy advances this stance by identifying Lewisham town centre as the Councils preferred
location for office provision. Therefore there is an emphasis in the LTCLP to support the
protection and growth of office space where appropriate.

6.15 There is an ambition to achieve growth in the large scale office sector, but also to ensure
that smaller ‘town centre use’ offices of an improved level of quality are made available. The
accessibility of a town centre location makes it highly appropriate to accommodate the
demand for both large and small scale office development in Lewisham town centre.

6.16 Growing an office environment, even at a small scale, will provide an increased offer of local
jobs and support the vitality of the town centre as a whole. Increased and improved office
space as part of mixed use developments can lead to wider enhancement of the town centre
offer. An increased local workforce alongside the increase in local residents will provide a
larger and more varied market for retail and leisure facilities. In particular, it is hoped that an
improved office environment will encourage development of the lunchtime and evening
economy.

Hotel use:

6.17 Lewisham town centre is within 20 minutes travel of central London and Canary Wharf
generating a significant opportunity for hotel development. The Council consider hotels as
a suitable town centre use in principle and are, in general, supportive of the idea of the
generation of a hotel cluster.

Page 294

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 71



6 Area-wide policies

6.18

6.19

6.20

Similar to the desired increase in office development, hotels will provide local employment
as well as an increased market for local businesses through both employees and visitors.
In particular, hotel guests may provide a considerable boost to the evening economy, assisting
the planned development of an expanding leisure, restaurant and bar cluster. In support of
this, proposals must ensure ease of access to the town centre from the hotel.

It is important that proposals for hotel development are of the highest quality design and
appearance. The Council will ensure that any individual or cluster of hotels provides an
environment that has a positive effect on the image of the town centre and will strongly resist
any proposals that do not improve the range and quality of the existing offer.

The Council will protect the town centre against the construction of buildings that do not
serve their intended purpose and run the risk of dereliction. To ensure that any proposed
hotel development is deliverable and a sustainable use, the Council will require developers
to secure a hotel operator prior to the commencement of development. Given the bespoke
nature and requirements of operators, the speculative development of hotel accommodation
will not be acceptable.

Page 295

72 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



6.1.2 Housing

Overview

6.21 The Core Strategy provides a comprehensive suite of policies that support housing provision
in the borough. There is however the requirement for a small number of policies in the LTCLP
to support the Core Strategy in dealing with circumstances that are specific to the town centre
location.

6.22 The following policies (LTC12 and 13) support the implementation of the following objectives:

e  Obj2 — Housing

Conversion of existing buildings

1. The Council will encourage the conversion of existing buildings such as vacant offices or
premises above shops for residential purposes provided that:

(a) a high quality living environment can be provided,

(b) there is no conflict with existing land uses,

(c) the proposal complies with policy LTC11 (employment uses),
(d) the proposal meets demonstrated local housing need,

(e) provision can be made for refuse and cycle storage.

Rationale

6.23 Lewisham town centre has high public transport accessibility levels (PTAL) and is suitable
for higher density development. It is therefore of importance that floorspace is efficiently
used to provide active uses that support the objectives of the town centre. The Core Strategy
identifies Lewisham town centre as a growth area and is supportive of high density residential
development in this location.

6.24 The London Plan policy 3.5 supports policy LTC12 part a) by detailing the need for residential
development to provide high quality living space internally and externally. Proposals should
adhere to London Plan policy 3.5 as well as general design policies in the London Plan,
Core Strategy and other local design guidance.

6.25 Part d) demands that conversions to residential use should ensure that they are meeting
local housing need and comply with Core Strategy Policy 1.

Page 296

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 73



Student housing

1. The Council will, in principle, support the provision of student accommodation within the town
centre, providing that the development does not:

(a) cause a net loss of permanent self-contained homes, employment space or other town centre
uses that add to its vitality or viability,

(b) prejudice the Council’s ability to meet the London Plan target for delivery of self-contained
homes or,

(c) involve the loss of sites that are considered especially suitable for affordable housing.
2. Further, student accommodation will be required to:

(a) provide a high quality living environment in private and shared spaces and comply with all
relevant national and local standards and codes, including BREEAM and ANUK,

(b) include a range of unit sizes and layouts, including with and without shared facilities, as
appropriate,

(c) contribute to the establishment of a mixed and inclusive community and does not create an
over-concentration of student housing,

(d) be needed by and easily accessible to the higher education institution/s it will serve using
public transport,

(e) have a positive affect on the existing and emerging environment of the site, Policy Area and
town centre as a whole,

(f) demonstrate it is suitable for year round occupation and that it has long term adaptability and
sustainability.

Rationale

6.26 Lewisham town centre is close to Goldsmiths College (University of London) in New Cross,
several campuses of Greenwich University and is within easy reach of many other central
London universities. This creates an opportunity for building student accommodation within
the town centre. The Council considers student accommodation (purpose built or conversions
of existing buildings that are not family housing) as a suitable town centre use in principle
providing that developments can meet the rules set out within policy LTC13.

6.27 Young people and students bring with them a different spending demographic from the
existing residents near to Lewisham town centre and will therefore assist in developing an
improved economy for the town centre. In particular, students may provide a considerable
boost to the evening economy. In support of this, proposals must ensure that ease of access
to the town centre from the accommodation is of utmost importance.

Page 297

74 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



6.28 It is important that proposals for student housing development are of the highest quality
design and appearance. The Council will ensure that any student accommodation has a
positive effect on the environment and image of the town centre and will strongly resist any
proposals that do not improve the range and quality of the existing offer.

6.29 A number of criteria will inform the Council if there is an over-concentration of student
accommodation, including the existing mix of uses, the character of the Policy Area and the
impact on existing permanent residents, amenity and infrastructure. Additionally, the Council’s
housing trajectory will be used to monitor the amount of student housing permitted and
ensure that levels do not affect the borough’s ability to meet the London Plan housing targets.

6.30 The Council will protect the town centre against the construction of buildings that do not
serve their intended purpose and run the risk of dereliction. To prevent such circumstances
from occurring, speculative development of student accommodation will not be acceptable
and the Council will require applicants to secure a commitment of use by an educational
institution or a recognised student housing management company prior to commencing
development. The location of the occupying universities will also greatly affect the transport
assessment required.

6.31 The conversion of existing buildings to student accommodation is particularly sensitive given
the requirements to provide a high quality living environment which is not always possible
with the conversion of existing buildings not originally designed for that use. In particular,
the Council will not approve applications that cause a loss of residential, employment, retail,
leisure or community space in the town centre and would not accept student accommodation
which would be unduly compromised by the layout or position of an existing building.

6.32 Applicants will be required to submit management plans for the student accommodation
planned as part of the planning application process.

Page 298

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 75



6.1.3 Shopping
Overview

6.33 A key element of the LTCLP vision is to achieve Metropolitan status for the town centre in
the London-wide retail hierarchy, which will require considerable growth in comparison retail
floor space.

6.34 While growth is of clear importance, it is also vital that existing shopping facilities are
protected. Lewisham town centre has a varied retail offer ranging from ‘big box outlets’ to
town centre brands and a healthy selection of independent stores. There is also a popular
and historic market that plays a key role in the vitality and character of the town centre.

6.35 The following policies (LTC14, 15, 16 and 17) support the implementation of the following
objectives:

e  Obj1 — Retail and town centre status
e  Obj4 — Employment and training

Town centre vitality and viability

1. Development will need to sustain and enhance the viability and vitality of the town centre
through:

(a) a greater mix of ground floor uses which may include cafés, bars and other evening economy
uses (in conformity with policy LTC17),

(b) incorporation of design principles such as a mix of uses, active frontages and effective street
lighting with a view to making the town centre a safer place,

(c) shopfront improvements and funding programmes (see Shopfront Supplementary Planning
Document).

Rationale

6.36 As detailed in the Core Strategy and the vision for the LTCLP, the Council is encouraging
the development of the town centre to become a Metropolitan centre. This is in conformity
with the London Plan, which strongly supports the maintenance, management and
enhancement of shopping facilities within existing centres. The Lewisham Retail Capacity
Study states that there is viable development potential available for such expansion as
required to achieve Metropolitan status.

6.37 In order for such growth to take place, the centre must be healthy and have local policies in
place to protect those elements that bring vitality to the town and ensure future development
enhances the strength and animation of the centre. The London Plan places a major emphasis
on vitality and viability through a number of policies including 2.15, 4.7 and 4.8.

Page 299

76 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



6.38 While the Council is keen to encourage new retail uses, especially comparison retail, it will
demand that any proposal supports the wider aims of the town centre. An appropriate mix
of retail types is required and the Council will seek to avoid provision of particular types of
retail that are not deemed to be required due to an existing high level of supply. Rather,
development should look to create choice and options to enhance the vitality of the centre.

Lewisham market

1. The Council will continue to promote Lewisham Market as an essential part of the retail centre
and encourage ancillary facilities in order to maintain its viability. The Council will investigate, in
consultation with market traders, retailers and other town centre stakeholders, ways in which
the market can be improved including temporary use of the market space for alternative activities
(e.g. street food stalls or informal leisure activities) in the evenings and other times when the
market is not in use.

Rationale

6.39 The market plays an important retail role within Lewisham town centre that makes it different
from other centres and brings character, vitality and animation to the town centre.
Development should protect, enhance and complement the market at all times.

6.40 Additionally, a principle has been identified for the potential utilisation of the market area for
alternative uses outside of trading hours. This relates to an ongoing Council initiative to
promote the innovative use of public spaces for recreational use.

Retail areas

Primary shopping frontage

1. Within the primary shopping frontage, as defined in Figure 6.1, the Council will strongly resist
any change of use involving the loss at ground floor level of Class A1 shops. The following factors
will be taken into account when considering exceptions:

(a) whether the proposal harms the retail character of the shopping frontage, with an
over-concentration of non-retail uses (normally three consecutive non A1 uses and 70%
maintained in A1 use),

(b) whether the proposal will generate a significant number of pedestrian visits,

(c) whether the proposal uses vacant units (having regard both to their number within the centre
as a whole and the primary shopping frontage and the length of time they have been vacant and
actively marketed).

2. All proposals for non retail development within the primary shopping frontage, including where
relevant, changes of use will:
Page 300

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 77



(a) not harm the amenity of adjoining properties, including that created by noise and disturbance,
smell, litter and incompatible opening hours (all of which may be controlled by appropriate
conditions),

(b) where appropriate, provide attractive display windows and entrances that are compatible
with adjoining shop units.

Secondary shopping frontage

3. Within the secondary shopping frontage, as defined in Figure 6.1, proposals for development
or change of use from an A1 shop will generally be acceptable provided:

(a) itis to another A use class, community use or amusement centre where such a change does
not result in an over-concentration of non A1 uses (normally 3 non A1 uses),

(b) it does not harm the amenity of adjoining properties,

(c) it does not harm the retail character, attractiveness, vitality and viability of the centre including
unreasonably reducing the percentage of A1 units,

(d) it is considered appropriate in relation to the area’s specific retail character.

Other shopping areas

4. Outside the primary and secondary shopping frontages as identified above, applications for
development or change of use which involve the loss of A1 units will normally be acceptable,
provided:

(a) it does not harm the amenity of adjoining properties,
(b) it does not harm the character, attractiveness, vitality and viability of the centre as a whole,

(c) in the case of change to a residential use the frontage for shoppers is not unreasonably
interrupted.

Retail Policy Areas

5. The town centre benefits from areas of discrete retail character which, individually and
collectively contribute positively to the vitality and viability of the centre. There are also areas
where major retail led developments are anticipated and the retail character that they create will
be an important consideration. These retail Policy Areas are identified in the policies and text
regarding Lewisham Gateway, Lee High Road, Loampit Vale and Ladywell in Section 5 — Policy
Areas. In general, development proposals should take account of, not compromise and seek to
complement the existing and anticipated retail character of each Policy Area.

Rationale

6.41 Policy 2.15 of the London Plan promotes the identification of town centre boundaries and
primary and secondary shopping frontages. The Council specifically identified an intention
to define primary and secondary frontages within paragraph 6.93 of the Core Strategy, while
the current geographical boundaries of the shopping areas are defined in Table 6.1 and are

shown in Figure 6.1.
Page 301

78 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Area-wide policies 6

Table 6.1 Retail frontages

Existing primary shopping frontage
The Lewisham Shopping Centre

70 — 212 Lewisham High Street

Proposed primary shopping frontage

Retail development in the Lewisham Gateway Policy Area (excluding Kings Hall Mews) as reflected
indicatively on Figure 6.1

Existing secondary shopping frontage

73 — 83, 85 — 229, 236 — 252 and 262 — 328 Lewisham High Street

1—-43 and 2 — 32 Lewis Grove

1-91 and 6 — 120 Lee High Road

-Proposed secondary shoppingfrentage———
6.42 There have been a number of changes in the primary and secondary designations to account
for completed development, change of use and general updates.

6.43 The Council acknowledges that town centres require a wide range of uses, however the
primary focus should be shopping. It is considered important to protect the primary retail
functions in order to meet the vision for Lewisham town centre to achieve metropolitan status,
as well as preserving the retail character and role of the primary centre. To help maintain
the overwhelming retail character of the primary shopping frontage the Council will aim to
maintain a high proportion of A1 uses within this area, with a target of 70 % A1 use.

6.44 The Council recognises that the town centre will require more than comparison retail to
remain a viable and vibrant centre, therefore the secondary shopping frontage will be
promoted for other popular town centre uses. This includes A2 and A3 uses and a more
flexible approach to non A1 uses.

6.45 The Council has taken a more flexible approach to uses outside the primary and secondary
shopping frontage. While the Council will seek to encourage the successful use of units for
town centre uses, it acknowledges that in some cases a change of use back to residential
may be acceptable in appropriate locations.

6.46 The Council also realises that there is a need to create a more subtle, character based
approach to defining priorities for the different parts of the town centre. This is a locally
justified decision which reflects the unique way in which Lewisham town centre combines a
number of differing approaches to retail in one town centre. The differences and relationships
between the market, small shops, brand stores and ‘big box’ retail must be allowed for to

Page 302

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 79



create a successful centre. Within the shopping centre there are certain identified areas that
have their own character and this must be acknowledged and supported by proposals. These
areas are expanded on in the relevant Policy Areas in Section 5 of this LTCLP.

Evening economy uses

1. Overall approach: the Council will encourage proposals for new uses that would positively
contribute to the evening economy of the town centre where the following criteria are met:

(a) the retail character of the area is not harmed (with reference to LTC16), and in particular the
retail character of the primary shopping frontages,

(b) the proposal would contribute positively to the character of the particular area, as outlined in
LTC16,

(c) the cumulative impact of the proposal does not unreasonably harm the living conditions of
nearby residents.

2. Particular areas would be suitable locations for evening economy uses, as part of a wider mix
of uses. These areas will mainly be outside of the primary shopping frontages and should seek
to promote hubs of evening use (see in particular Figure 6.2).

Rationale

6.47 The evening economy means those uses that provide leisure, entertainment and social
meeting places in the evening (normally A3, A4 and D uses). The Council is keen to stimulate
the evening economy and assist in the provision of an active and vibrant town centre in the
evenings. A strong evening economy alongside successful evening leisure uses would
improve the image of the town centre and increased activity would help reduce the fear of
crime. Additionally, it would provide financial stimulus for local businesses and the town
centre in general.

6.48 Currently the town centre is lacking in both volume of outlets and a geographical focus of
evening economy uses. There are a number of bars and restaurants although these are
spread throughout the centre and are largely disparate from one another.

6.49 In general, the Council will encourage evening economy uses, within the confines of a number
of identified criteria. The proposal must contribute positively to and not harm in any way the
character of the Policy Area. Additionally, the cumulative impact of the proposal must not
unreasonably harm the living conditions of nearby residents, including through the creation
by noise and disturbance from users and their vehicles, smell, litter or unneighbourly opening
hours.

6.50 The Council will be particularly supportive of evening economy uses in several sectors of
the town centre (see Figure 6.2), including the generation of a cluster of restaurants, bars
and leisure uses around the Lewisham Gateway site. This Policy Area is highly accessible
via public transport, which encourages usage, but is also beneficial in dispersing people late
at night. The Lee High Road will also be considered a suitable location, to add to the existing
selection of evening uses in place. Page 303

80 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Area-wide policies

6.51

Increased evening facilities south of the town centre, in Lewisham High Street between
Limes Grove and Morley Road and also in Ladywell, would provide a good balance to the
northern offer and would increase the amount of travel through the main retail centre after

dark.

Page 304

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 81



Area-wide policies

Figure 6.1 Retail designations

Primary shopping area
Primary shopping frontage
Secondary shopping frontage

Proposed additional primary
shopping frontage

NXEEN0

Proposed additional secondary
shopping frontage

Z

Proposed additional primary
shopping frontage (currently
secondary frontage)

Z

Page 305

82 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Area-wide policies

Figure 6.2 Suitable locations for evening economy uses

Page 306

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 83



Area-wide policies

6.2 Building a sustainable community

6.52 Section 6.2 details a number of key policies that are vital in delivering an approach to the
redevelopment of the town centre that will benefit both existing residents and users and
those from generations to come. Policies cover a diverse range of subjects such as urban
design, transport and community needs, to ensure that Lewisham town centre becomes a
socially sustainable hub.

6.53 For the full list of policy and evidence base linkages with these policies see Appendix 1.

Page 307

84 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



6.2.1 Urban design

Overview

6.54 There is a considerable amount of policy and advice available on urban design at a national,
regional and local level, however, it remains important for the LTCLP to consider and provide
policy on a number of key design issues. Creating a town centre that provides a safe,
accessible and attractive environment is vital to the vision of the LTCLP. The following policies
(LTC18 and 19) support the implementation of the following objectives:

e  Obj3 — Design quality
e  Obj5 — Open space and recreation

Public realm

1. Public spaces in Lewisham town centre should be designed to be safe, accessible, attractive
and robust through consideration of the following factors:

(a) the Lewisham Streetscape Guide should be supported, in particular through the avoidance
of street clutter, and where it is useful and functional, street furniture and lighting should be
designed to delight,

(b) the provision of public art in association with all major development in the town centre will be
encouraged and should be considered at the early stages of the design process,

(c) development should enhance community safety through the overlooking of entrances and
exits and clear definition of public and private space. Applicants should show how they have
taken ‘Secure by Design’ into account,

(d) new development and public space improvements should be generously sized and designed
to improve the wider network of routes and open space in and through the town centre, particularly
for pedestrians and, where possible, create new public routes. Enhancements to connections
between the town centre and surrounding residential communities are particularly important,

(e) development should ensure that the public realm and development projects incorporate
inclusive design principles. The Council will also seek to make provision for Shopmobility initiatives,

(f) building lines should be organised to provide generous streets and pavements,

(g) intelligent planting and street trees should be used to mitigate heat island effects and assist
in reducing run-off and flood risk,

(h) urban enclosure and urban grain play a critical role in creating good quality environments
and should be considered in any proposals for development,

(i) high quality and legible signage should be provided as appropriate.

Page 308

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 85



Rationale

6.55

6.56

6.57

6.58

6.59

6.60

Lewisham town centre has a considerable amount of public realm. While green space is
largely limited to the edge of the centre, the core area contains wide pavements, a ‘market
square’ and other civic space. The Council considers that the quality of the core public realm
is of the utmost importance in generating an attractive and welcoming town centre.

In the first place, any new developments should look to add to the provision of space for
public realm where possible. This includes not only civic squares or plazas, but also other
provision such as generous, wide, well designed pavements and provision for other pedestrian
and cycle routes.

Of equal value to the volume of provision, is the approach of development to enhancing
existing and new sources of space. To create an attractive environment, consideration needs
to be given to a wide range of influences on the public realm, including, but not limited to,
the design of, street frontage, building design, height, mass and scaling, shop fronts, signage,
street clutter, furniture and art, lighting, safety features and trees and other natural aspects.
For further guidance, the Lewisham Streetscape Guide identifies the Council’s principles for
creating excellent quality public spaces.

The design of all new buildings and improvements to public places will be required to address
safety and security issues and the Council will implement Secured by Design principles.
Ensuring natural surveillance by good design, making sure ground level development adds
vitality at different times of day and night and providing safe routes for cycling and pedestrians
are all ways to design safe places, and development will be expected to address these
issues.

In order to create good quality environments public spaces should be strongly defined by
the built edges that surround them and groups of buildings should be designed to form unified
urban 'backdrops'. This can be assisted by respecting and where possible extending the
existing street patterns. Buildings should front public spaces, and on major streets and public
spaces ‘backs’ of properties should be avoided wherever possible.

In general, the approach to urban design and public realm should follow the principles stated.
Itis also important that consideration is given to other policies within the LTCLP, in particular
policy LTC2, but also policies regarding energy, historic assets, transport and other design
policies.

Tall buildings

1. Applicants will need to comply with Core Strategy Policy 18 and then satisfy the requirements
of this policy.

2. Detail of zones generally appropriate or inappropriate for tall buildings and those areas sensitive
to such development are shown in Figure 6.3.

3. Tall buildings in the town centre must:

(a) maximise this high density development type in the most sustainable town centre locations
with access to transport, shops and servicepage 309

86 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



(b) increase the amount of local amenity space and improve its quality in order to accommodate
tall buildings,

(c) add positively to the existing and emerging overall Lewisham town centre skyline through
sensitive and high quality design providing positive landmarks from all angles of view,

(d) be part of a varied size, scale and height of development,

(e) be sensitive to the surrounding environment, in line with CABE and EH guidance.

4. Applicants should provide detailed modelling to assess the appropriate building height in
relation to scale and massing.

Rationale

6.61

6.62

6.63

6.64

6.65

Tall buildings have a role to play in the town centre, but need to support a varied skyline and
assist in achieving the aims of the wider site, Policy Area and town centre as a whole. There
are many sensitivities that applicants must consider and analyse the effects of in order to
establish if a tall building is suitable. Clearly, tall buildings are not suitable everywhere in the
town centre.

Applicants must initially comply with Core Strategy Policy 18: The location and design of tall
buildings. Following this there are a number of local considerations for Lewisham town centre
that must be regarded in relation to the placement and height of tall buildings including:

Conservation areas

Listed buildings

Locally listed buildings

Undesignated heritage assets

Local landmarks

Metropolitan Open Land and other open space
Rivers

The World Heritage Site Buffer Zone

The high street and the street market area

This list demonstrates that Ladywell and other susceptible locations are inappropriate for
tall buildings and several other areas are sensitive to their development. The influence of
these factors has been taken account of in creating the appropriate, sensitive and
inappropriate zones in Figure 6.3.

The zones are based on the English Heritage tall buildings guidance and are a rough guide
as to the parts of the town centre that may be appropriate, sensitive or inappropriate for tall
buildings. Applicants will still be required to complete local analysis and take into account
the full range of factors detailed in this policy and rationale.

Policy LTC19 only relates to tall buildings inside the LTCLP boundary. The policy will not
support the development of tall buildings beyond the plan area boundary.

Page 310

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 87



0
o
o
S

Q.

(<))
S

=

(1}

(<))

|
<

6

Figure 6.3 Height guide

— J R RA sk A8 R SR AR A %

e
S N, el

e

o n=zr T |

e

'h'.'!-’l .L._.h 11.._-

TS

,.
2
" 3

Page 311

88 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



6.2.2 Sustainable movement

Overview

6.66 With a significant proposed increase in residential population and retail floorspace attracting
added numbers of shoppers, it is of vital importance that Lewisham town centre is accessible.

6.67 The town centre has excellent public transport provision by trains, the DLR and a
comprehensive bus network. Additionally the town is crossed by two major London routes,
the A20 and the A21. Further there are a number of cycle and pedestrian routes that pass
through and around Lewisham town centre.

6.68 Policies LTC20 and LTC21 are designed to support the development of transport facilities
in the centre as the town develops. These policies support the implementation of the following
objectives:

e  Obj1 — Retail and town centre status
e  Obj5 — Open space and recreation
e  Obj6 — Transport

Public and shopper parking spaces

1. Existing public and shopper parking is to be retained where appropriate and further provision
to meet the needs of the growing retail sector in the town centre will be sought to maintain the
current ratio of parking spaces to retail floorspace.

2. The development of the following Policy Areas and sites are expected to involve a significant
amount of new retail floorspace and all existing and any new associated parking spaces should
be publicly accessible:

(a) Conington Road Policy Area,
(b) Loampit Vale Policy Area,
(c) Ladywell Leisure Centre (Site S8).

3. All new developments are required to comply with the London Plan regarding the provision
of electric charging points. Further, all accessible points must meet the Source London criteria
so that they can become part of the London-wide network.

4. All car parks should prioritise disabled drivers and those with children.

Rationale

6.69 The highly accessible nature of the public transport network (buses, trains and DLR) in
Lewisham town centre, means there is a policy predilection towards the encouragement of
these sustainable forms of transport. Given this preference for public transport over the car,
parking levels are lower in Lewisham town centre than in many town centres of equivalent
size. The Council however recogp'a@eéhgtfgme groups of people are reliant on private

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 89



vehicle accessibility; some find it a preferable form of transport and some goods are not
suitable for transport via the public network. It is therefore important that a suitable level of
public and shopper parking is made available in the town.

6.70 If Lewisham town centre is to achieve Metropolitan status it must continue to be competitive
with other comparable inner London town centres. The LTCLP promotes a context for
enhanced public transport accessibility, but the centre must also be attractive for car borne
shoppers. Therefore the Council will seek to retain the existing quantum of public and shopper
parking spaces in the town centre as a minimum level. The Council will also seek to broadly
maintain the existing ratio of parking spaces to retail floorspace through a moderate increase
in provision in line with an expansion in retail floorspace. It is expected that the inclusion of
public and shopper parking within the sites identified for redevelopment (as included in policy
LTC20 Part 2) will manage this requirement.

6.71 The Council’s public parking strategy is a pragmatic one. The existing Clarendon and
Slaithwaite surface car parks are retained and continue to serve traffic arriving from the east
and south respectively. Development of the Ladywell Leisure Centre site has some potential
for further public parking for traffic coming from the south, development of sites in Thurston
Road provides some public car parking for traffic coming from the west and existing car
parking associated at the Tesco store continues to provide public car parking for traffic
coming from the north. It should also be noted that the Council will allow the redevelopment
of the small Rennell Street car park as it is part of the Lewisham Gateway Strategic Site.

6.72 The provision of public parking at these key gateways into the town centre, coupled with
improved signs and real-time information on the availability of spaces, should help enable
drivers to park at the first available parking area and help prevent through-traffic from being
delayed by those circling to find a parking space. In support of the edge-of-centre provision,
the Lewisham Shopping Centre multi-storey car park and the Molesworth Street surface car
park will continue to provide central parking. Potential additional public car parking areas
are identified in Policy LTC20 and shown in Figure 6.4.

Sustainable transport

1. The Council will work with a range of partners including Transport for London (TfL), Network
Rail, public transport providers, landowners, developers and other stakeholders to ensure that
improvements are secured and delivered to the frequency, quality, accessibility and reliability of
the town centre public transport network, including those schemes identified in the Policy Area
policies in Section 5.

2. Specific funding for improvements required to cycling and walking routes in Lewisham town
centre will be sought, including:

(a) the Waterlink Way north of the Lewisham transport interchange towards Conington Road,
(b) east — west links through the town centre and beyond to the wider neighbourhoods.

3. Additionally, mitigation works to improve the pedestrian and cyclist experience are required
at the following locations:

(a) northern roundabout, Page 313

90 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



(b) Loampit Vale,

(c) Lee High Road and Belmont Hill,

(d) Lewisham High Street,

(e) Molesworth Street,

(f) southern roundabout,

(g) the junctions at Ladywell Road / Lewisham High Street / Courthill Road.

Rationale

6.73

6.74

6.75

6.76

6.77

6.78

The enhancement of public transport infrastructure and services within the town centre will
improve its accessibility and encourage an increase in its use. Reducing reliance on car use
and relieving pressure on roads and car parking has the potential to reduce air pollution
levels and generally contribute to the environmental sustainability objectives of the LTCLP.
Alongside service enhancements, improved safety and security measures to reduce crime
and the fear of crime, combined with improved signage and the wider promotion of the public
transport network, will assist in increasing usage.

Figure 6.4 identifies a number of the public transport opportunities that the Council will seek,
alongside its partners, to deliver through the plan period. This includes improved access to
and from the Lewisham transport interchange, enhanced connections to the town centre
and multiple opportunities to improve the bus route and stops network (see relevant Policy
Area policies).

In support of Core Strategy Policy 14, applicants will be required to enhance cycling and
walking routes wherever this is possible. The Waterlink Way provides an excellent cycling
route, a key gateway to the town centre and an area of public realm along the north — south
axis of Lewisham town centre. A number of sections of this route have experienced major
improvements over recent years and developments adjoining the river or with a responsibility
to improve the Waterlink Way in the town centre will be expected to continue this recent
history through the provision of cycle routes of excellent quality.

While travel along the north — south route is highly improved, it remains difficult to traverse
the town centre along the east — west axis. All developments should consider this and take
any opportunity to safely enhance this route.

The redevelopment of a number of sites in the town centre presents a real opportunity to
dramatically improve the accessibility and safety of pedestrian and cycle routes. Applicants
will be required to enhance the existing network, providing generous pavements and walking
routes and support the safe use of bicycles.

TfL has proposed that a cycle superhighway will begin at the Lewisham transport interchange
and run to Victoria in the centre of London. This is due to open in 2013 and development
proposals should give this due consideration. Local cycle linkages to this new regional
resource should be planned.

Page 314

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 91



6

Area-wide policies

6.79

6.80

6.81

6.82

The Council will, and applicants should, seek to provide publicly accessible cycle parking
throughout the town centre. In particular, provision should be made available where cycle
routes lead through the town centre, in close proximity to the Lewisham transport interchange
and to the primary shopping frontages. Cycle clubs or schemes will also be welcomed by
the Council.

Figure 6.5 identifies those areas where the Council has recognised specific opportunities
for mitigating the impact of roads and improving the walking and cycling environment. This
is not an exclusive list and applicants should consider that there are generally opportunities
to improve connectivity across the whole town centre which may even include future proofing
for potential cycle hire extension schemes and other measures as appropriate. The quantum
of development anticipated for the town centre will only be viable if a modal shift in transport
use towards more sustainable methods is achieved. Therefore cycling and walking
improvements are central to the acceptability of planning proposals.

TfL will be consulted and closely involved in the design and, where applicable, approval from
TfL sought, for works affecting the Transport for London Road Network and the Strategic
Road Network.

The London Plan identifies a southern extension to the Bakerloo Line and a southwards

extension to the DLR from Lewisham. When these are progressed, it will be appropriate to
assess the land use implications for the LTCLP.

Page 315

92 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Area-wide policies

-
e A
£ £ ta

i
R

BB  Proposed new road layout j

/ (N i

— | mm- Bus enhancement opportunities l

1 a N |:> Rail access |

= £ i B

& A e E Existing public parking I tl.
Fig. 6.4 e }f > | l — El Potential public parking

‘Public transport opportunities Y
port opportunities -

Lj.?

. .-." _ 4 ..I. — . -_- T - _~
J--h ‘:‘. . ] - i | 4 ﬁm-\ i * \\5

Page 316

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 93



6

Area-wide policies

-

Figure 6.5 Cycling and walking

_—

LI L.

% 3 | ]
1y -
' & . -
1L
' ¢ 3§
' B 4 |
1 1} M
s £ 1k
= E Py
[ T - 1t bba 1 B | I' "
£ & . i e
. » . g ! ~
- 1 = y 4 - - .
= » r B . {
L : ; f ;F T — 1—_4 '.. 2
‘_' ¥ ‘ F 5 “'“":nu.-u.sm--.._-i i _— ‘5 - i'
LA ) neerupyAg 8 - — "L '1 L
| 3 - | J x
i J - E B B E g
‘ ' & l t - ‘i " A B
; s B3 3 AP N
s F el - 2 £ LR 18 §
A [ a * 1 y .
Sl : : 2 i £ ¥ .
5 i . i
s 1 BHIERT S
7 | ' [
- Potential cycling and walking F
o improvements i
‘ " .ljr' ‘I \ r Potential cycle parking E
W | S - Potential Cycle Superhighway | X
. g = ] g -
- Flg. 6.5 ¢ v‘z 5 ] | Waterlink Way
Cycling dnd lking - '
L e 7

o ¥

Page 317

94 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan

y . Ty 'l! - Y .
. & L™
1 % Do



6.2.3 Community

Overview

6.83 Given the desire in the vision and objectives to expand the town centre, it is appropriate to
also consider the associated facilities that additional people may require. Social infrastructure,
such as schools, doctors, and childcare and leisure facilities, will be planned by the Council
to meet the growth of the town centre, while important heritage assets will be protected to
retain the important historical context of Lewisham town centre.

6.84 The following policies (LTC22 and 23) support the implementation of the following objectives:

e  Obj5 — Open space and recreation
e  Obj7 — Environment
e  Obj8 — Community

Social infrastructure

1. The residential and commercial growth of Lewisham town centre will demand provision of
additional social infrastructure such as schools, childcare and health facilities, and community
and leisure spaces, and policing and other emergency services.

2. The Council will monitor infrastructure need and work alongside public, private and voluntary
groups to deliver services. Specifically, applicants will be required to assist in the funding and
implementation of new and improved facilities through both the planning obligations system and
direct provision. Full contributions will be required from applicants to support all social infrastructure
and in particular the increased demand for school places generated by high density town centre
residential development.

3. Priorities for planning obligations for each Policy Area are detailed in the area specific policies
in Section 5.

4. The redevelopment of existing community, leisure and entertainment spaces for alternative
uses will only be permitted if it can be demonstrated that:

(a) the facility is no longer needed or an equivalent facility can be replaced at an alternative site
with an equal or improved level of accessibility,

(b) the locational requirements for the facility are not met,
(c) the facilities need updating, which cannot be achieved at reasonable cost,

(d) alternative provision of equivalent benefit to the community is made.

Rationale

6.85 The Council understands that the planned increase in homes in the town centre will generate
greater demand for services and facilities.

Page 318

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 95



6.86 It should be noted that the delivery of the new homes for the town centre is expected to come
over the next 10 years and beyond. The Council will need to deliver the associated social
facilities at the right time and hence this is also a 10+ year programme. This is a long time
in infrastructure terms and therefore while the Council will have a 10 year forecast to
understand the amount of provision required in the future, it will not necessarily know the
exact sites or details of schemes further than a few years in advance. It is important for the
Council to retain several options for the delivery of social infrastructure in order to ensure
that the most appropriate option is available at the time it needs to be delivered.

6.87 The Council's Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) plans for the increased demand for
infrastructure that comes from the growth of Lewisham town centre over 10+ years. In order
to support the process outlined above, it is considered a ‘living document’ meaning it is
regularly updated to include the most up to date information.

Primary school capacity

6.88 Births in the Borough of Lewisham increased by 34% between 2000/01 and 2009/10 with
a corresponding increase in the demand for places in primary schools. Demand has exceeded
supply since 2009/10 and is forecast to continue at this higher level throughout the plan
period (this projection incorporates expected increases due to development activity). This
means that across the borough the expected need is for an additional 20+ forms of entry
(FE) (600+ pupils).

6.89 Primary school place planning in the borough is completed in primary place planning localities
(PPPLs) which divide the borough into six areas. For Lewisham town centre, the appropriate
PPPL is No. 3 — Lewisham and Brockley. In this area there is a projected shortfall of between
3.5 and 6 FE that will be met as best as possible by a mixture of permanent expansions
supplemented by temporary classes. Demand is expected to fluctuate across the borough
and therefore temporary flexible solutions will be beneficial. Already agreed in PPPL 3 is the
expansion of Brockley and Gordonbrock (1 FE and 0.5 FE respectively), while work continues
to locate existing schools where sites are large enough to expand, identify sites which may
be recommissioned as schools and identify new sites. Further, 3.5 FE are proposed in PPPL’s
near to the town centre and will contribute significant cross boundary benefits.

6.90 Capacity inside the town centre boundary will not necessarily need to increase as provision
in the surrounding areas may be able to support the more intensive development in the town
centre. Further, development is only one of many influences on pupil numbers in Lewisham
town centre. However, the planning department works closely with the education department
to ensure that where new development is proposed, such as in the town centre, school
places can be supplied to meet the increased demand.

Secondary school capacity

6.91 The new Prendergast Vale all-through school will see an extra 120 secondary school places
a year in the Plan Area from 2012. Expansions at other secondary schools in the borough
(most notably Prendergast Ladywell Fields in 2009/10) will deliver an additional 135 secondary
spaces between 2009/10 and 2012. The IDP identifies a need for a possible additional 400
— 600 secondary school places in the area by 2019/20. Secondary school place provision
is tackled at a borough-wide level and the Council will seek to work with its partners to identify
and bring forward the required additional capacity.

Childcare
Page 319

96 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



6.92 The Council’s Childcare Sufficiency Review (March 2008) reported on a study into childcare
facilities across the borough (based on the four children centre service areas). This found
that every ward in the borough had considerable capacity, with childcare place vacancy
rates of between 7% and 26%. However, supply within and surrounding the town centre was
found to be tight. This is unduly influenced by reduced provision in Blackheath due to high
property prices, whereas provision in Lewisham town centre is considered to be good.

Primary health care

6.93 The proposed population increase in the three wards that comprise the town centre and
surrounding area of 5,460 up to 2021 will require an additional three GPs (based on the ratio
of one GP per 1,800 people). NHS Lewisham considers that there is currently sufficient
physical capacity to accommodate three GPs within the five GP surgeries that border the
town centre, although investment will be needed for some of the existing premises to make
them fully fit for purpose.

6.94 The proposed population increase will require an additional three dentists (based on the
ratio of one dentist per 2,000 people). There is considered to be sufficient vacant and
proposed accessible new non-residential space in appropriate locations (including the
Lewisham Gateway Site) to easily accommodate this requirement.

Community and leisure facilities

6.95 The Council continues to be supportive of the provision of flexible community spaces along
with a range of leisure and entertainment uses in Lewisham town centre. In particular, the
Council will be supportive of proposals for a cinema in the town centre, and a site at the
northern end of the centre, such as the Lewisham Gateway site, is considered to be an
appropriate location.

6.96 The LTCLP is proactive in identifying opportunities for additional community and leisure
facilities as follows:

° Refurbishment of the Playtower building in Ladywell into a multi-use community asset
e  Potential for enhancement of the Leemore Resource Centre on Lee High Road.

6.97 Further needs for community premises, including the apparent demand for additional churches
(as evidenced by the number of unauthorised churches in the Loampit Vale Policy Area),
will be informed by the Council’s emerging Community Premises Strategy.

6.98 The Loampit Vale Leisure Centre will provide a significant improvement in the provision of
indoor sports and leisure facilities in the town centre, enabling the development of the Ladywell
Leisure Centre site for other uses. Opportunities also need to be maximised for the provision
of enhanced and additional leisure and sports facilities in and around the town centre.

Heritage assets

The Council will require development proposals to conserve and enhance those heritage assets
and their settings which contribute to the character of the town centre, in particular (but not
exclusively) the assets listed in Appendix 2.

Page 320

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 97



6 Area-wide policies

Rationale

6.99

6.100

6.101

6.102

The town centre’s development as the borough’s commercial heart reflects its historic location
at the confluence of the borough’s two rivers and later at the junction of busy roads and
railway lines. The core of the town centre is dominated by the 1970’s shopping centre and
today’s high density new developments but elsewhere much of the early street layout remains,
as well as numerous heritage assets which reflect the area’s historical development and
define its character.

Appendix 2 lists the known assets in and around the town centre. These are designated
heritage assets (conservation areas, listed buildings and the buffer zone to the Greenwich
world heritage site) as well as non-designated assets (locally listed buildings, local landmarks,
buildings and areas of townscape merit, and the historic market). The assets are shown in
Figure 6.6.

This is not an exclusive list and the Council will endeavour to protect all assets of value
whether currently designated or not.

In addition to the previously designated local landmarks of the Clocktower and St Mary’s
Church, the Tall Buildings Study 2010 identified three buildings on Lewisham High Street
that require recognition as Local Landmarks in the town centre:

° St Saviour’s Church, Lewisham High Street
° United Reformed Church tower
e  65-71 Lewisham High Street

Page 321

98 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Area-wide policies

Figure 6.6 Heritage assets

\ m////////,,, -
rd 7/

il
\
\
\
\
\
'V
v

listed buildings
Locally listed buildings

Areas and buildings
of townscape merit

Conservation areas
Local landmarks
Green space

Hard space

Bz~z+EHEERNB

World Heritage buffer zone

&

o

Page 322

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 99



6 Area-wide policies

6.3 Environmental management

6.103 Section 6.3 details two policies that are vital in delivering a number of the LTCLP objectives
relating to environmental management and climate change.

6.104 For the full list of policy and evidence base linkages with these policies see Appendix 1.

Page 323

100 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Overview

6.105 LTC24 details the approach to be taken by the Council with regards to CO2 emission reduction
in the town centre. There is considerable redevelopment anticipated and this offers a great
opportunity to deliver a co-ordinated and comprehensive approach to energy production and
sharing.

6.106 LTC25 adds to Core Strategy Policies 7 and 8 in detailing specific aims and deliverable
measures to ensure the town centre adapts to climate change.

6.107 The following policy (LTC24 and 25) supports the implementation of the following objectives:

e  Obj7 — Environment

Carbon dioxide emission reduction

1. All ‘major development’ will be required to incorporate communal heating and cooling which
future-proofs the development and allows for larger scale decentralised energy clusters to be
developed in the medium to long term, in some cases beyond the plan period. Where it has been
demonstrated that a communal heating and cooling system would not be the most suitable option
in the short to medium term, the development should ensure a connection can still be facilitated
in the medium to long term. In doing so developments should:

(a) incorporate energy centres that are appropriately sized not only to accommodate the interim
requirements of CHP and other centralised plants, but to accommodate a ‘consumer substation
unit’ — to provide all the necessary equipment for a connection to a heating and cooling network
and for domestic hot water preparation,

(b) where a communal heating system is not installed, incorporate pipework to the edge of the
site which is compatible with any other existing networks or sections and ensure the likely shortest
distance to future networks,

(c) locate energy centres close to a street frontage (but without creating ‘dead frontage’ to a
street), ensuring the likely shortest distance to future networks,

(d) safeguard routes from site boundaries to energy centres to enable a connection to be made
to a network in the future.

2. The LBL Energy Strategy recommends that there is potential for at least three Policy Areas
which could support a cluster of decentralised energy in Lewisham town centre in the future, as
follows:

(a) Loampit Vale Policy Area,
(b) Lewisham Gateway Policy Area,

(c) Ladywell Road Policy Area.

Page 324

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 101



Rationale

6.108 Developments will need to comply with Core Strategy Policy 8 and the London Plan hierarchy
principle of ‘lean, clean and green’. Therefore opportunities to implement energy efficiency
measures should be pursued in the first place.

6.109 The town centre has been identified as a suitable location for decentralised energy networks.
The Council will actively pursue options to establish them by, among other things:

° Monitoring opportunities and managing and co-ordinating development proposals

e  Working with public and private sector stakeholders

° Facilitating further detailed assessment of logistical and technical issues such as potential
energy centre locations, connecting pipework routes and operator issues for sites and
clusters that have potential

e  Working with TfL and utility companies, to seek to facilitate potential pipework routes
when undertaking any major highway works.

6.110 The three suggested clusters for decentralised energy in Lewisham town centre are as
follows and are displayed in Figure 6.7.

Loampit Vale

6.111  Thisis a potential future cluster and all opportunities to deliver this cluster should be explored.
There is already an energy centre in existence south of Loampit Vale and this could act as
a catalyst for future linkages to developments in the wider Policy Area, including on Thurston
Road. This system could comprise more than one energy centre, with resilience linking.

Lewisham Gateway

6.112 The outline consent for Lewisham Gateway makes provision for an energy centre and there
is scope to consider longer term options to link into adjacent sites as the detailed scheme
for the Gateway is progressed. In terms of planning for a phased approach it is recommended
that the solutions for early phases are based on the installation of temporary high efficiency
gas boilers, used to provide heat and establish the concept of district heating. Then once a
critical mass on installation has been established the connection and conversion into a wider
system can be progressed. Potential anchor loads include the Lewisham Shopping Centre.

Ladywell Road

6.113  This area is part of Lewisham's Low Carbon Zone where Lewisham Council is working with
the Mayor of London, GLA and a range of public, private and community sector groups to
deliver a reduction in CO2 emissions of 20% by 2012 and a 60% reduction by 2025. The
Ladywell Leisure Centre is a key Council-owned development site and there is an opportunity
to incorporate decentralised energy, possibly linking into University Lewisham Hospital to
the south of the LTCLP area.

Page 325

102 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Area-wide policies

ey

L3
-
-

s -
-
- ; 4
| &
-
"
; i
il -
4
B F
] =
a! =
H H
"
’
i
*
I
-
J
J—
1!‘
L ]

Page 326

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 103



Adapting to climate change

1. All developments and works to the public realm will be able to adapt to the potential impacts
of climate change. In doing so applications are required to use measures including, but not limited
to, the following:

(a) living roofs and walls,

(b) water saving measures,

(c) sustainable urban drainage systems,

(d) vegetation and planting,

(e) siting and design of buildings and services to minimise impacts,

(f) materials.

Rationale

6.114  Adaption to climate change is a borough wide issue that is dealt with in the Core Strategy.
However, there are a number of issues which are specific to town centres and where there
is considerable development anticipated and which require more specific actions.

6.115 There are a number of risks that Lewisham town centre will be exposed to as development
comes forward, including:

urban heat island effect
overheating

increased demand for cooling
air quality impacts

surface water run-off

flash flooding

river flooding

6.116 To assist in the prevention of the above concerns, applicants will be required to utilise the
adaptation tools and techniques described in this policy and expanded upon below:

Living roofs and walls:

6.117 The Council expects opportunities for living roofs and walls to be maximised throughout the
town centre.

Water saving measures:

6.118 Measures including rainwater harvesting, greywater harvesting, low flow water fittings and
water butts are considered to be deliverable on all town centre developments.

Soakaways and basins:

Page 327

104 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Area-wide policies

6.119 Particularly appropriate in the town centre are permeable and porous paving and infiltration
devices such as soakaways and basins.

Vegetation and planting:

6.120 Filter strips and swales to help drain water away and planting that is able to cope with extreme
weather conditions.

Siting and design of buildings and services to minimise impacts:

6.121 Examples include locating electrical and heating services above the likely maximum flood
water level and introducing shading to buildings.

Materials:

6.122 Materials which are resistant to extremes of weather such as flooding or over-heating or
which help to mitigate these effects, such as cool pavements.

Page 328

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 105



This section shows how the vision and objectives of the LTCLP will be implemented to achieve
regeneration and growth in the town centre.

Section 7 first explains the action and involvement the Council will have in ensuring implementation.
Second, the monitoring framework highlights the process for scrutinising the progress of the LTCLP
and how and when monitoring and, if necessary, reviewing the plan will take place. Third, there is a
brief assessment of the main risks to the successful implementation of the LTCLP and where
appropriate mitigation and adaptation measures are identified to ensure flexibility.

Page 329

106 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Overview

Table 7.1 demonstrates how the delivery of the LTCLP area wide policies will in turn deliver
the objectives and thus the vision of the plan. Policy Area policies LTC3 — 8 assist in
implementing all of the objectives. The policies of the LTCLP are also supported by those
policies in the Core Strategy and other Local Plan documents as well as the London Plan

2011.

Table 7.1

LTCLP objectives Area-wide policies delivering each objective

1 — Retail and town centre LTC10: Mixed use, LTC11: Employment uses, LTC14: Town centre

status vitality and viability, LTC15: Lewisham market, LTC16: Retail areas,
LTC17: Evening economy uses, LTC20: Public and shopper parking
spaces

2 — Housing LTC10: Mixed use, LTC12: Conversion of existing buildings, LTC13:
Student housing

3 — Sustainable design LTC18: Public realm, LTC19: Tall buildings

4 — Employment and training [LTC10: Mixed use, LTC11: Employment uses, LTC14: Town centre
vitality and viability, LTC15: Lewisham market, LTC16: Retail areas,
LTC17: Evening economy uses

5 — Open space and recreationL.TC18: Public realm, LTC21: Encouraging cycling and walking

6 — Transport LTC20: Public and shopper parking spaces, LTC21: Encouraging
cycling and walking

7 — Environment LTC23: Heritage assets, LTC24: Carbon dioxide emission reduction,
LTC25: Adapting to climate change

8 — Community LTC14: Town centre vitality and viability, LTC15: Lewisham market,

LTC16: Retail areas, LTC17: Evening economy uses, LTC22: Social
infrastructure, LTC23: Heritage assets

9 — Implementing and LTC26: Implementation, LTC27: Monitoring

monitoring the LTCLP

Policy LTC26 details the approach the Council will take to ensuring the successful
implementation of the LTCLP over the plan period. Further detail is available in the delivery
strategy table (in Appendix 3) containing each policy (site specific and area-wide) and
indicating the delivery timescales, responsible agencies, specific infrastructure needs, risk
and flexibility.

For the full list of policy and evidence base linkages with this policy see Appendix 1.

Implementation

1. The Council will implement the LTCLP by working with public, voluntary, community and
private sector partners and co-ordinating action, including:

(a) engaging in pre-application discussions with prospective developers,

Page 330

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 107



(b) using the Lewisham Design Panel or a site specific design panel to help secure high quality
design,

(c) requiring planning applications to address the LTCLP’s vision, objectives and policies,
(d) managing its own assets to facilitate appropriate development,
(e) where appropriate using its compulsory purchase powers,

(f) implementing the Infrastructure Delivery Plan, Local Implementation Plan and Borough
Investment Plan,

(9) partnership working,
(h) securing appropriate sources of funding,

(i) working with Thames Water to deliver water supply and sewerage infrastructure.

Rationale

Pre-application service

The Council has a formal procedure in place to hold pre-application discussions with
prospective applicants at all opportunities. Prior to this formal process, the Council encourages
applicants, particularly in relation to major schemes, to engage the Council in more informal
discussions at as early a stage as possible. The Council encourages early discussions with
officers to ensure all aspects of a proposal are considered from the outset in order to provide
greater certainty to applicants when developing their proposals. Discussions are focused
on emerging design and access statements with a thorough site analysis. The planning case
officer co-ordinates policy and design advice from within the Council and where appropriate
the Lewisham Design Panel and external organisations (such as the Greater London Authority
Planning Decisions Unit), to ensure applicants and their design teams receive timely, focused,
co-ordinated and sound advice.

Lewisham Design Panel

The Council operates a design panel of independent built environment professionals. Its
purpose is to provide design advice to ensure that development proposals are of the highest
design quality and fully reflect and make a positive contribution to local context and character.
Prospective developers of major proposals will be expected to present emerging proposals
for the town centre to the Panel at appropriate stages of design development. In some cases,
a particularly complex site may need an individual specialist design panel with several
meetings.

Supporting documentation

Design and access statements are a national requirement and the Local Information
Requirements for Lewisham sets out additional documentation that will be required to support
major planning applications in the borough. All documents that accompany planning
applications for sites in the town centre should demonstrate how the proposals would:

Page 331

108 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Make a positive contribution towards the realisation of the vision, objectives and all of
the policies in this LTCLP

Enable (and in no way prejudice) future development in the rest of the area from doing
the same —including the phased delivery of larger sites, in line with LTCLP policy LTC2.

LBL owned property

Subiject to satisfying legal and strategic policy requirements, the Council will manage its
assets including the property it owns in the town centre in ways that will help deliver the
LTCLP’s vision, objectives and policies.

Compulsory purchase

LBL will consider using its compulsory purchase powers where this would help secure the
delivery of high quality development that is in line with the LTCLP vision, objectives and
policies.

Infrastructure Delivery Plan

LBL has prepared a borough-wide Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) in order to:

Identify infrastructure needs and costs (including where possible phasing of development,
funding sources and responsibilities for delivery)

Further strengthen relationships between the Sustainable Community Strategy and
Local Development Framework (LDF)

Improve lines of communication between key delivery agencies and the local planning
authority

Identify opportunities for integrated and more efficient service delivery and better use
of assets

Provide a sound evidence base for funding bids and prioritising the deployment of
allocated funding

Help facilitate growth in Lewisham and other growth and regeneration areas

Integrate with the Planning Obligations SPD and provide the basis for the Community
Infrastructure Levy charging schedule.

The IDP is a live document that will be used as a tool for helping to deliver infrastructure and
will be monitored and revised as necessary. Its implementation will be led by Lewisham’s
Asset Management Board (AMB), which will report to the Sustainable Development
Partnership (SDP) — one of the thematic partnerships of the Local Strategic Partnership.
The elements of the borough-wide IDP that are considered relevant to the town centre have
been placed in the Infrastructure Schedule in Appendix 4.

Local Implementation Plan

LBL will continue to use the Local Implementation Plan (LIP) process to identify and secure
funding for improvements that better manage road traffic, improve public transport accessibility
and promote walking and cycling in the town centre.

Partnership working

LBL will work as part of the Local Strategic Partnership (which includes senior representatives
from Lewisham’s public, private, voluntary and community sector organisations) in delivering
the vision, objectives and policiel@gfge B®2P. LBL will also work with other partners,

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 109



including local businesses, the Greater London Authority, London Development Agency,
TfL, Network Rail, rail operators, the Environment Agency, landowners and developers
(through the Major Developers Forum), utility companies (through the Lewisham Utilities
Network), and others to deliver strategic change.

Further, LBL will engage and work with land and property owners and developers within the
town centre to make delivery of developments possible within the context of the plan and
vision.

Funding

LBL has an adopted Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) which
sets out a tariff-based approach to the negotiation of financial contributions from developers.
LBL may pool contributions in order to meet significant infrastructure requirements (including
those set out in the IDP). The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations (April 2010
and 2011 amendments) introduce a new tariff for raising funds from developers to help
deliver infrastructure (but not affordable housing) and the Council is currently preparing a
charging schedule in compliance with the Regulations. On the local adoption of CIL (expected
2013) the Regulations restrict the local use of planning obligations for pooled contributions,
however money generated through CIL will be available to deliver the identified infrastructure.

It is unlikely that planning obligations or CIL will be able to fully fund the infrastructure needs
of the town centre, therefore alternative sources of funding will also be required. The Council
will endeavour to use the processes identified above (including using its own land and
partnership working) to facilitate the delivery of infrastructure. Regeneration of the town
centre is largely developer led and the Council will work closely with such developers to seek
out private, government and European funding sources.

Water Supply and Sewerage Infrastructure

It is essential that developers demonstrate that adequate water supply and sewerage
infrastructure capacity exists both on and off the site to serve the development and that it
would not lead to problems for existing users. In some circumstances this may make it
necessary for developers to carry out appropriate studies to ascertain whether the proposed
development will lead to overloading of existing water and sewerage infrastructure. Where
there is a capacity problem and no improvements are programmed by the water company,
then the developer needs to contact the water authority to agree what improvements are
required and how they will be funded prior to any occupation of the development.

Page 333

110 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Overview

Government legislation outlines a clear requirement for monitoring to be a central part of the
plan-making process. Further, it is vital to the implementation process for the Council to
understand if the LTCLP is successfully delivering the vision and objectives. To achieve this
the Council will be using the plan, monitor, review approach as set out in the Lewisham
Annual Monitoring Report.

To support this process the Council has produced a monitoring policy as identified below
and a monitoring framework as part of the delivery strategy table in Appendix 3.

Monitoring

The Council will facilitate the monitoring of the LTCLP through the monitoring framework (as part
of the delivery strategy in Appendix 3) and the following interventions:

(a) using annual town centre surveys and health checks,

(b) monitoring progress on planning applications,

(c) reporting progress on infrastructure delivery to the Asset Management Board and Sustainable
Development Partnership,

(d) including a town centre specific section in the Annual Monitoring Report (AMR).

Rationale

The delivery strategy table contained in Appendix 3 displays the monitoring indicators and
targets and also describes when and how the measures will be monitored. This table will
become part of the Annual Monitoring Report process on adoption of the LTCLP. The table
also reflects and complements the monitoring framework in place for the Core Strategy.

The Council recognises that in order to be sure that sustainable development and sustainable
communities are being delivered in the town centre, it needs to be able to check on whether
the aims of the LTCLP are being achieved and to take corrective action if they are not.
Therefore to supplement the delivery strategy identified in Appendix 3 the Council will
complete the following monitoring objectives:

Checking that the monitoring targets identified in Appendix 3 are being met and
identifying the actions needed to address any barriers and blockages

Assessing the risks associated with particular aspects of the LTCLP and devising risk
management strategies and contingency planning

Monitoring the quality of new developments in Lewisham town centre and their
compliance with policies and proposals

Assessing the potential impacts of new or updated legislation, evidence and national
and regional policy and guidance

Page 334

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 111



Measuring the performance of the LTCLP against the vision and objectives of the
LTCLP, the indicators identified in the sustainability appraisal process, the Equalities
Analysis Assessment process and other relevant indicators

Monitoring the LDF evidence base and conditions in the town centre to assess the need
for further spatial intervention, including checking and updating the assumptions on
which the LTCLP is based

For the full list of policy and evidence base linkages with this policy see Appendix 1.

Page 335

112 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



The implementation plan identified in policy LTC26 and detailed in Appendix 3 provides a
process by which the vision and objectives of the LTCLP will be delivered. However, within
the 10 year LTCLP plan period there are likely to be many changes to the wider circumstances
surrounding the LTCLP which may affect successful delivery.

There will be changing economic and market conditions over the plan period, as well as
other factors, including changes in legislation and national and London Plan policy, which
will impact on the delivery of the LTCLP and its components. The full impacts cannot be
predicted and will be monitored as part of the ‘plan, monitor and review’ process.

A short risk assessment covering the key risk areas is set out below. This incorporates
commentary on contingency planning, including what alternative strategies will be
implemented and what will trigger their use.

Changes to leqislation and national or reqgional policy

The LTCLP has been prepared in accordance with legislative requirements and national
policy and conforms with the London Plan. The LTCLP does not repeat national and regional
policy, but rather refers to them and considers them in the local context. As a result, small
adjustments to higher policy documents should not necessarily affect the implementation of
the LTCLP. If major changes were proposed the LTCLP may need to be quickly reviewed
alongside other LDF Local Plans. This would be overseen by the Council's LDF Steering
Group. This would apply to all local authorities and would not be exclusive to the Borough
of Lewisham.

Policy Area and site development

A number of the sites identified in the LTCLP already have granted planning permissions.
Other sites are at earlier stages of the application procedure, while some have currently not
yet entered the development process. The LTCLP as a whole has been produced with an
understanding that granted permissions may not be implemented and therefore such sites
could enter the planning system afresh during the LTCLP plan period. This has ensured that
the policies in place are suitable for both known and unknown developments.

With all Policy Areas and sites there are risks that the expected development will not come
forward in the timescales anticipated. The majority of the sites are in private ownership, while
some are in multiple ownerships. Private developer co-operation and investment is required
in order for some sites to progress. The Council remains in close contact with a number of
land and property owners and developers in the town centre and continues to encourage
progress through partnership working.

If one or two smaller sites experience delays in delivery in the plan period, the vision of the
LTCLP could still be met due to the quantum of delivered development and the flexibility of
site indicative capacities to allow for individual site circumstances. In the event of the
widescale failure of delivery of sites, the Council would undertake a review of the surrounding
circumstances, its evidence base and ultimately a full review of the LTCLP to understand
what changes are required to produce a deliverable local plan.

The key scheme in the town centre is the Lewisham Gateway development. This site is
considered central to the regeneration of the town centre and is hence identified as a strategic
site in the Lewisham Core Stratqgagg B&@\ored and progressed through the associated

Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan 113



processes in place. While the successful delivery of this site is central to the LTCLP and the
wider Core Strategy, this does not mean that other development can not occur without it. A
number of town centre developments have already preceded the Lewisham Gateway
development and are complete.

Infrastructure

There are always risks that national or regional funding for infrastructure projects could be
reduced or withdrawn. However, the risk is considered to be low as Appendix 3 states that
key projects for the town centre are identified in existing business plans, have known funding
sources, and in some instances are under way. The biggest single risk to infrastructure
delivery relates to the delivery of the Lewisham Gateway development. This scheme involves
road movements, public transport capacity and accessibility improvements, additional and
reconfigured walking and cycling routes, open space and river enhancements and leisure
provision. As identified previously, this is monitored and progressed through the Core Strategy.

The economic climate

The effect of the recent economic recession has been felt worldwide and this is certainly the
case in Lewisham. There has been major government intervention at a national, regional
and local level, while development has slowed, albeit less so in London than elsewhere.
There is currently little assurance of whether the economy will improve or return to a
recessionary state, therefore there is a considerable risk to the delivery of development in
the near future, certainly in the first half of the plan period.

Positively, throughout the economic recession, residential and mixed use (with retail and
commercial) development has continued apace in Lewisham town centre. Schemes since
2008 on Loampit Vale, Conington Road and Lee High Road have provided hundreds of new
dwellings and additional retail and commercial space.

The Council will continue to monitor local economic conditions and work with regional and
national partners on wider economic strategies. However, there is confidence that recent
progress and the multitude of varied sites in the town centre will assist in maintaining growth
throughout the plan period. Any detrimental impact or ‘slowing down’ of development will be
considered if monitoring highlights it, but the Council remains confident that this will only
change the phasing of delivery, not stop it entirely.

Evidence base

As with national and regional policy, the local evidence base is another component informing
the preparation of the LTCLP. New evidence and a review of existing evidence will be
prepared to respond to changing circumstances, and this in turn may point to the need to
change or alter policy. This process will be managed through the Annual Monitoring Report.

Page 337

114 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan



Gl

6002 ‘Apn)s @oedg UadQ pue ainsiaT Weysima
aoeds uadQ

6002 ‘1881 [enuanbag weysime-]
8002 ‘JUBWSSasSY Ysiy poo|4 dibsjels weysima
Buipoojy pue sAemiajepy

110z ‘ABejens ABiau3z g7

6002 ‘ApnlS aseg a2uapIAg so|qemauay WeysimaT
KBiaua pue sajqemauady

600Z ‘S300UD UJIESH 81JU8D UMO.
6002 ‘APMIS SpesN [12joY WeysimaT
S81jU8D UMO} pue [1e}ay

800z ‘Apnis pue JuswAojdw weysima
puej Juswhojdwg

6002 ‘luswssassy

193\ BuisnoH o16ejens sybnosog uopuo ise3 yinos
8002 ‘Juswssassy jaxle|\ BuisnoH oi6ejens weysimaT
BuisnoH

¢l pue ||
‘0L '8°L'9 Y ‘T ‘| SUOWOBS 4ddN

vL'€LVL€9'T99G'SS
‘€GTS'6Y Y LY OV EYTY
‘Lyeregle’ziegrere’ee’a
pue D ‘v SHed G1°Z ‘€L°Z ‘€'C seldlod

0z pue
6L ‘8L ‘9L ‘GL VL ‘2L ‘L ‘Ob
‘68 ‘L9 ‘G ‘c sellod SO

9 uonedo||y NS d1belens

z foljod eneds

peoy ybiH 997
9011
— Aallod voL
peoy uojbujuo)
GOl
— Aallod voL
8jeA HdweoT — Aojjod YO L 011
Aemaje
€011

weysma - Adllod VO L

saldljod eaay Aojjod

0102 ‘ue|d A1aAila@ @Injondisesu| Weysima

0202 — 800z ABajens Z uonoas 4ddN O Hed GlL'g ‘el'g ‘e'¢ sanlod ¢ foljod [eneds ABejess |eneds Zo11
Ajunwwo) s|geulesng weysima :ainjn4 Jno Buideys
sajo1j0d [|e 10} S}UBWNI0OP D2UIPIAS BulydiesanQ Z uonoas 4ddN a Hed Gl 'z Aoljod Aiepunoq a4juad umo | 1011
- sald1j0od malnIBAQ
oseq Aa1j0d [euoneN aouepinf KB6ajeng aion d1911 apo)

82UdpIAS pue sjuawnsop asuepinb Jayjo

|euoiBal 18Yjo pue uejd uopuo-|

sa|oljod JueAsjey

sobeyul| aseq adusapIiAd pue aosuepinb ‘Aoljod ;| Xipuaddy

Page 338



9Ll

191\ BuisnoH o1bsjelS ,.sybnoliog uopuo 1Se3 yinos

yL'€8EE

800 ‘IUOWISSESSY 1By BUISNON OIBSIENS WeySIMeT 9 pue g ‘| suonods J4ddN o) pUB V/ SHEd §1Z ‘€12 ‘€Z SORIOd | folod 8O | sbBulpjing Bunsixe jo uoisieAu0D Z1o11
. o R m>o_m0n_mo <o
‘Kpn: ueiuswAojdw3aweysima ue | suoIl}od! B e uoleo0 9JIS JIbajel Sasn JuswAojaw
8002 ‘Apmis pueTy |dw3weysme ZPUE | SUOMBS AddN | o pue y sped 61z ‘€12 ‘62 SeIIOd 9 uoy __wm._wn_._m_vhm ¥ |dw3 LLOLT
9 Kaljod O
6002 ‘ApniS spesN [1eey 9 PUEEY Th L h
Weysima1go0z ‘Apnis puepuswioldwzweysima1g00z 9 pue g ‘| suonoss 4ddN | . 7 SLB GL7 L7 ‘e SOIOI0 9 uonedo||y NS dIbelenS asn paxiy 01017
‘Juawissassy JaxJel\ BuisnoH oibajens weysima a%J VsHedGle €lc €¢senliod
z foljod |eneds
6002 ‘Ue|d Jusawanoidw| J0pLI0D J8AIY dUINOqSUaARY
600z ‘Apn)s @oedg uadQ pue ainsiaT Weysima
0102 ‘ue|d A1aAlj@@ 24njoNJISEIU| WEYSIMET 6002 ‘sisAjeuy s30ayn ue
6002 ‘498D Yj|eeH 8us) UmMo | UHESH 13U80 UMO ] SPIM-UOPUOT 1t e € mm_o_wm P
600Z ‘ApniS spaaN |Ie1oy Weysme Z pue | SuoRo9s 4ddN 6L ¢l 9 ¥ €} SOIolod §9 Awouods |eo0] ay} Bumoin 6011

8002 ‘ApniS pue JuswAojdw weysiman

600¢ ‘uswssassy

193\ BuisnoH o16ejens sybnosog uopuo }se3 yinos
8002 ‘luswssassy j1axe|\ BuisnoH o16sjens weysimaT

6y PUBGY LYV 'OVEY TV LY
‘%0 ‘VsHedGlz el ‘eg saniod

9 uonedo||y NS dIbelenS
Z foljod eneds

saloljod apim-ealy

6002 J:@Ewmmwm/\ SpasN o_mwﬂmbw JUIof weysimaT]
6002

‘(weysima g7 uim 10d) seA AyyesH ‘ubiap AuyesH
600z ‘ABajens uoisnjou| [e100S WeYsIMaT

6002 ‘ue|d s,a1doad BunoA pue ualip|ilyD weysima
S991A19s Ajlunwwo)

0102 ‘Apms Jejoeley) apm-ybnoiog weysimaT
sue|d Juswabeuew

pue s|esieidde eaJe UOIIBAISSUOD WEYSIMST]
600z ‘Apnis sBuiping |leL weysime

uBisag

6002 ‘ue|d uonejuswaldw| [e00T WeYSIma

6002 ‘ApnS podsuel ] aujue) UMO] WeysimeT

6002 ‘Yuswssassy Hodsuel] apim-ybnolog weysima
Jodsuel)

9002
‘ABajelis ainsia] pue podg ‘ANAIOY |BdISAYd WeysimaT
6002 ‘Ueld Juswanoidw| JOPLUIOD JOAIY SuInogsusAey

[enuad — Aoljod vO L

8011

IlemApe — Aaljod YO L

2017

aseq
82UdpIAS pue sjuawnsop asuepinb Jayjo

Aa1j0d [euoneN

aouepinb
JeuoiBau 19yjo pue ue|d uopuo-

KB6ajeng aion

d1011

8apo9

sa|oljod JueAsjey

sobeyul| aseq adusapIiAd pue aosuepinb ‘Aoljod ;| Xipuaddy

Page 339



L)

6002C ‘Ue|d Juawanolduw| 10plio) 18AIdauIN0gSUaAey

9 uoneoolly el olbslens

010z ‘Apmis JejoelEYD BpIM YBnolog weysimeT L pueg ‘/ ‘g suonoas J4ddN G’/ PUE D pUB Y Shed G| saljod Z1 follod S wleal oljqnd 81011
6002 ‘ApniS @oedg UBDQ puE BINs|a] WEeYSIMaT :
6002 ‘sishleuy 30940
Uj|eoH 9Jjus) UMO ] 9pIM-Uuopuo]
1002 ‘Awouoo3z swi] WBIN 9 uoneO||Y SYIS dIbsiens
ay) BuiBeueyy :8ouepING 8oN0R.Id 1S8g Z Roljod [enedg sosn Awouods Bujuerl /1011
0 8 V sHed G| 'z Aoljod
6002 ‘sishleuy 30940
010z ‘Apnis Jsjoeley) apip ybnolog weysima] Yl|eaH aaua) UMo| 8pim-uopuoT] 9 Aalj0d4 SO
6002 ‘SH99UD U}ESH B1USD UMO | 9 uoneO||Y YIS dIbsiens seale |lejoy 91011
600Z ‘APNIS SPoaN Ilejey WeysimeT ¢ PUE | SUOISS dddN 6% pue Z follod [eneds
8002 ‘Apmg pueTiuswAoldwweysime 8% ‘L'v ‘dpue ] 'V sHed L'z Aoljod
8V
PUE J ‘0 PUE Y SHed 12 Aoljod 9 faljod $O Joxiew weysime] GLO17
600z ‘sishleuy sy0ayD
U)[ESH 81}U8) UMO] SpIM-UOpUOT] Gl pue g sapljod SO
9 uonedo||y SNS oIBslels | ANlIGeIA pue AJBYA B1USd UMO L 71011
6V PUBGY LYY Z foljod [eneds
‘Cv Ty L'y ‘OB V SHed Gz Aollod
6002 JUBWISSassy 9 Pue Z suoloas 4ddN 8¢ foljod | Ao110d $O Buisnoy juspnis €1017
oseq Aa1j0d [euoneN aouepinf KB6ajeng aion d1911 apo)

82UdpIAS pue sjuawnsop asuepinb Jayjo

|euoiBal 18Yjo pue uejd uopuo-|

sa|oljod JueAsjey

sobeyul| aseq adusapIiAd pue aosuepinb ‘Aoljod ;| Xipuaddy

Page 340



8Ll

ue|d [00yoS AJIoyiny uoneonp3 [eoo

[4%0r4

-800Z Ueld ABajens Bujuolssiwwo) | Dd weysima]
6002 .«C@Ewwmwm/\ SpaaN o_mmﬂmbm JUIO weysimaT]
6002

‘(weysima g7 yim 1 0d) saal AuyesH ‘ubiopn AyyesH
G002 ‘ABeyesys uoisnjou| [B100S WeysimaT

6002 ‘ue|d s,a1doad Buno pue ualp|iyD weysima]
0102 ‘ue|d A1eAlje@ @JnjonJisesu| weysime

8 pue Z suoioas 4ddN

6L'EPUBGL'E LLE
‘91°€ "0 pUe Y SHEd G1°Z saldljod

0¢ pue gl sadljod SO

aJnjonuselul [e100s

[440) N

600Z ‘Ue|d uoneyuawa|dwl| [e20T WeYsIMaT

6002 ‘ApniS Jodsuel] aus) UMO] WEeYSIMaT

6002 ‘Juswssassy Modsuel] apm-ybnolog weysima
9002

‘ABajesis ainsia] pue podg ‘ANAIOY |BdISAYd WeysimaT
6002 ‘ue|d Juswanoidw| JOPLIOD JBAIY SUINOgSUBAEY
6002 ‘Apn)s @oedg UadQ pue ainsioT Weysima

¥ pue Z suoioas 4ddN

0L'9 PuUB 6°9 ‘A Hed G 'Z saldllod

1 follod SO

Jodsuel; s|qeurelsng

1¢O11

6002 ‘ue|d uonejuswaldw| [e00T Weysima
6002 ‘ApniS Hodsuel] a4jus) UMO] WeysimaT]
6002 ‘Yuswssassy Hodsuel] apm-ybnolog weysime

¥ Pue g suoioss 4ddN

€1'9 pue J pue y sped G| "¢ ssldljod

1 folod SO

saoeds
Buiyied saddoys pue a1gnd

02011

ELEIEN
ysi|buz :weysimaT 4o} Aold [esibojoseydly Jo sealy

sde|y Buipsenbajeg podinyAlguopuo] pue |iH uibbig

sbuip|ing pajsi Ajleo0]

100z ‘ebejusH
ysiibuz pue 3gv9 ‘sbulpjing|je | uo sduepiN9sawoH
10} uBIsa pue uonelapa siap|ing awWoH

3gv0 ‘o) 4o} Buipiing

000z ‘39v0 ‘ubisaq Ag

010z ‘Apnmig Jejoeleyd apip ybnolog weysimeT

sueld juswabeuepy
pue sjesiesddy Baly UOIBAISSUOD) WEYSIMST

6002 Apnig sBuipiing |leL weysima

Cl pue g suonoss 4ddN

11 Kdlod

gl Aallod SO

sBuipjing |leL

610171

aseq
82UdpIAS pue sjuawnsop asuepinb Jayjo

Aa1j0d [euoneN

aouepinb
JeuoiBau 19yjo pue ue|d uopuo-

KB6ajeng aion

d1011

8apo9

sa|oljod JueAsjey

sobeyul| aseq adusapIiAd pue aosuepinb ‘Aoljod ;| Xipuaddy

Page 341



6Ll

1102

‘alnpayog buibieyn yeiq Areuiwidid 710 weysiman
juswnooQ

Bujuue|q Areyjuswa|ddng suonebiiqo Buluueld

0102 ‘ue|d A1eAileQ @njonuiseu| Weysime

| Xeuuy pue g ‘1|
‘0L '8°L'9 ‘v ‘T ‘| suonoes 4ddN

'8 Aollod

Buuoyuop

92011

1'g Aaljod

uonejuswa|dw

22011

sal91]|

od AiaAleq

800z ‘Abejelis abuey) ejewi|) pue uoionpay uogied
010z ‘weysima 4oy Apnis depy yesH uopuo-

010z ‘suonepuswwosay Abajesg ABiau3 pasijesjuasaq
pue uogJed Mo dyy SJjus) UMO | WeysimaT

6002 ‘Apn)S aseg 9ouspIAg S|GEMBUDY WEYSIMST

0l pue g suoldas 4ddN

Gl'G pue
€L'GTL'SLL'S'0L'G '6'S ‘€' sewljod

0l pue g/ seljod SO

abueyo sjew||o 0} uoneidepy

G¢Ool1

800¢ ‘ABajens abuey) ajewi|H pue uononpay uogqled
010z ‘weysimaT Joj Apnis dej JeaH uopuo-]

0102 ‘suonepuswwoday Abajens ABiaug pasijesjussaq
pue uogJeD) Mo dyV 94Us8) UMO] Weysima

6002 ‘ApnlS oseg aouapIng so|gemausy WeysimaT

0l PuUe g suondss 4ddN

9'G PUB G'G ‘€°G ‘TS salljod

8 pue / saljod SO

uononpal
UOISSIWS BPIXOIP UOGIED

¥2o11

abejuaH
ysi|bug :weysimaT Joy Ajiold [eoibojoseyoly Jo sealy

sbuip|ing pajsi Ajjeoo]

000z ‘3av0 ‘ubiseq Ag

0102 ‘Apnmis Jejoeley) apip ybnolog weysima

sue|d Juawabeuep
pue sjesleiddy eauy UOBAISSUOD WEYSIMST]

¢l pue g suoldss 4ddN

6°, pue g’/ saldljod

91 falod SO

sjosse abejoH

€211

aseq
82UdpIAS pue sjuawnsop asuepinb Jayjo

Aa1j0d [euoneN

aouepinb
JeuoiBau 19yjo pue ue|d uopuo-

KB6ajeng aion

d1011

8apo9

sa|oljod JueAsjey

sobeyul| aseq adusapIiAd pue aosuepinb ‘Aoljod ;| Xipuaddy

Page 342



This page is left intentionally blank

Page 343



This page is left intentionally blank

Page344



9.1 The following designations are part of a living list meaning that any new heritage assets
designated within the plan area boundary will automatically be added to it. The identified
assets listed below can also be found in Figure 6.6 in this report.

Conservation areas

9.2 There are a number of conservation areas in and around the town centre which mostly
comprise domestically scaled residential streets, notably the Victorian and early 20th century
residential areas to the south, east and north.

9.3 Three conservation areas fall entirely within the boundary of Lewisham town centre in the
north eastern corner. These are:

e St Stephen’s, which also lies adjacent to the Lewisham Gateway Strategic Site
° Belmont
e  Mercia Grove

9.4 To the south of the town centre there are:

e St Mary’s, which straddles the plan area boundary
° Ladywell, which lies close to the south western boundary

9.5 Other conservation areas close to the town centre are Blackheath to the north east and St.
John’s, Brookmill Road and Somerset Gardens to the north west.

Listed buildings
9.6 The town centre has a number of listed buildings and structures:

Clock Tower Lewisham High Street (Grade II)

Church of St Stephen, Lewisham High Street (east side) (Grade )

Lewisham Bridge School (Grade II)

Church of St Saviour and St John the Baptist and Evangelist, Lewisham High Street
(east side) (Grade II*)

Presbytery adjacent Church of St Saviour and St John the Baptist and Evangelist (Grade
1))

St Mary’s Vicarage, Lewisham High Street (west side) (Grade II)

St Mary’s Vicarage Garden Walls, Lewisham High Street (west side) (Grade Il)
Church of St Mary the Virgin, Lewisham High Street (west side) (Grade 11*)

Walls surrounding St Mary the Virgin churchyard (Grade II)

Nos 233 — 241 Lewisham High Street, Rileys (former Temperance Billiard Hall) (Grade
1))

e  No. 340 Lewisham High Street, Lewisham Fire Station (Grade II)

9.7 The first three in the above list are in the northern part of the town centre. The Church of St
Stephen is directly adjacent to the Lewisham Gateway Strategic Site.

9.8 The other buildings in the list are in the southern part of the centre apart from St Saviour’s
Church, which provides a landmark on the High Street itself. The Grade Il listed former
Lewisham Public Library lies just to the south outside the plan area boundary.

Page 345

122 Lewisham TCLP Adoption Version



Locally listed buildings
9.9 There are also a small number of locally listed buildings in the town centre as follows:

6 — 8 Belmont Hill

17-31,65-71,85-87, 93 — 95, 143 — 149 and 219 — 221 Lewisham High Street
66 and 180 — 190 Lewisham High Street

Eagle House, Lewisham Road

Buildings and areas of townscape merit

9.10 The council has undertaken an assessment of buildings and areas of particular townscape
merit in the town centre. These are buildings and areas that add to the local distinctiveness
of Lewisham town centre including:

e  Alllocally listed buildings

e  Architecturally distinctive groups of buildings such as the 19th century terraces that line
Lee High Road on the approach from Lee, and Nos 292 — 322 Lewisham Road on the
approach from Blackheath

e  Buildings that provide key focal points within the area, such as the rounded corner
building No. 23 Lee High Road, the Pub ‘One’ Lee High Road or 100 — 104 Lewisham
High Street

e Buildings that are notable for their architectural detailing, such as the Victorian Villas
at Marischal Road or No. 115 Lewisham High Street, which has the elevation clad with
unusual glazed brick

° Areas that have the potential for conservation area designation, such as the western
end of Marischal Road or the small island of historic houses comprising Nos 292 — 322
Lewisham Road and Silk Mills Path behind.

9.11 The following properties are considered to be of particular townscape merit:

1 — 3 (odd) Belmont Hill

1,7,19-45,51-83 and 91 (odd) and 2, 6, 82 — 90 (even) Lee High Road
1 — 27 (odd) Lewis Grove

65 — 83 (odd) and 90 — 92 and 100 — 104 (even) Lewisham High Street
292 — 322 (even) Lewisham Road

1-9, 51, and 55 - 61 (odd) and 28 — 42 (even) Marischall Road

1 — 6 (cons) Germains Villas and 1 — 2 Sharsted Villas, Silk Mills Path

Local Landmarks

9.12 In addition to the previously designated local landmarks of the Clocktower and St Mary’s
Church, the Tall Buildings Study 2010 identified three buildings on Lewisham High Street
that require recognition as Local Landmarks in the town centre (marked with an * below):

The Clocktower

St Mary’s Church

St Saviour’s Church *

United Reformed Church tower *

65 — 71 Lewisham High Street (The Tower) *

Page 346

Lewisham TCLP Adoption Version 123



Appendix 2 - Heritage assets

Other concerns

e  World Heritage Site Buffer Zone
° The historic street market

Page 347

124 Lewisham TCLP Adoption Version



Gcl

U} UM oM

M |10UN0D 8y

uopjeoldde
|nyss800NS

e ssaiboid

pue sjulel}suod
a)Is 8y} ssaippe
0} sladojanap
aAloadsoud
pue sisumopug|
Yum siom

0} 8NURUOD

M |10UN0D 8y

Aluo uoissiwiad Bujuueld

¢l0g Ihun

SJUIBJSUOD B)IS

palinbal
Juasuod Bujuue|d

7102 — uone|dwod

0} SJUBWAOUBYUD Peoy 1102 — pejuelb uoissiwiod

Buneay [eunwiwod pue ABiaus pasijesjuasaq

uoisinoid
Bujjem pue BulpAo pue seoInIBS SNq 10}
Buipnjour ‘syuswadueyus podsuel) s|qeulelsng

sjuawanoidw (adeosiaalls) wieals olignd pouad ueld uiyym ajajdwod Juswdojaraq

1o} uoissiwlad TN
pajuelb juaun) jdweo
juswdojanap
Aouaby Juswuosiaug
010
ay} pue 31 ‘siadojansp
pue [e1oIawwod
pue siaumo Apadoud
‘leyas
pue pue| Jayjo ‘©
Jou wbs 00Z‘L1L EEIN
® 7 yIm syuswdojonap
‘sawoy 000‘} ydweon
andw3 197
— ©sn paxIN 1123970 - 011
(€D) lenuapisal
pue (10) 1e10y
siadojensp ‘(1) ssauisnq
pue siaumo pue| 1o aoijo
pue Auadoud Jayjo pue ‘(eV 2V “Iv)
fousby JusWUOIIAUT reyas Buipnjout
ay) pue sesng $asn jo SMaN
uopuoT “JL ‘Aoyiny xiw e sasodoud leH
juswdojana uopuoT] d1011 sbury
‘P17 sjuswdojanaqg alnsig| Jo
Kedwipy Jojke wbs 000'G pue
‘P17 s)uswdojeneqg | 810y wbs 000G
asnp\ ‘sjuswdojonaq ‘ssaulsng Io
ARemajeg | 810 wbs 000‘8
weysima ‘191 ‘lieyes wbs Remayen
000°Z1 ‘sdwoy weysime]
008 — @sn paxiy l1e49A0 — €011

saloljod eaay Adijod |

ylomawel) Bulojuow pue Abajeuis Aiaaldq ;¢ Xipuaddy

Page 348



ocl

Jo Aianijep anoge
abeinoous 0} uoness Aemjiel s [enuapIsal Yim uonels
sisuped Jayjo 0} ssa99e pue uoisiroid Bujiem pue Buljofo Joy ‘|e1oJawwod joned
pue 0088 | Buipnjoul ‘sjuswsoueyus podsuel) sjqeule}sng 19 (zv | pueed
UM ydom palinbai pouad awr 8y} pue uostiedwod | Jed yoo|q
JIIM JI2UNOD BY ] juasuod Buluue|d SJUSWIBOUBYUD SUOIIAUS JOAL pue wieal dlignd jnoybnouyy Buiseyd pue juswdojarsp BulobuQ LV) ey 00s9|
Jlejal Jou wbs peoy
Aouaby JuswuoiAaug 000°‘S ‘sewoy uojbuiuo)
ay) ‘'09sa] 197 | 00% — 3sh paxi I1eJon0 —Gol11
uopeoldde
|nySS800NS
e ssalboud anoge
pue sjulel}suod |enuapisal Yym
a)Is ay) ssaippe Sjulesuod 8js ‘|eroJewiwon
0} SIBUMO pUE] 19 ‘(ev duys
Ay} Y}IM Yiom palinbai pouad pue uosuedwod Aemjiey
JIIM [1IoUN0D By | juasuod Buiuue|d sjuswanoidwi wieals oljgnd pue Juswaned ue|d ayj 3noybnouy} yuswdojanap BulobuQo LV) lleloy ayl
'90U0
Je pajquiasse
aq 0} ayIs a.us 19848
ay} 1o} ojqissod anoge psedsf
jou s} §1 usnd sjuswanoidwi wieas oljgnd pue JuswaAed [BRUSPISI UpiMm
PIEMIO} BWIOD palinbai oljjel} Snq PaseaIou| 9)ePOWILIOIIE 0} |e10IaWWOD 10 Jse0
PIN0d SoLBYOS S/JUasuU0d Bujuueld 198.4)S pJelisf 19 ‘(v yuou
|lenpiAlpul pouad ueld ayy pue uosuedwod alen
J9|[EWS Alquasse pueT 0] SjuBWBdUBYUS Peoy jnoybnouyy Buiseyd pue juswdojarsp BulobuQ V) l1eey ndweo
juswdojensp jo sBuljamp 199418
JUSWISOUBWILIOD 90 pue pielisf
oy ebeinoous sjuswanoidwi wieas olgnd pue Juswaned SHUN SHOM/SAI
0} Jadojanap oljjel} snq PaseaIoUl S)EPOWILLIOIIE 0} 6 ‘Ileyal JIOREET
pue Jaumo ajis 198.4)S pJelisf wbs 1279 ypou
sajouabe uoljeao|je ealy
Aypqixsl4 Sy sy «SPaau ainjonajsesyul o1y109dg sjab.e)} pue sauolsajii a|qisuodsay 1o Jesodoud sa)is Koljod

ylomawel) Buliojiuow pue Abajeuis Alaalldq ;¢ Xipuaddy

Page 349



Lc)

pue ssaooud anoqe aJjuso
uopeoldde |enuapisal Buiddoys
Inysssoons um (2v ay}
alnsus pue uostiedwod Jo yinos
0} siedojenap LV) llejoy pue
‘SIBUMO uondo ABisus pasijesussaq anoqe onuso
Auadoud pue |eluapisal buiddoys
197 usamiaq sjuswaoueyus BuioAd pue podsuel agnd unm (2 ay
sBunesw palinbal pouad awi ayy ‘(uopuon] pue uosuedwod JO ypou
Je|nbay sjuasuoo Buluue|d sjuawanoidwi Joylew }9a1)s pue }aals ybiH jnoybnouyy Buiseyd pue juswdojgrsp BulobuQ Jo uonelodion) V) l1eey pue
Jsnu @snoH Jlejal Jou wbs
abpug 1 ‘dnoibyo 00001 ‘sewoy [enuad
‘sellunoag pueq “1g7 | 009 — @sn paxiy Ilel8AQ — 8011
auo0z uoponpal 09 buoddng anoge
‘Alonijap |enuapisal
-UoU JO Ysu SUJS2U0D AjUNWWOD pue sbejusH um (v ausd
saonpal a)is pajuswa|dwii pue uostiedwod alnsig|
paumo |1ouno) syuawanosdwi Bulpko pue Buppied ‘Aemybiy pouad ueld uiyum aje1dwioo juswdoljaasq V) lleey llomApe]
741 ‘siadojonsp ‘|lejas Jou wbs
‘(7g7 Buipnjour) sisumo 00%°) ‘sewoy |lomApe]
Auedoud pue pue| ‘197 | 0G1 —8sn paxiy IleJan0 - /011
a|qissod suoissiwiad
Se uoos Buluued
se Alanljep jo pajue.b
JUSISOUSWIWIOD jo uoneuiquo)
ay) abeinoous sladojanap pue
0} siadojanap siaumo Auadolid pue Jl1leyal 12U wbs
B} Yjm sdom pajuswa|dwi adeosjeau)s a8y} pue| snoleA ‘Aousby 000'Z ‘sawoy peoy ybiH
JIm J1ounoD ayy | jou suoissiwiad Buiuueld pue JaAll 8U) 0} SjusWaACIdWI [BJUSWIUOIIAUT 10z uona|dwod — | 1,0z pajueld suolssiwiad JuswiuodiAUg By} ‘197 0% — @sn paxi 1=3EYYe) 997-9011
8yis siyj uo
juswdojanap Buneay [eunwiwoo pue ABiaus pasijesjusdaq
sajouabe uoljeao|je ealy
Aypqixsl4 Sy sy «SPaau ainjonajsesyul o1y109dg sjab.e)} pue sauolsajii a|qisuodsay 1o Jesodoud sa)is Koljod

ylomawel) Buliojiuow pue Abajeuis Alaalldq ;¢ Xipuaddy

Page 350



8¢l

|Ie}a] 90UBIUBAUOD Ul UOONPal ON

uononpal Jeak uo Jes A

20BdSI00]} |1B}21 SOUSIUSAUOD JO SSO| ON
SBIOUBDEA [[B}8 JO JUNOWY

Aening 9oeds ainsia| paja|dwod Jo Junowy
lleyey
Q1U8) UMO | uoisiroud ainsie| pasealou] Aunwwo) — g aARdalqo
pue (4NV) ssauisng [eo0| uolealoal ‘aoeds uadQ — G aAalqO
Hoday snjejs ‘siadojanap ‘siaumo Apadoid Buuiesy pue yuswAholdw3 — ¢ 8AR3IO
Buuoyuop uejijodoJiaw yoeal 0} 9z0z Aq @oedsliooly (4enopued uj uosedwod |y) aoedsiool pue pue| ‘sa|poq uoleonpa pue snjejs Awouooa
lenuuy |lejal jeuonippe wbs 0Q0‘0¥ JO UOISINOIH Jlejal SSejo Y |euonippe paja|dwod Jo Junowy 92Jawwod olgnd Jayjo ‘g7 BJ}UBD UMO} pUE [IB}oY — | dADSB[q0 |eoo] 8y} Buimols — D11
anoqe salpoq J03oas olgnd
AbBajens pue ajeAud Jayjo ‘syuapisal
K1anjop ‘sealy A21j0d 9y} Ul payuapl sajis ay} pue ssauisnq |eo0| ‘siadojarap
S9)Is 993 anoqe Abajelis A1anljap sa)is 89S 10 A1anljep |nyssaoons ayy Aq panold si siyL ‘s;aumo Auadoud pue pue| ‘197 saA08[qO IV ABajesns [eneds — zo11
snjejs
e/u e/ e/ a1 9JJUSD UMO} PUE [Ie}ay — | dA93IqO Atepunoq ease ueld — 117
921nos
Jojeaipuj sajep pue jabie] uoljoe pue Jojeaipuj sajouabe ajgisuodsay saAnoalqo oibajens Koijod

saloljod apim-ealy ¢

Z22O11 Aoljod ul yum yesp ale asay] "sainseaw Aoy Joyjo pue uodsuel) ‘eoeds uado |esausb se ||am se
salljioe) AlUNWWOoD pue saljioe) Yyjeay ‘S|ooyds Se yons ainjondiseljul [B100S SpJemo) suolinguiuoo Buipnjoul ‘syjuswdojansp ajuad
umo) Jolew |e ssoloe piepuels se palinbal ale s|9a) g7 18yl Sluswalinbal 8soy) apn|joul Jou Op SPasu ainyonJiselyul oioads

pouad ueld
ay) ut Assniep
abeinoous
sajouabe uoljeao|je ealy
Aypqixsl4 Sy sy «SPaau ainjonajsesyul o1y109dg sjabie} pue sauolsa|iN a|qisuodsay 1o Jesodoud sa)is Koljod

ylomawel) Buliojiuow pue Abajeuis Alaalldq ;¢ Xipuaddy

Page 351



6¢l

asealou| Jeak uo Jea\

Aaning ssauisnq
ey |2A8] Jooj) punolb Je sesn Awouoos Buluan] |B00] ‘S1odOjoAsp ‘SIBUMO
aJ)u8) UMO | Auadoud pue pue| ‘saipoq Buiuiesy pue juswhojdw3 — ¢ 8A08IgO Aligen pue
pue YAV juswanoidwi Jeak uo JBaA | S99 Yjeay pue ASAINS 81u8d UMO} [ENUUY aJjuad umo} alignd Jayjo ‘197 ubisap ajqeule}sng — ¢ aA1dalqO Ajijeyn anuao umo] — 1017
Bunoyuow
V19 suopnsul
syable) Buisnoy |leuoiieonpa ‘siadojansp
YWYV | ybBnosog weysime uo joedwi aanebau oN Kianljep Buisnoy piepuels pue jusapnis ‘sloumo Auadoid pue pue| ‘g7 BuisnoH — g aAo8lqo Buisnoy yuepnis — €101
9|OYM B SB 21ju8d UMO}
2y} Joy abelane sy sulewsal %0} aJnsug (uowssossy
sisAjeuy sapijenb3 auy) ul paiyuspl ainseaw)
uolsinold Buisnoy o|qissadoe Jleydjeaym
JO JUNOWE |[BJaA0 8y} uo Joedwi aAebau oN
210171 Ad1j0d 101pEAU0D Jey) SUOISISAUOD sladojansp sBuipjing
HAY suoissiwiad oN Jo} pajuelb suoissiwlad Jo JaquinN ‘sisumo Apadoud pue pue| ‘197 BuisnoH — z aA393[q0 Bunsixa jJo uoisIeAu0D — Z1L 011
137 199415 YLOMSS|O|A JO UoRUSIY
137
1991)S YHOMSS|O\ 8U} Ul 92edS JO SSO| ON aoeds
juswAojdwa asn g jo Juawaode|das ‘uoljusley
aoeds juswAojdwa asn g Jo sso| Jou ON
ssauisng |eoo|
ABajens Aianiep ‘siadojanap ‘sioumo Apadoid Bujuiesy pue uswAholdw3 — ¢ 8ABIAO
S8}Is 8y} Ul Jno }as (soeds jJuswAhojdwa sa)ls pue pue| ‘salpoq Uol}ednpa pue snjejs
HAY Jo xiw) sjesodoud paynuapl 8y} yoyew | juswdojersp mau uo sasn juswhojdwa Jo Xi|\ 92Jawwo9 olgnd Jayjo ‘197 9JjU9D UMO} pue |Ieloy — | 9ARDalqO sasn juswAodwz — 11017
Bujuiesy pue JuswAholdw3 — ¢ 8ABIAO
ABejens suoneloosse BuisnoH — z aA3alqO
KIaAI[Bp S,8)IS BY} Ul payuapl sajeasal} KbBayje.s A1aAljap s,8)1S 8U} YIm aul| ul Buisnoy ‘siadojonsp snjejs
HNY YNm aul| ul paaljep uswdojersq Juswdojanap asn paxiw palaAllep Jo Junowy | ‘sisumo Auadoid pue pue| ‘197 2JJUSD UMO} PUE [IeJay — | dA93Iq0 asn paxiN — 0LO11
924no0s
Jojeaipuj sajep pue jabie] uoljoe pue Jojeaipuj sajouabe a|qisuodsay saAnoalqo o1bajens Koiljod

ylomawel) Buliojiuow pue Abajeuis Alaalldq ;¢ Xipuaddy

Page 352



o€l

Aaning uoiealoal ‘eoeds uadQ — G aAalqO
lleyoy Buiuresy pue juswhojdw3 — ¢ 8A08IQO
asua) umo | QJjU8d UMO} By} Ul (Y ssauisnq [eoo| ‘siadojarap snjejs sasn
pue YNY 9sealoul Jeak uo Jea A pue gy) sjun Awouooa BuluaAs Jo awn|oA ‘sloumo Apadoid g7 9J}UBD UMO} pUE [IB}oY — | 9ARB[q0 Awouoos Buluang — /1017
Jsjoeleyd
|1ejas 0} ayeudoiddeu syuswdojaasp Jo "ON
sainbBiy Aouednooo |iejey
sjuswdojanap oN
sajel Aoueoen ul uononpay
Aanng (mou e ul ¢ Jan0 Ajlewuou)
Jleyoy SHUN | y/-UOU JO UO[}eJjus8duo0d-I1aA0 Bujuiesy pue juswholdw3 —  aAd8IAO
aIuad UMo | ploAe ‘Os|Y {1V Se a0edsioo|} [e}0} JO %0/ abeyjuoly Buiddoys snjejs
pue YAV ulejas pue 90edsioo|} Ly Ul uolonpal oN Arewpd ay) ul 8oedsI00)) |V JO JUNOWY 1g1 9JjUSD UMO} pue [Ie}oy — | 9ADB[q0 seale |lejoy — 91011
Buuiesy pue yuswAholdw3 — ¢ 8A3IQO
sayoyd slopeu} Joy ew ‘(1oxew ay} snjejs
HAY JodJew }9alis o|qe|leAe Ul uolonpal oN sayoyd joxiew j9a1)s Jo uonualey Buisuaol| pue Buibeuew ul) 197 9J)USD UMO} pPUE [IeJay — | dA9alqO Jos W Weysime — G111
924no0s
Jojeaipuj sajep pue jabie] uoljoe pue Jojeaipuj sajouabe a|qisuodsay saAnoalqo o1bajens Koiljod

ylomawel) Buliojiuow pue Abajeuis Alaalldq ;¢ Xipuaddy

Page 353



L€V

sooe|d Bupied 8|942 ul ymoib [enuuy

Bupjied 81949 Jo Junowy

juswuodIAUg — 2 BADB[O
podsuel] — g aAdalqo

papinoid 741 ‘siadojanap uofjeasoal ‘aoeds uadQ — G 893[O
AV ymoub fenuuy Ao pue Bupjiem panoidui jo Yybua ‘sloumo Apadoud ‘197 ubisap ajqeuleisng — ¢ aAd8lqO Hodsuel a|qeure}snsg — 1.z0 11
asuad Buiddoys
aoedsl00]} |IB}al JO ay} ‘ssauisnq |eoo] ‘siadojanap saoeds Bupped
HAY onel bunsixe o} pasedwod sso| ON junowe ay} 0} seoeds Bupued ognd jo oney ‘stoumo Apedoid ‘“1g7 Jodsuel] — g aAoalqo Jaddoys ‘a1gnd — 0ZOL1
aouepinb H3
pue 3gy9 Jo ‘pue g0 17 Ad1jod Buioipesnuod Joued ubisep ‘siedojersp
HAY suoissiwiad oN sbBuip|ing Jo} pajuelb suoissiwiad Jo "ON ‘sisumo Apadoud pue pue| ‘g7 ubisap s|gqeuleisng — ¢ aAdalqo sBuip|ing el - 61011
9sea.1oUul Jeak uo Jes \
s|lem pue sjoos Buial| Buipnjoul
A)ISJoAIpOIq JO seale [euolippe JO UOISIAOI]
aoeds piey 21qnd jo ueb joN Juswdojenap mau siadojensp
Jo ued se aoeds 21jgnd mau Jo uoisinoid aes ‘siaumo pue| pue Apadoid
HAY 9oeds uado Jo sso| }au ON pue aoeds uado uo juswdojarap Jusnald 10309s 21jlgnd pue ajeaud ‘197 uoljeasdal ‘eoeds uadQ — G 9A198[q0O wileal allgnd — 81011
924nos
lojeaipuj sajep pue jabie] uoljoe pue iojeaipuj sajouabe a|qisuodsay saAnoalqo o1bajens Koiljod

ylomawel) Buliojiuow pue Abajeuis Alaalldq ;¢ Xipuaddy

Page 354



cel

sjosse abejuay

pajeubisepun pue pajeubissp JO SSO| ON

sjosse abejliay pajyeubisep
-uou pue pajeubisap payiuap! Jo JaquinN

sjuapisal
|e20) ‘suonesiuebio Aieyunjoa

‘abeyay ysibu3 ‘siadojonap

Aunwwo) — g aAdalqo

HAY sjosse abejay pajsi| Jo sso| ON 117 |e20] 0} pappe sbulp|ing Jo Jaqunpn ‘sloumo Apadoud “1g7 JuswuoIIAUT — / BAIRBIIO sjosse abejioH — €201
9sE2.10Ul JE3A UO Jes
9SBaJoU| JBdA U0 JBd A Go abe je Aouejoadxa ay| AyyeaH
jus|eAinba 10 H 0} v sepelb
Je s35D9 alow Jo G Buiaiedal sidnd o,
uooNpal Jeak uo Jes A
suoneoylienb ou yum ¢/ — 9| pabe ajdoad
Airepunoq eale ueid
aU} UIY}IM SYOS JO sjuel |[eJano anosdw|
uonealdaq ajdnn|y Jo xapu|
d10178u
10 $ xipuaddy yym souepioode ul Alaalieq
aunjonuisedyul [e100s payiuap! Jo Alenijeg suonesiueblio
Alejun|on ‘syuspisal
paja|dwod san|ioe} 1e20] ‘SHN ‘sJadojansp
HNY SSO| }au ON |euoljealoal pue AJunwiwod Jo Sso| ON ‘sloumo Auadoud g7 Aunwwod — g aAslqO ainjonuselul [e100s — zzo 11
924nos
lojeaipuj sajep pue jabie] uoljoe pue iojeaipuj sajouabe a|qisuodsay saAnoalqo o1bajens Koiljod

ylomawel) Buliojiuow pue Abajeuis Alaalldq ;¢ Xipuaddy

Page 355



€el

8sealoul Jeak uo Jes A

suoneoldde oiaz

S||lEM pue S}00I

(sans) swayshs
abeujeiq uequn a|qeule}sng ajesodiodul

yoiym sjuawdojanap paroidde jo "oN

(spuno.b
Ajjenb Jajem Jo 8ouajap pooy}) adIApPe Y3 O}

A1enuoo pajuesb suoissiwiad Buiuueld jo ‘oN

V19 ‘|oued ubisap ‘siadojarap

juswiuolIAUg — 2 BADB[O

abueyd
ajew|d o} uojeydepy — GgOL

HAVY Buinl] paje|dwod Jo Jaquinu 8y} Ul 8sealou| S||em pue sjooJ BulAll mau Jo "ON ‘sisumo Apadoud pue pue| ‘197 ubisap ajgeuleisng — ¢ aA3[q0
9sea.0Uul JEaA UO JBa A
swiaysAs Buljooo pue
Buneay [eunwiwod 0} pajoauuod saipadold
JO Jaquinu 8y} Ul 8Sea.oUl Jeak uo JesA
uoyejdepe ainjny Joj UOIOBUUOD IO
swa)sAs Buljood pue Buieay jeunwiwod yum 741 ‘|oued ubisap ‘siadojensp uoloNpal UoISSIWS
HAVY %001 uolssiwiad pajuelb syjuswdojonsp Jolew Jo %, ‘sloumo Apadoid pue pue| ‘g7 juswuoJIAUg — / BAI0BIq0 apIXolp uogied — $zd11
924nos
lojeaipuj sajep pue jabie] uoljoe pue iojeaipuj sajouabe a|qisuodsay saAnoalqo o1bajens Koiljod

ylomawel) Buliojiuow pue Abajeuis Alaalldq ;¢ Xipuaddy

Page 356



This page is left intentionally blank

Page 357



This page is left intentionally blank

Page! 3568



This page is left intentionally blank

Page 359



This page is left intentionally blank

Page! 360



This page is left intentionally blank

Page 361



6¢l

SyIom}au
Ajnn paysiiqeise ayy
‘Aptoinb a1ow sapiunpoddo juswdojansp 0} saiuedwod Ajjn sy} paje (seluedwos (Buibiowsa) 0} sjuswanoidwi pue
pue g7 usamjaq uosiel| arosdwi djay pjnoys wnio sal Aynn) siadojensqg sladojanag paulwia)ap 8q o] 201 sjuswisnlpe AiessadsN sjuswasueyus AN 6 2An93[q0 ozd
(se1ouaby (7} =
Bunuoddng) (anuanay) m saAoalqo M
Kouaby (snieys) 3s09 |eyde)n o© 9J3Udd UMO} o
Buluue|d Aouabunuo) /sysiy a|qisuodsay | asinog Buipung ajewixoiddy juswalinbay | asuaiayay j0afoid 0} syuij Jolep :
sajlinN “¢d
‘padojanap
aq ||m saAl}oalgo swwelboid Builesw Jo shkem anljeuls)e ‘apis-Aem
ay} Aq |je} syoelosd-gns [enpiaipul ] ‘sjuswAed AAaT aunjonuiselju] Ajiunwwo)
Buisn Buipuny deb oy uonesapisuod e si pue sawwelboid JopLio) aleA Hdweo pue
pue pooyinoqybiaN ue|d uonejuswa|dw [ES0T 8y} BIA pajeulpiood bulaq (Buibiawa) peoy |jiwyoo.ig
sI sly] Alessadau aiaym pabueyd pue palojiuow aq o} swwelbold |jesono suonNQLIu0 ‘anue)
By} 9|qeusa ||IM SJ9P|OYSXE]S JBYJ0 Pue 4] Ym uosiel| Jejnbay ‘saAjasway) ul (ssadojanap D pue 9oL's D1 weysiman UMO | WeYSIMaT
sjoafoid-gns ale YdIym Jo ||e ‘SuofjudAlalul Jo salas e sasudwod joafoid siyl pue 41 yum) 197 997 ‘(d11) BL paulwla)ep aq 0] 20} | Joyswweiboid Buibiow3] — ¢ dnoig 9 aAP3Igo Ald
(snohe
*Apuauiwiwi paadold [im jo8foad siy) jeyy oisiwido suiewsal \H Mo, jo uoneald
|1ouNo) 8y "syJom Buliqeus asay} Jo Buipuny 8y} JOA0 S82INOS J8YJ0 pue A (g (pauueld) + JNOgepuUNO. JO |BAOWSI)
4L ‘P11 sjuswdojpasg Aemajes) weysima ypm Buinuiuod ale suolssnosiqg |+ P juswdojaasq suonNqLuod abueyolaiu| wWeysimaT anua)
‘awayds AeMales) Weysima 8y} uo juspuadap pue yym payull st Siyl Aemales yum) 1L 901'S pue 4L paulwlalap 8q 0] | 10 Bujjjapow-ay UMO ] WEYSIMaT 9 pue | saAioalqo Ithnd
‘uaddey o} siy} ajqeus pjnoys Buipuny 9o|°s pue buluapim o)
B Yons Jo} pasu ay} a|qeusa [m 41 yum sbuizeaw uosiel Jejnbay ‘aue| snq o™
e juswa|dwi 0} 8)is dy} WoJy pue| alinbas 0} 4] sa|geus awayds ajeA JidweoT] g1+ uL (poniwwoo) SjusWaAOW saue
8y} Joy uoissiwiad Bujuueld ay) jo ped swuoy jey) Juswaalbe 9QL's ayL yyum) s1adojans@ | suonnquiuo) 90} 's paulwlalep 8q 0] L | snqg anoidwi 0} sainses|y sng pue sdojg sng G 9A1193[qO Y
‘payebiisanul [@))
aq 0} paau Aew Ayoedeo aoin18s snq Buisealoul Jo sAem aAljeuls}e g1+ a
pue WS)UI U] ulewsal [|Im uoljels snqg Buiisix3 'saoinos Jayjo pue yYd P17 sjuswdojareq Ayoeded o
‘41 ‘P17 suswdojaasg Aemajes) weysima ypm Buinuipuod ale suoissnasiq Aemajes (pauueld) ul 8SEaIOU| pUE JaN0AE|
‘awayds Aemajes) WeysimaT] ay) uo juspuadap pue Yyim payul| SI SIUL | WeysimaT Upm) 4L | suonnquuod 9oL's paulwIg)ap 8q o] L SN JO UOI}ED0|-9Y UoIje}S WeysimaT 9 pue | saARslqO rid
MO SI AJ9AI|SP-UOU O} XSl PuUB pug| (poddns Aouaby
PauMO g7 Uo sasnooj oafoud siy] }deouod puo usals) uopuoT jseq auy JUsWUOJIAUT (popiwwoo)
Ojul pappaqguua mou st Jey} 8Aoalqo g7 Bulpueys-Buo e si Aepn suieyen pue g yim) 191 val woe’ L3 } Bunesuew pue abeubig Aep uisyep 9 pue g seAoalqo | Vid
(sa1ouabe (7] M
Buiioddns) (anuaaau) e saAoalqo 2
Kouabe (smeys) 3s09 |ejided © 9JjUdad UMO} o
Buiuue|d Aouabunuoo pue sysiy a|qisuodsay | aoinos Buipung ajewixoiddy juswalinbay aoualiayai Joafoid 0} s)uij Jolep
jJodsueu] ‘Ld
‘painoas aq 0} 194 Buipuny pue paulyap aq 0} 194 2doas Inq ‘payuspl josfoid e Jo) pesu — Huibiew3, e | zZ0z018L0Z—C obels e
‘|IN} Ul }dW 8q 0} 4B 47D 17 dU) Ul 1o 18s saAdalqo Aaljod sy} yi uaddey paynuapl 8q 0} 184 Buipuny Ing ‘JBAISP O} UOUBIUI BY} Yim paunap si 108foid jo adoos — pauueld, . /102 01 Z10Z — | abeis .
1snwi jey) syosfoud ase asay] “Aaib ul payybiybiy aie syosfoid |enuass3, palnoas uaaq sey Buipuny pue ob o} Apeal ale Ay} aloym — papiuiwo), . L L0Z-84d .
sjoafoud Jenuass3y, j09loud jo snjejg sabejg

8|NPayoS 84njoNJISeIjU| 8JJUud80 UMO) WeysimaT ;¢ Xipuaddy




ovi

J1ejnBau os|e ale a1y} pue Apeinbal pamairal ale suonosfoid soejd jooyos

(Buibiowsa)
‘saoe|d |ooyos |euolippe JaAlep djay Aew jey} uoleool-09 pue uofesijeuoljel (ssadojanap suoneblgo
J0} saunpoddo sy} pue ayejsa J0joas dlqnd Japim ayy Buspisuod + SI9UMO Buluueld ‘334 (apm-ybnoioq) Ssjuswiaoueyul
S| IV @U} pue [aA8] apim-ybnolog e je pajyoe)} aq o} spasu uolsircid pue| ‘Lz Buluiea) ‘(piing + ubiseQ 02/610Z Aq Anus jo Kyoeden
aoe(d [ooyos Alepuodas “AIaAljap-uou Jo saouanbasuod pue s ybiH dA+D 191 pue |4d) 4S9 paulwJajep 8q 0] 2+ 1 | swioj Qg 0} | [euonippy Jooyos Alepuodsg 8 pue  saAdaldo | OIS
'91.0z 3sod juswdojanap
10} paau Jayuny Joy pasedaud si |1ouno) 8y} yey) ainsua [|Im sisAjeue BuiobuQp
“JuswiaAow Ybnolog-ssolo 0} puodsal pue ssnosip
0} sybnoioq Bujuiofpe ul sanbes||jod pue uoleonp3 g usamiaq sbunesw
Jejnbai os|e aie aiay} pue Aenbal pamainal ase suoiosfoid aoejd [ooyos
'saoe|d |ooyos [euolippe JaAliap djay Aew jey) uoneoo|-09 pue uolesijeuopel
Jo} sailunpoddo ay) pue ajejse J0joas olgqnd Japim ayy Buapisuod (anoqge
sl gV 8yl "uoisinoid mau Joj saniunpoddo Ajuspl pue sjooyos bunsixa (Buibiawa) syo8foud Ag pauieb 34 Ssjuswadueyul
Buipuedxa jo Ajjiqisea) ayj }s8) 0} JapJo ul Aj@soo Buisiel| ale uoleonpy (ssadojanap suopebliqgo G| 9%8) 91/510Z Agq Anua Ayoeden
797 pue Buiuue|d 197 ‘AJdAl|@p-UOU JO Seouanbasuod pue ysu YbiH | + Siaumo puel) 197 Buluueld ‘3iq paulwlalap 8q 0] 2+l JO SWIoJ 9 |euolIppy Jooyos Atewd 8 pue  saAioalgo dLs
"109[o1d ay} jo Asanlep ayy Buleasiano (z10z 1udy
ale diysiauped uoneonp3 [eo0T] pue pleog josfoid g7 "ubisap o} uonejal ui 9)9|dwo9)
sJap|oyaye}s Jayjo pue abejaH ysibug yum uosiel) 8sojo Agq payebniw Buieq Asssinu gz ‘Arewnd
s1ysIy ‘(Jjooyos ArewdebpugweysimaT jeulbuo pajsi ay) Buneiodioour) (1 Buiuiea) (paniwwo) 0Lz ‘Auepuodas 009)
awayos pasinal e 1o} sjesodoud Joy uopesrdde Bujuueld uany dA+D 1971 (14d) 4s9 w/'zz3 | Jooyos ybnouyy-jle maN aleA isebiapuaid 8 pue  saAoalqo 1LS
(papILWod) (1 10z 1des eje|dwioo)
"109(oid ay} swuwelboid [eyde) 34z 0} 341 wouy |ooyos ™M
10 A1anijop ay) Buieasiano si pieog 108(old g7 ‘pauiuspI SysH Jueoyiubis oN dA+D 191 Aewud | ayouel| we g3 L uoisuedx3 "pjing maN AewndAapiooig 8 pue  saAslqO %.@
(1 10z ydes @je|dwod) )
34¢ ()
(peniwwo2) 0} 34 G’z wol uoisuedxy
109foud 8y swuwelboid |eyde) ‘Juswysiginyal |ooyos (@)
Jo A1anijop ay) Buieasiano si pieog 108oid g7 "paniuapl sysu juedyubis oN dA+D 191 Aewud | ayouel| wz' 63 | pue pjing meN Aewndyooiquoplon 8 pue  saAoalqO mmm
- L
o
(sa1ouaby Iy E
Buiuoddng) (enuanay) e saAnoalqo el
Kouaby (smeys) 1s09 |eyden 94jUdd UMO} o)
Buiuue|d Aouabunuos /sysiy a|qisuodsay | 92inog Buipung ajewixoiddy juswalinbay | asualayay Joafoid 0} syulj Jofepy
uoneonp3 ‘LS
‘ueld
juawanoidwi JOpLLIOD JOAIY duinogsuaney ay) Bunuawse|dwi pue Buidojanap AKouaby
J0 Jed se siaumopue| pue 73 a8y} Yim palojdxae aq ||im SaAljeussye ‘pasinbal juawdojanaq
1] "108loud siy Jo Auanlap Alzes ay) ainsus djay 0} S82N0S JBY)0 pue YA uopuo-] pue
“JL ‘P71 sjuswdojpra@ Aemales weysima Yim Buinuiuod ase suoissnasiq P37 Juswdojeraqg (pauueld) 9oedg uadQ asua)
"aWayos Aemales) weysimaT ay} uo Juapuadap pue yim paxul| st siyl | Aemeies) weysime] stadojanaq umouxun L Buijyoid-as jpuuey) UMO | WeysIimaT / pue g saAnoalqo vid
(se1ouaby % =
Buioddng) (anuanay) = saAoalqo o
Kouaby (smeyg) 3s09 [eyden 3JjUd3d UMO)} o,

Buiuue|d Asuabupuo) /sysiy

a|qisuodsay

9@ai4nog Buipung

ajewixoiddy

juawalinbay

299ua.Iaay Joafoid

03 syulj Jofepy

(Z10z Aenuer JO se) 9|npaydS ainjoniSelju] a1juad UMO) Weysima 1 Xipuaddy

29u9yaQ pPoojd vd




43

ainsie] '¥S
"Buip|ing pajs]| pue douo)sIy SIyY} Joj 8sn e Buipuly Jo sueaw aAfeuls}je dojaaap
0] paau |m g7 ‘s|iey 108loud ayy §| “Buibus|ieyo aq [jim SHIOM Jusawysiginial "Josse Ajunwwod
Joy Buipuny Buunoag ‘pasodold sasn jo abuel ayy pue Buip|ing 8y} abeuew (IVA) Nun J0308S (pauueld) asn-)inw e ojul Buipjing jo8loid
PIN0O2 Jey} }snJj B JO JUSWYSIe)Sa 8y} U0 pasnd0) aJe Juswow ay} Je spoy3 Aunwwo) 191 paulwlis}ep aq o paulw.alep aq o] | | Bunsixa jo juswysiginey 19Mmo] |[omApeT] 8 9A1193lqO 3¢S
‘(zwge
‘xoldde) aoeds uspieb €3S
'MO| 8J0j018Y} S| AI9AI|BP-UOU JO YSIY "UOISSI|A| AND 8y pue (uoissin (pepIWIWOD) ‘awiayos ajenld e yum (zwglg) 1904)S eJiw|g
797 ‘uopuo }se3 jelleg usamiaq sjuswaaibe [eba| Aq painoas si pue a)is A)1D) uopuoT uopuoT juswdojanap Ayjj1oe) younyo paosueyus ‘uolssIy
-uo aJe jey) sjesodoid aje ydweo pajuasuod ay) jo Jed [esbajul ue si siy | )seg peseq jseq jeseq ulyym pappaquig | pue juswaoe|dey AID weysimaT 8 aAId3lqO aes
(se1ousby » o
Bunuoddng) (anuanay) m saAoalqo M
Aouaby (sniyeys) 3s0) |eyde)n ® 9JjUdad UMO} o
Bujuue|d Asuabunuo) /sysiy a|qisuodsay | asinog Buipung ajewixoiddy juswalinbay | asuaiayay j0afoid 03 syulj Jofepy :
Alunwwo) ‘¢g
‘(e)doad
*1Dd WeysimaT yjim uosiel| ul paiojuow 000°z 4od 1snUsp
aq [[IM UOEN)IS 8Y} ‘JOASMOH ‘juswalinbal S|y} 8)epowwodde Ajises o} (Buibiowa) 710 pue | JO Oljes 8y} Uo paseq)
(swayos Aemajes) weysima ay} ul Ajjeroadsa) suoneoo| ayeudoidde ul aoeds (siadojanap) 197 suonebiiqo ‘1417 220z 03 dn papaau
|enuapisal-uou mau pasodoid IO JUBDBA JUSIOINS 87 0} PaIBPISUOD S| 818y | | pue | Dd WeysimaT ‘ainjuaA juof ‘1 0d paulwia)ep 8q 0] 20} | S)sijuap ¢ [euolippy salyjoe 1spueqg 8 9A1393[q0 b
O
‘Yymolb ajepowwodde 0} adeds Aiabins juaioins si (Buibiswa) 710 ‘(e)doad ™
a8y} Jey) ainsus 0} Jay}aboy Buiyiom aie g7 pue SHN 9yl ‘Sjuswadueyus pue suonebijgo 008} Jad 49 | Jo onel ()]
Ayoedeo Aiessaoau 0] 108lgns ‘ymoub uonendod pajedionue ajepowwodoe (ssadojanap) 191 Buluueld ‘1417 8y} uo paseq) zz0oz o3 dn (@)
PIN0D 813u8d UMO} By} Ul seoioeld 49 Bunsixa jey sysebbns weysime] SHN | pue 1Dd weysimeT ‘ainjuaA julof ‘1 0d paulwis)ep 8q 0] 20l | papasu sdo ¢ |euonippy 8 8A193lqO IR
@ G
(se1ouaby a o
Bunsoddng) (anuanay) © saAoalqo ,.M
Kouaby (snieys) 3s09 [eyde)n aJ3Uad UMo} .
Buipung Asuabunuod /sysiy a|qisuodsay | 9ainog Buipung ajewixoiddy juswalinbay | 9asualsyay Joafoid 0} syulj Jofepy
YllesH ‘¢S
‘910z 1sod juswdojarsp
10} paau Jayuny Joj pasedaud si 1oUNo) 8y} 1y} ainsua [|im sisAjeue BulobuQ
‘JuswiaAowW Ybnolog-ssolo 0) puodsal pue ssnosip
0} sybnoioq Buiuiolpe ur sanbes|jo0o pue uoneanp3 g usamiaq sbuizesw
» —
(sa1ouaby 3 N
Bunsoddng) (anuanay) i saAoalqo o
Kouaby (sn3eys) 3s09 [eyde)n aJ3U3d UMO} e,

Buluue|d Aouabupuod /sysiy

a|qisuodsay

92inog Buipung

ajewixoiddy

juswalinbay

ELITEETENEEET Y P

0} syul| Jofepy

(Z10z Aenuer JO se) 9|npaydS ainjoniSelju] a1juad UMO) Weysima 1 Xipuaddy




44"

(euy} 0 xoidde) ezzeld
*MO| 810jo18Y} SI A1BAI[Bp-UOU JO 3SIY 197 (pauueid) 1S9\, MaU pue (eygL 0
pue uopuo }seJ jelleg usamiaq sjuswaalbe |eba) Ag painoas S| pue a)s Jadojanap Jadojansp awayos ‘xoidde) ezzeld jse3, saoeds
-uo aJe jey} sjesodold aje jdweo pajuasuod ay jo Led [esbajul ue si siy | Jidumopue-] /i8umopue] ul pappaquig | 19b61e| pue paroidw) uadQ ajeA ydweo] 119
‘eaJe 8y} ul uoisinold ‘SIaAIaUINOqSUBARY LO
aoeds uado anoidwi 0} payiuapl 8g 0} pasu |[IM s}osafold aAjeuls)e ‘palinbal pue ©
3] "108lo0ud siy} Jo Asanljep Apes ay) ainsua djay 0} S82IN0S Jayjo pue ya (pauueld) AB6Benp jo aouanjjuod o™
41 ‘P17 suswdojaasg Aemajes) weysima ypm Buinuipuod ale suoissnasiq Jadojanap Jadojansp awayos je aoeds uado aoedg uadQ
‘aWwayos Aemajes) weysimaT sy} uo Juspuadap pue yym payul| sl Siy L /laumopueT] Jidumopue] ul pappaqug | ol|qnd ZwEGzZ'z MeN Remajes) weysimaT 315
‘yinos pue {@))
(Papiwwoo) SIPPIN spield llemAper] ®
*MOJ SI AJdAlj@p-UoU 0} Aouaby 0} sjuswanoldwi Dl
3Sl pue pue| paumo g7 Uo sasnooy 1osfoid siy| 3deduod pl usaIS) UopuoT (Aouaby juswdojanaqg Jofew Buipnpoul ‘ureyd saoeds
1se3 8y} Ojul peppaquia Mou S| jey aAnoslqo g Bulpueis-buol e si siy L juswuodiAUg) g uopuo] wos' 13 L uaal9) 0} sjuswanoidw| uadQ Aepp yuiayepn / pue g saAoalgo | 919
(sa1ouaby (%) N
Buisoddng) (enuanay) & saAoalqo >
Buiuue|d Aouabunuon Kouaby (smeys) 3s09 |eyden ® 3J3U3d umo} oh
/SASIY a|qisuodsay | @sinog Buipung ajewixoiddy juswalinbay | aouaiayay j0afoid 03 syulj Jofepy
alnjonJjsedjuj uaale "9
‘llem Buiquiio pue ,8yns
(popIwwo) 9oL's Buini Ayyesy, ‘soipnis
*MO| 810j818Y} SI AIBAI[BP-UOU JO %Sy g7 pue juswaalbe 21(0J8k pue douep ‘B)INs ¢13s
pue uopuoT }seq jesieg usamaq syuswaalbe |eba| Aq painoss s| pue ays (1g7) uopuo] juswdojanap WG 0Z3 — swayos ssauyly ‘|ood Buiyoesy ‘anua)
-uo aJe jey) sjesodoid aje ydweo pajussuod ay) o Jed [esbajul ue si siy | jseq peueq ‘ales pue ul pappaquig L ‘(wgg) |0od Buiwwims ainsie ajeA udweoT 8 pue g saAidalqo VS
% =
g ?
(sarousby ® @
buipoddng) (enuanay) -
AKouaby (smejs) 1509 |eyde) SaA1}08[qo a1juad
Buiuue|d Aousbunuo) /sysiy a|qisuodsay 82inog Buipun4 ajewixolddy juswsaiinbay aoualajay 1osloid umo} 0} syulj Jolepy

(Z10z Aenuer JO se) 9|npaydS ainjoniSelju] a1juad UMO) Weysima 1 Xipuaddy




The following table lists the development sites, as shown in UDP Schedule 1 and on the UDP Proposals
Map, that have been implemented or amended so far by changing circumstances as to be replaced
by new sites. There is no need to show these sites on the Proposals Map and the site references
can be deleted.

UDP proposals replaced by the LTCLP

Table 12.1

Site Ref. Site Address

37 Lewisham Passenger Transport Interchange site

39 LewishamTown Centre — Odeon Site

40 LewishamTown Centre — Riverdale

40a 206 —210 Lewisham High Streetand ‘Model Market’, SE13

Page 366

Lewisham TCLP Adoption Version 143



Annual Monitoring Report

A report produced by the Local Authority to assess progress with and the effectiveness of the Local
Development Framework.

Biodiversity

Biodiversity is the variety of life, which includes mammals, birds, fish, reptiles, amphibians,
invertebrates, fungi and plants and the woodlands, grasslands, rivers and seas on which they all
depend including the underlying geology.

Code for Sustainable Homes

A national standard for sustainable design and construction of new homes which became mandatory
on 1 May 2008. The Code measures the sustainability of a new home against categories of sustainable
design using a 1 to 6 rating system to communicate the overall sustainability performance of a new
home. The Code sets minimum standards for energy and water use at each level. Go to
www.communities.gov.uk/thecode to find out more.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

A levy allowing local authorities to raise funds from owners or developers of land undertaking new
building projects in their area.

Comparison Retailing

The provision of items not obtained frequently. These include clothing, footwear, household and
recreational goods.

Conservation Area

Areas of special architectural or historic interest designated by local authorities under the Planning
(Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

Contribution

Land, services, facilities and/or money given by developers of land to the local authority following
negotiations, to ensure that the needs of new communities generated by the development are catered
for.

Convenience Retailing

Convenience retailing is the provision of everyday items, including food, drinks, newspapers, magazines
and confectionery.

Core Strategy

A Development Plan Document setting out the spatial vision and strategic objectives of the planning
framework for the area, in line with the Sustainable Community Strategy.

Decentralised Energy

Local renewable energy and local low-carbon energy usually but not always on a relatively small
scale encompassing a diverse range of technglogies.

Page 367

144 Lewisham TCLP Adoption Version



Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG)

The government department responsible for setting UK policy on local government, housing, urban
regeneration, planning and fire and rescue.

Development

"The carrying out of building, engineering, mining or other operations in, on, over or under land, or
the making of any material changes in the use of any building or other land' (Town and Country
Planning Act (1990) Part lll Section 55).

Development Plan Document (DPD)

A Local Development Document that has been drawn up by the local planning authority in consultation
with the community, has been subject to independent testing and has the weight of development plan
status. The terminology 'Development Plan Document' has been replaced with 'Local Plan' for new
documents, but remains for pre-existing documents (i.e. Lewisham Core Strategy DPD, 2011).

Edge of Centre

For retail purposes, a location that is well connected and up to 300 metres of the primary shopping
frontage. For all other main town centre uses, a location within 300 metres of a town centre boundary.
For office development, this includes locations outside the town centre but within 500 metres of a
public transport interchange. In determining whether a site falls within the definition of edge of centre,
account should be taken of local circumstances.

Equalities Analysis Assessment (EQAA)

Equality Analysis Assessments are concerned with anticipating and identifying the equality
consequences of particular policy initiatives and service delivery and ensuring that, as far as possible,
any negative consequences for a particular group or sector of the community are eliminated, minimised
or counterbalanced by other measures.

Evidence Base

The data and information about the current state of Lewisham used to inform the preparation of Local
Development Framework documents.

Flood Risk Assessment

An assessment of the likelihood of flooding in a particular area (usually a specific site) so that
development needs and mitigation measures can be carefully considered.

Infrastructure

The utilities, transport and other communication facilities and community facilities required to support
housing, industrial and commercial activity, schools, shopping centres and other community and
public transport services.

Issues and Options and Preferred Options

The ‘pre-submission’ consultation stages on Local Plans with the objective of gaining public consensus
on proposals ahead of submission to Government for independent examination.

Page 368

Lewisham TCLP Adoption Version 145



Lewisham Transport Interchange

This includes the mainline railway station, the DLR station and the bus layover site that covers the
area sandwiched between both station buildings and the large roundabout that links the A20 and the
A21.

Listed Building

Buildings of special architectural or historic interest designated by the Department of Culture, Media
and Sport under the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

Local Development Document (LDD)

Sits within the LDF portfolio and comprises Development Plan Documents (DPDs) and Local Plans
that have been subject to independent testing and have the weight of development plan status and
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) which are not subject to independent testing and do not
have development plan status.

Local Development Framework (LDF)

The Local Development Framework is a portfolio, or a ‘folder’, of Local Development Documents
which will provide the local planning authority's policies for meeting the community's economic,
environmental and social aims for the future of their area where this affects the development and use
of land.

Local Development Scheme (LDS)

A public statement identifying which Local Development Documents will be produced by the Council
and when.

Local Employment Location (LEL)

Land that is of local significance and provides goods and services for the local economy, which is
used for business use, industrial use, storage and distribution uses, generally being those uses falling
within Classes B1, B2 and B8 of the Use Class Order.

Local Plan

A Local Development Document that has been drawn up by the local planning authority in consultation
with the community, has been subject to independent testing and has the weight of development plan
status.

Local Strategic Partnership

A Local Strategic Partnership is a single non-statutory, multiagency body which matches local authority
boundaries and aims to bring together at a local level the different parts of the public, private,
community and voluntary sectors.

Masterplan

A document which sets out proposals for buildings, spaces, movement strategy and land use in text
and three dimensions and matches these proposals to a delivery strategy. The masterplan can be
described as a sophisticated ‘model’ that:

Page 369

146 Lewisham TCLP Adoption Version



» shows how the streets, squares and open spaces of a neighbourhood are to be connected
» defines the heights, massing and bulk of buildings

* sets out suggested relationships between buildings and public spaces

+ determines the distribution of activities and uses that will be allowed

* identifies the network of movement patterns for people moving by foot, cycle, car or public transport,
service and refuse vehicles

* sets out the basis for provision of other infrastructure elements such as utilities
* relates physical form to the socio-economic and cultural context and stakeholder interests

« allows an understanding of how well a new, urban neighbourhood is integrated with the surrounding
urban context and natural environment.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

The National Planning Policy Framework sets out the Government’s planning policies for England
and how these are expected to be applied.

Out of Centre
A location which is not in or on the edge of a centre but not necessarily outside the urban area.
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

National planning legislation from central government aimed at improving the planning process and
enhancing community involvement in it. Visit www.communities.gov.uk to find out more.

Planning Obligation

A legally enforceable obligation entered into under section 106 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 to mitigate the impacts of a development proposal.

Policy Area

Six Policy Areas have been defined in Lewisham town centre. These geographic areas contain the
sites where it is expected that most of the change and development will occur in the town centre.

Previously Developed Land/Brownfield Land

Land which is or has been occupied by a permanent structure (excluding agriculture and forestry
buildings) and associated fixed surface infrastructure. The definition covers the curtilage of the
development. Previously developed land may occur in both built up and rural settings. The definition
includes defence buildings and land used for mineral extraction and waste disposal, where provision
for restoration has not been made through development control procedures.

Primary and secondary frontages

Primary frontages are likely to include a high proportion of retail uses which may include food, drinks,
clothing and household goods. Secondary frontages provide greater opportunities for a diversity of
uses such as restaurants, cinemas and d@sﬁggs@?O

Lewisham TCLP Adoption Version 147



Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL)

A standard method used in London to calculate access level of geographical areas to public transport.
The result is a grade from 1-6 (including sub-divisions 1a, 1b, 6a and 6b), where a PTAL of 1a indicates
extremely poor access to the location by public transport and a PTAL of 6b indicates excellent access
by public transport. More parking is generally allowed in areas with a low PTAL i.e. poor public
transport and vice versa - and that also relate the allowed density of development to PTAL (i.e. areas
with better public transport may have higher density housing or offices).

Regeneration

The process of putting new life back into often derelict older urban areas through environmental
improvements, comprehensive development and transport proposals.

Sequential approach and test

A planning principle that seeks to identify, allocate or develop certain types or locations of land before
others. For example, brownfield housing sites before greenfield sites, or town centre retail sites before
out-of-centre sites.

Stakeholder

A person, group, company, association, etc, with an economic, professional or community interest
in the borough or a specific part of it, or that is affected by local developments.

Statement of Community Involvement (SCI)

The Statement of Community Involvement sets out the local planning authority's policy for involving
the community in the preparation and revision of Local Development Documents and planning
applications.

Strategic Environmental Appraisal (SEA)

A generic term used internationally to describe environmental assessment as applied to policies,
plans and programmes.

Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA)

An assessment usually under taken by a local authority at a borough-wide level that considers flood
risk, both fluvial and tidal, and examines the risks involved for developing certain areas within the
borough in accordance with the NPPF. The Lewisham SFRA was produced by Jacobs and published
in July 2008. Areas/sites are categorised as falling within one or more of the following flood zones:

Flood Zone 1 Low probability of flooding. Defined as land outside flood zone 2 and having less
than 1 in 1000 annual probability of river or sea flooding in any year (<0.1%)

Flood Zone 2 Medium probability of flooding. Defined as land having between 1in 100 and 1
in 1000 annual probability of river flooding (1% - 0.1%) or between a 1 in 200 and 1 in 1000
annual probability of sea flooding (0.5% - 0.1%) in any year

Flood Zone 3a High probability of flooding. Defined as land having 1 in 100 or greater annual
probability of river flooding

Page 371

148 Lewisham TCLP Adoption Version



Flood Zone 3b Land where water has to flow or be stored in times of flood. Defined as land
having a 1 in 20 (5%) or greater annual probability of flooding in any year; or is designed to
flood in an extreme (0.1%) flood, or at another probability to be agreed between the local
authority and the Environment Agency.

Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)

Documents which add further detail to the policies in the Local Plan. They can be used to provide
further guidance for development on specific sites, or on particular issues, such as design.
Supplementary planning documents are capable of being a material consideration in planning decisions
but are not part of the development plan.

Sustainability Appraisal (SA)

Sustainability appraisal is a systematic and iterative appraisal process, incorporating the requirements
of the European Strategic Environmental Assessment Directive. The purpose of sustainability appraisal
is to appraise the social, environmental and economic effects of the strategies and policies in a Local
Development Document from the outset of the preparation process.

Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS)

The Sustainable Community Strategy has been prepared by Lewisham's Local Strategic Partnership
and sets out how the vision and priorities for Lewisham will be achieved. The Core Strategy is the
spatial interpretation of the SCS.

Town Centre

Area defined on the local authority’s proposal map, including the primary shopping frontage and areas
predominantly occupied by main town centre uses within or adjacent to the primary shopping frontage.

Waterlink Way

A long distance cycle/pedestrian route following the River Ravensbourne from the south of the borough
to the Thames at Deptford.

Page 372

Lewisham TCLP Adoption Version 149



Page 373



Page 374



Lewisham




Agenda Iltem 10

COUNCIL
Report Title Catford Town Centre — CRPL 14/15 Business Plan
Key Decision No Iltem No.
Ward Rushey Green

Contributors

Director Regeneration & Asset Management, Head of Law, Capital Project Manager

Class

Part 1 Date: February 26 2014

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Purpose of Report

This report presents the CRPL 2014/15 business plan to Council for approval
as per the Catford Regeneration Partnership Limited (CRPL) articles of
association.

Recommendations
The Council is recommended to:

Approve the Catford Regeneration Partnership Limited (CRPL) business plan
for 2014/15.

Background

Lewisham’s overarching sustainable communities strategy sets out a vision
for the future of the Borough. One of the priorities laid out in the strategy is to
develop, build and grow communities that are dynamic and prosperous —
where people are part of vibrant communities and town centres, well
connected to London and beyond. This report supports the aims of the
strategy.

This report is also in alignment with the Council's corporate policy.
Lewisham’s Asset Management Plan sets out the approach to using property
effectively in order to achieve the Council's objective of making Lewisham the
best place in London to live, work and learn. It acknowledges that the
Council’'s assets have a key role to play in supporting the borough's
regeneration aims.

The content of this report also supports the aims of Lewisham’s Regeneration
Strategy, ‘people, prosperity and place’, which links the Council’'s corporate
priorities to the development and regeneration of Lewisham’s communities,
the local economy and the built environment.

CRPL was set up in January 2010 following M&C approval. The company
was tasked with the following activities;

= To continue the effective management of the Catford Centre, ensuring
that the operational management standards remain high and that the full
commercial potential of the centre is being realised through letting and
renewal strategies.

Page 376




3.5

3.6

3.7

41

5.1

5.2

6.1

7.1

= To enable the redevelopment of the Catford Centre by working with
Lewisham Council to undertake a regeneration process and reach a
commercial agreement with key stakeholders in the town centre, in order
to contribute to the regeneration aims for the town centre as a whole.

As part of the creation of the company, Articles of Association were agreed,
which detail how and when the company must interact with its shareholders,
in this case Lewisham Council, which is the sole shareholder.

Operational responsibility for the company is given to the Lewisham Council
nominated company directors.

The company is required to submit a business plan for approval by the
Council as shareholder for each financial year.

Current Position and 14/15 Business Plan

Since the acquisition of the centre in February 2010, CRPL has been working
on operational management issues to ensure that the centre is fit for purpose,
meets quality standards, and that rent is collected in a timely manner. All
health and safety standards are now being complied with and major repairs
works identified have been completed. Rental collection is at around 95%
and arrears issues are being resolved to raise this figure. Further detail is
provided in the business plan.

Financial and Legal Implications

The financial implications of the CRPL budget are fully discussed in the
attached 2014/15 Business Plan. The plan contains sections on the 2013/14
budget, the 2014/15 budget, and future year's budget projections. The
projected deficit for 2013/14 will be offset by surpluses in 2014/15 and
2015/16 to give a balanced “going concern” position

Regular progress reports on the Catford regeneration programme are made
to the Mayor & Cabinet. This report is fulfilling the obligation laid out in
CRPL'’s articles of association (listed at appendix B in the attached business
plan) to circulate a draft business plan prior to each financial year for member
approval.

Equality implications

There are no immediate environmental implications associated with the
recommendations of this report. Environmental implications for the future
regeneration programme will be considered at the appropriate time.

Conclusion

Approval of this report by full council will allow CRPL to proceed with the
activities, aims and objectives as detailed in the business plan for 2014/15.

Page 377



BACKGROUND PAPERS

Short title of document

Date

File Location

Contact Officer

Catford town centre —
CRPL business plan

25 January
2012

Programme
Management

Eleanor Hoyle

Catford town centre —
CRPL business plan

http://councilmeetings.lewi
sham.gov.uk/documents/s7
330/CRPL%20business%20p
1an%202012-13.pdf

18 January
2012

Programme
Management

Eleanor Hoyle

Catford town centre —
CRPL business plan

1 March 2011

Programme
Management

Eleanor Hoyle

Catford town centre —
CRPL business plan

http://councilmeetings.lewi
sham.gov.uk/documents/s1
662/Catford%20Town%20C
entre%20business%20plan

%202011-12.pdf

23 February
2011

Programme
Management

Eleanor Hoyle

Catford Town Centre
update report — part 2

http://councilmeetings.lewi
sham.gov.uk/Data/Mayor%
20and%20Cabinet/2010071
4/Agenda/Item%2016%20C
atford%20-
%2014%20July%202010%2

0-%20PDF.pdf

14 July 2010

Programme
Management

Eleanor Hoyle

Catford Centre Mayor
& Cabinet Report

http://councilmeetings.lewi
sham.gov.uk/Data/Council/

20100127/Agenda/1fd4acfa
995e4429980d316e8d7d69

caCouncilMinutes27January
2010.PDF

27 January
2010

Programme
Management

Eleanor Hoyle

Page 378




CATFORD
REGENERATION
PARTNERSHIP
LTD
BUSINESS PLAN
2014/15



Introduction

Catford Regeneration Partnership Limited (CRPL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Lewisham Council. The company was created in January 2010 to purchase the leasehold
interests in and around the Catford centre in order to manage and regenerate the
property to improve the economic, social and environmental wellbeing of the people of the
London Borough of Lewisham.

The purpose of this business plan is to set out the company's objectives, activities, and
budget for 2014/15 for agreement by the Council as sole shareholder in accordance with
the company's articles of association (listed at Appendix B).

Structure and governance

CRPL currently has one director, Ralph Wilkinson (LBL Head of Public Services). The
second director post is currently vacant and it is proposed that this post is filled by the
permanent appointee to the Head of Business Management and Service Support. The
directors are responsible for the day to day running of the company in line with the articles
of association and have other statutory duties as defined by the Companies Act 2006.
The directors must take account of the approved business plan when exercising their
functions in the management of the Company. Directors are appointed and removed by
the Council as sole shareholder.

In line with the plans presented to the Council in previous financial years, CRPL has
continued to develop an effective and efficient management approach for the operation of
the property through a team of professional advisors, including managing and letting
agents that oversee daily management of the property and report to the director of CRPL.

Certain key decisions in relation to the company are classified as reserved matters, and
must be approved by the Council as sole shareholder. The Mayoral Scheme of
Delegation allows specific officers to take executive decisions in relation to the Company
where appropriate. The complete list of shareholder reserved matters is included at
Appendix B, with key matters including:

o the approval of each Business Plan;

o the approval of each Budget and in any financial year changes over £20,000 in
any one amendment to the Budget and changes to the Budget exceeding
£100,000 in aggregate in any financial year;

o the making of any acquisition or disposal by the Company other than in
accordance with the then current Business Plan and Budget;

o the making of any application for planning permission;

o the implementation of any regeneration initiative other than in accordance with
the then current Business Plan.

These reserved matters ensure that the Council retains control over the direction of future
regeneration proposals. The Council's Catford Programme Board, chaired by the Chief
Executive, has responsibility for setting the overall direction on the regeneration of
Catford town centre. CRPL is represented at these programme board meetings, which
are used as the mechanism for updating the Council on progress against the company's
objectives.

Page 380



CRPL directly employs two centre management staff; a centre manager and a cleaning
supervisor. Council officers also conduct work on behalf of the company, and officer time
is recharged to the company as appropriate.

Objectives

CRPL has continued to work alongside the Council to build on the proposed delivery
strategy and commercial approach for a regeneration programme for Catford town centre.
CRPL directors propose the following company objectives for the 2014/15 financial year:

e To continue the effective management of the Catford Centre and other CRPL
assets, ensuring that the operational management standards remain high and that
the full commercial potential of the centre is being realised through letting and
renewal strategies.

e To enable the redevelopment or partial/comprehensive refurbishment of the
Catford Centre and other CRPL assets by working with Lewisham Council to
evolve and undertake a regeneration process and reach a commercial agreement
with key stakeholders/potential partners.

e Work with Lewisham Council across Catford town centre, in order to contribute to
the regeneration aims for the town centre as a whole through property related
activities.

e To enable CRPL to acquire key properties that are considered strategic to further
regeneration aims.

Activities

In order to achieve these objectives, CRPL continues to promote, commission, undertake
or participate in a range of activities, including:

Centre management

Rent collection and arrears management

e Service charge administration; including reconciliations to tenants and the creation
of future service charge budgets

o Tenant liaison; operational issues, lease issues and queries on wider regeneration
aims

e Health & safety; assessment and compliance of property, day to day
implementation of H&S policies and practices

o Facilities management and maintenance; ensuring that all of the landlord’s
obligations are met, create and maintain a schedule of repairs, major works,
improvements and comprehensive redecoration as required.

o Asset management including acquisitions and disposals, redevelopment and

lease structuring

Legal proceedings relating to leases and rental arrears

Data management; maintenance of accurate records and accounts

Lease renewals and Rent reviews

New Lettings

Page 381



e CRPL contracts; procurement and management of services provided to CRPL by
outside parties. These include centre management, legal, accountancy and asset
management services.

Regeneration

Procurement of professional services (in conjunction with LBL)
Consultation (in conjunction with LBL)

Commercial negotiation with other land owners/potential partners
Engagement with stakeholders (in conjunction with LBL)

Retail and Leisure proposals

Design/feasibility work

Planning strategies (led by LBL)

Milford Towers decant strategy (led by LBL)

Council office design (led by LBL)

Housing proposals (in conjunction with LBL)

Key professional services to assist CRPL in the delivery of these activities include:

DTZ - Managing agents

Mason Owen - Letting agents

Johnson Fellows - Surveyors & rent review negotiators
Russell Cooke - Solicitors

2013/14 Budget Review

The 2013/14 budget was developed by officers based on 2012/13 figures, projected
CRPL running costs, the rental income from the Catford Centre and adjoining properties
as well as the provisions of the service charging system.

Overall the company projecting a deficit for this financial year, which will broadly offset the
surplus which was made in 2012/13. the main reason for this is the major enabling works
undertaken on the new commercial lettings. Costs have therefore been incurred in
2013/14 which will be recouped in future years.

Letting and renewal fees — there have been a number of new and renewed lettings this
financial year, Including a new agreement at 6-8 Winslade Way following tenant
administration and a new letting at 148 Rushey Green to Phones4U, which has delivered
an additional 45% rental income per annum (following rent free periods). The level of fees
for lettings and renewals reflects CRPL taking positive management action to avoid a
negative change in tenant mix in the town centre units under its control.

Professional fees — other professional fees, including those for centre management, have
all been at or below projected levels. This is largely due to the development of good
working practices that have been established with those providing the services to ensure
that costs can be anticipated.

Repairs — due to enabling works required on new commercial lettings, there has been
some spend on major repairs in the 2013/14 financial year that was not projected.
However, overall the spend on non recoverable costs, exclusive of works in relation to
new commercial lettings, was lower than projected as other works including repair works
to the residential properties was lower than forecast.

Pagé 382



Rental income — This has again held up well, with the full rent of Poundland now being
received as well as a number of new lettings, along with strong collection performance
throughout the year comparable to the previous year. In addition, a number of leases
provide for a gross rent with the company meeting the service charge and other costs,
thus increasing both income and property costs.

2014/15 Budget and Management Approach

An analysis of rental income against the projected rental income has been undertaken.
This considers issues such as rent free periods for new lettings and arrears and is
considered to be a prudent assumption on likely future rental income. This analysis has
been used to arrive at the rental income figure of £1.05m for the 2014/15 financial year.

The main centre service charge is a separate cost to tenants and all expenditure must be
reconciled with their payments at the end of the service charge year. The current service
charge budget has been calculated using the actual spend figures for the previous service
charge year, assumptions on increased costs and the renegotiation of service contracts.
The service charge budget and spend is externally audited to ensure CRPL are meeting
all of the requirements of the Service Charge Code. The expenditure for the 2012/13
service charge year (1 September- 30 August) totalled £434k which was 2.76% under
budget.

There are fewer opportunities for new lettings in 2014/15 as a result of breaks in existing
leases, but an increased likelihood of vacancies as the proposed redevelopment date
approaches. Although CRPL will continue to pursue all opportunities for new lettings, it is
considered likely that overall there will be fewer lettings in 2014/15. However, due to the
fact that there are some forthcoming lease renewals and given the current economic
climate, which has resulted in many retailers being unable to continue with their leases,
the budgets for letting and renewal fees, along with the budget for covering empty
property costs, are being kept at the same level as the 2013/14 budget.

The level of repairs liability to CRPL, which is anything that is not covered via the service
charge (shared between all tenants and CRPL), will remain at £30k from £35k to reflect
the level of projected repair work. Regular inspections are undertaken to ensure that all
planned maintenance work can be factored into this budget allowance. However a
contingency must always be allowed for unforeseen repair work.

As part of the agreed objectives to work with the Council to progress the regeneration of
Catford Town Centre, CRPL officers have been involved in discussions regarding the
interim use of Lewisham Town Hall, which has been declared surplus to Council office
building requirements, The potential for CRPL to lease the building from the Council and
let it out to third parties on commercial terms is one of a number of options being
considered. CRPL would need to carry out its own due diligence on any such lease
agreement and make budget alterations accordingly. Should this option by preferred by
all parties, it could result in changes to the overall CRPL budget that exceed the amounts
listed at 25.2 of the Articles of Association. In that instance, the company director will
undertake to brief members as part of a wider briefing on the interim use of Lewisham
Town Hall.

Having due regard for market forces, such as the number of high street retailers entering
administration, an overall change in retail focus and the future potential redevelopment of
the town centre, CRPL must take a flexible approach to lettings and renewals. This
approach may include the combining or dividing of units to meet space requirements,
which could involve some capital works. This could also include utilising units for
meanwhile activities to ensure that the Catford Centre and associated properties remain a

Page 383



thriving town centre asset. CRPL may also consider short term lettings up to three years
to allow flexibility around future regeneration plans.

In November 2013 a non-intrusive structural survey was carried out to the Catford Centre
and Milford Towers to help inform redevelopment options for the regeneration of the
centre. A second-stage intrusive survey was commissioned in January 2014 (via CRPL)
to provide more detailed analysis of the structural integrity of the facility. This information
will prove beneficial as redevelopment options are being formulated.

CRPL is projecting a small surplus in 2014/15. This shows that the company is operating
successfully and it is felt that this is a fair budget assumption given the 2013/14 budget
position. This surplus will be utilised to meet the deficit from the 2013/14 year.

Future Year Budget Projections

The 2015/16 financial year would be significantly affected by a target vacant possession
date of December 2015, as CRPL would in that scenario seek to exercise its lease break
options (requiring 6 months’ notice). This would reduce the overall rental income to the
centre for that financial year, as there would be very little 4™ quarter income, and may
also coincide with the company accepting some lease surrenders to allow for vacant
possession to be achieved. How this issue is dealt with will be part of the overall
proposals for the redevelopment of the site as part of the wider regeneration programme
for the town centre. Following discussions with the Council regarding the likely vacant
possession target date, CRPL believes it is prudent to carry out 2015/16 budget
projections on the basis that the vacant possession target date could alter and therefore
CRPL would have additional time to operate within its current parameters. Until a decision
is taken on the vacant possession approach by the elected members of the Council,
CRPL will take the best interim commercial view of all property management activity and
will fully assess actions and risks on the basis of the best information available at that
time with regards to the vacant possession date.

Pagé 384



APPENDIX A

CATFORD REGENERATION PARTNERSHIP LTD

2012/13 OUTTURN AND CURRENT AND FUTURE YEARS BUDGETS

INCOME

Lease Rents Receivable
Service Charge Recoveries

TOTAL INCOME
EXPENDITURE

CRPL costs

CRPL Employee Costs
LBL Staff Recharges
Letting and Renewals Fees

Property Costs
Works, Repairs and
Maintenance

Insurance Costs (Net)
Fees and Miscellaneous

Loan Repayments
Interest
Principal

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

NET PROFIT (cr) / LOSS

Final
Outturn

2012/13
£

1,067,500cr
149,100cr

1,216,600cr

83,100
72,000
91,300
64,500

70,600
19,500
8,500
409,500

663,200
93,400
756,600
1,166,100

50,500cr

Original
Budget

2013/14
£

960,000cr
156,500cr

1,116,500cr

83,500
73,000
60,000
20,000

40,000
39,000
9,000
324,500

658,500
99,000
757,500
1,082,000

34,500cr

Page 385

Draft
Outturn

2013/14
£

1,100,000cr
145,000cr

1,245,000cr

83,000
72,000
60,000
70,000

220,000
35,000
9,000
549,000

659,000
99,000
758,000
1,307,000

62,000

Proposed
Budget

2014/15
£

1,050,000cr
140,000cr

1,190,000cr

84,000
73,000
60,000
70,000

50,000
36,000
9,000
382,000

653,000
105,000
758,000
1,140,000

50,000cr



APPENDIX B - Shareholder reserved matters

1

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

CRPL's articles of association identify the following items as shareholder
reserved matters:

the approval of each Business Plan;

the approval of each Budget and in any financial year changes over £20,000 in
any one amendment to the Budget and changes to the Budget exceeding
£100,000 in aggregate in any financial year;

the declaration and/or payment of any dividends by the Company save where
such declaration and distribution is made in accordance with the Company's
dividend policy;

the approval of and any change to the Company's dividend policy;

the increase in any indebtedness of the Company other than in accordance
with the prevailing Budget;

the commencement by the Company of any new business not being ancillary to
or in connection with the Business or making any change to the nature of the
Business;

the Company participating in any activity which is detrimental to and/or
incompatible with the Business;

the making of any political or charitable donation;

the making of any acquisition or disposal by the Company other than in
accordance with the then current Business Plan and Budget;

writing off a bad debt exceeding £25,000 provided that if debts of that person or
organisation have been written off by the Company in the previous three years
in an aggregate amount of £50,000 or more, the decision to write off any further
bad debts for that person or organisation shall also be a reserved matter;

the making of any application for external funding;

the repurchase or cancellation by the Company of any shares, or the reduction
of the amount (if any) standing to the credit of its share premium account or
capital redemption reserve (if any) or any other reserve of the Company;

a change of name of the Company or location of its registered office;
any issue of new shares in the Company.

the devolution or transfer of all or part of the management of the Company or
its business to persons who are not directors of the Company and, if approved,
the terms of such devolution;

Pagé 386



1.18

1.19

1.20

1.21

1.22

1.23

1.24

1.25

1.26

1.27

without limiting the generality of article 25.15, the appointment of any Chief
Executive Officer or person holding a similar role and the terms of such
appointment;

the appointment or removal of any director of the Company;

the engagement of (and terms of engagement of) any individual person as a
consultant (but excluding for such purposes any firm/professional advisers) or
employee;

the engagement of (and terms of engagement of) any company, partnership,
individual person or other entity for the provision of services to the Company
where the services provided are not contemplated in the then current Business
Plan and Budget and/or where the value of the services is above the Official
Journal of the European Union limit for services and/or where the services have
not been tendered in accordance with the [Company's Contract Lettings
Procedure];

any change to the terms of employment/engagement and/or remuneration of a
person referred to in articles 25.18 and 25.19;

the letting of any contract for the provision of supplies to the Company where
the supplies provided are not contemplated in the then current Business Plan
and Budget and/or where the value of the contract is above the Official Journal
of the European Union limit for supplies and/or where the contract has not been
tendered in accordance with the [Company's Contract Lettings Procedure];

the letting of any contract for the provision of works to the Company where the
works provided are not contemplated in the then current Business Plan and
Budget and/or where the value of the contract is above £200,000 and/or where
the contract has been not tendered in accordance with the [Company's
Contract Lettings Procedure];

the instigation of any court proceedings where the directors have not taken
appropriate legal advice or where such proceedings would be against that legal
advice;

the authorisation of the levying of distress against the occupants of land or
property in arrears where the directors have not taken appropriate legal advice
or where such actions would be against that legal advice;

the making of any application for planning permission;

the implementation of any regeneration initiative other than in accordance with
the then current Business Plan;

the commencement of any winding-up or dissolution of or the appointment of
any liquidator, administrator or administrative receiver of the Company or any of
its assets unless it shall have become insolvent.

Page 387



Agenda Item 11

Council
Report Title Pay Policy Statement
Key Decision Yes Item Number
Ward n/a

Contributors

Head of Human Resources

Class

Open

Date

26 February 2014

Introduction

The purpose of this paper is to present a policy statement on the pay of officers as
per Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011.

Summary

The Localism Act requires each local authority to publish a statement which identifies
the Council’'s approach to pay and in particular sets out pay arrangements for the
chief officer posts i.e. heads of service, executive directors and the chief executive.

Recommendation
That Council agrees the pay policy statement attached as Appendix 1 to this report.
Statement content and operation

The statement sets out the levels of remuneration for the Council’s chief officers as
well as Council’s general approach to pay i.e. it identifies how jobs are evaluated,
graded and the relationship between roles. The report explains the position of
additional payments and identifies the relevant terms and conditions as required by
statute.

Once agreed by the Council, the Pay Policy Statement will form the basis on which
the Council remunerates employees particularly those at the chief officer level, as
required by Section 41 of the Localism Act 2011

Independent Executive Remuneration Panel

The Council has set up an Independent Executive Remuneration Panel (IERP), the
terms of reference of the panel are:
To advise the Council’s appointments panel on the appropriate pay
framework and pay structure relating to the chief executive.
To advise the chief executive on the appropriate pay framework and pay
structure relating to executive directors and heads of service.
To consider and commission reports on pay levels relevant to heads of
service, executive director and chief executive roles.
To consider how individual pay anomalies should be addressed.
To provide a sounding for consultation on national pay issues.

With the publication of the pay statement the Council will be compliant with nearly all

aspects of the Hutton Fair Pay Code, the panel will review and confirm this
compliance in the course of their work programme.

Page 388



Financial Implications

The cost of appointing and remunerating members of the Independent Remuneration
Panel will be contained within existing budgets. Adopting the proposed pay policy
statement does not in itself give rise to any other direct financial implications,
although in due course recommendations from the IERP, if adopted, may have direct
financial implications.

Legal Implications

The pay policy statement attached to this report complies with the requirements of
Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011 which required all local authorities to prepare a
pay policy statement for the financial year 2012 -2013 and every financial year
thereafter. Chapter 8 of the Localism Act 2011 sets out the information which a pay
policy statement must contain. Section 40 of the Act also requires the Council to
have regard to any guidance issued or approved by the Secretary of State.

Guidance under Section 40 was issued in February 2012 and the attached pay policy
statement takes account of this guidance.

A pay policy statement must be approved by a resolution of the Council before it
comes into force, and the Council complied with the requirement to have a statement
in force and approved before the end of 31% March 2012. Each subsequent
statement must be prepared and approved before the end of 31%' March immediately
preceding the financial year to which it relates. Again, the Council complied with the
requirement to have its 2013/14 statement prepared and approved before the end of
31% March 2013. The pay policy statement for 2014/15 must be in force and
approved before the 31% March 2014.

Additional guidance under Section 40 of the Localism Act was issued in February
2013. As with the earlier guidance, the Council is required under Section 40 to have
regard to this guidance when preparing its pay policy statement. This new guidance
included commentary on how local authorities had complied with the original
guidance. The new guidance also introduced two new requirements. The first
requirement is for local authorities with directly elected mayors. The guidance sets
out an expectation that the Council would involve the directly elected mayor and have
regard to any proposals that the mayor may have before the statement is considered
and approved. The second requirement is that that the pay policy statement should
include a requirement that full council is required to vote in relation to any severance
packages of over £100,000 (including redundancy pay, holiday pay and pension
entitlements).

Given that the new guidance was introduced in February 2013 and there was a
statutory requirement to have a pay policy statement for 2013/14 in force by 31°
March 2013, there was insufficient time to provide a draft of the 2013/14 pay policy
statement to the Mayor. The Mayor has been provided with a draft copy of the
2014/15 pay policy statement on 15 January 2014 in accordance with the new
guidance and the Mayor has recommended the pay policy statement to Council. The
guidance requires the Council to have regard to the Mayor’s proposals.

With regard to the guidance on severance payments this states that the Council
should consider putting a requirement in place that full Council should be given an
opportunity to vote before large severance packages (which the guidance
recommends should be defined as over £100,000) are provided to staff leaving the
organisation. The guidance states that it considers that a severance package will

Page 389



include a number of potential components, including redundancy compensation,
pension entitlements and holiday pay.

There are likely to be a number of difficulties with this requirement. Firstly, a number
of the elements of the “severance package” are likely to be contractual and/or
statutory entitlements, such as redundancy compensation, pension entitlements and
holiday pay. If the Council decided not to approve payments of this type then this is
likely to result in the Council being in breach of contract and/or statute. It is feasible
that a member of staff's pension and redundancy compensation alone could take
them above the £100,000 threshold without any further payments being made to
them. Secondly, the requirement to hold a vote at full Council could delay the
making of any payments, again this has the potential of placing the Council in a
position where it may be in breach of contract and/or other legislation. A delay could
also fetter the Council’s ability to effectively settle any potential claims against the
authority, particularly in situations where a timely settlement may be the most cost
effective resolution. Thirdly, where the Council enters into settlement of potential
claims, it is often a term of any settlement agreement that the settlement remains
confidential. This can be of benefit to the Council as well as to the employee. If a
vote at full Council was required then it may be difficult for the Council to provide the
confidentiality required by these agreements. If the confidentiality requirement of an
agreement was breached this could lead to further claims against the Council and it
may be difficult for the Council to provide evidence that confidentiality had definitely
not been breached when details of the potential settlement had been distributed to
full Council.

As set out above, the Localism Act 2011 requires the Council to have regard to the
guidance. This does not require the Council to follow the guidance in circumstances
where it has considered the requirements of the guidance but where the Council
considers that it has good reasons for not following the guidance.

The draft pay policy statement attached to this report does not include a requirement
that full council is required to vote before large severance packages are provided to
staff leaving the organisation. This report recommends that the Council approve the
draft pay policy statement for the reasons set out above.

Once a pay policy statement is in force, any decision of the authority made after 1%
April 2014 and relating to remuneration or other terms and conditions of chief officers
must comply with the pay policy statement in force at the time. An authority may
amend its pay policy statement by resolution.

In the event that the Council wished to adopt a pay policy that does not reflect the

current contractual arrangements in place for the employment of officers, then this
may give rise to employment law implications.

Page 390



Appendix 1

London Borough of Lewisham
Pay Policy Statement
2014/15

Introduction

The Council seeks to be a fair and good employer of choice and in doing so deliver
effective services in the borough. It seeks to engage talented people at all levels of
the organisation and to benefit from the exercise of these people’s talents. To this
end it sets its pay (and reward packages generally, including pensions, etc) in
accordance with a fair pay policy and with regard to national and regional pay policy.
In doing so it has regard to changing conditions in differing occupational labour
markets. The Council’'s people management strategy recognises the need for a
committed and engaged workforce which is rewarded fairly for its motivation,
adaptability, innovation and achievement.

Whatever their role, the Council seeks to ensure that every member of staff is valued
and remunerated on a fair and just basis — taking into account the burden of personal
responsibility their job requires, the delivery expectations placed upon them, as well
as any requirements for the exercise of any particular expertise or speciality. The
Council wants people to do valuable work and it wants the work to be of value to the
workers performing the roles. It is for this reason that the Council has decided that it
will conform to the London Living Wage and wherever it is lawful to do so, requires
payment of the London Living Wage by its contractors.

The Council's pay strategy is designed to ensure that its pay structures are fair,
support a sustainable management structure and foster managerial accountability
and effectiveness and provide value for money to the tax payer.

The Council’s approach to pay is to:

e ensure pay levels are right to provide the right levels of reward and
motivation; and
e ensure pay levels are affordable by the Council

It is set in the wider context of a remuneration policy focussed on:

employee roles

employee development
benefits (including pension)
salary

The Council’'s management arrangements continue to be reviewed to optimise the
effectiveness of management while reducing its overall cost (by a process of
reducing managerial overheads and by reviewing managerial layers as well as spans
of managerial control).

Remuneration of chief officers
The definition of chief officers including Executive Directors and Service Heads

appears in paragraph 20. Chief officers are all graded as Heads of Service or higher
depending on their responsibilities.

Page 391



The Council pays its chief officers on the following scales shown with pay rates for
2013/14. These pay rates have not been increased in the last 5 years. In the course
of 2014/15 these figures may be increased by a maximum of any increase negotiated
by the appropriate negotiating body. Generally post holders are not remunerated at
a higher level than the position they report to.

Employees Scale From To
Heads of Service (JNC4) 3 points [£74,142 |£79,002
Heads of Service (JNC3) 3 points [£89,976 |£94,836
Director of Public Health 8 points [£75,249 |£101,451

Directors (JNC2) 3 points [£102,678 |[£107,538
Executive Directors (JNC1) | 3 points |£135,867 |£141,123
Chief Executive Fixed point|£192,387

Pay points for chief officers and the Chief Executive are determined following
independent pay expert advice. The remuneration for chief officers on these pay
points is determined by reference to Hay job evaluation advice, save where chief
officers have transferred to the Council under statutory provisions which entitle them
to retain their pre transfer pay scales. The Council’s levels of pay for chief officers
are regularly benchmarked against other London Councils. These benchmarking
exercises show that Lewisham’s pay levels for Executive Directors and Heads of
Service fall at the 69" and 43™ percentile respectively amongst London Councils.

The salary paid to chief officers is inclusive of all hours worked and no additional
payments are paid to chief officers apart from those specifically set out in any of the
following paragraphs. Since July 2011 the Chief Executive has been engaged on a
part-time (0.6) basis and is remunerated pro rata to the fixed point referred to in the
table above.

An Independent Executive Remuneration Panel (IERP) has been established to
advise on the appropriate pay framework and structure for chief officer positions. In
fulfilling this role the Remuneration Panel will:
support the achievement of the Council’s aims,
take account of wider public sector pay policy and good practice,
ensure their decisions are proportionate, fair and equitable and support equal
pay principles, including having regard to the “Fair Pay” code published by the
Review of Fair Pay in the Public Sector,
take account of appropriate pay differentials, including relationship and
multiples between chief officers and all employees,
develop pay policies which attract, retain and motivate senior managers of the
right quality and talent,
take account of the resources required in transitioning to any revised
arrangements.

Remuneration of employees who are not chief officers

The majority of employees who are not chief officers are appointed on NJC for Local
Government terms and conditions. This will remain the case for 2014/15.

Remuneration for posts below chief officer will normally be determined by either the

Greater London Provincial Council job evaluation scheme or the Hay job evaluation
scheme. In both cases they are designed to ensure fairness and reward, making

Page 392



assessments based on objective criteria. Salary levels for employees who are not
chief officers currently range from £15,459 per annum (see below) to £67,029 per
annum though this may change in the course of 2014/15 to reflect a maximum
increase of that negotiated with the appropriate national negotiating body.

Save for apprentices who are excluded from the London Living Wage Scheme, the
Council does not pay below point 5 (currently £15,459 of the Greater London pay
spine and has adopted a policy of not paying below the current level of the London
Living Wage (LLW), calculated on an annual basis (i.e. after any pay awards for that
year have been agreed and implemented). Because of this, for the purposes of this
Pay Policy Statement the Council defines its lowest paid employee as an employee
earning the full time equivalent salary for the LLW, without any additional payments.
This is to enable a pay multiple to be calculated against the Chief Executive’s full
time equivalent salary. The Council has agreed a maximum pay multiple of 13 to 1.
In 2013/14 had the Chief Executive worked on a full time basis he would have earnt
12.4 times that of the lowest paid employee. In effect, the 2013/14 pay multiple was
below the maximum figure.

Council policy is to pay chief officers in accordance with pay scales set by reference
to the Hay job evaluation scheme and non chief officers in accordance with the pay
scales set by reference to the Greater London Provincial Councils (GLPC) job
evaluation scheme. This does not apply to chief officers who have transferred to the
Council under statutory provisions which entitle them to remain on their pre-transfer
levels of pay. The Hay Scheme remunerates employees above the levels of the
GLPC scheme. Currently the median average of the pay of chief officers is 2.7 times
that of all non chief officer posts (excluding apprentices). The IERP have endorsed
the current senior pay structure and believe that this has served the Council well,
particularly in the context of the changes to public services. The IERP has been
requested to keep this relationship under review to ensure it is fair and appropriate.

Performance related pay

As with chief officers, the Council does not pay bonuses or performance related pay
to any of its employees.

Market supplements

In a limited number of cases the Council currently makes market supplement
payments to employees. During 2014/15, the Council may make such market
supplement payments where market conditions dictate that this is necessary to
recruit or retain suitable staff where it would otherwise be unable to do so. Market
supplements are not currently and normally will not be paid to any chief officers.

Approach to remuneration on recruitment

New employees, including chief officers, are normally appointed to the bottom of the
particular pay scale applicable for the post. If the employee’s existing salary falls
within the pay scale for the post, the employee is normally appointed to the nearest
point on the scale which is higher than their existing salary. In cases where the
existing salary is higher than all points on the pay scale for the new role, the
employee is normally appointed to the top of pay scale for the role.

Page 393



10

11

Appointment to new posts paid in excess of £100,000 per annum

Where it is proposed to appoint to a post which is not in existence at the time of the
publication of this pay policy statement, and the proposed remuneration is more than
£100,000 per annum the appointment may not be made unless the Council has
agreed to the level of remuneration attaching to the position. This provision does not
apply to any roles which transfer to the Council through either TUPE or any other
equivalent or similar statutory transfer process. This requirement does not apply to
roles arising out of restructures to which the Council is obliged to match existing
employees to or conduct a ring fenced recruitment exercise.

Increments and pay awards

For all employees the Council’'s usual policies on incremental progression and
application of appropriate pay awards will apply.

Additional salary payments

Council policy allows for an additional salary payment to be made to employees to
reflect duties of an exceptional nature that are required to be undertaken which are
over and above the normal requirements of the employee’s post.

In accordance with Council policy, additional salary payments may be agreed for all
employees, in the case of chief officers this is made up to the value of three
increments (currently a maximum of £7,290). No additional salary payments of this
nature are currently made to Executive Directors or the Chief Executive and this will
remain the case in 2014/15.

However, the post of Director of Public Health is entitled to receive additional
payments of £8,917 in respect of a director supplement. Medical Consultants are
able to submit an application for either a local or national Clinical Excellence
Award for specific projects/work. If successful an award is made which becomes a
permanent element of pay. Awards can be made at 12 levels ranging from £2,957 to
£75,796.

Resilience for emergencies: disaster/incident recovery, command and control

The Council is required to have measures in place to respond to any major incident
in the Borough. There is an emergency plan in place which is supported by a team
of senior officers within the Council, led by the Chief Executive. = Responding to
incidents so as to ensure adequate recovery requires 24/7 management coverage by
those senior managers who are able to perform these emergency incident roles. The
Chief Executive and Executive Directors do not receive any additional payment for
undertaking this role which is incorporated into their contracts of employment. Other
senior staff, including other chief officers, who undertake a role in emergency
planning and disaster recovery for the borough and participate in the emergency rota
receive an additional payment. In the case of roles covered by chief officers, other
than executive directors, this payment is £2,000 per annum.

Terms and Conditions of employment
The terms and conditions of employment for Council employees (excluding those
who have transferred under specific statutory provisions) are as negotiated nationally

by the relevant Negotiating Body for Local Authority Employees and
supplemented/amended by any policies or procedures agreed

Page 394



12

13

The negotiating bodies which apply to employees include:

[J  The National Joint Council for Local Government Employees,
commonly known as the Green Book, applicable to most non-teaching
professional and support staff in the Council.

[0  The Joint Negotiating Committee for Chief Executives of Local
Authorities

[J  The Joint Negotiating Committee for Chief Officers of Local Authorities
[J  The National NHS Staff Council

The employment conditions and any subsequent amendments are incorporated into
employees’ contracts of employment.  The Council’'s employment policies and
procedures are reviewed on a regular basis in the light of service delivery needs and
any changes in legislation etc.

The Council reached an Agreement with the local trade unions on 1 April 2008,
known as Single Status, which applies to most of its employees up to Chief Officer
level. This included the introduction of a single pay and grading structure together
with a new job evaluation scheme (the GLPC scheme). The Agreement also sets out
the Council’s working arrangements and the payments to be made to employees for
working outside normal working hours including overtime, and call out payments.

Interim and Consultant engagements

The Council can either engage individuals or companies to fulfil interim or consultant
engagements. The Council’s policy is that such engagements should conform with
guidance and pro forma documents issued by the Council to enable managers to
determine whether an individual interim worker or consultant is engaged on an
employed or self-employed basis, or if they are engaged through an intermediary,
such as a company. These documents follow the guidance produced by HMRC and
are required in order to ascertain the correct tax status of each engagement, and
who is responsible for deducting/paying tax and National Insurance.

Election Fees

At any election time, approximately 500 — 600 Council staff will be employed on
election duties of varying types. The fees paid to Council employees for undertaking
election duties vary according to the type of election they participate in and the
nature of the duties they undertake. All election fees paid are additional to Council
salary and are subject to normal deductions for tax.

Returning Officer duties (and those of the Deputy Returning Officer) are contractual
requirements but fees paid to them for national elections/ referendums are paid in
accordance with the appropriate Statutory Fees and Charges Order.

In 2014/15, European and local elections are due to take place. Election fees for the
European elections will be fixed by reference to the relevant Statutory Fees and
Charges Order, and for the local elections by reference to the most appropriate
guidance from London Councils and benchmarks from recent elections modified to
reflect any changes in duties.

Page 395



14

15

Pensions

All Council employees are eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme.
The Council does not enhance pensionable service for its employees either at the
recruitment stage or on leaving the service, except in certain cases of retirement on
grounds of permanent ill-health where the strict guidelines specified within the
pension regulations are followed.

Payments on ceasing office

The general position

Employees who leave the Council, including the Chief Executive and chief officers,
are not entitled to receive any payments from the Council, except in the case of
redundancy or retirement as indicated below.

Retirement

Employees who contribute to the Local Government Pension Scheme who elect to
retire at age 60 or over are entitled to receive immediate payment of their pension
benefits in accordance with the Scheme. Early retirement, with immediate payment
of pension benefits, is also possible under the Pension Scheme with the permission
of the Council in specified circumstances from age 55 onwards and on grounds of
permanent ill-health at any age.

The Council will consider applications for flexible retirement from employees aged 55
or over on their individual merits and in the light of service delivery needs. Approval
is conditional upon the employee agreeing to reduce their hours/pay by not less than
40%. Benefits closely reflect those permitted by Regulation 18 of the Local
Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, Membership and Contributions) Regulations
2007/1166.

Redundancy
Employees who are made redundant are entitled to receive statutory redundancy pay

as set out in legislation calculated on their actual salary. In addition the Council has
a policy for the payment of further compensation, of an amount based on the
statutory payment. This scheme may be amended from time to time in accordance
with the Council’s Constitution

Settlement of potential claims

Where an employee leaves the Council’s service in circumstances which are, or
would be likely to, give rise to an action seeking redress through the courts from the
Council about the nature of the employee’s departure from the Council’s
employment, the Council may settle such claims by way of compromise agreement
where it is in the Council’s interests to do so. The amount to be paid in any such
instance may include an amount of compensation, which is appropriate in all the
circumstances of the individual case. Should such a matter involve the departure of
an Executive Director or the Chief Executive it will only be made following external
legal advice that it would be legal and reasonable to pay it.

Payment in lieu of notice
In exceptional circumstances, where it suits the Council’s service needs, payment in
lieu of notice is made to employees on the termination of their contracts.

Page 396



16

17

18

19

20

Re-employment

Employees who have left the Council on grounds of redundancy will not normally be
re-employed for a period of two years.

Applications for employment from employees who have retired from the Council or
another authority or who have been made redundant by another authority, will be
considered in accordance with the Council’s normal recruitment policy. However like
many authorities, Lewisham operates an abatement policy which means that any
pension benefits that are in payment could be reduced on re-employment in local
government.

Exceptional circumstances

The provisions of this pay policy are designed to set out the Council's normal
approach to remuneration and to provide transparency for the public about its
policies relating to remuneration. However exceptional circumstances may
occasionally arise where it would be appropriate to depart from the detailed
provisions set out in this policy where Council service needs demand. This pay
policy authorises such payment if appropriate specialist external advice is that it
would be appropriate to make an exception in any particular case, in which case the
Council may act in accordance with that advice

Publication of and access to information relating to remuneration

The Council will publish details of all chief officer positions. This will be published at
the same time as the Council’s statement of accounts.

Publication and amendment

The Council will publish this Pay Policy Statement on its website and may amend it at
any time during 2014/15 if it is of the opinion that it is appropriate to do so. Any
amendments to it will also be published on the Council’'s website.

Definition of chief officers

Within this Pay Policy Statement, chief officer includes the following roles: the
Council's Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and those fulfilling statutory chief officer
roles as set out in section 2(6) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. It
also includes non-statutory chief officers as set out in section 2(7) of that Act, which
includes all officers for whom the Chief Executive is directly responsible, those who
report directly or are directly accountable to the Chief Executive and those who are
directly accountable to the Council itself or any committee or sub-committee.

Within this Pay Policy Statement, the term chief officer also includes those who are a
deputy to a statutory or non-statutory chief officer referred to above (i.e. those who
report directly or are directly responsible to a statutory or non-statutory chief officer).
It does not include those employees who report to the Chief Executive or to a
statutory or non-statutory chief officer but whose duties are solely secretarial or
administrative.

Page 397



Agenda Item 12

COUNCIL
Report Title Motion 1 in the name of Councillor Wise to be seconded by Councillor
Handley
Key Decision no Item No.
Ward
Contributors Chief Executive (Head of Business & Committee)
Class Part 1 Date: February 26 2014

Motion — Housing crisis

“This Council recognises that London is in the middle of a severe housing crisis. Home
ownership is falling. Rents are rising by ten percent a year. Standards in the private rented
sector are declining. Overcrowding is getting worse and homelessness is rocketing.

This Council regrets that the crisis has dramatically deteriorated under the Coalition
Government and Tory Mayor of London. Under David Cameron house building has fallen
to the lowest level since the 1920’s. Boris Johnson has missed every one of his own
targets for building new affordable homes. On average, Conservative Councils in London
have built half as many affordable homes as Labour Councils and a fifth as many Council
homes.

This Council believes that tackling the housing crisis must be our highest priority.
Accordingly, this Council will:

Build more genuinely affordable homes

Tackle rogue landlords and rip-off letting agencies

Build more homes for London’s growing population
Bring empty homes back into use

Create jobs and apprenticeships in the building industry”

aoRON =

d:\moderngov\dcfc\cgendciTemdocs\A\S\‘?\OiOOOO7984\$20c0v\Brag e 398



Agenda Iltem 13

COUNCIL
Report Title Motion 2 in the name of Councillor Feakes to be seconded by
Councillor Maines
Key Decision no Item No.
Ward
Contributors Chief Executive (Head of Business & Committee)
Class Part 1 Date: February 26 2014

Lewisham Liberal Democrat council group
Budget amendment 2014-15

More affordable and better housing

Increased focus on bring empty and underutilised properties back into full use, bring extra
income from private sector portion.

Using New Homes Bonus to increase affordable housing through home expansion as well as
new builds.

£000s
Item 2014/15 Future years
Private sector housing unit resourcing 90
Strategic housing support 50
Additional net non-HRA housing income (30)

More jobs and business growth

Institute a small business loan scheme

Double the rate of apprenticeship places creation through match funding

Promote Lewisham’s role a small business incubator, particularly for the creative industries, so
that Lewisham is ‘open for business’

Target collection rate and above trend business rate growth and use the additional retained
business rates to help fund the above activities

£000s
Item 2014/15 Future years
Additional apprenticeships 800
Net small business loans resourcing (not capital costs) 60
Business rates overage and collection improvement (400) (400)

A better start for families

Use the roll-out of wider free childcare for under-2s, the extension of free school meals and the
troubled families initiatives to support best start packages for new families across the borough
Work with schools and the Schools Forum to target £17m of Pupil Premium money at those
most in need and those to who it would make the most difference.

Building a Future for all in Lewisham

Support and encourage the payment of London Living Wage as a minimum to all who provide
social care in the borough, and build into social care contracts the expectation of empathetic
care as well basic care processes.

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\5\8\9\ai00007985\$f3cnwip1 .doP ag e 3 9 9



Take recycling and cleansing back to the streets with split bins, community award schemes
and a move away from landfill and incineration.

Improve public trust and engagement in our civil society by investing in and unifiying
enforcement of local standards in trading, licensing, parking, environment and planning.

£000s
Item 2014/15 Future years
LLW (all within contracts)
Recycling and cleansing services 730
Enforcement services 450

A leaner, more responsive and more dynamic public service ethos

Focus the savings programmes on producing more effective public service delivery, removing
deadening bureaucracy where possible and freeing up innovative council staff and third sector
organisations to provide responsive, appropriate and personalised services.

Reduce the Council’'s communications expenditure budgets by 25%

Reduce the size of Mayor & Cabinet, and work towards eventually replacing the current
Mayoral system with arrangements with greater accountability

Work towards a more responsive and integrated councillor and community relationship, with
fewer but better resourced councillors and local democratic units more closely involved in
decision-making affecting their area.

£000s
Item 2014/15 Future years
Re-tiering of management grades (100) (500)
Communications budget (200)
Mayor & Cabinet (150)
Local decision making (400)
Summary

£000s
Item 2014/15 Future years
Private sector housing unit resourcing 90
Strategic housing support 50
Additional net non-HRA housing income (30)
Additional apprenticeships 800
Net small business loans resourcing (not capital costs) 60
Business rates overage and collection improvement (400) (400)
Recycling and cleansing services 730
Enforcement services 450
Re-tiering of management grades (100) (500)
Communications budget (200)
Mayor & Cabinet (150)
Localised decision making (400)
Use of one-off resources and provisions (1,300)

d:\moderngov\dcﬁc\ogendoiTemdocs\5\8\9\0IOOOO7985\$f3can.ag e 400




Lewisham Liberal Democrat Group — Proposed Budget Amendment
for 2014/15

Financial and legal officer comments

Introduction

1.

The following paragraphs set out the officers financial and legal comments on the
Liberal Democrat Group proposed amendment to the 2014 Budget.

The budget proposals are presented in outline without fully developed and costed
plans. The individual proposals with financial implications attached to them would
require further work before final financial and legal comment can be offered. The
comments below are therefore provided on the proposals taken at face value,
assuming the savings and costs will result in the implied outcomes.

More affordable and better housing

3.

Officers have established a cross-departmental New Homes Bonus (NHB) working
party. This group was formed to review the empty homes data held within each
department, cross-reference the data to ensure the long term empty status is
correct and report on initiatives and progress within their respective areas to
reduce long term empty properties.

Since the group formed, the number of empty properties within the borough has
decreased. As at October 2011, there were 2,355 (2%) empty properties and 940
(0.8%) properties empty for more than six months. This was below the percentage
of properties empty across London which was reported at 2.25% with 0.9% empty
for more than six months.

As at October 2012, there were 1,511 properties reported as empty, 844 less than
the previous year. Of these, 742 were empty for six months or more compared
with 940 in 2011, a reduction of 198 properties.

The work to bring further empty and under-utilised properties back into full use,
continues. This is supported by the decision of Council in January 2014 to apply
the maximum increases on the Council Tax for under occupied properties to
encourage freeholders to bring them back into use.

Contained within the Budget Report for 2014, is a specific recommendation to
approve an allocation of £0.65m per annum of NHB over the next ten years
2014/15 and 2023/24. It is expected that the Council will continue to use a
proportion of the NHB to progress the necessary plans and activities required to
drive the regeneration of the borough, including maximising the potential affordable
housing which can be achieved.

The Council produces an Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) each year which
assesses the level of development which has taken place and reviews the
performance on plan making and related steps being undertaken to progress the
regeneration of the borough.

The latest AMR sets out that 1,805 net new homes were built during 2012/13, the
highest amount of housing completed in the last nine years. The majority of

Page 401



planned growth for the borough is yet to come. The AMR provides a housing
trajectory and identifies the anticipated amount of residential development over the
next 15 years (2014/15 to 2028/29).

More jobs and business growth

10. The proposals to introduce a new small business loans scheme is possible. There
would be a degree of risk in building this assumption into the budget for 2014/15.
The detailed criteria for operating such a scheme would need to be fully worked
up. If any loan is below market rate, then consideration would also need to be
given to State Aid issues. The EU Treaty prohibits Public Authorities in Member
States from giving aid to companies or organisations who are conducting economic
activities which could distort competition and the internal market between Member
States, unless the grant is de minimus (i.e. less than 200,000 Euros from all public
sources over a period of three financial years).

11. The Council currently employs more than 40 apprentices who work in a range of
different services across the Council. It would be possible to increase the number
of apprentices in the Council. There is currently no match funding process in place
to support these costs.

12. In April 2013, the business rates retention scheme was introduced. This served to
provide a direct link between business rates growth and the amount of money the
Council is able to spend on local people and local services. The system provides a
financial incentive for Councils to promote economic growth. This resource forms
part of the Council’s overall settlement funding assessment and is therefore used
to support the overall General Fund budget for spend on local people and local
services.

13. Under the new national business rate arrangements, the Council retains 30% of
the business rates it collects. The remainder is pooled nationally and the Council
then receives a balancing amount from the pool in the form of a ‘top-up’ allocation.
At present, the value of business rates collected in Lewisham is well below the
threshold where the Council would no longer be eligible for a ‘top-up’ via the
national reallocation. Therefore, should the Council be able to grow its business
rates base sufficiently, it will be able to retain 30% of any new growth it achieves,
without any adverse impact on future funding levels. The Government does not
intend to reset the system until 2020, at the earliest. The current collection rate is
98% and to achieve additional directly retained income of £0.8m in two years
would therefore require a net increase in business rates collected of at least £2.4m
to be generated on the current total net yield value of £46m. This represents an
increase of 5%.

A better start for families

14. The pupil premium is allocated to schools on the basis of the average number of
children who are entitled to a free school meal in the past six years. Schools
maintain the responsibility of how this is spent for those most in need and the
Council continues to work alongside the Schools Forum to ensure that the
resources are allocated appropriately and benefit those in greatest need. This
includes the Council providing its support to troubled families initiatives.

Page 402



Building a future for Lewisham

15.

16.

17.
18.

Lewisham was among the first London boroughs to decide to pay its Council
employees and sub-contracted employees the London Living Wage (LLW) from
2012 and this is an initiative which the Council continues to support and promote.
The LLW is a voluntary initiative for Councils and employers. Companies working
in Lewisham, unless contracted to do so, have no legal obligation to implement it.
Lewisham encourages the LLW to be paid in all its contracts.

The introduction of a community award scheme is possible. In December 2013,
the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) produced a
report into the ‘evaluation of the waste and recognition scheme’. lIts initial findings
concluded that “reward and recognition schemes cannot be seen as a ‘quick fix'.
They require careful consideration, time and investment, if they are not only meant
to be successful, but also to demonstrate their success and impact”

Lewisham has one of the lowest landfill rates in the country.

As part of the Lewisham Future Programme, a cross cutting review of
Environmental Services is underway looking at refuse and recycling and a thematic
review of Enforcement Activities underway looking at local standards in trading,
licensing, environment and planning.

A leaner, more responsive and more democratic public service ethos

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

There is a moderate degree of financial risk that the savings proposed to both
communications and the future cost of management could not be achieved in
2014/15. There are no specific legal implications arising from these proposed
savings, which are all legally permissible subject to proper due process being
followed in implementing them, if Council were to approve them.

The number of members in the Cabinet is by law a matter on which only the Mayor
may make a decision. Subject to statutory minimum and maximum, this is entirely
a matter for his discretion. Again by law, full Council cannot make any binding
decision on this.

Members' remuneration, including those of Cabinet members, is however a matter
for the Council to decide. This again is a matter of law. In deciding the level of
members' allowances, the Council must have regard to the advice of an
Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) which it is under a duty to establish and
maintain. Lewisham retains the services of the London wide remuneration panel
and when it last agreed the scheme of members' allowances Council had regard to
this panel's advice, and engaged the services of Sir Rodney Brooke to advise it on
the appropriateness or otherwise of the panel's suggested remuneration levels in
the Lewisham context.

Any change to the Members' Scheme of Allowances would require a decision of
full Council, having had regard to the IRP's recommendations. A new Scheme
would be subject as usual to publication requirements.

The number of Councillors can be reduced, but only after a review by the
independent Local Government Boundary Commission for England (BCE). Any
reduction in the size of the Council has to conform to statutory criteria which

Page 403



focuses on the need to achieve electoral equality in terms of electorate to
councillor ratios, to secure effective and convenient local government and to
reflect the identities and interests of local communities. The process involves a
period of public consultation with local residents and interest groups. The final
decision is taken by the BCE.

Summary

24. Members should note that these proposals, taken as a package, would require the
further use of once-off resources totalling £1.3m to ensure that a balanced budget
could be set for the 2014/15 financial year. The use of once-off resources should
be considered a temporary measure and adds to the savings target for the
following year. In this case, the approach proposed for 2014/15 would add a
further £1.3m to the already significant savings target for 2015/16.

Page 404



Agenda Iltem 14

COUNCIL
Report Title Motion 3 in the name of Councillor Brooks to be seconded by Councillor
Feakes
Key Decision no Item No.
Ward
Contributors Chief Executive (Head of Business & Committee)
Class Part 1 Date: February 26 2014

“As a London borough that is privileged to have a professional football club within our
boundaries, this Council recognizes the positive impact that team sports such as football
can have on young people's lives. In addition, this Council recognizes that all sports and
organised activities can play a vital role in local communities, and notes the benefits of
sports and leisure opportunities for local people, including vulnerable people.

This Council wishes to ensure that London retains an Olympic legacy and that young
people are encouraged to play sport, and therefore commits to support the development
and uptake of sport and other organised activities by young people across the borough of
Lewisham, through organised clubs or otherwise.

To demonstrate this support, this council calls upon the relevant Cabinet Member to make
an annual report to Council detailing the efforts that Member has made to encourage the
development of sports and other organised activities within the borough.”

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\6\8\9\ai00007986\$dx3zt3jg.doc P ag e 4 O 5



Agenda Iltem 15

COUNCIL

Report Title

Motion 4 in the name of Councillor Brooks to be seconded by Councillor
Foreman

Key Decision

No Item No.

Ward

Contributors

Chief Executive (Head of Business & Committee)

Class

Part 1 Date: February 26 2014

“This Council recognizes the historical problem of rogue landlords across the borough of
Lewisham, and welcomes the £125,000 funding recently granted to Lewisham by the
coalition government to tackle this problem.

There are currently some 50 rogue landlords and letting agencies in the borough, and
some of these own large portfolios of properties, blighting the lives of residents and
communities. Problems such as overcrowding, harassment, illegal eviction and illegal fees
present a real problem for Lewisham's residents, and can have a devastating effect on the
vulnerable. The Council commits to taking a strategic approach to tackling the problem of
rogue landlords, and improving standards in the private rented sector, to improve the lives
of Lewisham's residents. “

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\7\8\9\ai00007987\$1 C2C2Ra(g e 40 6




COUNCIL MEETING FEBRUARY 26 2014
AMENDMENTS

Amendment to Iltem : Motion 1 Proposed by Councillor Brooks
and seconded by Councillor Foreman

Motion 4: ROGUE LANDLORDS
Amendment:

First Para line 2 delete all after “the” and insert “Council’s successful bid for
£125,000 funding which has been boosted by a further £30,000 from Public
Health in recognition of the link between poor housing and poor health
outcomes. This funding will enable the Council to develop a programme which
will include a dedicated enforcement co-ordinator and paralegal which will
increase prosecutions.”

At the beginning of para 2 insert the following which becomes the new start of
the para “This Council welcomes the findings of the recent Housing Select
Committee report which highlighted..” and delete capital “T” in “there”.

Final sentence of para 2 delete “The Council commits to taking a...” and
insert “The Council’'s” Then delete all after “landlords” and insert “along with
the launching of the Private Sector Housing Agency will raise standards and

improve the lives of many Lewisham residents.
So the amended motion will read:

“This Council recognizes the historical problem of rogue landlords across the
borough of Lewisham, and welcomes the Council’s successful bid for
£125,000 funding which has been boosted by a further £30,000 from Public
Health in recognition of the link between poor housing and poor health
outcomes. This funding will enable the Council to develop a programme which
will include a dedicated enforcement co-ordinator and paralegal which will
increase prosecutions.

This Council welcomes the findings of the recent Housing Select Committee
report which highlighted there are currently some 50 rogue landlords and
letting agencies in the borough, and some of these own large portfolios of
properties, blighting the lives of residents and communities. Problems such as
overcrowding, harassment, illegal eviction and illegal fees present a real
problem for Lewisham's residents, and can have a devastating effect on the
vulnerable. The Council’s strategic approach to tackling the problem of rogue
landlords along with the launching of the Private Sector Housing Agency will
raise standards and improve the lives of many Lewisham residents.”

Proposed by: Clir Britton
Seconded by: Clir De Ryk

Page 407



	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interests
	2 Minutes
	3 Petitions
	4 Announcements or Communications
	5 Public Questions
	All Public questions and replies

	6 Member Questions
	All Member questions and replies

	7 Constitutional Amendment
	8 Budget 2014-15
	Budget 2014 Appendices

	9 Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan Adoption
	LTCLP Adoption Version

	10 Catford Regeneration Partnership Ltd 14-15 Business Plan
	CRPL business plan 14-15

	11 Pay Statement
	12 Motion 1 Proposed by Councillor Wise Seconded by Councillor Handley
	13 Motion 2 Proposed by Councillor Feakes Seconded by Councillor Maines
	Officer Commentary on LD Proposals

	14 Motion 3 Proposed by Councillor Brooks Seconded by Councillor Feakes
	15 Motion 4 Proposed by Councillor Brooks Seconded by Councillor Foreman
	amendments document


